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In 2012, our strategy drove steady 
improvements to our business and generated 
solid results. We continued to grow business 
and broadband revenue, which offset declines 
in consumer voice and wholesale revenue and 
resulted in stable revenue and cash flow. 

This consistent performance supports our 
commitment to invest in the future of our company 
while also continuing to pay our $1 annual dividend, 
which the management team and Board of Directors 
unanimously believe to be the best way to create 
value for our stockholders.

Our strategy is to maximize business and enterprise growth 
opportunities and maintain our stable consumer business  
while ensuring we have an efficient cost structure. In support  
of that strategy, we made important progress on our key 
initiatives in 2012.

2012 Accomplishments
First, we continued to grow strategic revenue. Business and 
broadband revenues now represent 70 percent of our total 
revenue – and grew by 2 percent during 2012. The business 
channel is leveraging our strengthened capabilities, advanced 
solutions and nationwide network, and — as an important 
validation of our core growth strategies — grew enterprise 
customers by 6% during 2012. 

Second, we invested in strategic capital initiatives to strengthen 
our network. This included deploying fiber deeper into our 
footprint, expanding our data centers and enhancing our 
broadband infrastructure. In addition, we made opportunistic 
capital investments to deploy fiber to wireless towers and extend 
our broadband addressability from 90 percent to 93 percent 
through our federal stimulus projects. Both the fiber to the 
tower and the stimulus capital initiatives are providing attractive 
investment returns while strengthening Windstream’s network 
capabilities and our platform for growth. 

Third, we achieved significant milestones integrating the PAETEC 
business. We are now operating as one organization, having 
combined all functional work groups and corporate systems. The 
former PAETEC markets have been rebranded and the combined 
business sales organization is leveraging our advanced solutions 
and nationwide network to gain market share and improve 
business revenues. 

Fourth, we improved our cost structure by realizing the targeted 
PAETEC synergies and completing a reorganization to streamline 
our processes and improve efficiency while lowering expenses. 
Together, these initiatives have enabled us to achieve annual  
run-rate savings of approximately $110 million.

And finally, we strengthened our balance sheet by refinancing 
certain maturities and high cost notes. Collectively, we reduced 
the amount of interest we will pay going forward by over 
$60 million and have improved our debt maturity profile by 
addressing all significant maturities though 2017.

Obviously, we are not happy with our stock performance 
during 2012 and look forward to executing on our strategy 
and differentiating our story to create value for investors. In 
addition, we remain committed to returning cash to shareholders 
in the form of our $1 annual dividend. April 15 will mark the 27th 
consecutive quarter in which we have paid this dividend and we 
expect the business and our cash flow to continue to support the 
dividend going forward.  

2013 Priorities
As a result of our progress to date and the opportunities we have 
ahead, we enter 2013 with terrific momentum. Our priorities 
include:

We will make targeted investments in our business channel, 
including opening several new data centers and hiring 
sales personnel to increase sales momentum and enhance 
the customer experience. Growing the business channel 
is an important part of our strategy, and we believe these 
investments will generate strong returns through improved 
revenue and profitability.

We expect to substantially complete our capital 
investments related to the fiber to the tower projects, 
reaching approximately 4,500 towers by year’s end. In 
addition, we will finish most of our broadband stimulus 
initiatives which expands our addressability to roughly 
75,000 new households. As we exit 2013, capital spending 
related to these projects will decrease substantially, 
resulting in improved cash flow which provides continued 
support to our dividend payment.

We plan to continue to improve the balance sheet by 
directing our excess free cash flow – after our dividend –  
to debt repayment. 

Looking Ahead 
As we pursue our long-term strategic vision, we are 
strengthening our company by creating a single culture that 
supports our goal to be the premier enterprise communications 
and services provider in the United States while maintaining our 
strong, stable consumer business. This culture is built on positive 
accountability among highly engaged associates to provide great 
customer service and drive superior results for our shareholders.

I am very happy with the progress we are making executing our 
strategic vision and I am confident that we have the right people, 
the right assets and the right strategy to make Windstream a 
force in the marketplace for the long term. As always, I want to 
thank our entire team for their diligent efforts. And, most of all, 
I want to express my deep gratitude to our shareholders for the 
support you have given all of us at Windstream. 

Jeffery R. Gardner
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 26, 2013
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_____________________________ 

NOTICE OF 2013 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To be Held May 8, 2013 
_____________________________ 

To the Stockholders of Windstream Corporation: 

Notice Is Hereby Given That the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Windstream Corporation (“Windstream”) 
will be held at the Capital Hotel, 111 West Markham, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201, on Wednesday, May 8, 2013 at 11:00 
a.m. (local time), for the following purposes:  

1. To elect nine directors to serve until the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until their successors are duly 
elected and qualified or until their earlier removal, resignation or death;  

2. To vote on an advisory (non-binding) resolution on executive compensation; 

3. To ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Windstream’s independent registered public 
accountant for 2013;  

4. To vote on three (3) stockholder proposals; and  

5. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any postponement or adjournment
thereof.  

Only holders of Common Stock of record at the close of business on March 15, 2013 are entitled to notice of and to 
vote at the Annual Meeting or at any adjournment or postponement thereof.  

Beginning on March 26, 2013, we began mailing our stockholders a notice containing instructions on how to access 
our Annual Meeting materials, including our 2012 Annual Report, Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to 
vote online.  The notice also included instructions on how to receive our Annual Meeting materials by mail.  If you received 
our Annual Meeting materials by mail, the proxy card from the Board of Directors was also enclosed. 

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

John P. Fletcher 
Secretary

Little Rock, Arkansas  
March 26, 2013  
WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, PLEASE VOTE AS SOON AS POSSIBLE 
TO RECORD YOUR VOTE PROMPTLY.  PRIOR TO THE MEETING YOU MAY VOTE ON THE INTERNET, BY 
TELEPHONE OR BY MAIL. 

Important notice regarding the availability of proxy materials for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders 
to be held on May 8, 2013:  Windstream’s Proxy Statement and Annual Report to security holders for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2012 are also available at www.windstream.com.   
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PROXY STATEMENT

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of 
Windstream Corporation (“Windstream”) to be used at its 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”). 
The meeting will be held at the Capital Hotel, 111 West Markham, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201 on Wednesday, May 8, 2013 
at 11:00 a.m. (local time).  
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INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS 
Under U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) rules, we are furnishing proxy materials to our stockholders 

primarily via the Internet, instead of mailing printed copies of those materials to each stockholder.  Beginning March 26, 
2013, we mailed to our stockholders (other than those who previously requested electronic or paper delivery) a notice 
containing instructions on how to access our proxy materials, including our proxy statement and annual report.  The notice 
also instructs stockholders on how to vote through the Internet or by telephone. 

This process is designed to expedite stockholders’ receipt of proxy materials, lower the cost of the annual meeting, 
and help conserve natural resources.  However, if you would prefer to receive printed proxy materials, please follow the 
instructions included in the notice.  If you have previously elected to receive our proxy materials electronically or in paper,
you will continue to receive these materials in accordance with your election unless you elect otherwise. 

VOTING INFORMATION 

Proxy Voting & Revocation.  Shares represented by properly executed proxies will be voted at the Annual Meeting. 
If a choice is specified by a stockholder, the proxy will be voted in accordance with that choice. If no choice is specified by a 
stockholder, the proxy will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of the Windstream Board of Directors. Any 
stockholder executing a proxy retains the right to revoke it at any time prior to exercise at the Annual Meeting. A proxy may 
be revoked by delivery of written notice of revocation to the Secretary of Windstream, by execution and delivery of a later 
proxy or by voting the shares in person at the Annual Meeting. If not revoked, all shares represented by properly executed 
proxies will be voted as specified therein.  

Record & Mailing Dates.  The close of business on March 15, 2013, has been fixed as the record date for the 
determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting or any adjournment thereof.  On the record date,
there were outstanding and entitled to vote 592,717,477 shares of Common Stock.  This proxy statement is being made 
available to stockholders of record on the record date beginning on March 26, 2013.  

Quorum.  The holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote must be present in 
person or respected by proxy to hold the Annual Meeting. 

Required Vote. On all matters to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting, each share of Common Stock is entitled to 
one vote per share.

Election of Directors.  Windstream’s Bylaws require that, in an uncontested election, each director be 
elected by the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast for his or her election.  In other words, election of a director
nominee requires that the number of shares voted “for” his or her election must exceed the number of votes cast “against” 
such election.  In a contested election (a situation in which the number of nominees exceeds the number of directors to be 
elected), the election of directors will be decided by a plurality voting standard, under which the nominees who receive the 
greatest number of votes cast for their election would be elected as directors.  The 2013 election has been determined to be an
uncontested election, and the majority vote standard will apply.  

If a nominee who is presently serving as a director is not elected at an annual meeting, Delaware law 
provides that the director would continue to serve on the Board as a “holdover director.”  However, under our Bylaws, each 
director annually submits an advance, contingent, irrevocable resignation that the Board may accept if the director fails to be
elected by a majority of the votes cast.  In that situation, the Governance Committee of the Board of Directors would consider 
the director’s tendered resignation and make a recommendation to the Board on whether to accept or reject the resignation or 
take other action. The Board will act on the Governance Committee's recommendation within 90 days from the date the 
election results are certified and then publicly disclose its decision and the rationale behind it.  If a nominee who was not 
already serving as a director fails to receive a majority of votes cast at an annual meeting, Delaware law provides that the 
nominee does not serve on the Board as a "holdover director."  All director nominees nominated by the Board for election at 
the Annual Meeting are currently serving on the Board. 

Other Matters. All other matters to be submitted to a vote by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting must 
be approved by the affirmative vote of the majority of the shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the 
matter.

Beneficial Owners of Shares Held in Street Name. If you are a beneficial owner of shares held in street name and do 
not provide the organization that holds your shares with specific voting instructions, under the rules of various national and 
regional securities exchanges, the organization that holds your shares may generally vote on routine matters but cannot vote 
on non-routine matters.  If the organization that holds your shares does not receive instructions from you on how to vote your 
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shares on a non-routine matter, the organization that holds your shares will inform the inspector of election that it does not 
have the authority to vote on this matter with respect to your shares.  This is generally referred to as a “broker non-vote.”  

The ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Windstream’s independent registered public 
accountant for 2013 (Proposal No. 3) is considered routine under applicable rules.  A broker or other nominee may generally 
vote on routine matters, and therefore no broker non-votes are expected to exist in connection with Proposal No. 3. 

The election of directors (Proposal No. 1), the advisory vote on executive compensation (Proposal No. 2) and the 
shareholder proposals (Proposals No. 4, 5 and 6) are matters considered non-routine under applicable rules.  A broker or 
other nominee cannot vote without instructions on non-routine matters, and therefore there may be broker non-votes on 
Proposals No. 1, No. 2, No. 4, No. 5 and No. 6. 

Effect of Broker Non-Votes and Abstentions. Broker non-votes and abstentions are counted for purposes of 
determining whether a quorum is present.  Broker non-votes and abstentions will have no effect on the outcome of the 
election of directors because they will not be considered votes cast.  In the case of each proposal other than election of 
directors, broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of each vote, but abstentions will have the same effect as a 
vote “AGAINST” each item.  In order to minimize the number of broker non-votes, Windstream encourages you to provide 
voting instructions to the organization that holds your shares by carefully following the instructions provided in the notice of
internet availability of proxy materials. 
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PROPOSAL NO. 1  
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The number of directors that serve on the Windstream Board of Directors is currently set at nine and may be fixed 
from time to time in the manner provided in Windstream’s Bylaws. The Board, upon the recommendation of the Governance 
Committee, has nominated the nine current members of the Board to stand for election as directors at the Annual Meeting. 
Each nominee elected will serve until the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until their successors are duly elected and 
qualified or until their earlier removal, resignation or death.  

Unless otherwise directed, the persons named in the proxy card for the Annual Meeting will vote that proxy for the 
election of the nine persons named below.  In case any nominee is unable to serve (which is not anticipated), proxies received 
will be voted for substitute nominees to be designated by the Board or, in the event no such designation is made, proxies will 
be voted for a lesser number of nominees.   

In February 2013, the Board approved several changes to its leadership structure that will become effective May 1, 
2013.  First, Jeffrey T. Hinson will become Chairman of the Board, and he will no longer serve on the Audit Committee.  
This change in the Chairman position is a continuation of the Board’s practice to review the Chairman and Committee chair 
positions for possible rotation after a three-year term, which we believe benefits the Board through the introduction of new 
perspectives to these leadership positions.  Dennis E. Foster has served as Chairman since 2010, and he will continue to serve 
as a member of the Compensation Committee following this change.  Second, Francis X. (“Skip”) Frantz will become 
Chairman of the Audit Committee, which position has been held by Mr. Hinson since 2010.   

Set forth below is biographical information for each nominee standing for election at the Annual Meeting, including 
age, a brief listing of principal occupations for at least the past five years, other major affiliations, and the specific 
experience, qualifications, attributes and skills that qualify each person to serve on Windstream’s Board of Directors.   

Carol B. Armitage, age 55, has served as a director of Windstream since September 2007, serves as Chair of the 
Governance Committee and is a member of the Audit Committee.  Ms. Armitage has served as a telecommunications 
consultant since 1998.  From 1995 to 1997 she served as Senior Vice President, Technology and Strategy at General 
Instrument.  Prior to 1995 she held various management and engineering positions during sixteen years of service with Bell 
Laboratories and Network Systems (which later became Lucent).  Since 2000, Ms. Armitage has served and held various 
leadership positions on the board of directors of SCALA, Inc., a provider of digital signage and advertising management 
solutions.  From March 2010 to March 2012, Ms. Armitage served as Chairman of SCALA, Inc.  From 2000 until February 
2010, and again starting in March 2012, she served as Vice Chairman.  From 2002 to 2004, Ms. Armitage served as 
Chairman of the Board and was on the Audit Committee of YDI Wireless (now known as Proxim Wireless Corporation), 
then a public company engaged in the development and provision of wireless fiber technologies.  

Ms. Armitage’s qualifications for election to the Board include her extensive knowledge of technologies impacting 
the communications industry based on her deep industry experience and her educational training including an M.S. in 
electrical engineering from Princeton University.  Her service on the boards of other companies has given her additional 
experience in strategic planning, financial reporting, and mergers and acquisitions. 

Samuel E. Beall, III, age 62, has served as a director of Windstream since November 2006 and serves as Chairman 
of the Compensation Committee.  Mr. Beall is a principal in Beall Investments LLC, a private investment company.  Mr. 
Beall served as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Ruby Tuesday, Inc., a New York Stock Exchange 
listed company that owns and operates casual dining restaurants under the Ruby Tuesday brand, from May 1995 to June 
2012, and as President of Ruby Tuesday, Inc. from July 2004 until June 2012. 

Mr. Beall’s qualifications for election to the Board include his recent experience as the chief executive officer of a 
public company, which provides him the ability to understand and address Windstream’s challenges and opportunities as a 
public company.  As a former chief executive officer of a public company and a director of several private businesses, he has 
insight on managing complex business operations, overseeing business risk, designing compensation programs that motivate 
people, and developing national advertising campaigns. 

Dennis E. Foster, age 72, has served as a director of Windstream since July 2006, serves as Chairman of the Board 
and is a member of the Compensation Committee.  From July 2006 to February 2010, he served as Lead Director, and he has 
served as Chairman of the Board since 2010.  In May 2013, Mr. Foster will no longer serve as Chairman of the Board, and 
Mr. Foster will continue to serve as a member of the Compensation Committee following this change.  Mr. Foster is a 
principal in Foster Thoroughbred Investments (thoroughbred racing, breeding and training operations) in Cle Elum, 
Washington, which he joined in June 1995.  Mr. Foster served as a director of Alltel Corporation from 1998 through 2006.  
Prior to his retirement in 2000, Mr. Foster held a number of leadership positions in the telecommunications industry, 
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including President and Chief Executive Officer of 360° Communications and Senior Vice President of the Local 
Telecommunications Division of Sprint Corporation, and he has over 40 years of experience in the telecommunications 
industry.  

Mr. Foster’s qualifications for election to the Board include his ability to provide the insight and perspectives of a 
successful and long-serving senior executive in the telecommunications industry.  Having formerly served as president and 
chief executive officer of a telecommunications company, he has insight on managing people, overseeing business risk and 
understanding financial statements.  As a result of past service as Chairman of the Windstream Board and its Governance 
Committee, current service on Windstream’s Compensation Committee, and prior service as a director of other public 
companies (including service as Chairman of the compensation and audit committees of such companies), Mr. Foster also has 
particular experience with corporate governance issues, as well as the capital markets, the challenges of financing in the 
current economy, and the merger and acquisitions environment. 

Francis X. (“Skip”) Frantz, age 59, has served as a director of Windstream since 2006 and a member of the Audit 
Committee since August 2012.  From July 2006 to February 2010, he served as Chairman of the Windstream Board.  
Beginning in May 2013, Mr. Frantz will serve as the Audit Committee Chairman.  Mr. Frantz has served as Chairman of 
Central Bank (a community bank in Little Rock, Arkansas) since February 2007, as non-executive Chairman of Swyft 
Technology, LLC (a software-as-a-service technology provider in Jacksonville, Florida) since February 2010, and as a board 
member of Recover Gear, LLC (an athletic apparel company specializing in compression/recovery gear branded “100% Play 
Harder” in Ponte Vedra Beach, Florida) since June 2012.  Prior to January 2006, Mr. Frantz was Executive Vice President-
External Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary of Alltel Corporation.  Mr. Frantz joined Alltel in 1990 as Senior Vice 
President and General Counsel and was appointed Secretary in January 1992 and Executive Vice President in July 1998.  
While with Alltel, he was responsible for Alltel’s mergers and acquisitions negotiations, wholesale services group, federal 
and state government and external affairs, corporate communications, administrative services, and corporate governance, in 
addition to serving as Alltel’s chief legal officer.  Mr. Frantz served as the 2006 and 2007 Chairman of the Board and of the 
Executive Committee of the United States Telecom Association.   

Mr. Frantz’s qualifications for election to the Board include his ability to provide insight and perspective on a wide 
range of issues facing business enterprises based on his long tenure as a senior executive in the telecommunications industry. 
Mr. Frantz’s over 15-year career as a senior telecom executive in various capacities provides him with a thorough 
understanding of all aspects of Windstream’s business, and his service as a director and Chairman of the United States 
Telecom Association provides Mr. Frantz with additional experience and insight in telecommunications policy and 
regulation.  Through his current involvement with several private companies and his prior role as Chairman of Windstream 
and, before that, as a senior executive at Alltel Corporation, Mr. Frantz has extensive experience in corporate governance, 
mergers and acquisitions, risk management, government policy and regulation, and capital market transactions, in addition to 
the specific aspects of the telecom industry.  Based on his role as Chairman of two private commercial businesses, including 
a regulated commercial bank, his service on the Windstream Audit Committee and prior service as an executive officer at 
Alltel, the Windstream Board has determined that Mr. Frantz qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert,” as defined by 
the rules of the SEC.   

Jeffery R. Gardner, age 53, is President and Chief Executive Officer of Windstream.  Mr. Gardner was appointed 
to his current position in December 2005, and he has served as a director of Windstream since its formation in 2006.  He 
previously served as executive vice president and chief financial officer of Alltel Corporation.  He joined Alltel in 1998 when
it merged with 360° Communications. 

Mr. Gardner is a member of the Business Roundtable, an association of chief executive officers of leading U.S. 
companies.  He also is Chairman of the United States Telecom Association.  He serves on the board of directors of RF Micro 
Devices, Inc., Arkansas Children's Hospital, Darlington School, and Loras College. He serves as Chairman of the Arkansas 
Research Alliance and as Chairman of the advisory board for the University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences (UAMS) 
Center for Distance Health.  He also serves on the foundation board at UAMS.  Mr. Gardner was named a national finalist for 
the Ernst & Young LLP Entrepreneur of the Year 2010® Award in telecommunications. Mr. Gardner earned a degree in 
finance from Purdue University and an MBA from William and Mary and is a certified public accountant.   

The Board believes it is important that Windstream’s Chief Executive Officer serve on the Board, as the position of 
Chief Executive Officer puts Mr. Gardner in a unique position to understand the challenges and issues facing Windstream.  
Mr. Gardner’s qualifications for election to the Board include the same demonstrated leadership skills and experience that 
qualify him to serve as Chief Executive Officer of Windstream.  Mr. Gardner has worked in the telecommunications industry 
for more than 25 years and is executing a focused strategy to transform Windstream into the premier enterprise 
communications and service provider in the United States and to create value for its stockholders.  Under his leadership, 
Windstream has completed nine acquisitions since its spin-off from Alltel in 2006, adding more than $4 billion in revenue 
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and creating approximately $300 million in operating and capital synergies.  Mr. Gardner’s service on the boards of another 
public company and several non-profit organizations also provides him with a broad perspective on the challenges and 
opportunities facing Windstream and the communities it serves. 

Jeffrey T. Hinson, age 58, has served as a director of Windstream since its formation in 2006 and is the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee.  Beginning in May 2013, Mr. Hinson will become Chairman of the Board and will no longer serve 
on the Audit Committee.  Mr. Hinson has been the President of YouPlus Media LLC, a video content marketing firm, since 
2009.  From July 2007 to July 2009, Mr. Hinson served as the President and Chief Executive Officer and a member of the 
board of directors of Border Media Partners, LLC, a Hispanic-focused radio broadcasting company.  Mr. Hinson previously 
served in a number of roles at Univision Communications Inc., a Spanish language media company, including as Executive 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from March 2004 to June 2005 and as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer of Univision Radio, the radio division of Univision Communications, from September 2003 to March 2004.  From 
1997 to 2003, Mr. Hinson served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Hispanic Broadcasting Corporation, 
which was acquired by Univision Communications in 2003 and became Univision Radio.  Since 2005, Mr. Hinson has been a 
director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Live Nation Entertainment, Inc. (NYSE: LYV), a global entertainment 
company that promotes live music events, operates music venues, sells tickets to entertainment and sporting events, and 
provides management services to music recording artists.  Since 2007, he has also served as a director and as Chairman of the 
Audit Committee of TiVo, Inc., a provider of subscription-based DVR services and interactive video advertising, and is a 
director, Audit Committee member and Chairman of the Nominating and Governance Committee of Ares Commercial Real 
Estate Corporation (NYSE: ACRE), a specialty finance company focused on originating, investing in and managing middle-
market commercial real estate loans and investments.   

Mr. Hinson’s qualifications for election to the Board include his professional background and experience, his 
previously held senior-executive level positions for two pubic companies, his service on other public company boards, and 
his financial expertise.  The Windstream Board has determined that Mr. Hinson qualifies as an “audit committee financial 
expert,” as defined by the rules of the SEC.  His service on the board of other public companies in diverse industries gives 
him unique insight to corporate governance matters affecting public companies and also allows him to offer a broad 
perspective on the challenges and opportunities facing Windstream. 

Judy K. Jones, age 69, has served as a director of Windstream since its formation in 2006.  Ms. Jones serves as a 
member of the Audit Committee and the Governance Committee.  She is currently a member of the board of directors of 
Lovelace Respiratory Research Institute (LRRI) and of the Mind Research Network, a wholly-owned not-for-profit
subsidiary of LRRI.  She held various senior administrative positions at the University of New Mexico from 1988 to 2006, 
including Vice President for Advancement, Associate Vice President for Strategic Initiatives (Health Sciences Center) and 
Chief of Staff to the President of the University.  She also held senior administrative positions with New Mexico state 
government and is a former management consultant serving public sector clients for a major national accounting firm. 

Ms. Jones’ qualifications for election to the Board include her expertise in financial accounting matters.  Through 
her prior experience as a senior executive at a state university and in state government and on the boards of non-profit 
institutions, Ms. Jones has experience in reviewing and evaluating financial statements, financial budgets and forecasts, 
investment portfolios of public endowments, and other public finance matters.  The Windstream Board has determined that 
Ms. Jones qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert,” as defined by the rules of the SEC.  Her broad state government 
and higher education experience also allows her to offer insights and perspectives on government policy, structure and 
operations, public relations and marketing issues, the needs of higher education and government entities (which are an 
important customer segment for Windstream), and information technology and strategic planning. 

William A. Montgomery, age 64, has served as a director of Windstream since its formation in 2006 and is a 
member of the Compensation Committee and the Governance Committee.  From 2007 to 2012, Mr. Montgomery served as 
Chairman of the Compensation Committee.  Mr. Montgomery has been a private investor since 1999. From 1989 to 1999, 
Mr. Montgomery was Chief Executive Officer of SA-SO Company, a company engaged in the distribution of municipal and 
traffic control products based in Dallas, Texas. Prior to 1989, Mr. Montgomery worked as a registered representative in the 
financial services industry and has over 12 years of experience in the financial services industry, most recently serving with 
Morgan Stanley in the Private Client Services group from 1985 to 1989.  Mr. Montgomery previously served as a director of 
Hicks Acquisition Corp. I, Inc., a special purpose entity formed for the purpose of effecting a merger or other business 
combination with one or more businesses, from its inception in 2007 through the consummation of a business combination 
with Resolute Energy Corporation in 2009. 

Mr. Montgomery’s qualifications for election to the Board include his wide range of financial and business 
experience.  In his role as a member of Compensation Committee of Windstream and through his professional career 
including his prior role as a chief executive officer of a private company, Mr. Montgomery has experience in strategic 
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planning, risk management, compensation plans and policies, and capital market transactions.  Mr. Montgomery’s service on 
the boards of non-profit organizations also provides him with a broad perspective on the challenges and opportunities facing 
Windstream and the communities it serves. 

Alan L. Wells, age 53, has served as a director of Windstream since 2010 and is a founding partner of Financial 
Advisory Partners, LLC, which makes private equity investments and provides financial advisory services to mid-sized 
companies in the Midwest. He served as Chief Executive Officer of Iowa Telecommunication Services, Inc. (“Iowa 
Telecom”) (NYSE: IWA) from 2002 to 2010 and Chairman of its board of directors from 2004 to 2010.  He joined Iowa 
Telecom in 1999 as President and Chief Operating Officer, and was appointed to the role of President and Chief Executive 
Officer in 2002.  Prior to joining Iowa Telecom, Mr. Wells was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at 
MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company (MidAmerican) (NYSE: MEC), a Des Moines, Iowa-based electric and gas utility 
holding company, from 1997 until 1999. During the same period, Mr. Wells also served as President of MidAmerican's non-
regulated businesses. Mr. Wells held various executive and management positions with MidAmerican, its subsidiaries, and 
Iowa-Illinois Gas and Electric, one of its predecessors, from 1993 through 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Wells was with Deloitte 
Consulting (previously Deloitte & Touche Consulting) and previously held various positions with the Public Utility 
Commission of Texas and Illinois Power Company.  

Mr. Wells’ qualifications for election to the Board include his broad background and experience, his wide range of 
operational and financial experiences in regulated industries, and his prior experience as a senior executive with two public 
companies.  Through his prior experience as a senior executive in the telecommunications and other regulated industries, he 
has insight on managing complex regulated enterprises, developing strategic plans in changing regulatory environments, 
overseeing financial reporting processes, and executing large capital market transactions. 

Board Recommendation 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE 

“FOR” EACH OF THE FOREGOING NOMINEES.  

PROXIES SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL BE VOTED “FOR” EACH OF THE 
FOREGOING NOMINEES UNLESS STOCKHOLDERS SPECIFY A CONTRARY VOTE.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MATTERS

Board Meetings. During 2012, there were ten meetings of Windstream’s Board. All of the directors attended 75% or 
more of the meetings of the Windstream Board of Directors and Board Committees on which they served during the periods 
in which they served. Directors are expected to attend each annual meeting of stockholders.  Each director attended the 2012 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. 

Independence. The Windstream Board of Directors has affirmatively determined that all of the nominees for 
director, except Messrs. Jeffery R. Gardner and Alan L. Wells, have no material relationship with Windstream and are 
independent directors under NASDAQ listing standards.  Each of the director nominees was elected at the 2012 Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders.   

Categorical Standards.  The Board has adopted categorical standards for use in determining whether any 
relationship between a director and Windstream is a material relationship that would impair the director's independence.  
Specifically, the Board has determined that one or more relationships between a director and Windstream during the past 
three fiscal years will not constitute a material relationship that would interfere with the director's exercise of independent
judgment if each such relationship falls within one or more of the following categorical standards: 

(1) The director, or one or more members of the director’s immediate family, purchased services or products from 
Windstream in the ordinary course of business and on terms generally available to employees or customers;  

(2) The director, or one or more members of the director’s immediate family, was either a director of an entity or 
owned five percent or less of an entity, or both, that has a business relationship with Windstream, as long as the 
director or immediate family member was not an executive officer or employee of such entity;  

(3) The director or one or more members of the director’s immediate family was a director or trustee of an entity 
that had a charitable relationship with Windstream and that made payments to, or received payments from, 
Windstream in any fiscal year in an amount representing less than $100,000 for the year in question; 

(4) The director or a member of the director’s immediate family was a partner, controlling shareholder, executive 
officer or employee of an entity that made payments to, or received payments from, Windstream in any year in 
question that account for less than $200,000 or, if greater, five percent of the recipient’s consolidated gross 
revenues for the year in question. 

Leadership Structure.  Since the inception of Windstream, the positions of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman 
have been held by separate individuals. Mr. Gardner has served as Windstream’s CEO from 2006 to the present, and Mr. 
Frantz served as Chairman of Windstream from 2006 to 2010.  Mr. Foster has served as Chairman of the Board since 
February 2010, and as discussed above, Mr. Hinson has been appointed to succeed Mr. Foster as Chairman of the Board 
effective May 1, 2013.   

The Board of Directors believes its current board leadership structure improves the ability of the Board of Directors 
to exercise its oversight role over management by having a director who is not an officer or member of management to serve 
in the role of Chairman, which ensures a significant role for independent directors in the leadership of Windstream.  Having 
an independent Chairman also simplifies Windstream’s corporate governance structure by allowing the Chairman to convene 
executive sessions with independent directors and dispensing with the need for a separate director to discharge the role of 
Lead Director.  

Executive Sessions.  The Windstream Corporate Governance Board Guidelines specify that the independent 
directors of the Board must meet at regularly scheduled executive sessions without management and that an independent 
director, or the Lead Director, selected from time to time by the independent directors shall preside at executive sessions of 
independent directors. The Windstream Board of Directors designated Mr. Foster to serve as the Lead Director during his 
tenure as Chairman, and Mr. Hinson will also succeed to this role of Lead Director when he becomes Chairman of the Board 
in May 2013.  During 2012, the executive sessions of the independent directors specified in the Board Guidelines generally 
occurred at the end of each regular meeting of the Board.   

Board Committees.  The standing Committees of the Windstream Board of Directors are the Audit Committee, 
Compensation Committee and the Governance Committee. Each of the Audit, Compensation and Governance Committees 
has a written charter and is comprised entirely of independent directors, as defined under NASDAQ listing standards.  A brief 
description of the functions of the Audit, Compensation and Governance Committees is set forth below.  

Audit Committee.  The Audit Committee held ten meetings during 2012.  The Audit Committee assists the 
Windstream Board of Directors in overseeing Windstream’s consolidated financial statements and financial reporting 
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process, disclosure controls and procedures and systems of internal accounting and financial controls, independent auditors’ 
engagement, performance, independence and qualifications, internal audit function, and legal and regulatory compliance and 
ethics programs as established by Windstream management and the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee has been 
established by the Windstream Board of Directors for the purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting 
processes of Windstream and the audits of the consolidated financial statements of Windstream as contemplated by 
Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. 
Hinson, as Chairman, and Mr. Frantz and Mses. Armitage and Jones, and the Windstream Board of Directors has determined 
that each of Messrs. Hinson and Frantz and Ms. Jones is an “audit committee financial expert”, as defined by the rules of the 
SEC. Effective May 1, 2013, Mr. Hinson will no longer serve as a member of the Audit Committee as he transitions to the 
role of the Chairman of the Board, and Mr. Frantz will assume the role of the Chairman of the Audit Committee.   

Compensation Committee.  The Compensation Committee held four meetings during 2012. The Compensation 
Committee assists the Windstream Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibility related to the compensation 
programs, plans, and awards for Windstream’s directors and principal officers. For more information regarding the 
Compensation Committee, see “Management Compensation – Compensation Discussion and Analysis”. The members of the 
Compensation Committee are Mr. Beall, as Chairman, Messrs. Foster and Montgomery.   

Governance Committee.  The Governance Committee held four meetings during 2012.  Since February 2012, the 
Governance Committee has been comprised of Ms. Armitage, as Chair, Ms. Jones and Mr. Montgomery.  The Governance 
Committee oversees Windstream’s director nomination and screening process, succession planning for the Chief Executive 
Officer position, the annual self-evaluation of the Board and each Board Committee, compliance with Windstream’s related 
party transaction policy and stock ownership guidelines, and oversees spending on political activities by Windstream.  On an 
annual basis, the Governance Committee reviews and assesses Windstream’s Corporate Governance Board Guidelines and 
recommends any proposed changes to the Board of Directors for approval.   

The Governance Committee identifies individuals qualified to become members of the Windstream Board of 
Directors and recommends director nominees to the Board for each annual meeting of stockholders. The Governance 
Committee identifies candidates through various methods, including recommendation from directors, management, and 
stockholders. The Governance Committee has the sole authority to retain and terminate search firms to be used to identify 
director candidates and to approve the search firm’s fees and other retention terms. The Governance Committee periodically 
reviews with the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer the appropriate skills and characteristics required of Board 
members in the context of the composition of the Board and an assessment of the needs of the Board from time to time. The 
Governance Committee considers applicable Board and Board committee independence requirements imposed by 
Windstream’s Corporate Governance Board Guidelines, NASDAQ listing standards, and applicable law. The Governance 
Committee also considers, on a case-by-case basis, the number of other boards and board committees on which a director 
candidate serves. The Governance Committee seeks candidates who evidence personal characteristics of high personal and 
professional integrity; intelligence and independent judgment; broad training and experience at the policy-making level in 
business; strong interpersonal and communication skills; demonstrated ability to solve problems and to build consensus 
among diverse viewpoints; a commitment to serve on the Board over a period of several years to develop knowledge about 
Windstream, its strategy, and its principal operations; a willingness to evaluate management performance objectively; and the 
absence of activities or interests that could conflict with the director’s responsibilities to Windstream. The Governance 
Committee does not have a formal policy on diversity with regard to consideration of director nominees, but the Governance 
Committee considers diversity in its selection of nominees and seeks to have a board that reflects a diverse range of views, 
backgrounds and experience.   

The Governance Committee will consider director candidates recommended by stockholders. To qualify for such 
consideration, stockholder recommendations must be submitted to the Governance Committee in accordance with the 
substantive and procedural requirements set forth in Windstream’s Bylaws, as discussed below under the caption “Other 
Matters.”  The Governance Committee does not have a specific policy regarding the consideration of stockholder 
recommendations for director candidates because the Committee intends to evaluate stockholder recommendations in the 
same manner as it evaluates director candidates recommended by other sources.  

Risk Oversight. Management of Windstream has the primary responsibility for managing the risks facing 
Windstream, subject to the oversight of the Board of Directors.  Each Committee of the Board assists the Board of Directors 
to discharge its risk oversight role by performing the subject matter responsibilities outlined above in the description of each
Committee.  The Board of Directors retains full oversight responsibility for all subject matters not assigned to Committees 
including risks presented by business strategy, competition, regulation, general industry trends including the disruptive 
impact of technological change, capital structure and allocation, and mergers and acquisitions. The Board of Directors 
supplements its ability to discharge its risk oversight role by receiving a report on the results of an annual risk assessment of 
Windstream that is prepared by the Internal Audit Department. This survey is used primarily to assist the Internal Audit 
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Department to prepare the scope of its annual audit plan, subject to the review and approval of the Audit Committee.  Internal 
Audit prepares the risk assessment by conducting risk assessment interviews and surveys with management across 
Windstream to identify individual process and Company-wide risks. An annual report on the top risks to Windstream 
identified by this assessment process is presented to the Audit Committee and the full Board. 

The Board’s discharge of its risk oversight role has not specifically affected the Board’s leadership structure 
discussed above. Rather, in establishing the current leadership structure of the Board of Directors, risk oversight was one 
factor among many considered. The Board regularly reviews its leadership structure and evaluates whether it, and the Board 
as a whole, is functioning effectively.  If in the future the Board believes that a change in its leadership structure is required 
to, or potentially could, improve the Board’s risk oversight role, it may make any change it deems appropriate.  

Corporate Governance Documents.  Windstream’s Corporate Governance Board Guidelines, its code of ethics 
policy entitled “Working With Integrity”, and the charters for the Audit, Compensation and Governance Committees are 
available on the Investor Relations page of the Windstream Corporation website at www.windstream.com/investors. Copies 
of each of these documents are also available to stockholders who submit a request to Windstream Corporation, ATTN: 
Investor Relations, 4001 Rodney Parham Road, Little Rock, AR 72212.  

Stockholder Communications.  Stockholders and other interested parties may contact the Chairman of the Board or 
the non-management directors of the Windstream Board of Directors by writing to Windstream Corporation, 
ATTN:  Chairman of the Board or Non-Management Directors, c/o Corporate Secretary, 4001 Rodney Parham Road, Little 
Rock, AR 72212. 
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STOCK OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES

The Windstream Board of Directors has adopted minimum stock ownership guidelines for Windstream’s directors 
and executive officers. Directors who are not executive officers are expected to maintain beneficial ownership of shares of 
Windstream Common Stock valued at least five times the annual cash retainer paid to non-management directors. Executive 
officers are expected to maintain beneficial ownership of shares of Common Stock at the following levels: ten times base 
salary for the Chief Executive Officer; five times base salary for each of the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer
and General Counsel; and three times base salary for all other executive officers. Directors have a transition period of five 
years from their initial election, and executive officers have a transition period of three years from their initial election to
meet the applicable ownership guidelines and, thereafter, one year to meet any increased ownership requirements resulting 
from changes in stock price, annual base fee, annual base salary, or applicable ownership levels occurring since the initial 
deadline.  During the transition period and until the director or officer satisfies the specified ownership levels, the guidelines
impose a retention ratio that provides that each officer and director is expected to retain at least 50% of the shares received,
net of tax payment obligations, upon the vesting of restricted stock or the exercise of stock options.  Directors and officers are 
also required to hold for at least six months all shares received, net of tax payment obligations, upon vesting of restricted 
stock or the exercise of stock options. For the purposes of the guidelines, unvested shares or units of restricted stock 
(including the performance-based restricted stock units granted beginning in 2011) are considered to be owned. 

Based on the foregoing and as of March 1, 2013, the table below sets forth the number of shares of Common Stock 
that each named executive officer is expected to own by the Annual Meeting, which amounts were determined based on each 
person’s position with Windstream, the person’s base salary and the closing price of Windstream common stock, in each case 
as of the date of Windstream’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and the number of shares deemed owned under the 
guidelines: 

Named Executive Officers Guideline Share Amount Shares Owned (1) 
Jeffery R. Gardner 888,099 2,322,365 
Anthony W. Thomas 222,025 459,959 
Brent Whittington 281,972 630,646 
John P. Fletcher 222,025 518,121 
Cynthia B. Nash 99,911 354,554 

(1) This amount differs from the amount reported in the “Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers” table 
because unvested performance-based RSUs are deemed to be owned under the guidelines but not for purposes of the 
SEC rules that drive the disclosure in the “Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers” table. 

Based on current ownership amounts, Windstream expects that each of its executive officers will be in compliance 
with the stock ownership guidelines at the time of the Annual Meeting.  Following the Annual Meeting, the executive 
officers will have until 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to meet any increased share guidelines resulting from changes 
in stock price, annual base salary or ownership levels since the date of the Annual Meeting.  

The table below sets forth and as of March 1, 2013, the number of shares of Common Stock that each non-
management director is expected to own and the number of shares deemed owned under the guidelines.  Based on current 
ownership amounts, Windstream expects that each non-management director will be in compliance with the stock ownership 
guidelines at the time of the Annual Meeting. 

Non-Management Director Guideline Share Amount Shares Owned 
Carol B. Armitage  26,643 (1) 49,463 
Samuel E. Beall, III  26,643 (1) 67,626 
Dennis E. Foster  26,643 (1) 291,790 
Francis X. (“Skip”) Frantz  26,643 (1) 683,517 
Jeffrey T. Hinson  26,643 (1) 54,411 
Judy K. Jones  26,643 (1) 52,667 
William A. Montgomery  26,643 (1) 85,193 
Alan L. Wells  28,116 (2) 272,912 

(1) Guideline to be met by 2013 Annual Meeting. 
(2) Guideline to be met by 2015 Annual Meeting. 
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Set forth below is certain information, as of March 1, 2013, as to shares of Windstream Common Stock beneficially 
owned by each director, by each named executive officer who was serving as an executive officer at the end of 2012, and by 
all directors and executive officers of Windstream as a group. Except as otherwise indicated by footnote, the nature of the 
beneficial ownership is sole voting and investment power, and no shares are pledged as security:  

Amount and Nature of 
Beneficial Ownership   

Name of 
Beneficial Owners 

Shares Beneficially 
Owned (1) 

Unvested
Restricted
Shares (2) 

Total Shares 
Beneficially Owned 

(3) 
Percent of Class 
(if 1% or more) 

Non-Management Directors 
Carol B. Armitage 
Samuel E. Beall, III 
Dennis E. Foster  
Francis X. (“Skip”) Frantz 
Jeffrey T. Hinson 
Judy K. Jones 
William A. Montgomery 
Alan L. Wells 

39,270 
57,433 

 281,597 (4) 
 673,324 (5) 

44,218 
42,474 
75,000 

 262,719 

10,193 
10,193 
10,193 
10,193 
10,193 
10,193 
10,193 
10,193 

49,463 
67,626 

291,790 
683,517 

54,411 
52,667 
85,193 

272,912 

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

    
Named Executive Officers 
Jeffery R. Gardner 
Anthony W. Thomas 
Brent Whittington 
John P. Fletcher 
Cynthia B. Nash 

 1,441,729 (6) 
203,416 
306,828 
261,578 
212,996 

151,860 
149,090 
178,440 
149,090 

87,159 

1,593,589 
352,506 
485,268 
410,668 
300,155 

*
*
*
*
*

    
All Directors and Executive 

Officers as a Group 3,902,582 797,183 4,699,765 * 

*indicates less than 1 percent 
(1) Excludes unvested restricted shares and includes shares of Common Stock owned directly and shares held in the person’s 

account under the Windstream 401(k) Plan, which are as follows: Gardner 46,744, Thomas 6,130, Whittington 2,478, 
Fletcher 17,021, and Nash -0-. 

(2) Unvested shares of restricted stock are deemed beneficially owned because grantees of unvested restricted stock under 
Windstream’s equity compensation plans hold the sole right to vote such shares.  To date, Windstream has not granted 
stock options or other similar instruments that would provide the right to acquire beneficial ownership of Common 
Stock.  

(3) Windstream grants performance-based restricted stock units (PBRSUs) to its executive officers.  Because unvested 
PBRSUs do not provide the recipients the right to vote or other elements of beneficial ownership as defined under SEC 
rules and will not vest within 60 days from March 1, 2013, all unvested outstanding PBRSUs are omitted from this table.  
For informational purposes, the following table shows the outstanding unvested PBRSUs granted to each named 
executive officer:

Named Executive Officers 
Total Shares Beneficially 

Owned

Unvested Performance-
Based Restricted Stock 

Units (PBRSUs) 

Total Shares Beneficially 
Owned Including 

PBRSUs
Jeffery R. Gardner 
Anthony W. Thomas 
Brent Whittington 
John P. Fletcher 
Cynthia B. Nash 

1,593,589 
352,506 
485,268 
410,668 
300,155 

728,776 
107,453 
145,378 
107,453 

54,399 

2,322,365 
459,959 
630,646 
518,121 
354,554 

(4) Includes 16,742 shares held by Mr. Foster’s spouse and by account for grandchildren for which Mr. Foster serves as 
custodian.  These shares are deemed beneficially owned under SEC rules, but Mr. Foster disclaims beneficial ownership.   

(5) Includes 700 shares held in trust for the benefit of Mr. Frantz’s spouse and children.  Mr. Frantz’s spouse is the trustee of 
the trust.  These shares are deemed beneficially owned under SEC rules, but Mr. Frantz disclaims beneficial ownership.   

(6) Includes 11,900 shares held for the benefit of Mr. Gardner’s children and as account custodian.  These shares are deemed 
beneficially owned under SEC rules, but Mr. Gardner disclaims beneficial ownership.   
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS 

Set forth below is information, as of March 1, 2013, with respect to any person known to Windstream to be the 
beneficial owner of more than 5% of any class of Windstream’s voting securities, all of which are shares of Common Stock:  

Title of Class 
Name and Address 

of Beneficial Owner 
Amount and Nature 

of Beneficial Ownership 
Percent of 

Class
Common Stock Blackrock, Inc. 

40 East 52nd Street 
New York, NY 10022 

30,670,330 (1) 5.22% 

Common Stock The Vanguard Group, Inc. 
100 Vanguard Blvd. 
Malvern, PA 19355 

34,455,899 (2) 6.02% 

(1) Based upon information contained in Schedule 13G filed on February 4, 2013, Blackrock, Inc. has sole voting and 
investment control over these shares.  

(2) Based upon information contained in Schedule 13G filed on February 7, 2013, Vanguard, Inc., has sole voting power 
over 1,030,982 shares, sole dispositive power over 34,455,899 shares, and shared dispositive power over 980,082 shares.   
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT 
ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This report provides information concerning the Compensation Committee of Windstream Corporation’s Board of 
Directors. The Compensation Committee’s Charter is available on the Investor Relations page of Windstream Corporation’s 
website at www.windstream.com/investors. The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors, as 
defined and required by NASDAQ listing standards.  

The Compensation Committee has reviewed the disclosures under the caption “Compensation Discussion and 
Analysis” contained in Windstream Corporation’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2013 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders and has discussed such disclosures with the management of Windstream Corporation. Based on such review 
and discussion, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Windstream Board of Directors that the “Compensation 
Discussion and Analysis” be included in Windstream Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2012 and Windstream Corporation’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2013 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  

The Compensation Committee
Samuel E. Beall, III, Chairman
Dennis E. Foster
William A. Montgomery
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

This report provides information concerning the Audit Committee of Windstream Corporation’s Board of Directors. 
The Audit Committee’s Charter is available on the Investor Relations page of Windstream Corporation’s website at 
www.windstream.com/investors. The Audit Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors, as defined and 
required by NASDAQ listing standards and comprised entirely of directors who are financially literate.  Additionally, 
Messrs. Hinson and Frantz and Ms. Jones qualify as audit committee financial experts.  

In connection with its function to oversee and monitor Windstream Corporation’s financial reporting process, the 
Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with Windstream Corporation’s management the audited consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2012; discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Windstream Corporation’s 
independent registered public accountant, the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as 
amended, as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T; received the written disclosures 
and the letter from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board regarding the independent accountant’s communications with the audit committee concerning 
independence, and has discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP its independence. 

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to Windstream 
Corporation’s Board of Directors that the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 be 
included in Windstream Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 for filing 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  

The Audit Committee
Jeffrey T. Hinson, Chairman
Carol B. Armitage 
Francis X. (“Skip”) Frantz 
Judy K. Jones
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MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION 

Compensation Discussion and Analysis  

General. This Compensation Discussion and Analysis provides information regarding the compensation paid to our 
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and certain other executive officers who were the most highly compensated 
in fiscal year 2012. These individuals, referred to as “named executive officers” or “NEOs,” are identified below:  

Jeffery R. Gardner, President and Chief Executive Officer 
Anthony W. Thomas, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 
Brent Whittington, Chief Operating Officer 
John P. Fletcher, Executive Vice President and General Counsel 
Cynthia B. Nash, Chief Information Officer 

Compensation Philosophy.  Windstream’s executive compensation program is designed to achieve the following 
objectives:  

Provide a high correlation between pay and performance; 

Align management’s interests with the long-term interests of Windstream’s stockholders; and 

Provide competitive compensation and incentives to attract and retain key executives. 

Below we highlight certain executive compensation practices we employ to further these objectives. Also listed 
below are certain compensation practices we do not employ because we believe them to be inconsistent with our 
compensation objectives.  

What We Do:

Equity-Based Compensation – A substantial portion of total  NEO compensation is paid in equity-based 
compensation in the form of restricted stock and restricted stock units, whose value is directly correlated to 
the performance of our stock.  This practice achieves a strong alignment between interests of management 
and our stockholders. 

At-Risk Compensation – At least 73% of NEO pay, and 85% for our CEO, is contingent upon achievement 
of certain corporate performance goals.  

Clawback Policy – We maintain a clawback policy that allows us to recover incentive compensation that is 
derived from financial statements filed with the SEC that are subsequently subject to restatement and 
certain other conditions are satisfied. 

Robust Stock Ownership Guidelines – We have robust stock ownership guidelines that apply to all 
executive officers and require that, among other things, our CEO own Windstream stock valued at 10 times 
his base salary.  

Independent Compensation Consulting Firm – The Compensation Committee benefits from its utilization 
of an independent compensation consulting firm which provides no other services to the Company. 

Regular Review of Share Utilization – We evaluate share utilization by reviewing overhang levels (dilutive 
impact of equity compensation on our stockholders) and annual run rates (the aggregate shares awarded as 
a percentage of total outstanding shares).  

What We Don’t Do:

No Dividends or Dividend Equivalents on Unearned Performance Based Equity Awards – No dividends or 
dividend equivalents are paid on performance based equity awards unless and until all performance 
conditions are met.  

No Single Trigger – Our equity awards provide for accelerated vesting of future awards after a change in 
control if an employee is also terminated within two years of the change in control (a double trigger) rather 
than upon the transaction itself (single trigger).  
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No Hedging Transactions – Our directors and executive officers are prohibited from engaging in any 
transaction involving derivative securities intended to hedge the market risk in our stock, pledging our 
stock, or purchasing our stock on loan or margin. 

No Repricings – Our stock incentive plans prohibit us from repricing options without stockholder approval.  

No Tax Gross-ups – Our compensation programs do not provide for the gross-up or reimbursement of taxes 
for executive officers in any situation.  

No Special Perquisites for Former Executives – We do not have perquisites for former and/or retired 
executives that differ materially from those available to employees generally.  

No Top Hat Plan – We do not have a top hat plan or other supplemental executive retirement plan. 

Our Board recognizes the fundamental interest our stockholders have in the compensation of our executive officers. 
At the 2012 Annual Meeting, our stockholders approved by a vote of over 92 percent the compensation of our named 
executive officers. Based upon the results of such vote and our review of our compensation policies and decisions, we believe 
that our existing compensation policies and decisions are consistent with our compensation philosophy and objectives 
discussed below and adequately align the interests of our named executive officers with the long term goals of Windstream.  

Stockholders at the 2013 Annual Meeting will be asked to again approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of 
our named executive officers. The following is a summary of key considerations that stockholders should take into account 
when assessing our executive compensation program:  

Windstream’s vision is to become the premier enterprise communications and services provider in the 
United States while maintaining our strong, stable consumer business.  Our goal is to generate solid and 
sustainable cash flow over time, and we return a significant portion of this cash flow to our shareholders 
through our current dividend practice. 

We believe that Adjusted Operating Income Before Depreciation and Amortization (Adjusted OIBDA) is 
the best measure of our ability to generate solid and sustainable cash flow over the long-term, which is why 
we include Adjusted OIBDA as a key performance objective for our short-term and long-term incentive 
plans.   

Our 2012 compensation reflected our mixed operating results by paying short-term incentive payouts below 
target.  Our stock price decline also impacted 2012 compensation by providing a lower value to executives 
upon vesting of their equity awards compared to their grant value.  In addition, because our executives are 
required to own a significant amount of company stock, the value of our executive’s total stock holdings 
declined during the year. 

The Compensation Committee’s 2013 compensation decisions for NEOs included (a) no increases to base 
salaries, (b) no increases to short-term incentive opportunities, (c) no increases in the long-term incentive 
grant values, and (d) the addition of dividend payout ratio as a measure in the short-term incentive plan to 
strengthen the focus and accountability for preserving the cash flow necessary to fund the Company’s 
dividend. 
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Compensation Mix.  Our executive compensation program consists of base salary, annual cash incentives and long-
term equity incentives. The Compensation Committee considers the total compensation of each executive officer as well as 
the allocation of compensation among base salary, short-term incentive compensation, and equity-based compensation in 
determining compensation levels.  The following table illustrates the allocation for each named executive officer for 2012: 

Named Executive Officer 

Percentage of Annual 
Total Direct 

Compensation* Allocated 
to Short-term Incentive 

(%) 

Percentage of Annual 
Total Direct 

Compensation* 
Allocated to Equity-
Based Compensation 

(%) 

Percentage of Annual 
Total Direct 

Compensation*Allocated 
to Base Salary (%) 

Jeffery R. Gardner 21% 64% 15% 
Anthony W. Thomas 20% 55% 25% 
Brent Whittington 19% 57% 24% 
John P. Fletcher 20% 55% 25% 
Cynthia B. Nash 23% 44% 33% 

*  Total direct compensation for these purposes equals base salary, short-term cash incentive payment at target levels and 
the full up-front fair value of the annual equity-based awards determined in accordance with authoritative guidance on 
share-based compensation.   

The Compensation Committee believes that a substantial portion of executive compensation should be at risk 
through allocation of compensation to short-term cash incentives and long-term equity-based incentives.  The Compensation 
Committee also believes that, because of his considerable ability to affect the financial results of Windstream, Mr. Gardner’s 
base salary should be a smaller component of his total compensation and at risk compensation should be a larger component. 
The following charts show the weighting of at risk compensation relative to total compensation for the CEO and collectively 
for the other NEOs. 

Percentage of At Risk Compensation in 2012 

  At Risk     All Other 

Compensation Committee.  Windstream’s Compensation Committee is presently comprised of Samuel E. Beall, III, 
Chairman, Dennis E. Foster and William A. Montgomery.  The Windstream Board has determined that each member of the 
Compensation Committee is an independent director under NASDAQ listing standards, a “non-employee director” for 
purposes of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and an “outside director” as defined in Section 162(m) of the 
Internal Revenue Code.  

The Compensation Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility related to the compensation 
programs, plans, and awards for Windstream’s directors and principal officers. The Compensation Committee annually 
reviews and approves goals relevant to Mr. Gardner’s compensation and, based on an annual evaluation of these performance 
goals, determines and approves Mr. Gardner’s compensation. The Committee conducts this review using a survey of 
compensation data of comparable employers that is prepared by the Committee’s outside compensation consultant based on 
criteria specified by the Committee.   

Independent Consultant.  The Compensation Committee has the authority to retain and terminate any executive 
compensation consultant to be used in the evaluation of director, CEO or executive officer compensation and to approve the 
consultant’s fees and other retention terms.  It is the policy of the Compensation Committee that the compensation consultant 
should perform no services for Windstream other than services as consultant to the Compensation Committee.  During 2012, 
the Compensation Committee engaged Pearl Meyer & Partners, LLC (“PM&P”) to assist the Committee in the review and 
design of Windstream’s executive compensation program.  PM&P reports directly to the Compensation Committee and was 
originally selected in 2010 following an interview process of independent compensation consultants.  During 2012, PM&P 
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conducted a competitive review of Windstream’s executive pay levels and executive pay program designs, with such data and 
information being used by the Committee, along with all other relevant information, to inform the Committee’s decisions 
regarding the executive compensation program. PM&P provided a self-assessment to the Compensation Committee in 2012 
relative to the independence standards required by the stock exchanges.  The self-assessment included the following 
information: 

PM&P performs no other services for Windstream, other than the engagement with the Compensation 
Committee; 

Fees paid by Windstream to PM&P are less than .5% of the firm’s total revenue; 

PM&P has policies and procedures to prevent conflicts of interest; 

The individual advisor to the Compensation Committee does not own any Windstream stock; 

There is no business or personal relationship between the individual advisor and a Committee member; 

There is no business or personal relationship between the individual advisor or PM&P and an executive 
officer of Windstream.   

Competitive Market Analysis. As part of the process of approving executive compensation levels and plan designs, 
the Compensation Committee regularly reviews and considers competitive market data.  This competitive market analysis 
generally takes place in the fall of each year and is used as part of the decision-making process for the following year.  
During 2011, PM&P provided, and the Compensation Committee reviewed, competitive market data as part of its process for 
approving 2012 executive compensation levels and plan designs. 

Given the limited number of direct industry peers with a similar business model and of comparable size, the 
competitive market analysis focuses on compensation survey data from reputable surveys that are size-adjusted using 
regression formulas.  The 2011 market analysis used compensation surveys from Watson Wyatt, Mercer, and PM&P, and all 
data was size-adjusted to reflect annual revenues of $6 billion.  In considering the survey data, the Committee does not 
request the identity of or review the specific companies that are included in any of the surveys reference above.  

In addition to compensation levels, the Committee often requests that PM&P provide proxy data with respect to 
compensation plan designs and company performance.  Because these elements are less impacted by company size, PM&P’s 
2011 market analysis included plan design and company performance data from a specific group of companies which 
included DISH Network Corp., ADP, VISA, Cablevision, Charter Communications, CenturyLink, Mastercard, NII Holdings, 
Western Union, Fidelity Information Services, TDS, Metro PCS, Frontier, and Level 3.  The peer group was changed for 
2012 following the acquisition of PAETEC, which increased the size and complexity of our business.  The Committee 
believes that the consideration of plan designs and performance levels among these companies provides an additional useful 
reference point for the plan designs and degree of pay and performance alignment at Windstream.  Examples of plan design 
include the number and weighting of performance metrics and the types of performance metrics used in incentive plans, the 
allocation of cash and equity in total direct compensation and the allocation of fixed compared to performance based 
compensation.  This group of companies represents a broad group of Fortune 500 companies in telecom, technology and 
services industry.   

While consideration is given to the competitive market data, the Compensation Committee uses it primarily as a 
reference point and does not specifically target compensation to any market percentile.  In addition to competitive market 
data, the Committee reviews and considers factors such as company performance, individual executive performance, the 
critical nature of an individual’s role to organizational success, internal pay equity among colleagues, and retention risks.  
Only after careful consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances does the Committee exercise judgment and make 
compensation decisions. 

Windstream Management.  

General.  Windstream’s management assists the Compensation Committee’s consultant in its survey of executive 
compensation by providing historical compensation information and by reviewing and commenting on preliminary drafts of 
the survey reports. At the first Compensation Committee meeting of each year (which is expected to be held in early 
February of each year), the Compensation Committee reviews and approves executive compensation for such year. Based on 
the compensation surveys and compensation principles previously specified by the Compensation Committee, Mr. Gardner 
and members of Windstream’s human resources department prepare recommendations for compensation levels for executive 
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officers in consultation with the Compensation Committee’s consultant, except that no recommendation is made for Mr. 
Gardner’s compensation. The Compensation Committee then meets to review and determine Mr. Gardner’s compensation 
and reviews and recommends the compensation for all other executive officers. The Compensation Committee determines 
Mr. Gardner’s compensation, and recommends the compensation of all other executive officers, based in part on discussions 
with Windstream management, including Mr. Gardner, and discussions with the compensation consultant. The Windstream 
Board approves or, in the case of Mr. Gardner’s compensation, ratifies the actions of the Compensation Committee.  

Stockholder Outreach.  Windstream management also reviewed the proxy advisory reports issued by Institutional 
Shareholder Services, Inc. (ISS) and Glass Lewis & Co. regarding our executive compensation policies and practices. 
Windstream management contacted ISS and Glass Lewis and two large institutional shareholders of Windstream to discuss 
any concerns identified during the 2012 proxy season.  The results of these discussions were reported to the Compensation 
Committee. 

Elements of 2012 Compensation.  For 2012, the Compensation Committee approved compensation for named 
executive officers after considering individual performance, Windstream’s performance, strategic importance of an 
individual’s role, retention risk, and current compensation compared to competitive market data. The Committee also 
considered the significant demands imposed on the senior leadership team by Windstream's difficult financial and operational 
targets, its high volume of strategic initiatives and the success the relatively young team has achieved in a consolidating 
industry with intense competition.  For 2012, the compensation of Windstream’s named executive officers consists of three 
principal components:  

• Base salary;
• Short-term (annual) cash incentive payments; and  
• Long-term incentives in the form of equity-based compensation.  

The compensation program for the named executive officers also includes the Windstream 2007 Deferred 
Compensation Plan, the Windstream 401(k) Plan, change-in-control agreements, and limited perquisites. In addition, 
Windstream has an employment agreement with Mr. Gardner, and certain named executive officers have benefits in the 
Windstream Pension Plan and the related Windstream Benefit Restoration Plan.  

2012 Total Compensation.  Base salaries and long-term incentives increased year-over-year for all named executive 
officers.  These changes were made as a result of the 50% increase in company revenue following the Paetec acquisition in 
December 2011 and increased market comparisons.  The increases were partially offset by decreased short-term incentive 
payments based on plan performance in 2012 and for Mr. Gardner, a decrease in equity value due to a special grant received 
in 2011.   

Base Salary.  Base salary is designed primarily to provide competitive compensation that reflects the contributions 
and skill levels of each executive.  Merit increases in base salary for 2012 for the NEOs ranged from 1% to 7% based on 
individual performance and comparison to market levels, for specific positions.  

Short-Term Cash Incentive Payments.  Windstream maintains short-term cash incentive plans which are designed 
primarily to motivate executives to achieve Company-wide performance goals over annual or quarterly periods. Under these 
plans, the Compensation Committee sets different target payout amounts (as a percentage of base salary) for all executive 
officers in order to reflect such individual’s contributions to Windstream and the market level of compensation for such 
position. The Compensation Committee believes these short-term incentive plans are a key part of its goal to make a 
substantial portion of total direct compensation at risk.  

During 2012, the named executive officers participated in a short-term cash incentive plan based on Windstream’s 
achievement of certain Adjusted OIBDA and Adjusted Revenue levels. Adjusted OIBDA, which is operating income before 
it is reduced by depreciation and amortization, is a non-GAAP financial measure and is one of the principal measures used by 
Windstream to communicate its financial performance in its quarterly earnings releases.  The Adjusted OIBDA measure 
excludes non-cash pension expense, equity compensation expense and restructuring expense.  Adjusted Revenue is also a 
non-GAAP measure and it is the Company’s total service revenue excluding wholesale, switched access and USF revenues 
and revenue from PAETEC non-strategic businesses. Windstream provides the methodology for calculating Adjusted 
OIBDA in the Current Report on Form 8-K that accompanies its quarterly earnings releases. Adjusted Revenue can be 
calculated using information included in Annex A of this report.  Payments under the short-term incentive plan have 
historically been based solely on Adjusted OIBDA. The Compensation Committee has utilized Adjusted OIBDA as a 
performance metric because it is a critical indicator of Windstream’s ability to generate sustainable cash flows over a long 
period of time.  For 2012, however, the Compensation Committee elected to diversify payouts under the plan by including a 
revenue component as part of the performance criteria.  The Committee determined that revenue was a strong indicator of the 
Company’s performance year-over-year and overall financial condition.  Adjusted Revenue was chosen as the performance 
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metric for this purpose in lieu of total revenue because service revenue was over 90% of Windstream’s total revenue during 
2012 and due to the uncertainty surrounding the FCC’s inter-carrier compensation reform, adopted in December 2011, it was 
very difficult to accurately estimate target amounts for wholesale, switched access and USF revenue for the 2012 fiscal year. 

Under the Windstream short-term incentive plan, executive officers were eligible to receive payments in proportion 
to Windstream’s achievement of a performance goal that was set at minimum (or threshold), target and maximum levels.  For 
2012, payouts were based 70% on the achievement of the Adjusted OIBDA goal and 30% based on the achievement of the 
Adjusted Revenue goal. The Compensation Committee set each performance goal at levels that it believes to be difficult but 
achievable and designed to drive industry leading results. The executive officers were eligible to receive 50% to 200% of the 
target payout amounts if threshold or maximum levels, respectively, were achieved. No payout is made if performance is 
below the threshold levels, and performance between threshold, target and maximum levels results in prorated payouts.  
During 2012, the threshold Adjusted OIBDA amount was $2.367 billion, the target was $2.415 billion and the maximum was 
$2.464 billion, and the threshold Adjusted Revenue amount was $4.747 billion, the target was $4.894 billion and the 
maximum was $4.943 billion.  Windstream’s actual Adjusted OIBDA for 2012 was $2.388 billion, which reflected an 
approximate 72% payout.  Its actual Adjusted Revenue for 2012 was $4.951 billion, which reflected an approximate 200% 
achievement level against the target performance goal.  The overall achievement level calculated based on the 2012 financial 
results was 110%.  However, based on a number of factors, including company stock performance and negative 
developments regarding PAETEC revenue during 2012, the Committee exercised its negative discretion to reduce the payout 
to 90%.  The following table shows the target payouts and actual payouts (in each case, expressed as a percentage of base 
salary) for each NEO under the short-term incentive plan for 2012: 

Named Executive Officer Target Payout Percentage Actual Payout Percentage 
Jeffery R. Gardner 135% 122% 
Anthony W. Thomas 80% 72% 
Brent Whittington 80% 72% 
John P. Fletcher 80% 72% 
Cynthia B. Nash 70% 63% 

The Compensation Committee set the target payout percentages for the NEOs at the beginning of the fiscal year 
based on such individual’s contributions to Windstream and the market level of compensation for such position without 
benchmarking against a specific percentile. The Compensation Committee set Mr. Gardner’s target payout percentage level 
above the other NEOs given his leadership role within Windstream and his ability to affect stockholder value relative to other 
NEOs.  

Long Term Equity-Based Incentive Awards.  Windstream maintains an equity-based compensation program for 
executive officers to provide long-term incentives, to better align the interests of executives with stockholders and to provide
a retention incentive. The Compensation Committee implemented its equity-based compensation program as part of its goal 
to make a substantial portion of total direct compensation at risk. 

Each year NEOs receive a portion of his or her total direct annual compensation in the form of long-term equity-
based incentive compensation. All Windstream equity compensation awards are issued as either time-based restricted stock 
or performance-based restricted stock units (PBRSUs) under the Windstream Amended and Restated 2006 Equity Incentive 
Plan (“Equity Plan”).  In 2012, 70% of the equity compensation granted to the named executive officers (other than Mr. 
Gardner) was performance-based and 30% was time-based vesting.  For Mr. Gardner, 100% of his 2012 equity compensation 
was performance-based. Windstream has not issued any stock options or other forms of equity compensation to its directors, 
executive officers or other employees. The Compensation Committee believes that restricted stock or performance-based 
restricted stock or unit awards are a preferred mechanism of equity compensation compared to stock options or other devices 
that derive value from future stock price appreciation due to the high-dividend, low-growth profile of Windstream.  In 
addition, performance-based restricted stock units are eligible for deduction for tax purposes under Section 162(m) of the 
Internal Revenue Code.   

For all outstanding grants of time-based restricted stock, executive officers have the rights of a stockholder to vote 
the restricted stock and to receive any cash dividends paid with respect to the restricted shares during the vesting period.  For 
all outstanding grants of performance-based equity compensation, the dividends are accrued and paid out only when and if 
the performance conditions are satisfied.  

The Windstream Board of Directors delegated responsibility for administration of the Equity Plan, including the 
authority to approve awards, to the Compensation Committee. It is the Compensation Committee's policy to review and 
approve all annual equity compensation awards to directors, executive officers and all other eligible employees at its first 
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regularly scheduled meeting of each year, which is expected to occur each February. In determining the number of shares of 
restricted stock or performance-based restricted stock to award to any individual under the Equity Plan, the Compensation 
Committee divides the approved grant value for such individual by the closing stock price of Windstream Common Stock on 
the date that the Compensation Committee approves the award (rounded down to the nearest whole share). As a matter of 
policy, the Compensation Committee does not approve awards of equity compensation through the adoption of a unanimous 
written consent in lieu of a meeting.  

In the first quarter of 2012, the Compensation Committee approved the amounts and types of equity-based 
compensation awards described below to the named executive officers. As with other elements of compensation, the 
Compensation Committee based individual equity-based incentive awards on such individual’s contributions to Windstream 
and the market level of compensation for such position without benchmarking against a specific percentile.  These amounts 
increased from 2011 as a result of the change in revenue size from $4 billion to $6 billion and reflect the complexity of the 
business with the acquisition of PAETEC. 

Named Executive Officer 

2012 Grants of 
Time-Based

Restricted Stock ($) 

2012 Grants of Performance-Based 
Restricted Stock Units 

Threshold ($) Target ($) 

Total Amount, 
Including Possible 
Overachievement  

($)
Jeffery R. Gardner -  2,049,994  4,099,988  6,149,982 
Anthony W. Thomas 329,996  384,999  769,999  1,154,998 
Brent Whittington 449,992  524,999  1,049,998  1,574,997 
John P. Fletcher 329,996  384,999  769,999  1,154,998 
Cynthia B. Nash 150,011  174,993  349,987  524,980 

Time-Based Restricted Stock – These awards vest ratably over three years subject to continuous employment by 
Windstream through February 15, 2015.  

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units – For 2012, all performance-based equity awards were granted in the 
form of PBRSUs.  The grants set forth in the table above vest ratably over a three-year period with each year set as a separate
performance period. The PBRSUs vest only if the performance thresholds are met and the executive is still employed on the 
date of vesting.  The Compensation Committee sets the performance measures for these awards each year during the three-
year vesting period.  It is the Compensation Committee’s goal to set such amounts at levels that it believes are difficult but 
achievable and designed to drive industry leading results.  For fiscal 2012, the Committee selected Adjusted OIBDA as the 
baseline performance measure and added an overachievement measure (the “Overachievement Measure”) based on 
Windstream total stockholder return.   

The target Adjusted OIBDA metric for the 2012 performance period was set at 97% of an Adjusted OIBDA goal of 
$2.415 billion and the threshold was 92% of this amount. No shares are awarded under these grants if actual Adjusted 
OIBDA is less than the threshold and no additional amounts are awarded if actual Adjusted OIBDA exceeds the target.  

For the Overachievement Measure, each NEO is entitled to receive an additional number of shares up to 50% of 
his/her target payout amount if (1) Windstream achieves the Total Shareholder Return goal (as described below) over the 
three-year vesting period of the PBRSUs, and (2) at least 92% of the Adjusted OIBDA goal is met in each of the three fiscal 
performance periods covered by the vesting schedule.  The Total Shareholder Return goal is measured by comparing 
Windstream total stockholder return against the cumulative total return of the S&P 500 index.  The Compensation Committee 
chose the broader S&P 500 index over the S&P telecom index because the telecom index is comprised of only 8 companies, 
including AT&T and Verizon, which are not impacted by the same issues and environment given their larger size and their 
focus on wireless businesses.  Pursuant to the Overachievement Measure, an additional 25% of shares will be issued if 
Windstream total stockholder return is between the 50-75th percentile of the S&P 500 and an additional 50% of shares are 
issued for performance over 75th percentile.  

Severance Benefits and Gardner Employment Agreement.  Except for Mr. Gardner, Windstream has no agreement or 
plan to provide severance benefits to executive officers other than benefits that are generally available to all employees under
Windstream’s severance plan and benefits available under the change-in-control agreements discussed below. The 
employment agreement with Mr. Gardner includes a severance benefit of three times base salary (at the time of severance), or 
$3.0 million based on Mr. Gardner’s base salary during 2012.  The employment agreement provides for no gross up of taxes 
for severance outside of a change-in-control situation.  The employment agreement provides that Mr. Gardner’s base salary 
will be no less than $700,000 per year. If Mr. Gardner experiences a separation from service following a change of control, 
the severance benefits provided under the terms of the change-in-control agreements discussed below will govern, and no 
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severance is available under the employment agreement in such circumstance. The Compensation Committee approved the 
foregoing severance benefit to Mr. Gardner to recognize the importance of his service and contributions to Windstream, to 
recognize that it would be difficult for him to find comparable employment during a short period of time following a 
separation, and to reflect market practice of providing similar severance benefits to the CEO position.  

Retirement Plans.  Windstream maintains a defined benefit pension plan and a qualified 401(k) defined contribution 
plan for its executive officers (including the NEOs) and employees. Participation in the pension plan is frozen except for 
certain bargaining unit employees.  No executive officer is eligible for continued accruals. Windstream’s 401(k) plan 
provides for potential matching employer contributions of up to 4% of a participant’s compensation.  The Compensation 
Committee maintains the 401(k) plan in order to provide employees with an opportunity to save for retirement with pre-tax 
dollars. The 401(k) plan also allows Windstream to fund its contributions to this plan in a predictable, consistent manner.  

Deferred Compensation Plans.  Windstream’s 2007 Deferred Compensation Plan provides a non-qualified deferred 
compensation plan for its executive officers (including the NEOs) and other key employees. The Compensation Committee 
adopted this plan as part of its effort to provide a total compensation package that was competitive with the compensation 
arrangements of other companies.  The plan offers participants the ability to defer compensation above the IRS qualified plan 
limits. 

Change-In-Control Agreements.  The Compensation Committee maintains change-in-control agreements for 
Mr. Gardner and each executive officer (including the NEOs) in order to provide some protection to those individuals from 
the risk and uncertainty associated with a potential change-in-control. The Compensation Committee also maintains the 
change-in-control agreements as part of its efforts to provide a total compensation package that is competitive with the 
compensation arrangements of other market participants.   

The change-in-control agreements in place during 2012 expired on January 1, 2013.  The Compensation Committee 
specifically engaged PM&P to review the payment multiples and other terms of the change-in-control agreements, to 
compare such provisions against prevailing market practices, and to provide recommendations on the final terms of the 
agreements. When it approved the change-in-control agreements, the Compensation Committee considered the total amount 
of compensation that Mr. Gardner and each other executive officer would receive in a hypothetical termination under all of 
the change-in-control benefits described below. Based on the foregoing, the Compensation Committee approved the payment 
of change-in-control benefits to Mr. Gardner and the other executive officers on a “double-trigger” basis, which means that a 
change-in-control of Windstream must occur and the officer’s employment with Windstream must be terminated through 
either a resignation for “good reason” or a termination without “cause” (as those terms are defined in the change-in-control 
agreement). As a result, Windstream entered into new change-in-control agreements with its NEOs effective January 1, 2013. 
The terms of the new change-in-control agreements are generally the same as the prior agreements, except that the new 
agreements do not provide for a gross-up payment to any NEOs to offset any excise taxes that may be imposed on excess 
parachute payments under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code. Instead, under the change-in-control agreements if 
such excise taxes would be imposed, the executive will either receive all of the benefits to which he or she is entitled under 
the agreement, subject to the excise tax, or have his or her benefits under the agreement reduced to a level at which the excise
tax will not apply, depending upon which approach would provide the executive with the greater net after-tax benefit. Upon a 
qualifying separation from service, the executive officers are eligible to receive a cash, lump sum payment based upon a 
multiple of base salary and target bonus of three times for Messrs. Gardner, Thomas, Whittington, and Fletcher and two times 
for Ms. Nash.  Refer to the “Potential Payment Upon Termination or Change-in-Control” section for details associated with 
the Change-in-Control Agreement.   

Perquisites and Other Benefits.  Windstream permits limited personal use of Windstream's corporate aircraft by Mr. 
Gardner and the other named executive officers.  Under Windstream's policy, this use cannot interfere with business use of 
the aircraft.  Due to the extensive travel demands on their schedules, Messrs. Gardner and Whittington are allowed to utilize 
the corporate aircraft for personal use more often than the other named executive officers, pursuant to time-sharing 
arrangements in which they reimburse Windstream for the incremental cost of such use, which primarily includes costs for 
fuel, maintenance charges allocable to such use and contract-pilot charges, and excludes depreciation of the aircraft, general 
maintenance, compensation of Windstream's employee pilots, and other general charges related to ownership of the aircraft.  
Other named executive officers are allowed to have family members accompany them on a business trip on the aircraft, 
subject to seat availability and prior approval of Mr. Gardner.  Any other personal use of the aircraft by the other named 
executive officers is permitted only as approved in advance by Mr. Gardner.  The Compensation Committee monitors the use 
by Mr. Gardner and all named executive officers to ensure the amount of usage is reasonable. Windstream believes that 
personal use of aircraft for Mr. Gardner and other senior executives is a reasonable benefit in light of the significant demands
that are imposed on their schedules as a result of their responsibilities to Windstream.  
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Stock Ownership/Insider Trading Policies. Windstream’s minimum share ownership guidelines apply to 
Mr. Gardner and all other executive officers. The guidelines are described in this proxy statement under the heading “Stock 
Ownership Guidelines.” The minimum share ownership guidelines are intended in part to ensure that executive officers retain 
a sufficient number of shares of Windstream Common Stock such that they continue to have a material financial interest in 
Windstream which is aligned with the stockholders.  In addition, under Windstream’s insider trading compliance policy, 
directors and executive officers are prohibited from engaging in any transaction involving derivative securities intended to 
hedge the market risk in equity securities of Windstream other than purchases of long call options or the sale of short put 
options that are not closed prior to their exercise or expiration date.  The policy also prohibits the purchase of shares on loan 
or margin and short sales. 

2013 Compensation Actions.  In February 2013, the Compensation Committee met and made the following 
decisions regarding executive compensation for 2013 (a detailed analysis of these compensation decisions will be included in 
Windstream’s proxy statement for its 2014 annual meeting of stockholders): 

Salary. The Committee elected not to increase base salaries for 2013. 

Short Term Incentives.  The Committee elected not to change short term incentive opportunities for 2013 but 
adjusted the relevant performance measures.  For 2013, awards under Windstream’s short-term incentive plan 
will be based 60% on Adjusted OIBDA, 20% on Total Revenue (instead of Adjusted Revenue) and 20% on 
Dividend Payout Ratio.  

Long Term Incentives. The Committee elected not to change the overall grant mix for long-term equity 
compensation for the CEO (which will remain at 100% PBRSUs).  The Committee did, however, change the 
grant mix for all other executive officers from 70%/30% to 50% PBRSUs and 50% time-based awards.  The 
Committee also raised the target level for awards to be paid out from 95.7% of plan to 97% of plan in 2013.  

Compensation of Directors

During 2012, Windstream non-employee directors received the following compensation: (1) an annual cash retainer 
of $60,000, (2) a cash fee of $2,000 for each Board and committee meeting attended, except that no fees were paid for 
periodic informational update meetings, and (3) an annual grant of $80,000 in restricted stock under the Equity Plan.  The 
restricted shares granted to non-employee directors vest if the grantee continues to serve on the Board for the period 
beginning on the date of grant and ending on February 15 of the following year or earlier, if the grantee dies or becomes 
permanently disabled while serving on the Board or a change of control of Windstream occurs. In addition, in 2012, the 
chairs of the Audit, Governance and Compensation Committees received additional annual cash retainers of $20,000, 
$15,000 and $15,000, respectively.  The Board Chairman received an additional annual cash retainer of $100,000.  All non-
employee directors have the option to elect to receive any cash retainer in the form of Windstream Common Stock.   

Board members receive pro-rated amounts of the annual cash retainer and the annual restricted stock grant for the 
portion of the first year in which they are appointed or elected to serve as a Board member or Committee Chair.  
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The following table shows the compensation paid to the non-employee directors of the Windstream Board during 
2012:  

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 

Name

Fees Earned or 
Paid in Cash  

($)
Stock Awards 

($) (1) 

Change in Pension 
Value and Non-

Qualified Deferred 
Compensation Earnings 

($)

All Other 
Compensation

($) (2) 
Total 
($)

Carol B. Armitage  121,000 79,989 N/A 308  201,297 
Samuel E. Beall, III  99,000 (3) 79,989 N/A 308  179,297 
Dennis E. Foster   188,000 (4) 79,989 N/A 308  268,297 
Francis X. (“Skip”) Frantz   88,000 79,989  277,204 (5) 308  445,501 
Jeffrey T. Hinson  118,000 79,989 N/A 308  198,297 
Judy K. Jones  106,000 79,989 N/A 308  186,297 
William A. Montgomery  109,000 79,989 N/A 308  189,297 
Alan L. Wells  80,000 79,989 N/A 308  160,297 

(1) All stock award amounts in the table above reflect the aggregate fair value on the grant date based on the closing price 
per share of Windstream Common Stock on the date of grant of the restricted stock, computed in accordance with FASB 
ASC topic 718. 

(2) Amount is for travel insurance available for all directors. 

(3) Mr. Beall elected to receive $75,000 of the $99,000 in Windstream Common Stock instead of cash. 

(4) Mr. Foster elected to receive $60,000 of the $188,000 in Windstream Common Stock instead of cash.   

(5) Amount reflects change in pension value for the Windstream Pension Plan and Benefit Restoration Plan.   
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Compensation of Named Executive Officers

The following table shows the compensation paid during all of 2012 by Windstream to its President and Chief 
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, and other three most highly compensated executive officers who 
were serving as executive officers on December 31, 2012. 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 

Name and 
Principal Position Year 

Salary 
($) 

Stock Awards 
($) 

(1) (2) 

Non-Equity 
Incentive Plan 
Compensation 

($) (3) 

Change in 
Pension Value 

and Non-Qualified 
Deferred 

Compensation 
Earnings  
($) (4) 

All Other 
Compensation 

($) (5) 
Total
($) 

Jeffery R. Gardner 
President and CEO 

2012 
2011 
2010 

998,615 
991,000 
991,000 

5,199,553 
6,536,104 
3,517,827 

1,215,000
1,738,246 
2,242,347 

465,075 
389,362 
472,454 

117,107 
132,747 
106,108 

7,995,350 
9,787,459 
7,329,736 

Anthony W. Thomas 
CFO and Treasurer 

2012 
2011 
2010 

496,154 
466,788 
404,712 

1,004,561 
689,453 

1,158,753 

360,000 
533,226 
524,587 

27,199 
20,016 
13,991 

53,594 
43,296 
27,146 

1,941,508 
1,752,779 
2,129,189 

Brent Whittington 
COO

2012 
2011 
2010 

631,923 
612,981 
593,269 

1,392,297 
1,078,301 
1,640,334 

457,200 
690,387 
868,881 

14,279 
10,508 
7,344 

74,879 
81,834 
76,654 

2,570,578 
2,474,011 
3,186,482 

John P. Fletcher 
EVP, General 
Counsel & Secretary 

2012 
2011 
2010 

496,154 
470,288 
436,298 

1,034,753 
816,113 

1,376,457 

360,000 
533,226 
637,180 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

59,611 
54,129 
30,501 

1,950,518 
1,873,756 
2,480,743 

Cynthia B. Nash 
Chief Information 
Officer 

2012 
2011 
2010 

371,154 
345,962 
317,308 

483,854 
400,210 
788,297 

236,250 
294,677 
318,590 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

26,949 
26,987 
16,363 

1,118,207 
1,067,836 
1,440,558 

(1) The amounts included in this column reflect the aggregate grant date fair value calculated in accordance with FASB 
ASC Topic 718. The fair value reflects the expected future cash flows of dividends and therefore dividends on unvested 
shares are not separately disclosed.  The amounts in this column for each fiscal year exclude the effect of any estimated 
forfeitures of such awards.  The assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in our audited 
consolidated financial statements for fiscal year 2012, which are included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.   

As discussed in further detail in footnotes 1-3 and 8 to the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table below, the information 
provided in the Stock Awards column does not reflect the manner in which the Compensation Committee viewed or 
determined the equity compensation values for the named executive officers. Specifically, under applicable SEC rules, 
the grant date fair values for the performance-based restricted stock or units is calculated based on the stock price when 
the target for each performance period is set. As a result, from the standpoint of allocating compensation to a particular 
fiscal period for purposes of this column, there is a disparity between the value approved by the Compensation 
Committee and the amounts reported above for each of the periods set forth in the column.  For a discussion of the 
values considered by the Compensation Committee when awarding equity compensation in 2012, see the section titled 
“Long Term Equity Based Incentive Awards” in the CD&A.   

(2) No options have been awarded by Windstream for any fiscal period. 

(3) These amounts represent payments made under the short term incentive plan on performance in 2012.  The payments 
were paid on March 1, 2013.  More discussion regarding the targets and results can be found on pages 21 and 22 of this 
document.   

(4) Amounts reflect increases in pension value only.   

(5) The amounts shown in this column are comprised of (i) company matching contributions under the Windstream 401(k) 
Plan and the Windstream 2007 Deferred Compensation Plan, (ii) imputed income for value over $50,000 of life 
insurance coverage provided by Windstream, (iii) the valuation of the individual’s personal use of the Company plane 
based on the incremental cost to Windstream of such usage, which primarily includes costs for fuel, maintenance charges 
allocable to such use, and contract-pilot charges and excludes depreciation of the aircraft, general maintenance, 
compensation of Windstream’s employee pilots and other general charges related to ownership of the aircraft, and (iv) 
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other is predominately made up of healthy rewards program incentives and cell phone allowances, in each case for and 
on behalf of the named officers as follows:   

Name Year 

Company 
Contributions 

to Plans 

Imputed Life 
Insurance, 

Aircraft Use, and 
Other Total 

Jeffery R. Gardner 2012 114,334  2,773  117,107  
  2011 129,334  3,413  132,747  
  2010 103,763  2,345  106,108  
Anthony W. Thomas 2012 39,443  14,151  53,594  
  2011 39,608  3,688  43,296  
  2010 24,440  2,706  27,146  
Brent Whittington 2012 52,892  21,987  74,879  
  2011 59,263  22,571  81,834  
  2010 68,849  7,805  76,654  
John P. Fletcher 2012 41,175  18,436  59,611  
  2011 44,272  9,857  54,129  
  2010 28,141  2,360  30,501  
Cynthia B. Nash 2012 26,633  316  26,949  
  2011 26,559  428  26,987  
  2010 14,751  1,612  16,363  

Information On Plan-Based Awards

The following table shows information regarding grants of plan-based awards, including equity and non-equity incentive 
plans, made by Windstream during 2012 to the individuals named below.  All equity grants made in 2012 were made 
pursuant to the Amended and Restated 2006 Equity Incentive Plan.  All non-equity grants made in 2012 were made pursuant 
to Windstream’s short-term cash incentive plans described in the CD&A.   

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS  

Name 
Grant 
Date 

Estimated Future Payouts Under 
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Award 

Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity 
Incentive Plan Awards All Other Stock 

Awards: Number 
of Shares of Stock 

or Units 
(#) (6) 

Grant Date Fair 
Value of Stock 

and Option 
Awards 

($)
(8) 

Threshold 
($) 

Target 
($) 

Maximum 
($) 

Threshold 
(#) 

Target 
(#) 

Maximum 
(#) 

Jeffery R. Gardner 2/7/12 
2/7/12 
2/7/12 

675,000 1,350,000 2,700,000  54,931(1)
 45,558(2)

109,861(1)
 91,116 (2)
116,504(3)

164,792(4)
136,674(5)

-0- 

2,050,006 
1,700,225 
1,449,322 

Anthony W. 
Thomas 

2/7/12 
2/7/12 
2/7/12 

200,000 400,000 800,000 10,317(1)
5,062 (2)

20,633 (1)
10,124 (2)
8,090 (3)

30,950 (4)
15,186 (5)

 26,527 (7) 

385,012 
188,913 
100,640 
329,996 

Brent Whittington 2/7/12 
2/7/12 
2/7/12 

254,000 580,000 1,016,000 14,068(1)
6,327 (2)

28,135 (1)
12,655 (2)
14,563 (3)

42,203 (4)
18,982 (5)

 36,173 (7) 

524,999 
236,142 
181,164 
449,992 

John P. Fletcher 2/7/12 
2/7/12 
2/7/12 

200,000 400,000 800,000 10,317(1)
5,062 (2)

 20,633(1)
10,124 (2)
 10,517(3)

30,950(4)
15,186 (5)

 26,527 (7) 

385,012 
188,914 
130,831 
329,996 

Cynthia B. Nash 2/7/12 
2/7/12 
2/7/12 

131,250 262,500 525,000 4,689 (1)
2,531 (2)

9,378 (1)
5,062 (2)
5,177 (3)

14,067(4)
7,593 (5)

 12,058 (7) 

174,993 
94,457 
64,402 

150,002 

(1) These amounts represent one-third (1/3) of the threshold and target amounts of an award of performance-based restricted 
stock units (or PBRSUs) granted to the named executive officer in 2012 that vest ratably over a three-year period with 
each year set as a separate performance period.  The Compensation Committee sets the threshold and target Adjusted 
OIBDA amount each year during the three-year vesting period.  Pursuant to SEC rules and applicable accounting rules, 
because the Compensation Committee sets the annual performance targets at the start of each respective performance 
period, only the grant date fair value of the portion of the grant subject to a particular performance period is reported in 
this table, which results in a disparity between the annual grant values approved by the Compensation Committee and the 
amounts reported above.   
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Accordingly, these amounts represent only the first tranche of the total grant of PBRSUs in 2012 (i.e., the portion of the 
2012 grant allocated to the 2012 performance period).  The aggregate target amount of the first, second and third 
tranches of the 2012 grant of PBRSUs is referred to herein as the “Total Target Amount.” 

(2) These amounts represent one-third (1/3) of the threshold and target amounts of an award of performance-based restricted 
stock units (or PBRSUs) granted to the named executive officer in 2011 that vest ratably over a three-year period with 
each year set as a separate performance period.  The Compensation Committee sets the threshold and target Adjusted 
OIBDA amount each year during the three-year vesting period.  As stated above, pursuant to SEC rules and applicable 
accounting rules, because the Compensation Committee sets the annual performance targets at the start of each 
respective performance period, only the grant date fair value of the portion of the grant subject to a particular 
performance period is reported in this table, which results in a disparity between the annual grant values approved by the 
Compensation Committee and the amounts reported above.   

Accordingly, these amounts represent only the second tranche of the total grant of PBRSUs in 2011 (i.e., the portion of 
the 2011 grant allocated to the 2012 performance period).   

(3) These amounts represent the third tranche of performance-based restricted stock granted to the NEO in 2010, which vests 
ratably over a three-year period with each year set as a separate performance period.  The Compensation Committee sets 
the performance goal each year during the three-year vesting period.  As stated above, pursuant to SEC rules and 
applicable accounting rules, because the Compensation Committee sets the annual performance goals at the start of each 
respective performance period, the amounts represent only the tranche of the 2010 grants for which the performance 
goals were set for the 2012 performance period.  The 2010 grants of performance-based restricted stock do not provide 
for a threshold payout; thus, the single estimated payout is reported in the Target column. 

(4) While no additional amounts are awarded if actual Adjusted OIBDA exceeds the target performance goal, these amounts 
equal the sum of the target amount of the first tranche of the 2012 grant of PBRSUs plus one-third (1/3) of the 
Overachievement Amount (as defined below).  Pursuant to the 2012 grant of PBRSUs, each NEO is entitled to receive 
an additional number of shares following completion of the three-year vesting period equal to 50% of his/her Total 
Target Amount (the “Overachievement Amount”) if (i) Windstream’s total stockholder return exceeds 75% of the S&P 
500 during the vesting period, and (ii) at least 92% of the Adjusted OIBDA goal is met in each of the three fiscal 
performance periods covered by the three-year vesting period.   

(5) While no additional amounts are awarded if actual Adjusted OIBDA exceeds the target performance goal, these amounts 
equal the sum of the target amount of the second tranche of the 2011 grant of PBRSUs plus one-third (1/3) of the 
Overachievement Amount.  Pursuant to the 2011 grant of PBRSUs, each NEO is entitled to receive the Overachievement 
Amount following completion of the three-year vesting period if (i) Windstream achieves revenue growth over the three-
year vesting period of the 2011 grant, and (ii) at least 92% of the Adjusted OIBDA goal is met in each of the three fiscal 
performance periods covered by the three-year vesting period.  

(6) No options have been awarded by Windstream for fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 to Messrs. Gardner, Thomas, 
Whittington, Fletcher or Ms. Nash.   

(7) Represents restricted stock granted to the NEO that will vest ratably in one-third (1/3) annual increments subject to 
continuous employment through February 15, 2015. 

(8) Represents the grant date fair value calculated in accordance with applicable standards for financial statement reporting 
purposes in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718.  The grant date fair values for the time-vesting restricted stock is 
determined on the closing stock price of Windstream Common Stock on the date of grant.  The grant date fair values of 
the performance-based equity awards and the Overachievement Amount are based on the stock price of Windstream 
Common Stock on the date of the grant, which is considered the date the performance targets were set.  Shares related to 
the 2012 and 2011 overachievement amounts cliff vest in 2014 and 2013, respectively, if at all, based on the performance 
criteria described above.  Because the overachievement amounts are conditioned upon achievement of at least the 
threshold level of the Adjusted OIBDA goal set by the Compensation Committee at the start of each performance period, 
only one-third (1/3) of the overachievement shares related to both the 2012 and 2011 criteria were included in the grant 
date fair value calculation.   
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The following table shows information regarding outstanding awards under the Windstream equity incentive plans held 
by the individuals named below as of December 31, 2012. All awards represent grants of restricted stock under the Equity 
Plan.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END  
Stock Awards (1) 

Time-Based Vesting Restricted Stock Performance-Based Vesting Restricted Stock

Name 

Number of Shares or 
Units of Stock That 
Have Not Vested (#) 

Market Value of 
Shares or Units of 

Stock That Have Not 
Vested ($) (2) 

Equity Incentive Plan 
Awards: Number of 

Unearned Shares, Units or 
Other Rights That Have Not 

Vested (#) 

Equity Incentive Plan 
Awards: Market or Payout 

Value of Unearned 
Shares, Units or Other 
Rights That Have Not 

Vested ($) (2) 
Jeffery R. Gardner  151,860  (7) 1,257,401  317,481  (3)  2,628,743 
    337,650 (4)  2,795,742 
    274,650  (5)  2,274,102 
 2012 Total  151,860 1,257,401  929,781  7,698,587 
Anthony W. Thomas  27,057  (6) 224,032  38,847 (3)  321,653 
  18,966  (7) 157,038  45,942  (4)  380,400 
  8,842  (8) 73,212  51,580  (5)  427,082 
  65,217  (9) 539,997   
 2012 Total  120,082 994,279  136,369  1,129,135 
Brent Whittington  39,276  (6) 325,205  55,352 (3)  458,323 
  24,713  (7) 204,624  59,773 (4)  494,916 
  12,057  (8) 99,832  70,338  (5)  582,395 
  65,217  (9) 539,997    
 2012 Total  141,263 1,169,658  185,463  1,535,634 
John P. Fletcher  29,484  (6) 244,128  41,274 (3)  341,749 
  18,966  (7) 157,038  45,972  (4)  380,400 
  8,842  (8) 73,212  51,580  (5)  427,082 
  65,217  (9) 539,997   
 2012 Total  122,509 1,014,375  138,796  1,149,231 
Cynthia B. Nash  14,259  (6) 118,065  19,617  (3)  162,429 
  9,081  (7) 75,191  22,033  (4)  182,433 
  4,019  (8) 33,277  23,445  (5)  194,125 
  43,478  (9) 359,998    
 2012 Total  70,837 586,531  65,095  538,987 

(1) There are no outstanding awards of stock options for any NEO of Windstream. 

(2) Market value calculated using the closing price of Windstream Common Stock on December 31, 2012, which was $8.28. 

(3) Performance-based shares were scheduled to vest on February 15, 2013, if at all, based on achievement of performance 
objectives set by the Compensation Committee for fiscal 2012.  As a result of actual performance in 2012, 100% of the 
shares reported vested on February 15, 2013.   

(4) Performance-based shares will vest February 15, 2014, if Windstream achieves the performance objectives set by the 
Compensation Committee for fiscal 2013.  See section titled “2013 Compensation Actions” in the CD&A.  Also includes 
overachievement shares related to the 2011 grant of PBRSUs as noted in footnote 5 of the “Grants of Plan-Based 
Awards” table. 

(5) Performance-based shares will vest on February 15, 2015, if Windstream achieves the performance objectives set for 
fiscal 2014, which have not yet been established by the Compensation Committee.  Also includes overachievement 
shares related to the 2012 grant of PBRSUs as noted in footnote 4 of the “Grants of Plan-Based Awards” table.   

(6)   Shares vested 100% on February 15, 2013. 

(7)   Shares vest in full on February 15, 2014. 

(8)   Shares vest in full on February 15, 2015. 

(9)   Shares vest in full on August 15, 2013. 
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The following table shows information regarding the exercise or vesting of equity-based awards of Windstream 
during 2012 by the individuals named below.  

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED  

 Name 

Stock Awards (1) 
Number of Shares 

Acquired on Vesting  
(#) 

Value Realized 
on Vesting  

($) (2) 
Jeffery R. Gardner  345,710  4,290,261 
Anthony W. Thomas  46,016  571,059 
Brent Whittington  88,958  1,103,969 
John P. Fletcher  64,298  797,938 
Cynthia B. Nash  31,028  385,057 

(1)  Windstream does not grant stock options and therefore had no option exercises by any NEO in 2012.  
(2) Shares vested on February 15, 2012 with a closing price of $12.41. 

Pension Benefits

The following is a brief summary of the material terms of the retirement plans maintained by Windstream.  

Windstream Pension Plan.  Windstream maintains the Windstream Pension Plan (“Pension Plan”), which is a tax-
qualified defined benefit plan.  The Pension Plan generally covers salaried and non-salaried employees of Windstream and 
those subsidiary companies that have adopted the Pension Plan.  Accruals are frozen for non-bargaining employees.  No 
named executive officers are eligible for continuing accruals under the Pension Plan as of the end of 2012.  

The Pension Plan’s accrued benefit is payable in the form of a monthly life annuity following normal retirement at 
age 65 (or, if later, at five years of service or at the fifth anniversary of participation). The accrued benefit is also payable in a 
monthly life annuity following early retirement at or after age 55 with at least 20 years of service (with reduction in the life
annuity of 0.25% for each month that commencement precedes age 60) or at or after age 60 with 15 years of service (with 
reduction in the life annuity of 0.25% for each month that commencement precedes age 65 for a participant whose benefit 
commences before age 62). As of the end of 2012, no named executive officers satisfied the foregoing age and service 
requirements to commence receipt of an early retirement benefit under the Pension Plan.  

For deferred vested participants (i.e. those who terminate employment before early retirement), the accrued benefit 
is payable in a monthly life annuity beginning at normal retirement age. If a deferred vested participant has 15 years of 
service, the accrued benefit is also payable in a monthly life annuity beginning as early as age 60 (with reduction in the life
annuity of 0.50% for each month commencement precedes age 65), and, if the deferred vested participant has at least 20 
years of service, the accrued benefit is also payable in a monthly life annuity beginning as early as age 55 (with reduction in
the life annuity of 0.50% for each month commencement precedes age 65).  

For a participant eligible for normal retirement or early retirement, payment is also available in actuarial equivalent 
joint and surviving spouse annuities, which provide a reduced monthly amount for the participant’s life with the surviving 
spouse receiving 50%, 75% or 100%, as elected, of the reduced monthly amount, or in an actuarial equivalent 10-year 
certain-and life annuity, which provides a reduced monthly amount for the participant’s life and, if the participant dies within
10 years of benefit commencement, with payments to a designated beneficiary for the remainder of the 10-year certain 
period. For a married deferred vested participant, payment is also available in the form of an actuarial equivalent joint and 
50% or 75% surviving spouse annuity, as elected. If a vested participant dies before benefit commencement, an annuity 
generally is payable to the participant’s surviving spouse in an amount based on the joint and 50% surviving spouse annuity 
that would have been payable to the participant beginning on the later of when the participant died or would have been 
eligible to commence a benefit.  

Under the Pension Plan, post-January 1, 1988 through December 31, 2005 service (December 31, 2010 service for 
employees who had attained age 40 with two years of vesting service as of December 31, 2005) is credited at 1% of 
compensation, including salary, bonus and other non-equity incentive compensation, plus 0.4% of that part of the 
participant’s compensation in excess of the Social Security taxable wage base for such year. Service prior to 1988, if any, is 
credited on the basis of a percentage of the participant’s highest consecutive five-year average annual salary, equal to 1% for
each year of service prior to 1982 and thereafter increasing by 0.05% each year until 1988, but only prospectively, i.e., with 
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respect to service earned in such succeeding year. In addition, participants receive an additional credit of 0.25% for each pre-
1988 year of service after age 55, subject to a maximum of 10 years of credit, plus an amount equal to 0.4% of the amount by 
which the participant’s pre-1988 career average annual base salary (three highest years) exceeds his or her Social Security 
covered compensation, multiplied by his years of pre-1988 credited service.  

Windstream Benefit Restoration Plan.  The Windstream Benefit Restoration Plan (“BRP”) contains an unfunded, 
unsecured pension benefit for a group of highly compensated employees whose benefits are reduced due to the IRS 
compensation limits for qualified plans. This plan was established by Alltel and assumed by Windstream at the spin-off. As 
with the Pension Plan, accruals are frozen for employees.  No named executive officers continued to be eligible for accruals 
in the pension benefit of the BRP as of the end of 2012. The pension benefit under the BRP is calculated as the excess, if any,
of (x) the participant’s Pension Plan benefit (on a single life-annuity basis payable commencing on the later of the 
participant’s retirement date or age 65) without regard to the IRS compensation limit ($250,000 for 2012) over (y) the 
participant’s regular Pension Plan benefit (on a single life-annuity basis payable commencing on the later of the participant’s
retirement date or age 65 regardless of the actual form or timing of payment). If the participant has not attained age 65 on the
date his benefit is scheduled to commence, the BRP benefit is reduced to the extent as the Pension Plan benefit would have 
been reduced as in effect on December 31, 2012. For purposes of the preceding calculations, compensation has the same 
meaning provided in the foregoing description of the Pension Plan.  The payment of a participant’s retirement benefit under 
the BRP shall commence as of the first day of the first month following the later of (i) his 60th birthday or (ii) the six-month 
anniversary of the participant’s separation from service. Benefits are paid over the life of the participant if the participant is 
alive when benefits commence or over the life of the spouse if the benefit is paid as a pre-retirement death benefit. The 
benefit will be paid in one lump sum payment if the actuarial present value is less than $30,000.  To the extent permitted by 
the IRC Section 409A, the Benefits Committee comprised of the Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, Chief Operating 
Officer, Executive Vice President-Chief Human Resources Officer and Vice President-Benefits, authorized by the Board of 
Directors to manage the operation and administration of all employee benefit plans, including non-qualified plans, may direct 
that the benefit be paid in an alternative form provided that it is the actuarial equivalent of the normal form of benefit so that 
the BRP benefit is paid in the same form as the Pension Plan benefit.  None of the named executive officers were yet eligible 
to commence their benefit under the BRP as of the end of 2012. 

The following table shows certain information regarding benefits under the Windstream Pension Plan and Benefit 
Restoration Plan as of December 31, 2012 for the individuals named below.  

PENSION BENEFITS

Name Plan Name 

Number of Years 
Credited Service 

(#) (1) 

Present Value of 
Accumulated Benefit 

($) (2) 

Payments During 
Last Fiscal Year 

($) 

Jeffery R. Gardner Pension Plan 
Benefit Restoration Plan  

12
-

 346,821 
 2,484,749 

-0-
-0-

Anthony W. Thomas Pension Plan 
Benefit Restoration Plan  

7
-

 108,441 
 9,257 

-0-
-0-

Brent Whittington Pension Plan 
Benefit Restoration Plan 

3.5 
-

 54,124 
 7,664 

-0-
-0-

John P. Fletcher  Pension Plan 
Benefit Restoration Plan 

-
-

-
-

-
-

Cynthia B. Nash Pension Plan 
Benefit Restoration Plan 

-
-

-
-

-
-

(1)  Each NEO’s number of years credited service recognizes only prior years of service under the Alltel Corporation 
Pension Plan and the Alltel Corporation Benefit Restoration Plan.  

(2)  The present value of accumulated benefits includes the present value of the benefits transferred from the Alltel 
Corporation Pension Plan and the Alltel Corporation Benefit Restoration Plan as part of the spin-off. The present value 
of accumulated benefits was calculated based on retirement at age 60 with 20 years of credited service, current 
compensation as of December 31, 2012, no pre-retirement decrements, the RP-2000 combined healthy mortality table 
(projected to 2013), and a 3.85% discount rate, which is the same rate used for preparing Windstream’s consolidated 
financial statements. 

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation 

The Windstream 2007 Deferred Compensation Plan (the “2007 Plan”) is a non-qualified deferred compensation plan 
offered to executive officers and other key employees.  Participants may defer up to 25% of base salary and 50% of bonus.  
The 2007 Plan also allows Windstream to make discretionary contributions to the 2007 Plan to replace contributions that 
Windstream is limited from making to its 401(k) qualified plan as a result of limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code.  
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These discretionary contributions equal the amount that could have been credited to the executive officers as a matching 
contribution under Windstream’s 401(k) plan had compensation not been limited under the 401(k) plan by the Internal 
Revenue Code, plus the amount, if any, by which the executive officer’s matching contribution under the Windstream 401(k) 
plan is reduced due to the executive officer’s contributions to the 2007 Plan.  Participant accounts are credited with earnings
based on a portfolio of investment funds.  

Payments are made under the 2007 Plan in cash at certain future dates as specified by the participants or upon 
separation of service. 

NON-QUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION  

Name 

Executive 
Contributions in Last 

FY ($) 

Windstream 
Contributions in Last 

FY ($) (1) 

Aggregate 
Earnings in Last 

FY ($) (2) 

Aggregate 
Withdrawals/ 

Distributions ($) 

Aggregate Balance at
12/31/2012 
($) (3)(4)(5) 

Jeffery R. Gardner  99,861  119,534  113,560 -  1,539,617 
Anthony W. Thomas  182,922  29,808  30,526  -  361,293 
Brent Whittington -  49,463  109,465 -  969,469 
John P. Fletcher -  34,472  3,517 -  124,094 
Cynthia B. Nash -  16,759  2 -  49,388 

(1) These amounts are also included in the “All Other Compensation” column of the Summary Compensation Table. 

(2) There were no “above-market earnings” for 2012 and therefore none of these amounts were included in the Summary 
Compensation Table. 

(3) Balances are paid following termination or upon a date chosen by participant, subject to compliance with Section 409A 
of the Internal Revenue Code.   

(4) All amounts contributed by a named executive officer and Windstream in prior years have been reported in the Summary 
Compensation Tables in our previously filed proxy statements in the year earned to the extent he/she was a named 
executive officer for purposes of the SEC’s executive compensation disclosure. 

(5) In addition to the amounts described in footnotes (1) and (4) above, the amount shown in this column includes amounts 
reported as compensation for each of the NEOs in the Summary Compensation tables in prior years. 

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

Windstream has entered into certain agreements and maintains certain plans and arrangements that require 
Windstream or its successors to pay or provide certain compensation and benefits to its named executive officers in the event 
of certain terminations of employment or a change-in-control of Windstream. The estimated amount of compensation and 
benefits payable or provided to each named executive officer in each situation is summarized below, assuming that the 
triggering event occurred on the last day of the 2012 fiscal year. The actual amounts that would be paid to each named 
executive officer upon certain terminations of employment or upon a change-in-control can only be determined at the time 
the actual triggering event occurs. The estimated amount of compensation and benefits described below are in addition to the 
benefits to which the named executive officers would be entitled to receive upon termination of employment generally under 
the retirement plans and programs described in the sections above titled “Pension Benefits” and “Non-Qualified Deferred 
Compensation”. Please refer to those sections for a description of Windstream’s retirement plans and programs. This section 
identifies and quantifies the extent to which those retirement benefits are enhanced or accelerated upon the triggering events 
described below.  

Voluntary Termination Without “Good Reason” or Involuntary Termination For “Cause”

Windstream does not maintain any plans or arrangements that would provide benefits to its named executive officers 
solely as a result of a voluntary termination by a named executive officer without “good reason” or an involuntary 
termination by Windstream for “cause” (each as defined under the heading “Voluntary Termination for ‘Good Reason’ or 
Involuntary Termination without ‘Cause’” immediately below).  

Voluntary Termination for “Good Reason” or Involuntary Termination without “Cause”

Windstream has entered into an Employment Agreement only with Mr. Gardner. Under the Employment 
Agreement, if Windstream or its affiliates terminated Mr. Gardner’s employment without “cause” (as defined below) or if 
Mr. Gardner terminated his employment with Windstream or its affiliates for “good reason” (as defined below) on 
December 31, 2012, then Windstream would have been obligated to pay Mr. Gardner, in a lump sum, approximately 
$2,996,000. This severance benefit under the Employment Agreement equals three times his annual base salary. 
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The Employment Agreement provides that upon termination of employment for any reason, Mr. Gardner is 
prohibited from soliciting employees or customers or competing against Windstream for a one-year period and is subject to 
confidentiality and non-disparagement restrictions. Moreover, he is required to sign a release of all claims against 
Windstream prior to receiving severance benefits under the agreement.  

For purposes of the Employment Agreement, the term “cause” generally means (i) the willful failure by Mr. Gardner 
substantially to perform his duties to Windstream; (ii) a conviction, guilty plea or plea of nolo contendere of Mr. Gardner for 
any felony; (iii) gross negligence or willful misconduct by Mr. Gardner that is intended to or does result in his substantial 
personal enrichment or a material detrimental effect on the reputation or business of Windstream or any affiliate; (iv) a 
material violation by Mr. Gardner of the corporate governance board guidelines and code of ethics of Windstream or any 
affiliate; (v) a material violation by Mr. Gardner of the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or other federal or 
state securities law, rule or regulation; (vi) the repeated use of alcohol by Mr. Gardner that materially interferes with his 
duties, the use of illegal drugs, or a violation of the drug and/or alcohol policies of Windstream or any affiliate; or (vii) a
material breach by Mr. Gardner of any non-solicitation, non-disparagement or confidentiality restrictions.  

For purposes of the Employment Agreement, the term “good reason” generally means the occurrence, without Mr. 
Gardner’s express written consent, of any one or more of the following: (i) any action of Windstream or its affiliates that 
results in a material adverse change in Mr. Gardner’s position (including status, offices, title, and reporting requirements), 
authorities, duties, or other responsibilities; (ii) a material reduction by Windstream in Mr. Gardner’s compensation; (iii) the
failure of the Board of Directors to nominate Mr. Gardner for election or re-election to the Board; or (iv) a material breach by
Windstream of any provision of the Employment Agreement.  Before Mr. Gardner may resign for “good reason”, 
Windstream must have an opportunity within 30 days after receipt of notice to cure the “good reason” condition(s).  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall “good reason” occur as a result of the following: (i) a reduction in any 
component of Mr. Gardner’s compensation if other components of his compensation are increased or a substitute or 
alternative is provided so that his overall compensation is not materially reduced; (ii) Mr. Gardner does not earn cash bonuses
or benefit from equity incentives awarded to him because the performance goals or targets were not achieved; and (iii) the 
suspension of Mr. Gardner for the period during which the Board of Directors is making a determination whether to terminate 
him for cause.  

Death or Disability

Windstream would have been obligated to provide each of the executive officers listed below (or his/her 
beneficiary) with the following estimated payments in the event that he/she had died or become “disabled” (as defined below) 
while employed with Windstream on December 31, 2012.  

Name 

Accelerated Vesting 
of Restricted 

Shares (1) 
($) 

Accelerated Vesting 
of Annual 

Incentive Compensation (2) 
($)  

Total for
Death or Disability 

($) 
Jeffery R. Gardner 6,459,866 1,215,000 7,674,866 
Anthony W. Thomas 1,741,425 360,000 2,101,425 
Brent Whittington 2,198,679 457,200 2,655,879 
John P. Fletcher 1,781,616 360,000 2,141,616 
Cynthia B. Nash 946,172 236,250 1,182,422 

(1)  The value of the accelerated vesting of restricted shares is based on the closing price of Windstream’s Common Stock on 
December 31, 2012 of $8.28 per share.  

(2) These amounts reflect actual 2012 payouts, which are reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column 
of the Summary Compensation Table. 

Accelerated Vesting of Restricted Shares.  In the event that an executive officer listed above died or became 
permanently disabled (as determined by the Compensation Committee in its sole discretion) while employed with 
Windstream, then his or her unvested restricted stock or performance-based restricted stock or units would immediately vest 
in full.  

Performance Incentive Compensation Plan.  During 2012, each of the named executive officers participated in the 
Performance Incentive Compensation Plan, which is an annual bonus plan. If either an executive died or became “disabled” 
during the year, then his or her 2012 annual bonus under the Performance Incentive Compensation Plan would have been 
pro-rated on the basis of the ratio of the number of days of participation during the plan year to the number of days during the
plan year and paid by Windstream in a lump sum following the end of the year. For this purpose, the term “disability” means 
incapacity resulting in the executive being unable to engage in gainful employment at his or her usual occupation by reason 
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of any medically demonstrable physical or mental condition, excluding, however, incapacity resulting from a felonious 
enterprise; chronic alcoholism or addiction to drugs or abuse; and self-inflicted injury or illness. 

Change-in-Control

Windstream does not maintain any plans or arrangements that would provide benefits to the NEOs solely as a result 
of a change-in-control (a single trigger). 

Change-in-Control Agreements.  Effective January 1, 2013, Windstream entered into a new form of change-in-
control agreement to replace and supersede the prior change-in-control agreement with its executive officers, including the 
NEOs. The terms of the current form of change-in-control agreement are generally the same as the prior form of change-in-
control agreement, except that the new form of change-in-control agreement eliminates the tax gross-up provision applicable 
under certain circumstances under agreements entered into prior to 2009.  The current form of change-in-control agreement 
does not provide for a gross-up payment to any of Windstream's named executive officers to offset any excise taxes that may 
be imposed on excess parachute payments under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code. Instead, under the current form 
of change-in-control agreement, if such excise taxes would be imposed, the executive will either receive all of the benefits to
which he or she is entitled under the agreement, subject to the excise tax, or have his or her benefits under the agreement 
reduced to a level at which the excise tax will not apply, depending upon which approach would provide the executive with 
the greater net after-tax benefit.   

Under the current change-in-control agreement, a covered executive would be entitled to certain severance benefits 
if, during the two-year period following a change-in-control (as defined below), Windstream terminates the executive’s 
employment without “cause” (as defined below) or the executive terminates his or her employment with Windstream for 
“good reason” (as defined below). In general, the executive officers would be entitled to receive, in a lump sum paid by 
Windstream or its successor, the following amounts pursuant to the change-in-control agreements:  

• Three times for Messrs. Gardner, Thomas, Whittington and Fletcher and two times for Ms. Nash the sum of the 
executive’s base salary and target annual incentive compensation (in each case, as in effect on the date of the 
change-in-control, or if higher, on the date of termination);  

• Pro-rated amount of target annual incentive compensation for the year of termination;  
• A cash equivalent for three years for Messrs. Gardner, Thomas, Whittington and Fletcher and two times for Ms. 

Nash of health care premiums; and  
• Outplacement services with a value of no more than $50,000 for Messrs. Gardner, Thomas, Whittington and 

Fletcher or $25,000 for Ms. Nash. 
Terminated executives are prohibited from soliciting employees or customers or competing against Windstream or 

the acquiring or successor entity for a one-year period and are subject to a confidentiality restriction. Moreover, a terminated
executive is required to sign a release of all claims against Windstream and the acquiring or successor entity prior to 
receiving severance benefits under the change-in-control agreement.  

The Compensation Committee believes these benefits are consistent with market practice and fit into the overall 
compensation packages to sufficiently attract and retain talent.  Windstream is protected by the non-competition provisions of 
the arrangements and by having these benefits, senior executives are not discouraged from pursuing the best alternative for 
long-term value for shareholders, which might include potential change-in-control transactions.   

Accelerated Vesting of Restricted Shares.  All unvested restricted stock or performance-based restricted stock or 
units held by the named executive officers listed above would have become vested if a change-in-control (as defined below) 
occurred on December 31, 2012 and Windstream terminated the executive’s employment without “cause” (as defined below) 
or the executive terminated his or her employment with Windstream for “good reason” (as defined below) following such 
change-in-control.  

Definitions.  For purposes of the Change-in-Control Agreements and the restricted shares described above for all 
executive officers, the following terms have the meanings set forth below:  

• Change-in-control.  A change-in-control generally means any of the following: (i) an acquisition of 50% or more of 
Windstream’s Common Stock; (ii) a change in the membership of Windstream’s board of directors, such that the 
current incumbents and their approved successors no longer constitute a majority; (iii) a reorganization, merger, 
consolidation or sale or other disposition of more than 50% of Windstream’s assets in which any one of the 
following is true: Windstream’s pre-transaction shareholders do not hold at least 50% of the combined enterprise; 
there is a 50%-or-more shareholder of the combined enterprise (other than as a result of conversion of the 
shareholder’s pre-combination interest in Windstream); or the members of Windstream’s board of directors 
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(immediately before the combination) do not make up a majority of the board of the combined enterprise; or (iv) 
stockholders approve a complete liquidation of Windstream.  

• Cause.  In general a termination is for cause if it is for any of the following reasons: (i) the willful failure by the 
executive substantially to perform his duties with Windstream; (ii) a conviction, guilty plea or plea of nolo 
contendere of the executive for any felony; (iii) the willful misconduct by the executive that is demonstratively and 
materially injurious to Windstream or its affiliates, monetarily or otherwise; (iv) a material violation by the 
executive of the corporate governance board guidelines and code of ethics of Windstream or any affiliate; (v) a 
material violation by the executive of the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or other federal or state 
securities law, rule or regulation; (vi) the repeated use of alcohol by the executive that materially interferes with his 
duties, the use of illegal drugs, or a violation of the drug and/or alcohol policies of Windstream or any affiliate; or 
(vii) a material breach by the executive of any non-solicitation or confidentiality restrictions.  

• Good Reason. In general a termination by the executive is for good reason if it is for any of the following reasons: 
(i) the assignment to the executive of any duties inconsistent with the executive’s status as an executive officer or a 
substantial adverse change in the nature or status of the executive’s responsibilities; (ii) a reduction by Windstream 
in the executive’s annual base salary; (iii) the relocation of the principal executive offices of Windstream by more 
than 35 miles or Windstream’s requiring the executive to be based anywhere other than its principal executive 
offices; (iv) the failure by Windstream to pay to the executive any portion of the executive’s current compensation, 
deferred compensation or business expense reimbursements; (v) the failure by Windstream to continue in effect any 
compensation plan in which the executive participates unless an equitable alternative arrangement has been made, or 
the failure by Windstream to continue the executive’s participation in those plans; (vi) the failure by Windstream to 
continue to provide the executive with benefits substantially similar to those enjoyed by the executive under any of 
Windstream’s retirement, welfare and fringe benefit plans; (vii) any purported termination by Windstream of the 
executive’s employment that is not effected in accordance with the terms of the Change-in-Control Agreement; or 
(viii) any failure by Windstream to require the successor to assume the agreement. 

Qualifying Termination Following Change-in-Control

Each executive officer listed below would have been entitled to the following estimated payments and benefits from 
Windstream or its successor if a change-in-control (as defined below) occurred on December 31, 2012 and Windstream 
terminated the executive’s employment without “cause” (as defined below) or the executive terminated his or her 
employment with Windstream for “good reason” (as defined below) immediately following such change-in- control. 

Name 

Cash
Severance 

($) (1) 
Pro-Rated 

Bonus 

Cash Equivalent 
for Health Care 

Premiums 
($) 

Outplacement 
Services 

($) 

Excise Tax  
Gross-Up

($) 

Accelerated 
Vesting of 
Restricted  
Shares (2) 

($) 

Total on a 
Qualifying

Termination 
Following a 

Change-in-Control 
($) 

Jeffery R. Gardner 7,050,000 1,350,000 52,614 50,000 -0- 6,459,866 14,962,480 
Anthony W. Thomas  1,800,000 (3) 400,000 34,606  25,000 (3) -0- 1,741,425 4,001,031 
Brent Whittington 3,429,000 508,000 52,614 50,000 -0- 2,198,679 6,238,293 
John P. Fletcher 2,700,000 400,000 47,973 50,000 -0- 1,781,616 4,979,589 
Cynthia B. Nash 1,275,000 262,500 20,572 25,000 -0- 946,172 2,529,244 

(1) This amount includes the annual incentive compensation for the year of termination, which is reflected in the Grants of 
Plan-Based Awards Table. Actual 2012 payouts are reflected in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column of 
the Summary Compensation Table.   

(2) The value of the accelerated vesting of restricted shares is based on the closing price of Windstream’s Common Stock on 
December 31, 2012 of $8.28 per share.  

(3) The amounts disclosed for Mr. Thomas represent the amounts stipulated by the change-in-control agreement that was in 
place as of December 31, 2012.  A new change-in-control agreement was put in place for Mr. Thomas as of January 1, 
2013.  Mr. Thomas is now eligible for a sum of three times his base salary and target annual incentive compensation and 
$50,000 for outplacement services. 

      

Clawback Policy. Windstream has a clawback policy that requires executive officers to repay or forfeit 
performance-based compensation under certain conditions. Effective January 1, 2013, the policy covers the following types 
of compensation: annual or short-term incentive compensation, performance-based restricted stock or units, other 
performance-based compensation, and such other compensation as may be designated by resolution to be subject to the 
policy. The policy does not cover time-based restricted stock or severance benefits awarded under a change-in-control 
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agreement. Under the policy, each executive officer is required to forfeit or repay covered compensation, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, if all of the following conditions are met: (i) Windstream financial statements filed during an executive 
officer's employment become subject to a restatement; (ii) the Board determines that fraud caused or significantly contributed 
to the need for the restatement; (iii) the Board determines that the restatement applies to the covered compensation; and (iv) 
the Board determines in its sole discretion that it is in the best interests of Windstream and its stockholders for the executive
officer to repay the covered compensation. The policy is limited to compensation that is vested or paid based on the 
achievement of financial results that subsequently become subject to restatement.  The Board can determine that a 
restatement applies to covered compensation if the vesting or payment of such compensation was based on the achievement 
of financial results that were subsequently the subject of a restatement, and the amount of compensation that would have been 
received by the executive officer had the financial results been properly reported, after giving effect to the restatement, would 
have been lower than the amount actually received. Each executive officer is required to sign an agreement that he or she has 
received, read and understood the policy. In addition, the policy provides that repayment and forfeiture remedies are not the 
exclusive remedies and that Windstream may pursue every other right or remedy at law or in equity available.  

Risks Presented by Windstream’s Compensation Programs 

 As required by SEC rules, Windstream has assessed the risks that could arise from its compensation policies for all 
employees, including employees who are not officers, and has concluded that such policies are not reasonably likely to have 
a material adverse effect on Windstream.  To the extent that Windstream’s compensation programs create a potential 
misalignment of risk incentives, Windstream believes that it has more than adequate compensating controls to mitigate 
against the potential impact of any such misalignment.  These compensating controls include strong internal controls over 
financial reporting, robust stock ownership guidelines, a clawback policy for senior executives, and a three year vesting cycle
for equity-based compensation.  The result is a strong alignment between the interests of management and shareholders.  
Windstream also engages in an annual risk assessment process that is conducted by Windstream’s Internal Audit Department.  
The results of this risk assessment are reported annually to Windstream’s Audit Committee and full Board of Directors, and 
this assessment is designed in part to identify any activities that create improper risks to Windstream.  

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation 

During 2012, the Compensation Committee consisted of Messrs. Beall (Chairman), Foster and Montgomery.  All 
members of the Compensation Committee during 2012 were independent directors, and no member was an officer or 
employee of Windstream or a former officer of Windstream.  No member of the Compensation Committee serving during 
2012 had any relationship requiring disclosure under the section titled “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in 
this Proxy Statement.  During 2012, none of our executive officers served on the compensation committee (or its equivalent) 
or board of directors of another entity whose executive officer served on either our Compensation Committee or our Board of 
Directors.
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PROPOSAL NO. 2 
ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

At the Annual Meeting and pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and
Section 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Board of Directors is providing stockholders of Windstream the 
opportunity to vote on the following advisory (non-binding) resolution: 

“Resolved, that the compensation paid to Windstream’s named executive officers, as disclosed in this 
Proxy Statement, including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, compensation tables and 
narrative discussion, is hereby APPROVED.”  

At the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, stockholders were provided an advisory (non-binding) vote on the 
frequency at which stockholder advisory votes on executive compensation (like this Proposal No. 2) should be held. 
Consistent with the recommendation of the Board of Directors, approximately eighty-four percent (84%) of votes cast at the 
2011 Annual Meeting were cast in favor of holding shareholder advisory votes on executive compensation on an annual 
basis. Accordingly, Windstream has determined to hold such votes on an annual basis, and the next advisory vote to approve 
Windstream's compensation of its named executive officers will be held at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.  

As described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, our executive compensation philosophy, policies, and 
practices are designed to: 

• Provide a high correlation between pay and performance;  
• Align management’s interests with the long-term interests of Windstream’s stockholders; and 
• Provide competitive compensation and incentives to attract and retain key executives. 

Our core program consists of base salary, annual cash incentives and long-term equity incentives. 

The following is a summary of key considerations that stockholders should take into account when assessing our 
executive compensation program:  

• Windstream’s vision is to become the premier enterprise communications and services provider in the United 
States while maintaining our strong, stable consumer business.  Our goal is to generate solid and sustainable 
cash flow over time, and we return a significant portion of this cash flow to our shareholders through our 
current dividend practice. 

• We believe that Adjusted Operating Income Before Depreciation and Amortization (Adjusted OIBDA) is the 
best measure of our ability to generate solid and sustainable cash flow over the long-term, which is why we 
include Adjusted OIBDA as a key performance objective for our short-term and long-term incentive plans.   

• Our 2012 compensation reflected our mixed operating results by paying short-term incentive payouts below 
target.  Our stock price decline also impacted 2012 compensation by providing a lower value to executives upon 
vesting of their equity awards compared to their grant value.  In addition, because our executives are required to 
own a significant amount of company stock, the value of our executive’s total stock holdings declined during 
the year. 

• The Compensation Committee’s 2013 compensation decisions for NEOs included (a) no increases to base 
salaries, (b) no increases to short-term incentive opportunities, (c) no increases in the long-term incentive grant 
values, and (d) the addition of dividend payout ratio as a measure in the short-term incentive plan to strengthen 
the focus and accountability for preserving the cash flow necessary to fund the Company’s dividend. 

The Board of Directors values and encourages constructive dialogue on compensation and other important 
governance topics with Windstream’s stockholders, to whom it is ultimately accountable.  The Board of Directors requests 
stockholder approval of Windstream’s overall executive compensation philosophy, policies and practices.  Although your 
vote is advisory and will not be binding upon Windstream or the Board of Directors, nor will it create or imply any change in 
the fiduciary duties of Windstream or the Board of Directors, the Compensation Committee will take into account the 
outcome of the vote when considering future executive compensation decisions.   

Board Recommendation  

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE “FOR” 
APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL NO. 2.  
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PROXIES SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL BE VOTED “FOR” PROPOSAL NO. 2 UNLESS 
STOCKHOLDERS SPECIFY A CONTRARY VOTE. 

PROPOSAL NO. 3 
RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has selected PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) to audit Windstream’s consolidated 
financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013.  Windstream is submitting to the stockholders for 
ratification at the Annual Meeting the selection of PwC as Windstream’s independent auditors for 2013, although neither the 
Board of Directors nor its Audit Committee maintains a policy requiring Windstream to seek stockholder ratification of the 
independent auditor selection. PwC served as Windstream’s independent auditor in connection with the audits of the 2011 
and 2012 fiscal years. Information regarding PwC’s fees for 2011and 2012 is provided below under the caption “Audit and 
Non-Audit Fees.”  Representatives of PwC are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting and will have an opportunity to 
make a statement, if they desire to do so, and to respond to appropriate questions.  

If the stockholders fail to ratify the appointment of PwC as Windstream’s independent registered public accountant, 
the Board will reconsider the appointment. However, even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee, in its sole 
discretion, may change the appointment at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best 
interests of Windstream and its stockholders. 

Board Recommendation 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE “FOR” 

PROPOSAL NO. 3.   

PROXIES SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL BE VOTED “FOR” PROPOSAL NO. 3 UNLESS 
STOCKHOLDERS SPECIFY A CONTRARY VOTE. 
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PROPOSAL NO. 4 
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL

The stockholder proposal, which follows, is a verbatim submission by the Trust for the International Brotherhood of 
Electrical Workers’ Pension Benefit Fund (who has notified Windstream that it is the beneficial owner of Windstream 
Common Stock valued at more than $2,000), whose address is 900 Seventh Street, N.W., Washington, D.C.  20001, for 
consideration by Windstream stockholders.  All statements contained in the proposal are the sole responsibility of the Fund.  

RESOLVED:  The shareholders ask the board of directors to adopt a policy that in the event of a change in control (as 
defined under any applicable employment agreement, equity incentive plan or other plan), there shall be no acceleration of 
vesting of any equity award granted to any senior executive, provided, however, that the board's Compensation Committee 
may provide in an applicable grant or purchase agreement that any unvested award will vest on a partial, pro rata basis up to 
the time of the senior executive's termination, with such qualifications for an award as the Committee may determine.  

For purposes of this Policy, "equity award" means an award granted under an equity incentive plan as defined in Item 402 of 
the SEC's Regulation S-K, which addresses executive compensation.  This resolution shall be implemented so as not affect 
any contractual rights in existence on the date this proposal is adopted.  

SUPPORTING STATEMENT 

Windstream Corporation (the "Company") allows senior executives to receive an accelerated award of unearned equity under 
certain conditions after a change of control of the Company.  We do not question that some form of severance payments may 
be appropriate in that situation. We are concerned, however, that current practices at the Company may permit windfall 
awards that have nothing to do with a senior executive's performance.   

According to last year's proxy statement, a termination without cause or an voluntary termination with good reason at the end 
of the 2011 fiscal year could have accelerated the vesting of $17.5 million worth of long-term equity to Windstream's five 
senior executives, with Mr. Gardner, the President and CEO, entitled to $9.3 million out of a total personal severance 
package worth $17.4 million.  

In this regard, we note that Windstream uses a “double trigger” mechanism to determine eligibility for accelerated vesting: 
(1) There must a change of control, which can occur as defined in the plan or agreement, and (2) Employment is terminated 
without cause or voluntarily for “good reason” as defined in the plan.  

We are unpersuaded by the argument that executives somehow “deserve” to receive unvested awards.  To accelerate the 
vesting of unearned equity on the theory that an executive was denied the opportunity to earn those shares seems inconsistent 
with a “pay for performance” philosophy worthy of the name.  

We do believe, however, that an affected executive should be eligible to receive an accelerated vesting of equity awards on a 
pro rata basis as of his or her termination date, with the details of any pro rata award to be determined by the Compensation 
Committee.   

Other major corporations, including Apple, Chevron, Dell, ExxonMobil, IBM, Intel, Microsoft, and Occidental Petroleum, 
have limitations on accelerated vesting of unearned equity, such as providing pro rata awards or simply forfeiting unearned 
awards.

We urge you to vote FOR this proposal. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' STATEMENT 
IN OPPOSITION TO THE STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL 

Windstream maintains an equity-based compensation program for executive officers that is designed to provide 
long-term incentives, to better align the interests of executives with stockholders, and to provide a retention incentive.  For
the reasons outlined below, we believe this proposal would conflict with and potentially undermine these objectives of our 
equity-based compensation program.  

We believe the following design features of our equity compensation program adequately address the concerns 
raised by the proponent and render adoption of the proposal unnecessary: 
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No equity awards vest solely upon signing, receipt of shareholder approval, or consummation of a change-in-control 
transaction (i.e., no single-trigger vesting); 

As stated in the proposal, all awards to senior executives have a double-trigger vesting provision, which means 
vesting does not occur unless both (1) the change-in-control transaction is consummated and (2) the executive's 
employment is terminated following the transaction.  Additionally, the first trigger is tied to consummation (and not 
signing or shareholder approval) of a change-in-control transaction;  

No awards vest unless the executive's position is eliminated in a qualified manner (i.e., termination by the company 
without cause, or resignation by the executive for good reason);  

No awards contain a window period provision that vest the award if the executive resigns within a specified time 
period following closing of a change-in-control transaction; and 

Our change-in-control agreements with executive officers limit the amount of all change-in-control severance 
benefits (including the value of any unvested equity awards) so that they do not exceed the applicable limit under 
280G of the Internal Revenue Code, and no executives are eligible for gross-up or reimbursement of any excise 
taxes.   

Windstream believes that it is appropriate for equity-based compensation to vest under this qualified double-trigger 
framework because, in most change-in-control transactions, senior executive positions of the target company are eliminated 
as duplicative following the closing of the transaction.  As a result of these alternative scenarios, if compensation programs 
are not properly designed, the risk of loss of a substantial portion of executive compensation can discourage management 
from pursuing the best alternatives for creating long-term value for shareholders, including a potential change-of-control 
transaction, while encouraging pursuit of alternatives more likely to result in longer term employment of the executive team.  
Due to this potential conflict, we believe that well-designed change-in-control arrangements are an important measure to 
align management’s interests with stockholders.  The conflict is potentially greater at Windstream due to the substantial 
amount of merger and acquisition activity that occurs in our sector, as well as Windstream’s practice of allocating a 
substantial percentage of each executive’s annual total direct compensation to equity compensation.   

One unintended consequence of adopting the proposal would be to undermine the retention incentive of equity 
awards, as management would face the prospect of forfeiture of all or a substantial portion of their equity awards in the event
of a change-in-control.  The need for this retention incentive is heightened during the pendency of a change-in-control, as a 
target company needs a motivated executive team to continue to operate the business during the period between signing and 
closing.  The need for this retention incentive is especially great in Windstream’s industry due to the significant time periods
that can elapse before obtaining regulatory approvals for a transaction.  We note that none of the companies cited by the 
proponent as adopting its proposal is a company operating in Windstream’s sector, and adoption of this policy could 
disadvantage Windstream within its sector.   

If Windstream were to pursue a change-in-control transaction, the Board of Directors would choose such alternative 
in the belief that it was the best path for creating long-term value for Windstream stockholders.  Under those circumstances, 
the Board does not believe it is appropriate, or in the best interest of our stockholders for the reasons discussed above, for 
senior management to forfeit their unvested equity awards that represent a significant portion of their total annual 
compensation.  

For these reasons, Windstream believes that this proposal is unnecessary and undesirable and could have adverse 
consequences for stockholders.   

Board Recommendation

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE “AGAINST” 
PROPOSAL NO. 4.   

PROXIES SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL BE VOTED “AGAINST” PROPOSAL NO. 4 
UNLESS STOCKHOLDERS SPECIFY A CONTRARY VOTE. 
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PROPOSAL NO. 5  
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL  

The stockholder proposal, which follows, is a verbatim submission by the CWA General Fund (who has notified 
Windstream that it is the beneficial owner of Windstream Common Stock valued at more than $2,000), whose address is 501 
Third Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20001-2767, for consideration by Windstream stockholders.  All statements therein are 
the sole responsibility of the Fund.  

Shareholder Proposal 

Resolved, that the shareholders of Windstream ("Company") hereby request that the Company provide a report, updated 
semiannually, disclosing the Company's:  

1.  Policies and procedures for making, with corporate funds or assets, contributions and expenditures (direct or 
indirect) to (a) participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate for 
public office, or (b) influence the general public, or any segment thereof, with respect to an election or referendum.  

2.  Monetary and non-monetary contributions and expenditures (direct and indirect) used in the manner described in 
section 1 above, including:  

a.  The identity of the recipient as well as the amount paid to each; and  

b.  The title(s) of the person(s) in the Company responsible decision-making.  

The report shall be presented to the board of directors or relevant board committee and posted on the Company's website.  

Supporting Statement  

As long-term shareholders of Windstream, we support transparency and accountability in corporate spending on political 
activities.  These include any activities considered intervention in any political campaign under the Internal Revenue Code, 
such as direct and indirect political contributions to candidates, political parties, or political organizations; independent 
expenditures; or electioneering communications on behalf of federal, state or local candidates. 

Disclosure is consistent with public policy, in the best interest of the company and its shareholders, and critical for 
compliance with federal ethics laws.  Moreover, the Supreme Court's Citizens United decision recognized the importance of 
political spending disclosure for shareholders when it said, "[D]isclosure permits citizens and shareholders to react to the 
speech of corporate entities in a proper way.  This transparency enables the electorate to make informed decisions and give 
proper weight to different speakers and messages."  Gaps in transparency and accountability may expose the company to 
reputational and business risks that could threaten long-term shareholder value.  

Windstream contributed at least $309,000 in corporate funds between 2002 and 2012 (CQ: http://moneyline.cq.com and the 
National Institute on Money in State Politics: http://www.followthemoney.org).  

However, relying on publicly available data does not provide a complete picture of the Company's political spending.  For 
example, the Company's payments to trade associations used for political activities are undisclosed and unknown.  In some 
cases, even management does not know how trade associations use their company's money politically.  The proposal asks the 
Company to disclose all of its political spending, including payments to trade associations and other tax exempt organizations 
used for political purposes. This would bring our Company in line with a growing number of leading companies, including 
Exelon, Merck and Microsoft that support political disclosure and accountability and present this information on their 
websites.  

The Company's Board and its shareholders need comprehensive disclosure to be able to fully evaluate the political use of 
corporate assets.  

This shareholder proposal received over 43% of the yes-no votes from Windstream shareholders in 2012.  

We urge your support for this critical governance reform. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS' STATEMENT  
IN OPPOSITION TO THE STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL 

Windstream shares the proponents’ interest in transparency and accountability regarding corporate spending on 
political activities.  In 2012, the Board of Directors adopted a disclosure policy that compares favorably with practices of the
largest publicly traded companies and that is stronger than other major telecommunications providers. This policy was 
expanded in 2013 to provide additional disclosure about the company’s involvement in trade associations.  To the extent our 
policy differs from the version submitted by the proponents, it is in the level of detail, the format and the frequency of 
reporting.  Windstream urges interested parties to review the following policy, as well as specific disclosure detail, all of 
which is posted on the Investor Relations portion of Windstream’s website (windstream.com/politics-transparency): 

Windstream’s Board of Directors oversees corporate political spending.  At least annually, 
Windstream will brief its Governance Committee on the company’s corporate political activity, including 
the spending of treasury funds and funds from the Windstream Corporation political action committees.  
Further, prior to funding any independent expenditure, Windstream shall obtain the approval of its 
Governance Committee. 

Windstream is committed to transparency in its political activities.  The company complies with 
federal and state regulatory reporting requirements, including required filings made with the Federal 
Election Commission (FEC) and analogous state entities.  This information is supplemented by voluntary 
disclosures on Windstream’s Investor Relations website, thus offering shareholders and the public a 
comprehensive view of Windstream’s political activity.  

Windstream has not funded independent expenditures and does not plan to fund independent 
expenditures as part of its political program.  Consistent with its commitment to transparency, Windstream 
will be fully transparent if it funds independent expenditures in the future.  

Windstream also provides transparency on its major trade associations memberships.  We will 
post on our website the name of all trade associations receiving more than $50,000 a year in Windstream 
membership dues.  In addition, for major trade associations that are not primarily engaged in 
telecommunications regulatory matters, Windstream will provide the annual payment amount for the 
preceding year.  

Windstream is active in the governance of its major trade associations and encourages them to 
provide transparency for their political campaign contributions and to decline to make independent 
expenditures.  Windstream will not, however, condition membership in a group or association based on the 
group or association’s policy on reporting independent expenditures. 

By adopting its 2012 policy on corporate political spending and expanding its breadth in 2013, the Board of 
Directors affirmed that Windstream is committed to transparency and will be a leader in this space.  The policy, coupled with 
the public website disclosures, have created a convenient mechanism for shareholders and the public to directly access 
Windstream’s official political spending records, as well as the governance framework that controls our corporate political 
spending activities.  Through changes adopted this year, Windstream is going farther than many companies in disclosing 
trade association memberships.   

The remaining difference in our policy and the proponents’ is the level of detail, format and frequency of reporting 
on political spending.  For example, the proposal would require us to disclose membership dues paid to all trade associations 
without regard to the amount of the dues or the nature of activities conducted by the association.  As noted above, we have 
amended our policy to provide transparency on our major trade association memberships.  The company has four such 
memberships, listed on our Investor Relations website.  Each is focused on telecommunications regulatory matters that are 
material and unique to our industry, such as inter-carrier compensation, universal service funding, and interconnection 
obligations between carriers.  We believe our amended policy provides shareholders with sufficient information to confirm 
that our trade association memberships relate to ordinary course-of-business activities that do not raise the governance 
concerns suggested by this proposal.   

For these reasons, Windstream believes that it has substantially achieved the goals of disclosure, transparency, and 
risk management and that any further actions suggested by this proposal are unnecessary. 
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Board Recommendation

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE “AGAINST” 
PROPOSAL NO. 5.   

PROXIES SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL BE VOTED “AGAINST” PROPOSAL 
NO. 5 UNLESS STOCKHOLDERS SPECIFY A CONTRARY VOTE. 

PROPOSAL NO. 6 
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL  

The stockholder proposal, which follows, is a verbatim submission by Mr. Kenneth Steiner (who has notified 
Windstream that he is beneficial owner of Windstream Common Stock valued at more than $2,000), whose address is 14 
Stoner Ave., 2M, Great Neck, NY 11021, for consideration by Windstream stockholders.  All statements therein are the sole 
responsibility of the proponent.  

Proposal 6 – Simple Majority Vote Right

RESOLVED, Shareholders request that our board take the steps necessary so that each voting requirement in our charter and 
bylaws that calls for a greater than simple majority vote be eliminated, and replaced by a requirement for a majority of the 
votes cast for and against applicable proposals, or a simple majority in compliance with applicable laws.  If necessary this 
means the closest standard to a majority of the votes cast for and against such proposals consistent with applicable laws.  

Shareowners are willing to pay a premium for shares of corporations that have excellent corporate governance. Supermajority 
voting requirements have been found to be one of six entrenching mechanisms that are negatively related to company 
performance according to "What Matters in Corporate Governance" by Lucien Bebchuk, Alma Cohen and Allen Ferrell of 
the Harvard Law School.  

This proposal topic won from 74% to 88% support at Weyerhaeuser, Alcoa, Waste Management, Goldman Sachs, 
FirstEnergy, McGraw-Hill and Macy's. The proponents of these proposals included James McRitchie and Ray T. Chevedden. 
Currently a 1%-minority can frustrate the will of our 66%-shareholder majority. Supermajority requirements are arguably 
most often used to block initiatives supported by most shareowners but opposed by management.  

This proposal should also be evaluated in the context of our Company's overall corporate governance as reported in 2012:  

GMI/The Corporate Library, an independent investment research firm, expressed concern regarding the pay of our executives 
including $9 million for our CEO Jeffery Gardner.  

GMI said annual cash incentives pay for our highest paid executives was based on a single financial performance measure.  
In most cases, a mix of performance metrics is more appropriate, not just to prevent executives from being tempted to game 
results, but to ensure that they do not take actions to achieve one end that might ultimately damage another. Furthermore, 
long-term incentives were split even between performance- and time-based equity pay. To be effective, all equity pay given 
as a long-term incentive should include performance requirements.  

Please encourage our board to respond positively to this proposal to protect shareholder value:  Simple Majority Vote Right 
– Proposal 6. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' STATEMENT  
IN OPPOSITION TO THE STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL 

The Board of Directors has carefully considered this proposal and believes that the existing voting standards under 
Windstream’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the “Windstream Certificate”) and Amended and Restated 
Bylaws (the “Windstream Bylaws”) are appropriate and necessary. The Board believes that extraordinary transactions and 
matters concerning Windstream’s corporate governance structure should have the support of a broad consensus of our 
stockholders in order to be approved, and our voting standards, some of which exceed the simple majority voting standard 
advocated by the proponent, ensure that such support exists when these matters are voted upon.   

The Delaware General Corporation Law permits supermajority voting requirements, and a number of publicly traded 
companies incorporated in Delaware have adopted these provisions to preserve and maximize long-term value for all 
stockholders. Our supermajority voting standards, each of which was carefully selected, apply to a small number of important 
corporate governance matters, including:  
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(i) amendments to certain provisions of the Windstream Certificate related to the limitation of liability of 
directors and indemnification of directors and officers, the prohibition of stockholder action by written 
consent, the calling of special meetings by stockholders, the election to be covered by Section 203 of the 
Delaware General Corporation Law, and the procedures required to amend the Windstream Certificate; and  

(ii) amendments to certain provisions of the Windstream Bylaws related to bringing matters before an annual 
stockholder meeting, nominating and electing directors, filling vacancies on the board, and the procedures 
required to amend the Windstream Bylaws. 

Virtually all other matters submitted to our stockholders for approval have a majority vote requirement. For 
example, the Windstream Bylaws require that, in an uncontested election, each director be elected by the affirmative vote of a 
majority of the votes cast for his or her election.  Additionally, unless otherwise required by applicable law, the Windstream 
Certificate or the Windstream Bylaws, stockholder approval of any other matter (other than the election of directors) requires 
the affirmative vote of a majority of shares present and entitled to vote on the matter.  

The Board believes that our voting standards do not “frustrate the will of our 66%-shareholder majority,” as the 
proponent alleges.  Rather, our voting standards are intended to preserve and maximize the value of Windstream for all of our 
stockholders by protecting against the self-interested actions of a few large stockholders, many of whom may have agendas 
opposed to the long-term value of Windstream.  Without these protections, it would be possible for an activist investor with 
self-serving interests or a group of minority stockholders to approve a significant change to corporate governance or an 
extraordinary transaction that may not be in the best interest of Windstream and that may be opposed by as many as half of 
our stockholders.  Because stockholders do not have the same fiduciary duties as our directors, a group of short-term 
stockholders may act in their own self-interests to the detriment of other stockholders. Accordingly, the Board of Directors 
believes that our voting standards, which protect stockholders against the self-interested actions of short-term investors, 
should not be changed as proposed. 

The proponent contends that this proposal “should also be evaluated in the context of our Company’s overall 
corporate governance.”  We agree with this statement, and we believe that Windstream has a strong corporate governance as 
reflected by the following attributes:  

7 of 9 (or over 75%) of our directors, and our Chairman of the Board, are independent;  

The roles of Chairman and CEO have been separate positions since our formation in 2006;  

Our executive compensation program was approved by over 92% of the votes of our stockholders in the 
annual “say-on-pay” vote conducted in 2012;  

Our directors are elected pursuant to a majority voting standard and a director resignation policy for 
directors who fail to receive a majority vote.  

This profile is reflected in our Corporate Governance Board Guidelines which are designed to enhance long-term stockholder 
value, align the interests of the Board and management with those of our stockholders, and promote high ethical conduct 
among our directors and employees.  The independence of the Board is a key safeguard, and we believe our independent 
Board is in the best position to, among other things, evaluate and approve changes to Windstream’s corporate governance 
structure that it determines to be in the best interests of Windstream and its stockholders.  

For all of these reasons, we believe that implementation of this proposal is not in the long-term best interests of our 
stockholders, will not enhance our corporate governance practices and could be harmful to stockholders in the future. 

Board Recommendation

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE 
“AGAINST” PROPOSAL NO. 6.   

PROXIES SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL BE VOTED “AGAINST” PROPOSAL NO. 6 
UNLESS STOCKHOLDERS SPECIFY A CONTRARY VOTE. 
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2014 ANNUAL MEETING

Stockholders who intend to present proposals at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and who wish to have 
those proposals included in Windstream’s proxy statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting, must be certain that those proposals 
are received by the Corporate Secretary at 4001 Rodney Parham Road, Little Rock, Arkansas 72212, no later than November 
26, 2013.  Such proposals must meet the requirements set forth in the rules and regulations of the SEC in order to be eligible 
for inclusion in the proxy statement for Windstream’s 2014 Annual Meeting.  

Additionally, stockholders that desire to submit a proposal at the 2014 Annual Meeting outside the process 
established by SEC Rule 14a-8 (i.e., where the proposal will not be included in Windstream’s proxy statement for the 2014 
Annual Meeting) must comply with the advance notice provisions in Windstream’s bylaws, the substantive and procedural 
requirements of which are more fully discussed below under the caption "Other Matters".  In order to comply with the 
advance notice provisions in Windstream’s bylaws, the stockholder must deliver written notice of the proposal to the 
Corporate Secretary at the address provided above no earlier than January 8, 2014 nor later than February 7, 2014.   

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Windstream has adopted a written policy for the review and approval of related party transactions. The Governance 

Committee is responsible for the review and approval of transactions covered by the policy, although transactions can also be 
approved by the disinterested members of the Board of Directors.  

Under the policy and subject to the exceptions noted below, the Governance Committee or the Board must approve 
any transaction in which Windstream is a participant, the amount involved equals or exceeds $120,000, and the transaction is 
required to be disclosed under SEC rules regarding related party transactions.  To be approved, the transaction must be on 
terms comparable to those that could be obtained in arm’s length dealings with an unrelated third party or is otherwise 
determined to be fair and in the best interests of Windstream.  The persons covered by the policy are Windstream’s directors, 
director nominees, and executive officers, immediate family members of any of the foregoing, and any entity that is 
controlled by any of the foregoing persons.   

During 2012, Windstream engaged Touchwood Technologies of Little Rock, Arkansas to perform information 
technology consulting services including website development and email fulfillment and paid Touchwood approximately 
$217,000 for these services. The brother of John Eichler, who is Vice President-Controller and an executive officer of 
Windstream, is an employee with Touchwood and performs services for Touchwood on engagements with Windstream.  
John Eichler has had no involvement in Windstream’s relationship with Touchwood or Windstream’s procurement decisions 
for this vendor.  Windstream believes that the engagements with Touchwood are on market terms that are comparable or 
more favorable to those that could be obtained in arm’s length dealings with unrelated third parties. The Governance 
Committee of the Board of Directors approved the terms of the Touchwood engagement for 2012 in accordance with 
Windstream’s procedure for the review and approval of related party transactions involving officers. 

Except for the foregoing, there were no commercial transactions between related parties and Windstream that 
required disclosure in this proxy statement. 

Transactions covered by the policy do not include the provision of services, the sale of products or other transactions 
conducted by Windstream in the ordinary course of business and on terms generally available to employees or customers. 
Covered transactions also do not include an employment or service relationship involving a director or executive officer and 
any related compensation resulting from that relationship that is approved by Windstream’s Compensation Committee or is 
disclosed in the proxy statement pursuant to the SEC’s executive compensation rules.  Additionally, covered transactions do 
not include employment relationships of immediate family members of executive officers as long as the immediate family 
member is not also an executive officer and is not related to the Chief Executive Officer or a director.  Any employment 
relationships with immediate family members of executive officers that are not subject to the policy require the approval of 
the Chief Executive Officer.  The Governance Committee also receives an annual report disclosing the terms of all related 
party transactions including transactions that do not require pre-approval by the Committee. The following is a summary of 
certain employment relationships occurring during 2012 involving Windstream, certain of its executive officers and certain 
members of their immediate family. Windstream believes the terms of the following employment relationships are 
comparable to terms that would have been reached by unrelated parties in arm’s-length transaction.   

David Martin is the brother-in-law of Brent Whittington, who is Chief Operating Officer and an executive officer of 
Windstream.  Mr. Martin served as a Vice President – Direct Sales for Windstream during 2012.  For 2012, Windstream paid 
Mr. Martin total compensation of $312,455 comprised of salary, commissions, the value of restricted stock granted during 
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2012, relocation reimbursement, Company contribution to the Windstream 401K plan, and Windstream’s portion of 
healthcare premiums.   

Wendy Raney is the wife of William Grant Raney, who served as Executive Vice President – Operations and an 
executive officer of Windstream until May 30, 2012.  Ms. Raney served as Vice President of Customer Service for 
Windstream during part of 2012.  For 2012, Windstream paid Ms. Raney total compensation of $297,221 comprised of 
salary, bonus, severance, the value of restricted stock granted during 2012, Company contribution to the Windstream 401K 
plan, Windstream’s portion of healthcare premiums.   

Paul Kroger is the son-in-law of Michael Rhoda, who served as Senior Vice President – Regulatory Affairs and an 
executive officer of Windstream until June 2, 2012.  Mr. Kroger served as a Sales Director for Windstream during 2012.  For 
2012, Windstream paid Mr. Kroger total compensation of $181,140, comprised of salary, commissions, auto allowance, 
relocation reimbursement, Company contribution to the Windstream 401K plan, and Windstream’s portion of healthcare 
premiums. 

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP 
REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Windstream’s directors and executive officers, and 
persons who own more than ten percent of Windstream’s Common Stock, to file with the SEC and NASDAQ initial reports 
of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of that Common Stock. To Windstream’s knowledge, based solely upon a 
review of copies of reports provided by those individuals to Windstream and written representations of those individuals that 
no other reports were required with respect to the year ended December 31, 2012, Windstream believes that all of the 
foregoing filing requirements applicable to its directors, executive officers, and greater-than-ten percent beneficial owners 
have been met, except that one Form 4 was filed late by John C. Eichler for one reportable transaction arising from the 
withholding of shares to satisfy the obligations arising from the vesting of an equity award.   

ANNUAL REPORT

The 2012 Annual Report accompanies this proxy statement, which incorporates a copy of Windstream’s 2012 Form 
10-K report, including the consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedules thereto.  

For stockholders who elect to receive proxy materials by mail and not electronic delivery, only one copy of this 
proxy statement, and the accompanying Annual Report, is being delivered to such stockholders who share an address, unless 
Windstream has received contrary instructions from one or more of the stockholders. Windstream will promptly deliver a 
separate copy of this proxy statement and the accompanying Annual Report to any stockholder at a shared address to which a 
single copy of those documents has been delivered by mail upon the written or oral request from that stockholder to 
Windstream at the address provided below or by calling (501) 748-7000. Any stockholder sharing a single copy of the proxy 
statement and Annual Report who wishes to receive a separate distribution by mail of Windstream’s proxy statement and 
Annual Report in the future and stockholders sharing an address and receiving by mail multiple copies of Windstream’s 
proxy statement and Annual Report who wish to share a single copy of those documents in the future should also notify 
Windstream at: Investor Relations, Windstream Corporation, 4001 Rodney Parham Road, Little Rock, Arkansas 72212.  

AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES 

 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) has been selected as Windstream’s independent auditors for 2013.  
Aggregate fees for professional services rendered by PwC for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were: 

In thousands  2012  2011 
Audit (a) $ 3,201 $ 2,902 
Audit-related (b)  61  103 
Tax (c)  298  186 
All other (d)  2  2 
Total $ 3,562 $ 3,193 

(a) Audit fees includes fees for the annual audit and quarterly reviews of the consolidated financial statements as well as 
attestation reports required by statute or regulation, comfort letters and consents in respect to Securities and Exchange 
Commission filings, and accounting and financial reporting consultations.  The increase in 2012 audit fees is related to 
the additional work required by the Sarbanes Oxley Act, Section 404, for the PAETEC acquisition.   
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(b) Audit-related fees are comprised of assurance and related services that are traditionally performed by the independent 
registered public accounting firm and are not reported under “Audit Fees”.  Excluded from the 2012 and 2011 amounts 
are $31,000 and $29,000, respectively, paid by the Windstream Pension Plan Trust for the audit of the Windstream 
Pension Plan.   

(c) Tax fees are principally comprised of fees for tax consulting services provided by PwC.  The increase in 2012 tax fees is 
primarily due to work performed in connection with a study of acquisition costs and net operating losses related to the 
PAETEC acquisition. 

(d) All other fees are comprised of fees which cannot be associated with the categories previously noted. 

In making its determination regarding the independence of PwC, the Audit Committee considered whether the 
provision of the services covered herein regarding “Audit-related fees”, “Tax fees” and “All other fees” was compatible with 
maintaining such independence. All services to be performed for Windstream by PwC must be pre-approved by the Audit 
Committee or a designated member of the Audit Committee pursuant to the Committee’s Pre-Approval Policies and 
Procedures. The Audit Committee’s pre-approval policy provides that Windstream may engage PwC for non-audit services 
(i) only if such services are not prohibited from being performed by PwC under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or any other 
applicable law or regulation and (ii) if such services are tax-related services, such services are one or more of the following
tax-related services: tax return preparation and review; advice on income tax, tax accounting, sales/use tax, excise tax and 
other miscellaneous tax matters; tax advice and implementation assistance on restructurings, mergers and acquisition matters 
and other tax strategies. The pre-approval policy provides that the Audit Committee, or any individual member of the Audit 
Committee who has been designated with authority to pre-approve audit or non-audit services to be performed by PwC, must 
pre-approve the engagement of PwC to perform such non-audit services, and any request for approval for PwC to perform a 
permitted non-audit service must be accompanied by a discussion of the reasons why PwC should be engaged to perform the 
services instead of an alternative provider.  None of the services described above were approved pursuant to the de minimis
exception provided in Rule 2-01(c)(7)(i)(C) of Regulation S-X promulgated by the SEC. 

OTHER MATTERS
The management and the Board of Directors of Windstream do not know of any other matters that may come before 

the meeting. If any other matters properly come before the meeting, however, it is the intention of the persons named in the 
accompanying form of proxy to vote the proxy in accordance with their judgment on those matters.  

Under Windstream’s Bylaws, nominations for director may be made only by the Board or by a Windstream 
stockholder who has delivered timely notice of such stockholder’s intent to make such nomination in writing to the Secretary 
of Windstream. To be timely, a stockholder’s notice shall be delivered to or mailed and received at the principal executive 
offices of Windstream (i) in the case of an annual meeting, not less than 90 nor more than 120 days prior to the first 
anniversary of the preceding year’s annual meeting; provided, however, that in the event that the date of the annual meeting 
is changed by more than 30 days from such anniversary date, notice by the stockholder must be received not later than the 
close of business on the 10th day following the day on which notice of the date of the meeting was mailed or public 
disclosure of the meeting was made, whichever occurs first, and (ii) in the case of a special meeting at which directors are to
be elected, not later than the close of business on the 10th day following the day on which notice of the date of the meeting 
was mailed or public disclosure of the meeting was made, whichever occurs first.  

The stockholder’s notice of nomination shall set forth: (1) as to each person whom the stockholder proposes to 
nominate for election as a director at such meeting all information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in
solicitations of proxies for election of directors, or is otherwise required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and such person’s written consent to being named in the proxy statement as a 
nominee and to serving as a director if elected; (2) as to the stockholder and any “stockholder associated person” (as such 
phrase is defined below) giving the notice (A) the name and address, as they appear on the Windstream’s books, of such 
stockholder and any stockholder associated person, (B) the class and number of shares of Windstream which are beneficially 
owned by such stockholder and also which are owned of record by such stockholder, (C) whether and the extent to which any 
hedging or other transaction or series of transactions has been entered into by or on behalf of, or any other agreement, 
arrangement or understanding (including any short position or any borrowing or lending of shares) has been made, the effect 
or intent of which is to mitigate loss to or manage risk or benefit of share price changes for, or to increase or decrease the 
voting power of, such stockholder or any such stockholder associated person with respect to any share of Windstream stock; 
and (3) as to the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination is made, (A) the name and address of such person, 
(B) the class and number of shares of Windstream which are beneficially owned by such person, (C) a representation that the 
stockholder is a holder of record of stock of Windstream entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to appear in person or 
by proxy at the meeting to propose such nomination, and (D) a representation whether the stockholder or the beneficial 
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owner, if any, intends or is part of a group which intends (i) to deliver a proxy statement and/or form of proxy to holders of at
least the percentage of Windstream’s outstanding capital stock required to elect the nominee and/or (ii) otherwise to solicit 
proxies from stockholders in support of such nomination.  A stockholder associated person means, with respect to a 
stockholder, (1) any person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by or under common control with, or directly or 
indirectly acting in concert with, such stockholder and (2) any beneficial owner of shares of Windstream stock owned of 
record or otherwise by such stockholder 

The Bylaws also provide that no other business may be brought before an annual meeting except as specified in the 
notice of the meeting or as otherwise brought before the meeting by or at the direction of the Board or by a Windstream 
stockholder entitled to vote who has delivered timely notice to Windstream.  These requirements apply to any matter that a 
Windstream stockholder wishes to raise at an annual meeting other than in accordance with the procedures in SEC Rule 
14a-8. For business to be properly brought before an annual meeting, such proposed business must constitute a proper matter 
for stockholder action. For a stockholder to provide timely notice of a proposed action, a stockholder’s notice must be 
delivered to or mailed and received at the principal executive offices of Windstream, not less than 90 days nor more than 
120 days prior to the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of stockholders; provided, however, that 
in the event that the annual meeting of stockholders is called for a date that is not within 25 days before or after such 
anniversary date, notice by the stockholder must be received not later than the close of business on the 10th day following the
date on which notice of the date of the annual meeting was mailed or public announcement of such date was made, whichever 
occurs first.  

A stockholder’s notice of proposed business (other than director nominations) must set forth as to each matter the 
stockholder proposes to bring before the annual meeting (1) a brief description of the business desired to be brought before 
the annual meeting and the text of the proposal or business, (2) the reason for conducting such business and any material 
interest of the stockholder and any stockholder associated person, individually or in the aggregate, including any anticipated 
benefit to the stockholder or stockholder associated person, (3) the name and address, as they appear on Windstream’s books, 
of the stockholder proposing such business and of any stockholder associated person, (4) the class and number of shares of 
Windstream Common Stock which are beneficially owned by the stockholder and by any stockholder associated person, (5) a 
representation that the stockholder is a holder of record of Common Stock of Windstream entitled to vote at such meeting and 
intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to propose such business, (6) a representation whether the stockholder 
or the beneficial owner, if any, intends or is part of a group which intends (a) to deliver a proxy statement and/or form of 
proxy to holders of at least the percentage of Windstream’s outstanding capital stock required to approve or adopt the 
proposal and/or (b) otherwise to solicit proxies from stockholders in support of such proposal, and (7) whether and the extent 
to which any hedging or other transaction or series of transactions has been entered into by or on behalf of, or any other 
agreement, arrangement or understanding (including any short position or any borrowing or lending of shares) has been 
made, the effect or intent of which is to mitigate loss to or manage risk or benefit of share price changes for, or to increase or 
decrease the voting power of, such stockholder or any such stockholder associated person with respect to any share of 
Windstream stock.  

All notices of stockholder nominations for director or other proposed business must be delivered in writing to the 
Corporate Secretary of Windstream at the principal executive offices of Windstream at 4001 Rodney Parham Road, Little 
Rock, Arkansas 72212.  

Windstream will bear the cost of solicitation of proxies. In addition to the use of the mail, proxies may be solicited 
by officers, directors, and employees of Windstream, personally or by telephone or electronic means. In the event the 
management of Windstream deems it advisable, Windstream may engage the services of an independent proxy solicitation 
firm to aid in the solicitation of proxies. The fees paid by Windstream, in the event of such an engagement, likely would not 
exceed $20,000. Windstream will pay persons holding stock in their names or those of their nominees for their expenses in 
sending soliciting material to their principals in accordance with applicable regulations.  

The material referred to in this proxy statement under the caption “Audit Committee Report” shall not be deemed 
soliciting material or otherwise deemed filed and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by any general statement of 
incorporation by reference in any filings made under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  
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IT IS IMPORTANT THAT ALL SHARES BE VOTED PROMPTLY. THEREFORE, STOCKHOLDERS ARE 
URGED TO VOTE AS SOON AS POSSIBLE ON THE INTERNET, BY TELEPHONE, OR BY MAIL.  

Dated:  March 26, 2013 By Order of the Board of Directors,
John P. Fletcher,
Secretary
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Annex A to Windstream 2012 Proxy Statement 

Reconciliation of non-GAAP to GAAP financial measures 
In addition to financial results reported in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), we 
sometimes utilize non-GAAP financial results to aid in determining payout under the short term incentive 
compensation plan.  Adjusted revenue was used as one of the components of the short term incentive plan for 2012.  
Adjusted Revenue was chosen as the performance metric for this purpose in lieu of total revenue because service 
revenue was over 90% of Windstream’s total revenue during 2012 and due to the uncertainty surrounding the FCC’s 
inter-carrier compensation reform adopted in December 2011, it was very difficult to accurately estimate target 
amounts for wholesale, switched access and USF revenue for the 2012 fiscal year.  Management considers this 
information in conjunction with GAAP amounts in evaluating business performance.  These non-GAAP financial 
measures should not be considered as a substitute for, or superior to, the measures of financial performance prepared 
in accordance with GAAP. 

($ in millions)  
Total revenues and sales (As reported-GAAP)  $ 6,156 
Less:
Wholesale (As reported-GAAP)       708 
Other Service (As reported-GAAP)       266 
Product sales (As reported-GAAP)       231 
  Adjusted Revenue  $ 4,951 
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Item 1. Business

THE COMPANY

Unless the context requires otherwise, the use of the terms "Windstream," "we," "us" and "our" in this Annual Report on Form 
10-K refers to Windstream Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

OVERVIEW

Windstream's vision is to become the premier enterprise communications and services provider in the United States while 
maintaining our strong, stable consumer business. Windstream provides advanced communications and technology solutions, 
including managed services and cloud computing, to businesses nationwide. In addition to business services, we offer 
broadband, voice and video services to consumers in primarily rural markets. We have operations in 48 states and the District of 
Columbia, a local and long-haul fiber network spanning approximately 115,000 miles, a robust business sales division and 23 
data centers.

Strategy

Our strategy is to maximize growth opportunities with our enterprise business customers while optimizing our cost structure 
and stabilizing the performance of our heritage consumer business. Our goal from these actions is to generate solid and 
sustainable cash flow over the long-term, and we intend to return a significant portion of this cash flow to our shareholders 
through our current dividend practice.

To accomplish our strategy, we are transitioning our revenue streams away from traditional consumer voice services to strategic 
growth areas of business services and consumer broadband. This diversification of our revenue stream helps us to offset 
revenue declines driven by consumer customer losses and wholesale revenue declines driven by intercarrier compensation 
reform.

The transition of our revenue streams has required a period of 
heavy capital expenditures, which will begin to decline in 2013 as 
our capital spend returns to more normalized levels. These 
investments allow us to expand our business service offerings and 
increase broadband speeds and capacity in our consumer markets.

The expansion of our fiber transport network, through acquisitions 
and organic growth, enhances our ability to provide wireless 
transport, or backhaul services. As cellular customers consume 
more wireless data, wireless carriers need more bandwidth on the 
wireline transport network. Many wireless towers are still served 
by copper facilities, but we are rapidly rolling out fiber to 
accommodate the wireless carriers' additional bandwidth needs. 
We expect wireless data usage to continue to increase, which will 
drive the need for additional wireless backhaul capacity. 

While providing these services requires an initial capital 
investment, we make these investments only after securing long-
term contracts with wireless carriers, typically for a period of five 
years, and believe these contracts and the expected growth in 
wireless bandwidth needs will provide an attractive return on our 
capital outlay. These capital investments are made up front, and 
there is a short lag period between the initial capital spend and the 
realization of associated revenues.

We are also making significant investments in data centers to 
broaden the technology-based services we offer, including cloud 
computing and managed services. We opened two new data 
centers during 2012, and we operated 23 data centers as of the end 
of the year, December 31, 2012.

On the consumer front, we continue to make investments to increase broadband speeds and capacity throughout our territories. 
Although new customer growth is slowing as the market becomes more heavily penetrated, we expect increases in real-time 
streaming video and traditional Internet usage to motivate customers to upgrade to faster broadband speeds with a higher price. 
As of December 31, 2012, we could deliver speeds of 3 Megabits per second ("Mbps") to approximately 97 percent of our 
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addressable lines, and speeds of 6 Mbps, 12 Mbps and 24 Mbps are available to approximately 73 percent, 48 percent and 13 
percent of our addressable lines, respectively. We also actively promote value-added Internet services, such as security and 
online back-up, to take advantage of the broadband speeds we offer. 

We are also expanding broadband services to unserved and underserved areas through a combination of our own investment and 
grant funds received as a result of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ("broadband stimulus"). Under our 
existing grant agreements with the Rural Utilities Service ("RUS"), we expect to receive up to $181.3 million in broadband 
stimulus funding. Our share for these projects will total at least $60.4 million. These investments are expected to add 75,000 
new addressable broadband lines to our service areas, and the projects will be substantially complete by the end of 2013.

In spite of our ongoing efforts to gain market share, our consumer business remains under pressure due to competition from 
wireless carriers, cable television companies and other companies using emerging technologies. For the year ended 
December 31, 2012, our consumer voice lines decreased by 86,000 lines, or 4.5 percent, as compared to the prior year. Given 
these realities, we must stabilize our consumer revenue and remain squarely focused on expanding business and broadband 
services to drive top-line growth. By doing so, we expect to continue to create significant value for both our customers and our 
shareholders.

Dividend

Our goal from our business strategy is to generate solid and sustainable cash flow over the long-term, and we intend to return a 
significant portion of this cash flow to our shareholders through our current dividend practice. Our current practice is to pay a 
quarterly dividend of $0.25 per common share, which equates to $1 per common share and a 10.1 percent yield on an annual 
basis, based on our stock price as of February 11, 2013. We cannot assure you we will continue paying dividends at the current 
rate. See Item 1A, "Risk Factors", for more information.

History

We were created in July 2006 through the spin-off of Alltel Corporation's landline division and merger with VALOR 
Communications. At the time, we operated in just 16 states with less than 24,000 miles of fiber, a modest business sales 
organization, and only a handful of lower-tier data centers. Like other traditional telephone companies, we faced two important 
challenges: consumers were abandoning wireline voice connections in favor of wireless services and cable television companies 
were increasingly competing for both voice and Internet customers. These challenges led to a decline in revenue and shrinking 
cash flows and had the potential to impair our ability to maintain the dividend. As a short-term solution to manage these 
pressures, we completed acquisitions of other traditional telephone companies, which improved our size, scale and cost 
structure. However, the core problems, presented by a shrinking customer base, still remained.

We had to consider several factors in response to this pressure. First, businesses were experiencing a growing need for 
advanced data services, including integrated voice and data services, multi-site networking and managed data services. Second, 
wireless customers were using more and more wireless data, requiring the wireless carriers to obtain additional bandwidth on 
the wireline network that transports their wireless traffic. Third, consumers were demanding faster broadband speeds at home to 
accommodate their growing use of streaming video and other Internet-based services. It quickly became apparent that we would 
have to build a stronger company with increased scale and a more diverse portfolio of product offerings.

In early 2010, we made a critical move to accelerate the transformation of the company when we acquired NuVox Inc. 
("NuVox"), a leading regional business services provider based in Greenville, South Carolina. NuVox added a broad portfolio of 
Internet protocol ("IP") based services and an aggressive sales force. This acquisition marked an important step in positioning 
the company to better serve business customers.

Two more acquisitions quickly followed in late 2010. On December 1, we purchased Hosted Solutions Acquisition, LLC 
("Hosted Solutions") of Raleigh, N.C., a data center operator in the eastern United States. Hosted Solutions provided us the 
infrastructure to offer many advanced data services, such as cloud computing, managed hosting and managed services, on a 
wide scale. We gained five state-of-the-art data centers and approximately 600 business customers. On December 2, we 
completed the acquisition of Q-Comm Corporation's ("Q-Comm") wholly-owned subsidiaries Kentucky Data Link, a regional 
transport services provider with 30,000 miles of fiber, and Norlight, a business services provider with approximately 5,500 
customers. This transaction significantly expanded our fiber network, allowing us to reach more business customers and to 
compete for more wireless backhaul contracts. KDL's fiber transport network also provided opportunities for substantial 
operating synergies by allowing us to carry more traffic on our own network rather than paying other carriers for this service.
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Finally, we took another significant step in the transformation of our company on November 30, 2011, when we acquired 
PAETEC Holding Corp. ("PAETEC"). PAETEC added an attractive base of medium to large-sized business customers, 
approximately 36,700 fiber route miles, seven data centers, and an experienced sales force focused on serving enterprise-level 
customers. This transaction significantly enhanced our capabilities in broadband and business - our strategic growth areas.

Our revenue mix has shifted significantly toward our growth areas as a result of these strategic activities. Revenues from 
businesses and consumer broadband were approximately 69 percent of total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012, as 
compared to 42 percent in 2008. Having successfully repositioned the business in growth segments, our focus has shifted to the 
organic growth of our strategic revenue streams.

OTHER MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS

We have completed a number of mergers and acquisitions in the last five years. Most notably, we completed a series of strategic 
acquisitions which have assisted in the transformation of our company from a traditional telephone company into an advanced 
communications and technology service provider focused on enterprise business customers. These acquisitions included 
PAETEC, Q-Comm, Hosted Solutions and NuVox; the reasons for these acquisitions and their meaning to our operations are 
discussed in the preceding section.

The following acquisitions were also important steps in the evolution of our company. Although each involved traditional 
telephone companies, with a profile similar to ours prior to the transformative acquisitions noted above, each acquisition 
provided us increased scale, significant synergies and expanded operating presence in contiguous markets.

Iowa Telecom - On June 1, 2010, we completed the acquisition of Iowa Telecommunications Services, Inc. ("Iowa Telecom"), a 
regional communications services provider. This acquisition added 247,000 voice lines, 96,000 high-speed Internet customers 
and 25,000 video customers in Iowa and Minnesota. Iowa Telecom expanded our operating presence in contiguous markets in 
the midwestern United States.

Lexcom - On December 1, 2009, we completed the acquisition of Lexcom, Inc. ("Lexcom"), a local communications company 
in Lexington, North Carolina. The transaction added approximately 22,000 voice lines, 9,000 high-speed Internet customers 
and 12,000 cable television customers. 

D&E Communications - On November 10, 2009, we completed a merger with D&E Communications, Inc. ("D&E"). The 
transaction added approximately 145,000 voice lines, 45,000 high-speed Internet customers and 9,000 cable television 
customers in Pennsylvania.

SERVICES AND PRODUCTS

We offer a robust portfolio of services and products to meet the communications and technology needs of our customers. Our 
basic offerings are outlined below.

Business

We believe advanced communications and technology services required by today's businesses present our most substantial 
opportunity for growth. Through our targeted acquisition strategy and organic growth, we have built a portfolio of advanced 
communications services which meet all customers' communications needs. 

We serve business customers of all sizes. Our enterprise customers typically subscribe to services such as multi-site networking, 
data center, managed services, and other integrated voice and data services. Enterprise customers also include government 
contracts, including those under programs such as E-Rate. Small businesses traditionally are served by high-speed Internet, 
integrated voice and data and traditional voice services, among others.

Our key business service offerings include:

• Integrated voice and data services: Our integrated services deliver voice and data over a single connection, which 
helps our customers manage voice and data usage and related costs. These services are delivered over an Internet 
connection, as opposed to a traditional voice line, and can be managed through equipment at the customer premise or 
through hosted equipment options, which we are able to provide.
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• Multi-site networking: Our advanced network provides private, secure multi-site connections for large businesses with 
multiple locations.

• Data center services: Our data centers offer cloud computing, colocation, dedicated server and disaster recovery 
solutions. Our data center services offer the highest level of security, reliability and scalability to business customers.

• Managed services: Through our data centers, we provide a breadth of managed services including managed WAN, 
managed LAN, managed security and managed voice services that allow our customers to focus on running their 
business and not running their network.

• High-speed Internet: We offer high-speed broadband Internet access options designed to help our customers reduce 
costs and boost productivity. We also offer low cost, high-speed broadband Internet access with reliable connections at 
speeds up to 24 Mbps.

• Voice: Voice services consist of basic telephone services, including voice, long-distance and related features delivered 
over a traditional copper line.

• Carrier services: Carrier services provide network bandwidth to other telecommunications carriers. These include 
special access services, which provide access and network transport services to end users, and Ethernet transport up to 
10 Gigabits per second ("Gbps"). Carrier services also include fiber-to-the-tower connections to support the growing 
wireless backhaul market.

In addition to the services offered above, we sell and lease customized communications equipment systems tailored specifically 
to our business customers' needs. We also offer ongoing maintenance plans to support those systems.

Consumer

Our consumer services primarily consist of high-speed Internet, voice and video services. We are committed to providing high-
speed broadband and additional value-added services to our consumer base, as well as bundling our service offerings to provide 
a comprehensive solution to meet our customers' needs at a competitive value. 

Our consumer broadband services are described further as follows:

• High-speed Internet access: We offer high-speed Internet access with speeds up to 24 Mbps.

• Internet security services: Our Security Suite offers customers critical Internet security services, including anti-virus 
protection, spyware blocking, file back up and restoration.

• Online backup services: Our online backup service allows consumers to back up and restore important files through 
the Internet. Additionally, our backup services provide consumers with the ability to store and share files on network-
based storage devices. Files can be accessed from any computer with an Internet connection.

Consumer voice services include basic local telephone services, features and long-distance services. Features include call 
waiting, caller identification, call forwarding and others. We also offer a variety of long distance plans, including rate plans 
based on minutes of use, flexible or unlimited long distance calling services.

We offer consumer video services primarily through a relationship with Dish Network LLC ("Dish Network"). We also own 
and operate cable television franchises in some of our service areas. Our video offerings allow us to provide comprehensive 
bundled services to our consumer base, helping insulate our customers from competitors.

We sell certain equipment to support our consumer high-speed Internet and voice offerings, including broadband modems, 
home networking gateways and personal computers. We also sell home phones to support voice services.
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Wholesale

We provide switched access services to long-distance companies and other local exchange carriers for access to our network in 
connection with the completion of long-distance calls. We also receive compensation from wireless and other local exchange 
carriers for the use of our facilities.
 
Certain Universal Service Fund ("USF") revenues are also included in our wholesale revenues. In addition, we supplement our 
business services with wholesale offerings of voice and data carrier services to other communications providers and to larger-
scale purchasers of network capacity. 

Other

Other revenues include USF surcharges and other costs passed through to our customers, certain consumer revenues in areas 
where we no longer offer new service, and other miscellaneous revenue streams.

SALES AND MARKETING

In order to best serve our customers, we have separate, dedicated business and consumer sales and marketing organizations.

Business Sales and Marketing

Our business sales and marketing team leads the Company's development and implementation of smart solutions and 
personalized service to our customers. Our business sales organization is extensive, including over 200 business sales offices 
throughout the United States and 2,701 sales employees focused on meeting the needs of our business customers. Our sales and 
marketing approach is supported by our wide array of products and services delivered over our extensive fiber transport 
network, leveraging other providers where necessary. 

Business sales and service are conducted through:

• the direct sales force, which accounts for the majority of our new sales;

• our account management team, who also supports existing customers by advising and assisting them with their 
communications needs;

• our business call centers, which provide customer service and also generate new sales and upgrades;

• our indirect sales channel, which partners with third-party dealers who sell directly to customers; and

• third-party agents, who refer sales of our products and services to our direct sales force.

In addition, our carrier sales team specializes in sales of special access and wireless backhaul services to other telecom carriers.

Consumer Sales and Marketing

Our consumer sales and marketing strategy is focused on driving top line revenue performance through bundled product sales 
and value-added account revenue growth with the goal to grow our broadband revenues and minimize household losses. We 
employ the following principles to achieve these goals:

• Product simplification: We sell double and triple play bundle packages to consumers at competitive price points, 
offering high-speed Internet, voice and video services at a better value than when purchasing those services 
individually or from different providers.

• Product enhancement: Value-added services to our high-speed Internet product and faster Internet speeds deliver more 
value to the consumer while growing account revenue.

• Message integration: A single, consistent consumer message is delivered across all advertising mediums to generate 
high consumer awareness and strong sales channel interactions.
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Consumer sales are made through various distribution channels giving new and existing customers choices in how they interact 
and experience our products and services. Additionally, we offer customers the opportunity to order service and purchase a 
number of products designed to enhance their existing services, such as tablet computers, telephones and accessories at any of 
our 30 retail stores located in our local service areas. We augment these traditional channels with online sales and national 
agents.

NETWORK

We have developed a robust, flexible network allowing us to deliver advanced voice and data services. As of December 31, 
2012, our network consists of approximately 115,000 miles of fiber optic plant in both our fiber backbone and local service 
areas and a combination of owned and leased facilities in our local markets.

Our fiber transport network is fully integrated and allows us to offer a full suite of voice and advanced data services, including, 
but not limited to, multi-site networking, dedicated Internet and Ethernet solutions, high-speed Internet and VoIP services.

In certain territories, we serve business customers by leasing last-mile connections from other carriers. These connections link 
our business customers to our facilities-based network. In some areas, we own last-mile facilities and are able to connect to our 
customers directly. Where we own last-mile facilities, we are able to offer up to 10 Gbps of Ethernet managed services.

Our owned local networks consist of central office digital switches, routers, loop carriers and virtual and physical colocations 
interconnected primarily with fiber and copper facilities. A mix of fiber optic and copper facilities connect our customers with 
the core network.  

We also operate 23 data centers across the country as of December 31, 2012. Our data center capabilities include a full line of 
managed hosting services, cloud computing and colocation services. Our communications network provides the connectivity 
and bandwidth necessary to connect our customers to our data center infrastructure. Providing both the data center services and 
the customer's connection to those services has great value to our customers.

Our network service areas as of December 31, 2012 are detailed in the map below:

COMPETITION

We experience intense competition in both our business and consumer markets as described below. For additional information, 
see "Regulation" in Item 1 and Item 1A, "Risk Factors".
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Business

The market for business customers is highly competitive. During 2012, business customers decreased by approximately 24,700 
or 3.7 percent. Our growth in enterprise customers is outpaced by losses in small business customers, typically due to 
competition from cable companies. However, our enterprise customers are driving growth in revenue through purchases of 
integrated voice and data services, data center and managed services, and advanced data services such as multi-site networking. 

Our primary competitors are other communications providers and cable television companies. In substantially all of our 
business markets, we face competition from other communications carriers. They offer similar services, from traditional voice 
to advanced data and technology services using similar facilities and technologies as we do, and compete directly with us for 
customers of all sizes.

Cable television companies compete with us primarily for small or single-location businesses. Cable companies have deployed 
technology to offer Internet services to their customers and offer competing voice and data services over the Internet 
connection. In addition, their networks are capable of supporting wireless backhaul services.

To compete effectively in our business markets, we are investing in our network and service offerings to offer the most 
technologically advanced solutions available. We rely on scalable, customizable solutions and a suite of services that allows us 
to meet all of our business customers' communications needs. 

Consumer

We experience intense competition for consumer services. During 2012, we lost approximately 86,000 consumer voice lines, or 
4.5 percent of our total. Sources of competition in our consumer service areas include, but are not limited to, the following:

• Cable television companies: Cable television providers are aggressively offering high-speed Internet, voice and video 
services in our service areas. These services are typically bundled and offered to our customers at competitive prices.

• Wireless carriers: Wireless providers primarily compete for voice services in our consumer markets. Consumers 
continue to disconnect residential voice service in favor of wireless service. In addition, wireless companies continue 
to expand their high-speed Internet offerings, which may result in more intense competition for our high-speed Internet 
customers.

• Communications carriers: We are required to lease our facilities and capacity in our consumer areas to other 
communications carriers. These companies compete with us by providing voice and high-speed Internet services to 
consumers.

We are generally subject to more stringent regulation than our competitors in our consumer markets. For example, as a provider 
of last resort, we are required to provide basic phone service to customers in our service areas regardless of whether it is cost-
effective to do so.

Although growth expectations are slowing due to the maturing market, we are committed to retaining customers by offering 
faster broadband speeds and value-added services, while also offering the convenience of bundling those services with voice 
and video services. During 2012, we added approximately 7,000 consumer high speed Internet customers, an increase of 0.6 
percent, as compared to the prior year.

REGULATION

We are subject to regulatory oversight by the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") for particular interstate matters 
and state public utility commissions ("PUCs") for certain intrastate matters. We are also subject to various federal and state 
statutes that direct such regulations. We actively monitor and participate in proceedings at the FCC and PUCs and engage  
federal and state legislatures on matters of importance to us.

From time to time, federal and state legislation is introduced dealing with various matters that could affect our business. Most 
proposed legislation of this type never becomes law. It is difficult to predict what kind of legislation, if any, may be introduced 
and ultimately become law.
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For additional information on these and other regulatory items, please refer to the Regulatory section of Management's 
Discussion and Analysis in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

MANAGEMENT

Staff at our headquarters and regional offices supervise, coordinate and assist subsidiaries in management activities including 
investor relations, acquisitions and dispositions, corporate planning, tax planning, cash and debt management, accounting, 
insurance, sales and marketing support, government affairs, legal matters, human resources and engineering services.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2012, we had 13,787 employees, of which 1,722 employees are part of collective bargaining units. During 
2012, we had no material work stoppages due to labor disputes with our unionized employees (see Item 1A, "Risk Factors").

SEGMENTS

We operate as one reportable segment providing communications and technology services to our customers.

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

No single customer, or group of related customers, represented 10 percent or more of our operating revenues in 2012, 2011 or 
2010.

SEASONALITY

Our business is not subject to significant seasonal fluctuations.

MATERIAL DISPOSITIONS

Wireless markets acquired from CTC

On November 21, 2008, we completed the sale of our wireless business to AT&T Mobility II, LLC for approximately $56.7 
million. The completion of this transaction resulted in the divestiture of approximately 52,000 wireless customers. Also 
included in the sale were spectrum licenses, cell sites and six retail stores. Operations covered a four county area of North 
Carolina with a population of approximately 450,000 at the time of the sale. 

MORE INFORMATION

Our web site address is www.windstream.com. We file with, or furnish to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
"SEC") annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to 
those reports, as well as various other information. This information can be found on the SEC website at www.sec.gov. In 
addition, we make available free of charge through the Investor Relations page of our web site our annual reports, quarterly 
reports, and current reports, and all amendments to any of those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after providing such 
reports to the SEC. In addition, on the corporate governance section of the Investor Relations page of our web site, we make 
available our Code of Ethics, the Board of Directors’ Amended and Restated Corporate Governance Board Guidelines, and the 
charters for our Audit, Compensation, and Governance Committees. We will provide to any stockholder a copy of the Code of 
Ethics, Governance Board Guidelines and the Committee charters, without charge, upon written request to Investor Relations, 
Windstream Corporation, 4001 Rodney Parham Road, Little Rock, Arkansas 72212.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We claim the protection of the safe-harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform 
Act of 1995 for this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Forward-looking statements are subject to uncertainties that could cause 
actual future events and results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking 
statements include, but are not limited to, statements about our expectation to return a significant portion of our cash flow to 
shareholders through our dividend, our expectation to maintain our current dividend practice at the current rate of dividend, 
expected levels of support from universal service funds or other government programs, expected rates of loss of voice lines or 
intercarrier compensation, expected increases in high-speed Internet and business data connections, our expected ability to fund 
operations, expected required contributions to our pension plan, capital expenditures and certain debt maturities from cash 
flows from operations, expected synergies and other benefits from completed acquisitions, expected effective federal income 
tax rates, expected annualized savings from the management restructuring, the amounts expected to be received from the Rural 
Utilities Service to fund a portion of our broadband stimulus projects and the expected benefit of those projects, and forecasted 
capital expenditure amounts. These and other forward-looking statements are based on estimates, projections, beliefs, and 
assumptions that we believe are reasonable but are not guarantees of future events and results. Our actual future events and 
results may differ materially from those expressed in these forward-looking statements as a result of a number of important 
factors.

Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated in our forward looking statements include, 
among others:

• further adverse changes in economic conditions in the markets;

• the extent, timing and overall effects of competition in the communications business;

• the impact of new, emerging or competing technologies;

• for certain operations where we lease facilities from other carriers, adverse effects on the availability, quality of service 
and price of facilities and services provided by other carriers on which our services depend;

• the uncertainty regarding the implementation of the Federal Communications Commission's ("FCC") rules on 
intercarrier compensation adopted in 2011, and the potential for the adoption of further rules by the FCC or Congress 
on intercarrier compensation and/or universal service reform proposals that result in a significant loss of revenue to us;

• unfavorable rulings by state public service commissions in proceedings regarding universal service funds, inter-carrier 
compensation or other matters that could reduce revenues or increase expenses;

• material changes in the communications industry that could adversely affect vendor relationships with equipment and 
network suppliers and customer relationships with wholesale customers;

• earnings on pension plan investments significantly below our expected long term rate of return for plan assets or a 
significant change in the discount rate;

• the availability and cost of financing in the corporate debt markets;

• the potential for adverse changes in the ratings given to our debt securities by nationally accredited ratings 
organizations;

• the risks associated with non-compliance with regulations or statutes applicable to government programs under which 
we receive material amounts of end user revenue and subsidies or non-compliance by us, our partners, or our 
subcontractors with any terms of our government contracts; 

• the risks associated with the integration of acquired businesses or the ability to realize anticipated synergies, cost 
savings and growth opportunities;

• unfavorable results of litigation or intellectual property infringement claims asserted against us;



11

• the effects of federal and state legislation, and rules and regulations governing the communications industry;

• continued loss of consumer voice lines;

• the impact of equipment failure, natural disasters or terrorist acts;

• the effects of work stoppages by our employees or employees of other communications companies on whom we rely 
for service; and

• those additional factors under the caption "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of this annual report and in subsequent filings 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission at www.sec.gov.

In addition to these factors, actual future performance, outcomes and results may differ materially because of more general 
factors including, among others, general industry and market conditions and growth rates, economic conditions, and 
governmental and public policy changes.

We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future 
events or otherwise. The foregoing review of factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those 
contemplated in the forward-looking statements should be considered in connection with information regarding risks and 
uncertainties that may affect our future results included in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission at www.sec.gov.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Relating to Our Business

The following discussion of "Risk Factors" identifies the most significant factors that may adversely affect our business, results 
of operations or financial position. This information should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the consolidated financial statements and related notes 
included in this report. The following discussion of risks is not all-inclusive but is designed to highlight what we believe are 
important factors to consider when evaluating our business and expectations. These factors could cause our future results to 
differ materially from our historical results and from expectations reflected in forward-looking statements. Additionally, this 
discussion should not be construed as a listing of risks by order of potential magnitude or probability to occur.  

Competition in our business markets could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We serve business customers in markets across the country, competing against other communications providers and cable 
television companies for business customers. Competition in our business markets could adversely affect growth in business 
revenues and ultimately have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition. If we are unable to 
compete effectively, we may be forced to lower prices or increase our sales and marketing expenses. In addition, we may need 
to make significant capital expenditures in order to keep up with technological advances and offer competitive services. For 
additional information, see the risk factor "Rapid changes in technology could affect our ability to compete for business 
customers."

In certain markets where we serve business customers, we lease significant amounts of network capacity in order to provide 
service to our customers. We lease these facilities from companies competing directly with us for business customers. For 
additional information, see the risk factor "In certain operating territories, we are dependent on other carriers to provide 
facilities which we use to provide service to our customers."

Competition in our consumer service areas could reduce our market share and adversely affect our results of operations 
and financial condition.

We face intense competitive pressures in our consumer service areas. If we continue to lose consumer voice lines as we have 
historically, our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. During 2012, our consumer voice 
lines declined 4.5 percent.

Sources of competition include, but are not limited to, wireless companies, cable television companies and other 
communications carriers. Many of our competitors, especially wireless and cable television companies, have advantages over 
us, including substantially larger operational and financial resources, larger and more diverse networks, less stringent regulation 
and superior brand recognition. For additional discussion regarding competition, see "Competition" in Item 1.

Cable television companies have aggressively expanded in our consumer markets, offering voice and high-speed Internet 
services in addition to video services. Some of our customers have chosen to move to cable television providers for their voice, 
high-speed Internet and television bundles. Cable television companies are subject to less stringent regulations than our 
consumer operations. For more information, refer to the risk factor, "Our competitors, especially cable television companies, in 
our consumer markets are subject to less stringent industry regulations."

Wireless competition has contributed to a reduction in our voice lines and generally has caused pricing pressure in the industry. 
Some customers have chosen to stop using traditional wireline phone service and instead rely solely on wireless service. We 
anticipate that this trend toward solely using wireless services will continue, particularly if wireless prices continue to decline 
and the quality of wireless services improves.

Competition in our consumer markets could affect our revenues and profitability in several ways, including accelerated 
consumer voice line loss, reductions by customers in usage-based services or shifts to less profitable services and a need to 
lower our prices on unregulated services or increase marketing expenses to stay competitive.

Rapid changes in technology could affect our ability to compete for business customers.

The technology used to deliver communications services has changed rapidly in the past and will likely continue to do so in the 
future. If we are unable to keep up with such changes, we may not be able to offer competitive services to our business 
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customers. This could adversely affect our ability to compete for business customers, which, in turn, would adversely affect our 
results of operations and financial condition.

New technologies may affect our ability to compete in our consumer markets.

Wireless companies are aggressively developing networks using next-generation data technologies, which are capable of 
delivering high-speed Internet service via wireless technology to a large geographic footprint. If these technologies continue to 
expand in availability and reliability, they could become an effective alternative to our high-speed Internet services. In addition, 
cable operators may be able to take advantage of certain technology to deploy faster broadband speeds more rapidly than 
Windstream.

In addition to broadband technology, evolving voice technologies, such as Voice over Internet Protocol ("VoIP"), may 
effectively compete with voice and long-distance services in our consumer markets.

These and other new and evolving technologies could result in greater competition for our voice and high-speed Internet 
services. If we cannot develop new services and products to keep pace with technological advances, or if such services and 
products are not widely embraced by our customers, our results of operations could be adversely affected.

In certain operating territories, we are dependent on other carriers to provide facilities which we use to provide service to 
our customers. 

In certain markets, especially where we provide services to businesses, we lease a significant portion of our network capacity 
from other carriers. These carriers compete directly with us for customers.

The prices for network capacity are negotiated or purchased pursuant to tariff terms and conditions. These may be changed but 
must be approved by the appropriate regulatory agency before they go into effect. In addition, whenever we enter a new 
market, and an existing agreement expires, interconnection agreements must be negotiated. If they cannot be negotiated on 
favorable terms, or at all, we may invoke binding arbitration by state regulatory agencies. This process is expensive and time 
consuming, and the results of arbitration may be unfavorable to us. The inability to obtain interconnection on favorable terms 
could have a material adverse effect on our competitive position and results of operations.

Where we lease network capacity, communications services are susceptible to changes in the availability and pricing of the 
provider's facilities and services. If the provider becomes legally entitled to deny or limit access to capacity, or if state 
commissions allow them to increase their rates, we may not be able to effectively compete. In addition, if the provider does not 
adequately maintain or timely install these facilities, which they are legally obligated to do, our service to customers may be 
adversely affected. As a result, our results of operations and financial condition could be materially affected.

Disruptions and congestion in our networks and infrastructure may cause us to lose customers and incur additional 
expenses. 

Our customers depend on reliable service over our network. Some of the risks to our network infrastructure include physical 
damage to lines, security breaches, capacity limitations, power surges or outages, software defects and disruptions beyond our 
control, such as natural disasters and acts of terrorism. From time to time in the ordinary course of business, we will experience 
short disruptions in our service due to factors such as cable damage, inclement weather and service failures of our third party 
service providers. Additionally, we could face disruptions due to capacity limitations as a result of changes in our customers' 
high speed Internet usage patterns. These patterns have changed in recent years, for example through the increased usage of 
video, resulting in a significant increase in the utilization of our network.

We could experience more significant disruptions in the future. Disruptions may cause interruptions in service or reduced 
capacity for customers, either of which could cause us to lose customers or incur additional expenses or capital expenditures. 
Such results could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Disruptions in our data centers could cause service interruptions for customers using advanced data services. 

Many of our advanced data products are supported by our data center infrastructure, including offerings such as colocation 
services, cloud computing, managed services and disaster recovery services. Risks to our data center infrastructure include, but 
are not limited to, natural disasters, security breaches or acts of terrorism.
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If a disruption occurs in one of our data centers, our customers could lose access to information critical to running their 
businesses, which could result in a loss of customers. We may also incur significant operating or capital expenditures to restore 
service. As a result, disruptions could affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Increases in broadband usage may cause network capacity limitations, resulting in service disruptions or reduced capacity 
for customers.

Video streaming services and peer-to-peer file sharing applications use significantly more bandwidth than traditional Internet 
activity such as web browsing and email. As utilization rates and availability of these services continue to grow, our high-speed 
Internet customers may use much more bandwidth than in the past. If this occurs, we could be required to make significant 
capital expenditures to increase network capacity in order to avoid service disruptions or reduced capacity for customers. 

Alternatively, we may choose to implement network management practices to reduce the network capacity available to 
bandwith-intensive activities during certain times in market areas experiencing congestion, and these actions could negatively 
affect customer experience and increase customer churn.

While we believe demand for these services may drive high-speed Internet customers to pay for faster broadband speeds, we 
may not be able to recover the costs of the necessary network investments. This could result in an adverse impact to our results 
of operations and financial condition.

We cannot assure you we will continue paying dividends at the current rate.

Our board of directors maintains a current dividend practice for the payment of quarterly cash dividends at a rate of $0.25 per 
share of common stock. This practice can be changed at any time at the discretion of the board of directors, and our common 
stockholders should be aware that they have no contractual or other legal right to dividends. In addition, the other risk factors 
described in this section could materially reduce the cash available from operations or significantly increase our capital 
expenditure requirements, and these outcomes could cause funds not to be available when needed in an amount sufficient to 
support our current dividend practice. 

The amount of dividends that we may distribute is also limited by restricted payment and leverage covenants in our credit 
facilities and indentures, and, potentially, the terms of any future indebtedness that we may incur. The amount of dividends that 
we may distribute is also subject to restrictions under Delaware law. If our board of directors were to adopt a change in our 
current dividend practice that results in a reduction in the amount of dividends, such change could have a material and adverse 
effect on the market price of our common stock. 

We are subject to various forms of regulation from the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") and state regulatory 
commissions in the states in which we operate, which limit our pricing flexibility for regulated voice and high-speed Internet 
products, subject us to service quality, service reporting and other obligations and expose us to the reduction of revenue 
from changes to the universal service fund, the intercarrier compensation system, or access to interconnection with 
competitors' facilities.

As of December 31, 2012, we had operating authority from each of the 48 states and the District of Columbia in which we 
conducted local service operations, and we are subject to various forms of regulation from the regulatory commissions in each 
of these areas as well as from the FCC. State regulatory commissions have jurisdiction over local and intrastate services 
including, to some extent, the rates that we charge and service quality standards. The FCC has primary jurisdiction over 
interstate services including the rates that we charge other telecommunications companies that use our network and other issues 
related to interstate service. These regulations restrict our ability to adjust rates to reflect market conditions and affect our 
ability to compete and respond to changing industry conditions. 

Future revenues, costs, and capital investment in our wireline business could be adversely affected by material changes to or 
decisions regarding applicability of government requirements, including, but not limited to, changes in rules governing 
intercarrier compensation, state and federal USF support and other pricing and requirements. Federal and state communications 
laws may be amended in the future, and other laws may affect our business. In addition, certain laws and regulations applicable 
to us and our competitors may be, and have been, challenged in the courts and could be changed at any time. We cannot predict 
future developments or changes to the regulatory environment or the impact such developments or changes would have. 

In addition, these regulations could create significant compliance costs for us. Delays in obtaining certifications and regulatory 
approvals could cause us to incur substantial legal and administrative expenses, and conditions imposed in connection with 
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such approvals could adversely affect the rates that we are able to charge our customers. Our business also may be affected by 
legislation and regulation imposing new or greater obligations related to, for example, assisting law enforcement, bolstering 
homeland and cyber-security, protecting intellectual property rights of third parties, minimizing environmental impacts, 
protecting customer privacy, or addressing other issues that affect our business. 

If we are prohibited from participating in government programs, our results of operations could be materially and adversely 
affected.

We are the recipient of a material amount of end user revenue and government subsidies under various government programs 
and also serve as a government contractor for services for various state, local and federal agencies.  Our failure to comply with 
the complex government regulations and statutes applicable to the programs, or the terms of one or more of our government 
contracts, could result in our being suspended or disbarred from future government programs for a significant period of time or 
result in harm to our reputation with the government and possible restriction from future government activities.  While we have 
implemented compliance programs and internal controls that are reasonably designed to prevent misconduct and non-
compliance relating to the government programs and contracting, we cannot eliminate the risk that our employees, partners or 
subcontractors may independently engage in such activities.  

If we are suspended or debarred from government programs, or if our government contracts are terminated for any reason, we 
could suffer a significant reduction in expected revenue which could have a material and adverse effect on our operating 
results.

Competitors, especially cable television companies, in our consumer markets are subject to less stringent industry 
regulations, which could result in voice line and revenues losses in the future.

Cable television companies are generally subject to less stringent regulations than our consumer operations. Cable voice 
offerings and others are subject to fewer service quality and reporting requirements than our consumer operations, and their 
rates are generally not subject to regulation, unlike our consumer voice services. Our consumer areas are also subject to "carrier 
of last resort" obligations, which generally obligate us to provide basic voice services to any person within our service area 
regardless of the profitability of the customer. Our competitors in these areas are not subject to such requirements.

Because of these regulatory disparities, we have less flexibility in our consumer markets than our competitors. This could result 
in accelerated voice line and revenue losses in the future.

Different interpretation and/or implementation of certain sections contained in the FCC’s Intercarrier Compensation and 
Universal Service reform order could result in additional access revenue reductions.

The FCC's reform order adopted in 2011 provides that intrastate traffic that originates in VoIP format and is delivered by long 
distance carriers to us for termination will be assessed interstate access charges. During 2012, we coordinated with long 
distance carriers to transition to these reduced interstate access rates, and this transition will result in further reductions on July 
2, 2013.

In a subsequent order, the FCC determined that intrastate traffic we originate through the traditional telephone network and 
deliver to a customer served under a VoIP platform is subject to interstate access charges beginning on July 1, 2014. We have 
filed an appeal in the United States Court of Appeals for the 10th Circuit asserting that the FCC's decision to cut originating 
access for such traffic without establishing a mechanism for recovering lost revenues was arbitrary, capricious, and/or 
inconsistent with reasoned decisionmaking. If our appeal fails or the FCC fails to create a recovery mechanism, we will incur 
additional access revenue reductions. In addition, due to the uncertainty surrounding the application of these rules, we cannot 
estimate the amount of these reductions until we can quantify the amount of traffic based on information obtained from long 
distance carriers.

In 2012, we received approximately 4 percent of our revenues from state and federal USF, and any material adverse 
regulatory developments with respect to these funds could adversely affect our profitability. 

We receive state and federal USF revenues to support the high cost of providing affordable telecommunications services in 
rural markets. Such support payments constituted approximately 4 percent of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 
2012. A portion of such fees are based on relative cost and voice line counts, and we expect receipt of such fees to decline as 
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we continue to reduce costs and lose voice lines. Pending regulatory proceedings could, depending on the outcome, materially 
reduce our USF revenues. 

Texas is continuing to review its USF funding mechanism, and any adverse developments could significantly affect our USF 
revenues. Texas state USF revenues were $88.3 million in 2012.

We are required to make contributions to state and federal USF programs each year. Most state and federal regulations allow us 
to recover these contributions by including a surcharge on our customers' bills. If state and/or federal regulations change, and 
we become ineligible to receive support, such support is reduced, or we become unable to recover the amounts we contribute to 
the state and federal USF programs from our customers, our results of operations and financial condition would be directly and 
adversely affected. 

Our operations require substantial capital expenditures, and if funds for capital expenditures are not available when 
needed, this could affect our service to customers and our growth opportunities. 

We require substantial capital to maintain our network, and our growth strategy will require significant capital investments for 
network enhancements and build-out. During 2012, we incurred $1,101.2 million in capital expenditures, and we expect to 
incur in excess of $800.0 million in capital expenditures in 2013 due to our significant investments in fiber-to-the-tower and 
other initiatives. See "Liquidity and Capital Resources" for our expected capital expenditures in 2013.

We use a significant portion of our cash generated from operations to pay dividends to stockholders, which could limit our 
ability to make the capital expenditures necessary to support our business needs and growth plans. We expect to be able to fund 
required capital expenditures from cash generated from operations. However, other risk factors described in this section could 
materially reduce cash available from operations or significantly increase our capital expenditure requirements. If this occurs, 
funds for capital expenditures may not be available when needed, which could affect our service to customers and our growth 
opportunities.

Unfavorable changes in financial markets could adversely affect our pension plan investments resulting in material funding 
requirements to meet pension obligations. 

Our pension plan invests in marketable securities, including marketable debt and equity securities denominated in foreign 
currencies, which are exposed to changes in the financial markets. During 2012, the fair market value of these investments 
increased from $948.9 million to $999.0 million due to return on assets held of $130.0 million, or 13.5 percent. These increases 
were partially offset by routine benefit payments of $60.1 million and lump sum payments and administrative expenses of 
$19.8 million. Returns generated on plan assets have historically funded a large portion of the benefits paid under our pension 
plan. 

We estimate that the long term rate of return on plan assets will be 7.0 percent, but returns below this estimate could 
significantly increase our contribution requirements, which could adversely affect our cash flows from operations. Also, 
historically low interest rates introduce lower discount rates, which directly increases the pension liability on our balance sheet 
and exposes us to greater funding obligations in the future. During the fourth quarter of 2011, we changed our policy for 
accounting for pension costs to immediately recognize gains or losses resulting from the return on plan assets and other true-
ups to other actuarial estimates. While this change does not affect cash flows, it will introduce the potential for volatility to our 
earnings reported under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("U.S. GAAP"), especially if the return 
on plan assets during the year differ significantly from the estimated rate of return.

Our substantial debt could adversely affect our cash flow and impair our ability to raise additional capital on favorable 
terms. 

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately $8,996.5 million long-term debt outstanding, including current maturities. We 
may also obtain additional long-term debt to meet future financing needs or to fund potential acquisitions, subject to certain 
restrictions under our existing indebtedness, which would increase our total debt. Our substantial amount of debt could have 
negative consequences to our business. For example, it could: 

• Increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;
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• Require us to dedicate a substantial portion of cash flows from operations to interest and principal payments on 
outstanding debt, thereby limiting the availability of cash flow to fund future capital expenditures, working capital and 
other general corporate requirements;
 

• Limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the telecommunications industry;
 

• Place us at a competitive disadvantage compared with competitors that have less debt; and
 

• Limit our ability to borrow additional funds, even when necessary to maintain adequate liquidity.
 

In addition, our ability to borrow funds in the future will depend in part on the satisfaction of the covenants in our credit 
facilities and its other debt agreements. If we are unable to satisfy the financial covenants contained in those agreements, or are 
unable to generate cash sufficient to make required debt payments, the lenders and other parties to those arrangements could 
accelerate the maturity of some or all of our outstanding indebtedness. 

We may not generate sufficient cash flows from operations, or have future borrowings available under our credit facilities or 
from other sources sufficient to enable us to make our debt payments or to fund dividends and other liquidity needs. We may 
not be able to refinance any of our debt, including our credit facilities, on commercially reasonable terms or at all. If we are 
unable to make payments or refinance our debt, or obtain new financing under these circumstances, we would have to consider 
other options, such as selling assets, issuing additional equity or debt, or negotiating with our lenders to restructure the 
applicable debt. Our credit agreement and the indentures governing our senior notes may restrict, or market or business 
conditions may limit, our ability to do some of these things on favorable terms or at all. 

As of February 11, 2013, Moody's Investors Service ("Moody's"), S&P and Fitch Ratings ("Fitch") had granted Windstream the 
following senior secured, senior unsecured and corporate credit ratings: 

Description Moody’s  S&P    Fitch    
Senior secured credit rating Baa3 BB+ BBB-
Senior unsecured credit rating Ba3 B BB+
Corporate credit rating Ba2 BB- BB+
Outlook Negative Stable Stable

Factors that could affect our short and long-term credit ratings include, but are not limited to, a material decline in our 
operating results, increased debt levels relative to operating cash flows resulting from future acquisitions, increased capital 
expenditure requirements, or changes to our dividend policy. In addition, we are not currently paying down a significant 
amount of debt. If our credit ratings were to be downgraded from current levels, we might incur higher interest costs on future 
borrowings, and our access to the public capital markets could be adversely affected. 

We may be unable to fully realize expected benefits from our recent acquisitions. 

We expect to achieve substantial synergies, cost savings and growth opportunities as a result of our recent acquisitions. If we 
are unable to successfully integrate acquired businesses, or integrate them in a timely fashion, we may face material adverse 
affects including, but not limited to:

• diversion of management's attention to and potential disruption of our ongoing businesses;

• customer losses;

• the loss of quality employees from the acquired companies;

• adverse developments in vendor relationships;

• declines in our results of operations and financial condition; and

• a decline in the market price of our common stock.
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Even if we successfully integrate these businesses, there can be no assurance that these integrations will result in the realization 
of the full benefit of the anticipated synergies, cost savings or growth opportunities or that these benefits will be realized within 
the expected time frames.

We may need to defend ourselves against lawsuits or claims that we infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others.

From time to time, we receive notices from third parties, or we are named in lawsuits filed by third parties, claiming we have 
infringed or are infringing upon their intellectual property rights. We may receive similar notices or be involved in similar 
lawsuits in the future. In certain situations, we may have the ability to seek indemnification from our vendors regarding these 
lawsuits or claims. If we cannot enforce our indemnification rights or if our vendors lack the financial means to indemnify us, 
these claims may require us to expend significant time and money defending our alleged use of the affected technology, may 
require us to enter into licensing agreements requiring one-time or periodic royalty payments that we would not otherwise have 
to pay or may require us to pay damages. If we are required to take one or more of these actions, it may result in an adverse 
impact to our results of operations and financial condition. In addition, in responding to these claims, we may be required to 
stop selling or redesign one or more of our products or services, which could adversely affect the way we conduct our business.

Weak economic conditions may decrease demand for our services. 

We could be affected by economic conditions and downturns in the economy, especially in regards to our business customers. 
Downturns in the economy in the markets we serve could cause our existing customers to reduce their purchases of our services 
and make it difficult for us to obtain new customers.

Our relationships with other communications companies are material to our operations and their financial difficulties may 
adversely affect us. 

We originate and terminate calls for long distance and other voice carriers over our network in exchange for access charges. 
These access charges represent a significant portion of our revenues. Additionally, we are making significant capital 
investments to deploy fiber-to-the-tower and other network services for wireless companies in return for long-term revenue 
generating contracts. If these carriers go bankrupt or experience substantial financial difficulties and we are unable to timely 
collect payments from them, it may have a negative effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Key suppliers may experience financial difficulties that may affect our operations. 

Windstream purchases a significant amount of equipment from key suppliers to maintain, upgrade and enhance our network 
facilities and operations. Should these suppliers experience financial difficulties, their issues could adversely affect our business 
through increased prices to source purchases through alternative vendors or unanticipated delays in the delivery of equipment 
and services purchased. 

Adverse developments in our relationship with our employees could adversely affect our business, our results of operations 
and financial condition.

As of December 31, 2012, 1,722 of our employees at various sites, or 12 percent of all of our employees, were covered by 
collective bargaining agreements. Our relationship with these unions generally has been satisfactory, but occasional work 
stoppages have occurred. 

We are currently party to 24 collective bargaining agreements and one National Pension Agreement with several unions, which 
expire at various times. Of our existing collective bargaining agreements, ten agreements covering 612 employees are due to 
expire in 2013. In addition, the national pension agreement covers 612 employees. This agreement expired in 2010 but has been 
extended indefinitely, subject to the right of Windstream or the unions to terminate the agreement with 30 days notice. 
Historically, we have succeeded in negotiating new collective bargaining agreements without work stoppages; however, no 
assurances can be given that we will succeed in negotiating new collective bargaining agreements to replace the expiring ones 
without work stoppages. Increases in organizational activity or any future work stoppages could have a material adverse effect 
on our business, our results of operations and financial condition.
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Cyber security incidents could have a significant operational and financial impact.

We store customers' proprietary business information in our facilities through our colocation, managed services and cloud 
computing services. In addition, we maintain certain sensitive customer information in our financial and operating systems. 
While we have implemented data security polices and other internal controls to safeguard and protect against misuse or loss of 
this information, if their data were compromised through a cyber security incident, it could have a significant impact on our 
results of operations and financial condition.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

No reportable information under this item.

Item 2. Properties

Certain of our properties are pledged as collateral as discussed further in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. The 
obligations under our senior secured credit facilities are secured by liens on substantially all of our personal property assets and 
our subsidiaries who are guarantors of our senior secured credit facilities. A summary of our investment in property, plant and 
equipment is presented below.

We own property, which consists primarily of land and buildings, office and warehouse facilities, central office equipment, 
software, outside plant and related equipment. Outside communications plant includes aerial and underground cable, conduit, 
poles and wires. Central office equipment includes digital switches and peripheral equipment. As such, our properties do not 
provide a basis for description by character or location of principal units. 

Our gross investment in property, by category, as of December 31, 2012, was as follows:

  (Millions)
Land $ 46.3
Building and improvements 649.4
Central office equipment 5,276.0
Outside communications plant 6,256.2
Furniture, vehicles and other equipment 1,270.8
Total $ 13,498.7

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are party to various legal proceedings, the ultimate resolution of which cannot be determined at this time. Management 
does not believe such proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the future 
consolidated results of our income, cash flows or financial condition.

In addition, management is currently not aware of any environmental matters, individually or in the aggregate, that would have 
a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition or results of our operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity 
Securities
 
Market Information, Holders and Dividends

(a) Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol "WIN". The following table 
reflects the range of high, low and closing prices of our common stock as reported by Dow Jones & Company, Inc. for 
each quarter in 2012 and 2011:
 

Year Quarter High Low Close
Dividend
Declared

2012 4th $10.27 $7.86 $8.28 $0.25
3rd $11.04 $9.11 $10.09 $0.25
2nd $11.75 $9.00 $9.66 $0.25

 1st $12.55 $11.41 $11.71 $0.25
2011 4th $12.60 $10.88 $11.74 $0.25

3rd $13.25 $10.76 $11.65 $0.25
2nd $13.57 $12.38 $12.96 $0.25

 1st $14.04 $12.05 $12.88 $0.25

As of February 11, 2013, the approximate number of holders of common stock, including an estimate for those holding 
shares in street name, was 227,376.

For a discussion of certain restrictions on our ability to pay dividends under our debt instruments, see "Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital 
Resources" in the Financial Supplement to this annual report on Form 10-K.

 
(b) Not applicable.

(c) Not applicable.
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Stock Performance

Set forth below is a line graph showing comparisons of stockholder returns since December 31, 2007. The graph includes the 
total cumulative stockholder returns on our common stock, and comparative returns on the S&P 500 Stock Index and the S&P 
Telecom Index. The S&P Telecom Index consists of the following companies:  AT&T Inc., CenturyLink, Inc., Crown Castle 
International Corp., Frontier Communications Corp., MetroPCS Communications Inc., Sprint Nextel Corp., Verizon 
Communications Inc., Windstream Corporation. The graph assumes that the value of the investment was $100 on December 31, 
2007 and that all dividends and other distributions were reinvested.

Total Cumulative Shareholder Returns
  2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Windstream $100.00 $77.36 $102.97 $141.84 $129.48 $101.01
S&P 500 $100.00 $63.00 $79.68 $91.68 $93.61 $108.59
S&P Telecom $100.00 $69.52 $75.74 $90.09 $95.78 $113.31

The graph and table above provide the cumulative change of $100.00 invested on December 31, 2007, including reinvestment 
of dividends, for the periods indicated.

The foregoing performance graph contained in Item 5 shall not be deemed to be soliciting material or be filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission or subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans    

Under the our share-based compensation plans, we may issue restricted stock and other equity securities to directors, officers 
and other key employees. The maximum number of shares available for issuance under the Windstream 2006 Amended and 
Restated Equity Incentive Plan is 20.0 million shares and under the PAETEC Holding Corp. 2011 Omnibus Incentive Plan is 
approximately 3.6 million shares.

The following table sets forth information about our equity compensation plans as of February 11, 2013:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

              

Plan Category
 

Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of 

outstanding options, 
warrants and rights [a]

Weighted-
average exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights [b]

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans [c] (excluding

securities reflected in
column [a])

  
  
  
 
 
  
  

Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders 3,060,978 $7.22 2,456,735   
Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders — — 5,860,268

(1)
 (2)

Total 3,060,978 $7.22 8,317,003                     
 
(1) The Windstream Corporation 2006 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan.
(2) The PAETEC Holding Corp. 2011 Omnibus Incentive Plan.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

For information pertaining to our Selected Financial Data, refer to page F-31 of the Financial Supplement, which is 
incorporated by reference herein.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

For information pertaining to Management’s Discussion and Analysis of our Financial Condition and Results of our Operations, 
refer to pages F-2 to F-30 of the Financial Supplement, which is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

For information pertaining to our market risk disclosures, refer to pages F-25 of the Financial Supplement, which is 
incorporated by reference herein.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

For information pertaining to our Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, refer to pages F-35 to F-94 of the Financial 
Supplement, which is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
 
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

The term "disclosure controls and procedures" (defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) refers to the controls and 
other procedures of Windstream that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by Windstream 
in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") is recorded, 
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure 
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information 
required to be disclosed by Windstream in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated 
and communicated to Windstream's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or 
persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 
Windstream's management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by 
this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based on that evaluation, Windstream's Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, such disclosure controls and procedures were 
effective.

  
(b) Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, which appears on page F-33 of the Financial 
Supplement, is incorporated by reference herein.

 
(c) Changes in internal control over financial reporting.

The term "internal control over financial reporting" (defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) refers to the process 
designed by, or under the supervision of, our principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons 
performing similar functions, and effected by our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and 
procedures that:

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of our assets;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or 
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Our management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated 
any changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this annual 
report, and they have concluded that there were no changes to our internal control over financial reporting that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

No reportable information under this item.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance

For information pertaining to our Directors refer to "Proposal No. 1 – Election of Directors" in our Proxy Statement for our 
2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. For information pertaining to the Audit 
Committee financial expert and corporate governance refer to "Board and Board Committee Matters" in our Proxy Statement 
for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. For information pertaining to the 
Audit Committee, refer to "Audit Committee Report" in our Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, 
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Our executive officers as of December 31, 2012, were as follows:

Name  Business Experience Age
Jeffery R. Gardner  President and Chief Executive Officer of Windstream since formation on July 17, 2006. 52
Brent K. Whittington

 
Chief Operating Officer of Windstream since August 10, 2009; Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Windstream from July 2006 to August 2009.

41

Anthony W. Thomas

 

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Windstream since May 30, 2012; Chief Financial
Officer of Windstream from August 2009 to May 2012; Controller of Windstream from July
2006 to August 2009.

41

John P. Fletcher
 
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Windstream since formation on
July 17, 2006.

47

Cindy Nash

 

Chief Information Officer of Windstream since August 10, 2009; Senior Vice President of
Information Technology of Windstream from November 2007 to August 2009; Senior Vice
President of Customer Service of Windstream from July 2006 to November 2007

48

John C. Eichler
 
Vice President and Controller of Windstream since August 10, 2009; Vice President of Internal
Audit from July 2006 to August 2009.

41

We have a code of ethics that applies to all employees and members of the Board of Directors. Our code of ethics, referred to as 
the "Working with Integrity" guidelines, is posted on the Investor Relations page of the our web site (www.windstream.com) 
under "Corporate Governance". We will disclose in the corporate governance section of the Investor Relations page on our web 
site amendments and waivers with respect to the code of ethics that would otherwise be required to be disclosed under 
Item 5.05 of Form 8-K. We will provide to any stockholder a copy of the foregoing information, without charge, upon written 
request to Investor Relations, Windstream Corporation, 4001 Rodney Parham Road, Little Rock, Arkansas 72212.

For information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, refer to "Section 16 (a) Beneficial Ownership 
Reporting Compliance" in our Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by 
reference.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

For information pertaining to Executive Compensation, refer to "Compensation Committee Report on Executive 
Compensation" and "Management Compensation" in our Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which 
are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

For information pertaining to beneficial ownership of our securities and director independence, refer to "Security Ownership of 
Directors and Executive Officers", "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners" and "Board and Board Committee 
Matters" in our Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

For information pertaining to Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, refer to "Relationships and Certain Transactions" 
in our Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

For information pertaining to fees paid to our principal accountant and the Audit Committee’s pre-approval policy and 
procedures with respect to such fees, refer to "Audit and Non-Audit Fees" in our Proxy Statement for our 2013 Meeting of 
Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
 
(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this report:

1.

  

Financial Statements:
Our Consolidated Financial Statements are included in the Financial Supplement, which is 
incorporated by reference herein:

  

Financial
Supplement

Page Number

  F-34

  F-35

F-36
  F-37

  F-38

  F-39
  F-40 - F-94

  Form 10-K
2.   Financial Statement Schedules: Page Number

  28
  29

3.   Exhibits:
  30-34

Our separate condensed financial statements have been omitted since we meet the tests set forth in Regulation S-X Rule 4-08(e)
(3). All other schedules are omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in amounts sufficient to 
require submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements and 
notes thereto.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Statements of Income -

for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income -

for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheets - as of December 31, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows -

for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity -

for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Schedule II. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Exhibit Index
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 

Windstream Corporation
Registrant

 

By  /s/ Jeffery R. Gardner  Date: February 19, 2013
Jeffery R. Gardner, President and Chief Executive Officer  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
 

By  /s/ Anthony W. Thomas  Date: February 19, 2013
          Anthony W. Thomas, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
         (Principal Financial Officer)  

By  /s/ Jeffery R. Gardner  February 19, 2013
Jeffery R. Gardner, President and Chief Executive Officer  

By  /s/ John C. Eichler  February 19, 2013
John C. Eichler, Controller (Principal Accounting Officer)  

*Carol B. Armitage, Director

 *Samuel E. Beall, III, Director

 *Dennis E. Foster, Director

 *Francis X. Frantz, Director

 *Jeffrey T. Hinson, Director

 *Judy K. Jones, Director

 *William A. Montgomery, Director

 *Alan L. Wells, Director

By  /s/ John P. Fletcher
 * (John P. Fletcher,

Attorney-in-fact)
February 19, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on
Financial Statement Schedule

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Windstream Corporation

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements and of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting referred 
to in our report dated February 19, 2013 appearing in this 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K of Windstream Corporation also 
included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed in Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial 
statement schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the 
related consolidated financial statements.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Little Rock, Arkansas
February 19, 2013 
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WINDSTREAM CORPORATION
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(Dollars in Millions)
 

Column A Column B Column C Column D  Column E
   Additions    

Description

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Charged to
Cost and
Expenses  

Charged
to Other
Accounts Deductions  

Balance at
End of
Period

Allowance for doubtful accounts,
customers and others:
For the years ended:

December 31, 2012 $ 29.9 $ 59.4   $ — $ 46.7 (a) $ 42.6
December 31, 2011 $ 27.8 $ 48.5   $ — $ 46.4 (a) $ 29.9
December 31, 2010 $ 18.5 $ 48.9   $ — $ 39.6 (a) $ 27.8

Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets:
For the years ended:

December 31, 2012 $ 165.9 $ 0.4 $ — $ 80.4 (b) $ 85.9
December 31, 2011 $ 28.8 $ 1.4 $ 135.7 (c) $ —   $ 165.9
December 31, 2010 $ 24.4 $ 0.8 (d) $ 3.6 (e) $ —   $ 28.8

Accrued liabilities related to merger,
integration and restructuring charges:
For the years ended:

December 31, 2012 $ 12.9 $ 92.8 (f) $ — $ 85.4 (g) $ 20.3
December 31, 2011 $ 10.5 $ 71.1 (f) $ — $ 68.7 (g) $ 12.9
December 31, 2010 $ 6.6 $ 85.0 (h) $ — $ 81.1 (g) $ 10.5

Notes:
(a) Accounts charged off net of recoveries of amounts previously written off.

(b) Represents adjustment recorded through goodwill to valuation allowance for deferred taxes related to expected 
realization of net operating losses assumed from acquisition of PAETEC.

(c) Valuation allowance for deferred taxes was established through goodwill related to expected realization of net 
operating losses assumed from the acquisition of PAETEC.

(d) Valuation allowance to adjust previously recorded allowances related to prior years and the expected realization of net 
operating losses assumed from the acquisition of D&E.

(e) Valuation allowance for deferred taxes was established through goodwill related to expected realization of net 
operating losses assumed from the acquisitions of NuVox and lowa Telecom.

(f) Costs primarily include charges for accounting, legal, broker fees and other miscellaneous costs associated with the 
acquisitions of NuVox, Iowa Telecom, Hosted Solutions, Q-Comm and PAETEC. In addition, we incurred employee 
transition costs, primarily severance related, in conjunction with the integration of NuVox, Iowa Telecom, Hosted 
Solutions, Q-Comm and PAETEC.

(g) Represents cash outlays for merger, integration and restructuring costs charged to expense.

(h) Costs primarily include charges for accounting, legal, broker fees and other miscellaneous costs associated with the 
acquisitions of D&E, Lexcom, NuVox, Iowa Telecom, Hosted Solutions and Q-Comm. In addition, we incurred 
employee transition costs, primarily severance related in conjunction with the integration of D&E, Lexcom, NuVox 
and Iowa Telecom.

See Note 10, "Merger, Integration and Restructuring Charges", to the consolidated financial statements on page F-70 in the 
Financial Supplement, which is incorporated herein by reference, for additional information regarding the merger, integration 
and restructuring charges recorded by us in 2012, 2011 and 2010.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Number and Name
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated July 31, 2011, by and among Windstream Corporation, Peach Merger

Sub, Inc. and PAETEC Holding Corp. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K of PAETEC dated July 31, 2011).

*

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Windstream Corporation (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No. 3 to the Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed
May 23, 2006).

*

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Windstream Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 19, 2010).

*

4.1 Indenture dated July 17, 2006 among Windstream Corporation (as successor to Alltel Holding Corp.), certain
subsidiaries of Windstream as guarantors thereto and SunTrust Bank, as trustee (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 17, 2006), as amended by
supplemental indentures to provide guarantees from additional subsidiaries who also guarantee the
Corporation's revolving credit facilities (such guarantor subsidiaries are identified on Exhibit 21).

*

4.2 Indenture dated February 27, 2007 among Windstream Corporation, certain subsidiaries of Windstream as
guarantors thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 1, 2007), as amended by supplemental
indentures to provide guarantees from additional subsidiaries who also guarantee the Corporation's revolving
credit facilities (such guarantor subsidiaries are identified on Exhibit 21).

*

4.3 Indenture dated as of October 8, 2009 among Windstream Corporation, as Issuer, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K date
October 8, 2009), as amended by supplemental indentures to provide guarantees from additional subsidiaries
who also guarantee the Corporation's revolving credit facilities (such guarantor subsidiaries are identified on
Exhibit 21).

*

4.4 Indenture dated as of July 19, 2010 among Windstream Corporation, as Issuer, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K dated
July 19, 2010), as amended by supplemental indentures to provide guarantees from additional subsidiaries
who also guarantee the Corporation's revolving credit facilities (such guarantor subsidiaries are identified on
Exhibit 21).

*

4.5 Indenture dated as of October 6, 2010 among Windstream Corporation, as Issuer, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K dated
October 6, 2010), as amended by supplemental indentures to provide guarantees from additional subsidiaries
who also guarantee the Corporation's revolving credit facilities (such guarantor subsidiaries are identified on
Exhibit 21).

*

4.6 Indenture dated March 16, 2011 among Windstream Corporation, as Issuer, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K dated
March 16, 2011).

*

4.7 Indenture dated as of March 28, 2011 among Windstream Corporation, as Issuer, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K dated
28, 2011).

*

4.8 Indenture dated as of November 22, 2011 among Windstream Corporation, as Issuer, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K dated
November 22, 2011).

*

4.9 Indenture dated as of January 23, 2013, among Windstream Corporation, as Issuer, and US Bank National 
Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K dated January 
23, 2013).

*

4.10 Indenture dated June 29, 2009 among PAETEC Holding Corp., certain subsidiaries of PAETEC as guarantors,
and The Bank of New York Mellon, trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the PAETEC's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 29, 2009).

*

* Incorporated herein by reference as indicated.
(a) Filed herewith.
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EXHIBIT INDEX, Continued
Number and Name

4.11 Indenture dated December 2, 2010 among PAETEC Escrow Corporation, as guarantor, and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the PAETEC's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 2, 2010), as assumed by PAETEC Holding Corp. as successor issuer to
PAETEC Escrow Corporation pursuant to a First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 6, 2010.

*

4.12 Form of 8 1/8% Senior Note due 2013 of Windstream Corporation (as successor to Alltel Holding Corp.)
(incorporated herein by reference to Note included in Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form
8-K dated July 17, 2006).

*

4.13 Form of 7.0% Senior Note due 2019 of Windstream Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Note
included in Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 1, 2007).

*

4.14 Form of 7.875% Senior Note due 2017 of Windstream Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K date October 8, 2009).

*

4.15 Form of 8.125% Senior Note due 2018 of Windstream Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Note
included in Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 19, 2010).

*

4.16 Form of 7.75% Senior Note due 2020 of Windstream Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Note
included in Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 6, 2010).

*

4.17 Form of 7.5% Senior Notes due 2023 of Windstream Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Note
included in Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of March 16, 2011).

*

4.18 Form of 7.75% Senior Notes due 2021 of Windstream Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Note
included in Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of March 28, 2011).

*

4.19 Form of 7.5% Senior Notes due 2022 of Windstream Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Note
included in Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of November 22, 2011).

*

4.20 Form of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2023 of Windstream Corporation (incorporated by reference to Note 
included in Exhibit 4.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K dated January 23, 2013).

*

4.21 Form of 8 7/8% Senior Secured Notes due 2017 of PAETEC Holding Corp. (incorporated herein by reference
to Note included in Exhibit 4.1 to PAETEC's Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 29, 2009).

*

4.22 Guaranty, dated as of December 1, 2011, by Windstream Corporation guaranteeing obligations of PAETEC
Holding Corp. under its 8 7/8% Senior Secured Notes due 2017 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.2 to the Corporation's Form 8-K date November 30, 2011).

*

4.23 Form of 9 7/8% Senior Notes due 2018 by PAETEC Escrow Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to
Noted included in Exhibit 4.1 to PAETEC's Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 2, 2010), as
assumed by PAETEC Holding Corp. as successor issuer to PAETEC Escrow Corporation pursuant to a First
Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 6, 2010.

*

4.24 Guaranty, dated as of December 1, 2011, by Windstream Corporation guaranteeing obligations of PAETEC
Holding Corp. under its 9 7/8% Senior Secured Notes due 2018 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to the Corporation's Form 8-K date November 30, 2011).

*

10.1 Fifth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of January 23, 2013, among Windstream 
Corporation, as borrower, certain lenders party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent 
and Collateral Agent, certain Co-Documentation Agents, J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., Bookrunner and Lead 
Arranger, and certain Joint Bookrunners and Joint Arrangers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to 
Exhibit 10.1 to the Corporation's Form 8-K dated January 23, 2013).

*

10.2 Director Compensation Program dated February 6, 2013. (a)

10.3 Form of Restricted Shares Agreement (Non-Employee Directors) entered into between Windstream
Corporation and non-employee directors (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 6, 2007).

*

* Incorporated herein by reference as indicated.
(a) Filed herewith.
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10.4 Windstream Corporation Performance Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 17, 2006).

*

10.5 Amendment No. 1 to Windstream Corporation Performance Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 4, 2008).

*

10.6 Windstream Corporation Benefit Restoration Plan, amended and restated as of January 1, 2008 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 4, 2008).

*

10.7 Windstream Corporation 2007 Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and restated as of January 1, 2008
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 4, 2008).

*

10.8 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between Windstream Corporation and its directors and
executive officers (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Corporation's Current Report on
Form 8-K dated July 17, 2006).

*

10.9 Form of Restricted Shares Agreement (Officers: Restricted Stock) entered into between Windstream
Corporation and its executive officers (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 6, 2009).

*

10.10 Form of Restricted Shares Agreement (Officers: Performance-Based Restricted Stock) entered into between
Windstream Corporation and its executive officers (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 6, 2009).

*

10.11 Form of Restricted Shares Agreement (Officers: Performance-Based Restricted Stock-Clawback Policy/
Accrued Dividends) entered into between Windstream Corporation and its executive officers (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Corporation's Current Report dated February 19, 2010).

*

10.12 Form of Restricted Shares Agreement (Officers: Restricted Stock-Clawback Policy) entered into between
Windstream Corporation and its executive officers (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 19, 2010).

*

10.13 Form of Performance Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Officers: RSU-Clawback Policy) entered into
between Windstream Corporation and its executive officers (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 8, 2011).

*

10.14 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2008, between Windstream
Corporation and Jeffery R. Gardner (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 4, 2008).

*

10.15 Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2009, between Windstream Corporation
and Jeffery R. Gardner (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Corporation's Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 21, 2009).

*

10.16 Form of Change-In-Control Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2013, entered into between Windstream 
Corporation and certain executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Corporation's 
Form 8-K dated January 1, 2013).

*

10.17 Letter Agreement, dated as of November 7, 2006, between the Windstream Corporation and Francis X. Frantz
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 13, 2006).

*

10.18 Windstream 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (as amended and restated effective February 17, 2010 (incorporated
by reference to Appendix A to the Corporation's Proxy Statement dated March 26, 2010)).

*

10.19 PAETEC Holding Corp. 2011 Omnibus Incentive Plan. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to PAETEC 
Holding Corp.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 3, 2011) for equity awards issued on 
or prior to November 30, 2011.

*

10.20 PAETEC Holding Corp. 2011 Amended and Restated Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended for equity awards 
issued after November 30, 2011.

*

* Incorporated herein by reference as indicated.
(a) Filed herewith.
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10.21 PAETEC Holding Corp. 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the PAETEC's Form 8-K dated May 20, 2008).

*

10.22 PAETEC Corp. 2001 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10.1 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed by PAETEC Holding Corp. with the SEC on November 13, 2006
(SEC File No. 333-138594)).

*

10.23 Form of US LEC Corp. 1998 Omnibus Stock Plan, as amended (incorporated by Exhibit (d) Schedule TO
filed by US LEC Corp. with the SEC on February 23, 2006 (File No. 005-54177).

*

10.24 McLeodUSA Incorporated 2006 Omnibus Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed by PAETEC Holding Corp. with the SEC on February 8, 2008 (SEC
File No. 333-149130)).

*

10.25 PAETEC Communications, Inc. Agent Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (filed as Exhibit 4.2.1 to
PAETEC Holding Corp.'s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 (SEC File Number
333-138594).

*

10.26 PAETEC Holding Corp. 2009 Agent Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.7 to PAETEC Holding Corp.'s
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (SEC File Number 333-159344) and incorporated herein by reference).

*

10.27 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 23, 2013 among Windstream Corporation, certain 
subsidiaries of Windstream, as guarantors, and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as representative (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Corporation's Form 8-K dated January 23, 2013).

*

21 Listing of Subsidiaries. (a)

23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. (a)

24 Power of Attorney. (a)

31(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (a)

31(b) Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (a)

32(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(a)

32(b) Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(a)

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (a)
 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (a)
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document (a)
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document (a)
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document (a)
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document (a)

* Incorporated herein by reference as indicated.
(a) Filed herewith.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS

Unless the context requires otherwise, the use of the terms "Windstream," "we," "us" and "our" in this Management's 
Discussion and Analysis refers to Windstream Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

The following sections, to the extent practicable, provide an overview of our results of operations and highlight key trends and 
uncertainties in our business. Certain statements constitute forward-looking statements. See "Forward-Looking Statements" at 
the end of this discussion for additional factors relating to such statements, and see "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of Part I of this 
annual report for a discussion of certain risk factors applicable to our business, financial condition and results of operations.

OVERVIEW

Our vision is to become the premier enterprise communications and services provider in the United States while maintaining 
our strong, stable consumer business. Windstream provides advanced communications and technology solutions, including 
managed services and cloud computing, to businesses nationwide. In addition to business services, we offer broadband, voice 
and video services to consumers in primarily rural markets. We have operations in 48 states and the District of Columbia, a 
local and long-haul fiber network spanning approximately 115,000 miles, a robust business sales division and 23 data centers.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

We made significant progress on our strategy to grow business and consumer broadband revenues to offset continuing pressure 
on our consumer voice and long-distance revenues and wholesale revenues during 2012 and 2011. Revenues from businesses 
and consumer broadband were 68.8 percent of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to 61.2 
percent in the same period in 2011.

Key strategic activities during 2012 included:

• the continued integration of PAETEC, which transformed us into a national provider of business services and included 
an attractive customer base of medium and large businesses and significantly enhanced our capabilities in strategic 
growth areas, including IP based services, cloud computing and managed services;

• continued focus on revenue growth opportunities in our business service areas;

• significant success-based capital investments in our fiber network, designed to accommodate network capacity 
requirements for wireless carriers as a result of growing wireless data usage; 

• the review of our management structure to increase the efficiency of decision-making and position ourselves for 
continued success, where approximately 350 management positions were eliminated, resulting in annualized savings 
of approximately $40.0 million;

• activities to improve our debt profile including pushing out maturities, lowering interest costs, and creating sufficient 
availability under our revolver to repay 2013 debt maturities; and

• the opening of new state-of-the-art data centers in Little Rock, Arkansas, and McLean, Virginia, as well as expanded 
our data centers in Charlotte, North Carolina, Boston, Massachusetts, and Raleigh, North Carolina, to meet the 
growing business demand for cloud-based and dedicated managed services and underscore our commitment to our 
growing business customer base nationwide.

These activities, in conjunction with the strategic acquisitions we completed in prior years, continue our focus on strategic 
revenue growth and cost management.
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BUSINESS TRENDS

The following discussion highlights key trends affecting our business.

Business communications services: Demand for advanced communications services is expected to drive growth in revenues 
from business customers. To meet this demand, we continue to expand our capabilities in integrated voice and data services, 
which deliver voice and broadband services over a single Internet connection. We also offer multi-site networking services 
which provide a fast and private connection between business locations as well as a variety of other data services. We view this 
as a strategic growth area, but we are subject to competition from other carriers and cable television companies, which could 
suppress growth. See "Competition" in Item 1 of Part I of this Annual Report for more details.

Data center services: Many businesses are moving towards cloud computing and managed services as an alternative to a 
traditional information technology ("IT") infrastructure. Our data centers are capable of delivering those services, and we are 
actively investing in data center expansion in order to meet the growing demand for these types of services. In addition to cloud 
computing and managed services, our data centers offer colocation services, in which we provide a safe, secure environment 
for storage of servers and networking equipment. 

Wireless backhaul: As wireless data usage grows, wireless carriers need additional bandwidth on the wireline network to 
accommodate the additional wireless traffic. We have made significant success-based capital investments to provide backhaul 
services to wireless carriers. These investments include building out fiber to new wireless towers and replacing copper facilities 
with fiber facilities to wireless towers we already serve. We spent approximately $270.5 million in fiber-to-the-tower 
investments during 2012 and we expect to continue to make significant success-based capital investments in 2013 to offer 
additional wireless backhaul services to wireless carriers; however, fiber to the tower investments will decrease in 2013. 

Consumer high-speed Internet: New consumer high-speed Internet additions are slowing as a result of our already high 
penetration of 71 percent of primary residential lines. We expect the pace of high-speed Internet customer growth to continue to 
slow as the number of households without high-speed Internet service shrinks and our penetration continues to increase. 
However, we believe growing customer demand for faster speeds and value-added services, such as online security and back-
up, will drive growth in consumer high-speed Internet revenues. We are continuing to focus on increasing our broadband 
speeds available to customers. As of December 31, 2012, we could deliver speeds of 3 Megabits per second ("Mbps") to 
approximately 97 percent of our addressable lines, and speeds of 6 Mbps, 12 Mbps and 24 Mbps are available to approximately 
73 percent, 48 percent and 13 percent of our addressable lines, respectively. 

Consumer voice line losses: Voice and switched access revenues will continue to be adversely impacted by future declines in 
voice lines due to competition from cable television companies, wireless carriers and providers using other emerging 
technologies. To combat competitive pressures, we continue to emphasize our bundled products and services. Our consumers 
can bundle voice, high-speed Internet and video services, providing one convenient billing solution and bundle discounts. We 
believe that product bundles positively impact customer retention, and the associated discounts provide our customers the best 
value for their communications and entertainment needs. As of December 31, 2012, all of our voice lines had wireless 
competition and approximately 70 percent of our voice lines had fixed-line voice competition. Consumer lines decreased 
86,000, or 4.5 percent during 2012, primarily due to the effects of competition. 

Synergies and operational efficiencies: We continually strive to identify opportunities for operational efficiencies, in the context 
of both our acquired businesses and legacy operations. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we recognized 
approximately $171.0 million in synergies from our acquisitions completed since the beginning of 2010, primarily related to 
workforce and network efficiencies. In addition to acquisition-related synergies, we also evaluate our legacy operations for 
operational efficiency. On May 31, 2012, we announced the review of our management structure to increase the efficiency of 
decision-making, to ensure our management structure is as simple and as responsive to customers as possible and position 
ourselves for continued success. We eliminated approximately 350 management positions as a part of the restructuring, which 
was completed in the third quarter of 2012 and resulted in severance related costs of $22.4 million. The changes will result in 
annualized savings of approximately $40.0 million. During 2010, we announced a workforce reduction which resulted in 
annual pretax savings of approximately $20.0 million. We expect to continue to evaluate our operations for these opportunities.
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Recent transactions and their value to our business are discussed below. For financial details of each acquisition, refer to Note 3 
of the financial statements.

Acquisitions

PAETEC - On November 30, 2011, we completed the acquisition of PAETEC, a communications carrier focused on business 
customers. The PAETEC transaction enhances our capabilities in strategic growth areas, including IP-based communications 
services, cloud computing and managed services. It significantly advances our strategy to drive top-line revenue growth by 
expanding our focus on business and fiber services. 

The PAETEC transaction:

• adds an attractive base of medium-to-large sized business customers;
• expands our existing business service offerings; 
• provides opportunities for approximately $100.0 million in pre-tax operating cost and $10.0 million in capital 

synergies;
• creates a nationwide fiber network, adding 36,700 fiber miles; and
• adds seven data centers.

Q-Comm - On December 2, 2010, we completed the acquisition of Q-Comm Corporation ("Q-Comm"). The transaction 
included Q-Comm's wholly-owned subsidiaries Kentucky Data Link, Inc. ("KDL"), a regional fiber services provider with 
30,000 fiber miles, and Norlight, Inc. ("Norlight"), a communications services provider with approximately 5,500 business 
customers. This transaction significantly increased the scale of our fiber network, allowing us to reach more business customers 
and compete for more wireless backhaul contracts. KDL's fiber network also allows for significant operating synergies, 
allowing us to carry more traffic on our own network and avoid incremental spend to other carriers for this service.

Hosted Solutions - On December 1, 2010, we completed the acquisition of Hosted Solutions Acquisition, LLC ("Hosted 
Solutions"), which operates data centers in the eastern United States. Hosted Solutions provides the infrastructure to offer many 
advanced data services, such as cloud computing, managed hosting and other managed services, on a wide scale. As a result of 
this acquisition, we added five state-of-the-art Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements ("SSAE") 16 certified data 
centers and approximately 600 business customers.

Iowa Telecom - On June 1, 2010, we completed the acquisition of Iowa Telecommunications Services, Inc. ("Iowa Telecom"), a 
regional communications services provider. This acquisition added 247,000 voice lines, 96,000 high-speed Internet customers 
and 25,000 video customers in Iowa and Minnesota. This acquisition provided us increased scale, synergies and expanded 
operating presence in contiguous markets.

NuVox - On February 8, 2010, we completed the acquisition of NuVox Inc. ("NuVox"), a communications provider based in 
Greenville, South Carolina. The acquisition of NuVox marked our first considerable move to execute our business-focused 
growth strategy and was a critical point in our transformation from a traditional telephone company to a business-focused 
provider of advanced data and communications services. In addition to the customers acquired and new services we were able 
to offer, we retained a significant number of employees with experience geared towards business customers. The NuVox 
acquisition added 104,000 business customers in the Southeastern and Midwestern United States.

Dispositions

On June 15, 2012, we completed the sale of the energy business acquired as part of PAETEC, which sells electricity to business 
and residential customers, primarily in certain geographic regions in New York state, as a competitive electricity supplier for 
approximately $6.1 million in total consideration. These operations were not central to our strategic goals in our core 
communications business.
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ORGANIZATION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We provide a wide range of telecom services, from advanced data solutions for businesses to basic voice services. Our sales, 
marketing and customer support teams are structured based upon the type of customer they serve. We deliver these services 
over owned or leased network facilities. Our corporate support teams, such as finance and accounting, human resources and 
legal, support our operations as a whole. See a detailed discussion and analysis of revenues and sales in our discussion below of 
consolidated operating results.

The following table reflects our consolidated operating results as of December 31:

(Dollars in millions) (a,b) 2012 2011 2010
Revenues and sales:

Service revenues:
Business $ 3,611.4 $ 2,098.0 $ 1,577.5
Consumer 1,339.5 1,378.3 1,372.8
Wholesale 708.0 547.3 555.9
Other 266.2 131.0 115.2

Total service revenues 5,925.1 4,154.6 3,621.4
Product sales 231.2 126.6 89.3

Total revenues and sales 6,156.3 4,281.2 3,710.7
Costs and expenses:

Cost of services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization included below) 2,692.4 1,691.1 1,331.9
Cost of products sold 210.0 105.3 74.9
Selling, general, and administrative 976.0 602.7 491.7
Depreciation and amortization 1,297.6 847.5 693.7
Merger and integration costs 65.4 69.8 77.3
Restructuring charges 27.4 1.3 7.7

Total costs and expenses 5,268.8 3,317.7 2,677.2
Operating income 887.5 963.5 1,033.5
Other income (expense), net 4.6 (0.1) (3.5)
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt 1.9 (136.1) —
Interest expense (625.1) (558.3) (521.7)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 268.9 269.0 508.3
Income taxes 100.2 99.4 195.6
Income from continuing operations 168.7 169.6 312.7
Discontinued operations, net of tax (0.7) (0.1) —
Net income $ 168.0 $ 169.5 $ 312.7
Operating Metrics: (Thousands)
Business Operating Metrics:
     Customers
          Enterprise 177.3 167.2 62.9
          Small business 460.8 495.6 407.7
     Total customers (c) 638.1 662.8 470.6

     Carrier special access circuits 107.2 112.0 102.4

Consumer Operating Metrics:
     Voice lines 1,841.9 1,927.9 2,012.4
     High-speed Internet 1,214.5 1,207.8 1,159.1
     Digital television customers 426.1 441.2 426.7
     Total consumer connections 3,482.5 3,576.9 3,598.2

 
(a) Results from operations include post-acquisition results from NuVox, Iowa Telecom, Hosted Solutions, Q-Comm, and 

PAETEC operations, (collectively known as the "Acquired Companies"). In the discussion and analysis provided 
below regarding changes in consolidated revenues and expenses in 2012 and 2011, the impact of the acquisitions on 
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these changes is considered to be the revenues and expenses recognized during the period of each year for which 
results from the acquired operations are not included in the comparative period of the prior year.

(b) Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year financial statement presentation. 
These reclassifications did not impact net or comprehensive income. Please see Note 2 for additional information.

(c) Total customers include each individual business customer location to which we provide service and exclude carrier 
special access circuits.

Business Service Revenues

Business service revenues include revenues from integrated voice and data services, advanced data and traditional voice and 
long-distance services to enterprise and small-business customers. Revenues from other carriers for special access circuits and 
fiber connections are also included. We expect business service revenues to be favorably impacted by increasing demand for 
data services such as integrated data and voice services, multi-site networking and data center services. As wireless data usage 
grows and fourth generation ("4G") networks are expanded, we expect to provide special access services to support the 
capacity needs of wireless carriers.

We experience competition in the business channel primarily from other carriers, including traditional telephone companies and 
competitive providers. Cable television companies are also a source of competition, primarily for small business customers, but 
have communicated their intention to compete for larger customers by expanding their product and sales capabilities.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, business customers decreased by approximately 24,700 or 3.7 percent. Our 
growth in enterprise customers is outpaced by losses in small business customers, typically due to competition from cable 
companies. However, our enterprise customers are driving growth in overall revenue through purchases of integrated voice and 
data services, data center and managed services, and advanced data services such as multi-site networking.

Despite the opportunities for growth from business services, competition and weakness in the economy may have the effect of 
suppressing revenue growth. In addition, business voice and long-distance service revenues continue to decline due to 
competition and migration to more advanced integrated voice and data services.

The following table reflects the primary drivers of year-over-year changes in business service revenues:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2012

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2011

(Millions)
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Increase

(Decrease)    %  
Due to acquired companies $ 1,446.0 $ 468.7
Due to changes in data and integrated services revenues (a) 49.6 54.9
Due to increases in carrier revenues (b) 17.9 46.0
Due to increases in data center and managed service revenues (c) 13.1 2.2
Due to increases in high-speed Internet revenues 3.0 (0.2)
Due to decreases in voice, long distance and miscellaneous
   revenues (d) (16.2)  (51.1)  

Total changes in business revenues $ 1,513.4 72% $ 520.5 33%
 
(a) Increases in data and integrated services revenues were primarily due to demand for advanced data services and 

customer migration to our integrated voice and data services, previously discussed.

(b) Increases in carrier revenues, which primarily represent monthly recurring charges for dedicated circuits, were 
attributable to demand from wireless and other carriers, previously discussed.

(c) Increases in data center and managed service revenues, which includes monitoring, maintenance and support services for 
business customers, is due to increased demand and incremental sales. We opened new data centers, as well as expanded 
existing data centers, during 2012 to support this increase in demand.
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(d) Decreases in traditional voice service revenues were primarily attributable to competition and migration of existing 
customers to integrated services and bundled offerings. These declines were partially offset by $8.9 million due to the 
implementation of the access recovery charge ("ARC"), which is a monthly charge established by the FCC designed to 
mitigate revenue reductions resulting from intercarrier compensation reform implemented in the third quarter of 2012.

Consumer Service Revenues

Consumer service revenues are generated from the provision of high-speed Internet, voice and video services to consumers. We 
expect the trend of consumer voice line loss to continue as a result of competition from wireless carriers, cable television 
companies and other providers using emerging technologies. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, consumer voice 
lines decreased by approximately 86,000, or 4.5 percent. Increasing revenues from high-speed Internet and related services 
helped offset some of the losses in consumer voice revenues. Demand for faster broadband speeds and Internet-related services, 
such as virus protection and online data backup services, are expected to favorably impact consumer high-speed Internet 
revenues, offsetting some of the decline in consumer voice revenues. 

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, consumer high-speed Internet customers increased by approximately 7,000 
or 0.6 percent. As of December 31, 2012, we provided high-speed Internet service to approximately 42 percent of total voice 
lines in service and approximately 71 percent of primary residential lines in service. As of December 31, 2012, approximately 
77 percent of our total voice lines had high-speed Internet competition, primarily from cable service providers. We do not 
expect significant additional cable expansions into our service areas during 2013, but we could experience some increased 
competition from high-speed Internet offerings of wireless competitors. We expect the pace of high-speed Internet customer 
growth to slow as the number of households without high-speed Internet service shrinks and our penetration continues to 
increase.

To combat competitive pressures in our markets, we emphasize our bundled service strategy and enhancements to our network 
to offer faster Internet speeds. Service bundles provide discounts and other incentives for customers to bundle their voice, long 
distance, high-speed Internet and video services and have positively impacted our operating trends. 

The following table reflects the primary drivers of year-over-year changes in consumer service revenues:

  
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2012
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2011

(Millions)
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Increase

 (Decrease)    %  
Due to acquired companies $ — $ 43.1
Due to increases in high-speed Internet revenues (a) 17.9 36.3
Due to changes in miscellaneous revenues (4.7) 1.8
Due to decreases in voice and long distance revenues (b) (52.0)  (75.7)  

Total changes in consumer revenues $ (38.8) (3)% $ 5.5 —%

(a) Increases in high-speed Internet revenues were primarily due to the increase in high-speed Internet customers, continued 
migration to higher speeds and increased sales of value added services, as previously discussed.

(b) Decreases in voice service revenues were primarily attributable to declines in voice lines. These declines were partially 
offset by $4.8 million due to the implementation of the ARC, described above.

Wholesale Service Revenues

Wholesale service revenues include switched access revenues, Universal Service Fund ("USF") revenues and voice and data 
services sold on a wholesale basis.

Switched access revenues include usage sensitive revenues from long distance companies and other carriers for access to our 
network in connection with the completion of long distance calls, as well as reciprocal compensation received from wireless 
and other local connecting carriers for the use of our facilities. USF revenues are government subsidies designed to partially 
offset the cost of providing wireline services in high-cost areas. In addition, we offer our voice and data services on a wholesale 
basis to other carriers.
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Revenues from these services are expected to decline due to voice line losses and reductions in switched access rates.

The following table reflects the primary drivers of year-over-year changes in wholesale service revenues:

  
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2012
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2011

(Millions)
Increase

(Decrease) %        
Increase

(Decrease) %        
Due to acquired companies $ 234.1 $ 43.6
Due to changes in federal USF revenues (a) 22.5 (6.2)
Due to decreases in voice and other revenues (0.4) (1.1)
Due to decreases in state USF revenues (b) (2.7) (7.3)
Due to decreases in switched access revenues (c) (92.8)  (37.6)  

Total changes in wholesale revenues $ 160.7 29% $ (8.6) (2)%
 
(a) Increases in federal USF revenues were primarily due to the implementation of the access recovery mechanism 

("ARM") during the third quarter of 2012. The ARM is additional federal universal service support available to help 
mitigate revenue losses from intercarrier compensation reform not covered by the ARC, previously discussed. 
Decreases in federal USF revenues in 2011 resulted from decreases in federal funds received and line loss.

(b) Decreases in state USF revenues were attributable to the decline in voice lines and changes in eligible recoverable 
costs.  

(c) Decreases in switched access revenues in 2012 were primarily due to the impact of intercarrier compensation reform 
and continued declines in voice lines. The ARC and ARM, discussed previously, are designed to help mitigate the 
revenue losses resulting from intercarrier compensation reform. Decreases in 2011 were primarily due to continued 
declines in voice lines and the phased reduction on interstate access rates for our subsidiaries that converted to price 
cap regulation.

Other Service Revenues

Other service revenues include USF surcharge revenues, revenues from software, other miscellaneous services and consumer 
revenues generated in markets where we lease the connection to the customer premise, and we no longer offer new consumer 
service in those areas. As a result, we expect other service revenues to decline as existing customers disconnect.

The following table reflects the primary drivers of year-over-year changes in other service revenues:

  
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2012
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2011

(Millions)
Increase

(Decrease) %        
Increase

(Decrease) %        
Due to acquired companies $ 142.3 $ 25.2
Due to increases in pass through taxes and other surcharges 4.5 1.7
Due to decreases in other (11.6)  (11.1)  

Total changes in other revenues $ 135.2 103% $ 15.8 14%
 
Product Sales

Product sales consist of sales of various types of communications equipment to our customers. Business product sales includes 
high-end data and communications equipment which facilitate the delivery of advanced data and voice services to our business 
customers. Consumer product sales include high-speed Internet modems, home networking equipment, computers and phones. 
We also sell network equipment to contractors on a wholesale basis. 
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The following table reflects the primary drivers of year-over-year changes in product sales: 

  
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2012
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2011

(Millions)
Increase

(Decrease) %        
Increase

(Decrease) %         
Due to acquired companies $ 108.7 $ 20.8
Due to increases in contractor sales (a) 16.5 14.5
Due to decreases in consumer product sales (11.9) (1.5)
Due to changes in business product sales (8.7) 3.5
Total changes in product sales $ 104.6 83% $ 37.3 42%

(a) Increases in contractor sales were primarily due to increased sales of outside plant materials. 

Cost of Services

Cost of services expense primarily consists of charges incurred for network operations, interconnection, bad debt and business 
taxes. Network operations charges include salaries and wages, benefits, materials, contractor costs and IT support. 
Interconnection consists of charges incurred to access the public switched network and transport traffic to the Internet, 
including charges to lease network components required for service delivery in markets where we do not own the primary 
network infrastructure. 

The following table reflects the primary drivers of year-over-year changes in cost of services:

  
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2012
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2011

(Millions)
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Due to acquired companies $ 1,045.0 $ 276.1
Due to increases in third-party costs for ancillary services (a) 11.2 12.8
Due to increases in interconnection expense (b) 6.2 1.1
Due to increases in federal USF expenses (c) 5.5 2.1
Due to changes in postretirement expense (d) 2.7  (14.5)  
Due to changes in other 4.2 (4.9)
Due to changes in pension expense (e) (73.5) 86.5
Total changes in cost of services $ 1,001.3 59% $ 359.2 27%

 
(a) Increases in charges incurred to provide third-party services driven by sales of ancillary products  as well as costs 

incurred for product offerings.

(b) Increases in interconnection expense were attributable to increased purchases of circuits, including circuits to service 
the growth in data customers, as well as higher capacity circuits to service existing customers and increase the 
transport capacity of our network, partially offset by the favorable impact of network efficiency projects and rate 
reductions.

(c) Increases in federal USF contributions in 2012 and 2011 were primarily due to an increase in the USF contribution 
factor from 12.9 percent to 15.3 percent to 17.4 percent for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, 
respectively. This increase resulted in a proportionate increase in surcharge revenues which is included in other service 
revenues.

(d) Decreases in 2011 postretirement expense were primarily attributable to a curtailment gain recognized during the third 
quarter of 2011 as a result of the elimination of basic retiree life insurance coverage for certain and future retirees 
effective January 1, 2012. During the second quarter of 2012 there was a curtailment gain recognized related to the 
elimination of all benefits for certain current and future retirees.
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(e) The decrease in 2012 was primarily due to our pension plan assets performing better than expected, partially offset by 
a decrease in the discount rate from 4.64 percent to 3.85 percent. The increase in pension expense in 2011 was 
primarily due to a decline in the discount rate from 5.31 percent to 4.64 percent. Lower returns on pension plan assets 
also contributed to the increase in pension expense in 2011.

Cost of Products Sold

Cost of products sold represents the cost of equipment sales to customers.

The following table reflects the primary drivers of year-over-year changes in cost of products sold: 

  
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2012
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2011

(Millions)
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Due to acquired companies $ 93.1 $ 16.3
Due to increases in costs of contractor sales (a) 17.4 14.1
Due to decreases in consumer costs of products sold (1.1) (3.5)
Due to changes in equipment sales to business customers

(4.7) 3.5
Total increases in cost of products sold $ 104.7 99% $ 30.4 41%

 
(a) Increases in contractor cost of products sold for both periods were consistent with the changes in contractor sales in 

2012 and 2011.

Selling, General and Administrative ("SG&A")

SG&A expenses result from sales and marketing efforts, advertising, IT support, costs associated with corporate and other 
support functions, and professional fees. These expenses include associated salaries, wages and employee benefits not directly 
associated with the provision of services. 

The following table reflects the primary drivers of year-over-year changes in SG&A expenses: 

  
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2012
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2011

(Millions)
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Due to acquired companies $ 400.9 $ 83.2
Due to changes in medical insurance (a) 17.8 (4.2)
Due to increases in other costs 8.3  2.0
Due to changes in postretirement expense (b) 0.8 (4.3)
Due to changes in sales and marketing expenses (c) (29.1) 7.6
Due to changes in pension expense (d) (25.4) 26.7
Total changes in SG&A $ 373.3 62% $ 111.0 23%

 
(a) Increases in medical insurance in 2012 were primarily due to increases in medical claims and related costs.

(b) Decreases in 2011 postretirement expense were primarily attributable to a curtailment gain recognized during the third 
quarter of 2011 as a result of the elimination of basic retiree life insurance coverage for certain and future retirees 
effective January 1, 2012. During the second quarter of 2012 there was a curtailment gain recognized related to the 
elimination of all benefits for certain current and future retirees. See Note 8 for additional information.

(c) Decreases in sales and marketing expenses in 2012 were due to lower compensation costs for the business channel and 
decreased marketing and advertising expenses. Increases in sales and marketing expenses for 2011 were due to 
commissions costs for the business channel and increased advertising expenses.
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(d) The decrease in 2012 was primarily due to our pension plan assets performing better than expected, partially offset by 
a decrease in the discount rate from 4.64 percent to 3.85 percent. The increase in pension expense in 2011 was 
primarily due to a decline in the discount rate from 5.31 percent to 4.64 percent and lower returns on pension plan 
assets than expected.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense primarily includes the depreciation of our plant assets and the amortization of our 
intangible assets. 

The following table reflects the primary drivers of year-over-year changes in depreciation and amortization expense: 

  
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2012
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2011

(Millions)
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Increase

(Decrease) %    
Due to depreciation of acquired businesses fixed assets $ 184.4 $ 58.5
Due to amortization of intangible assets acquired in the
purchase of acquired companies 149.7 87.6
Due to increases in depreciation expense (a) 144.4 28.6
Due to decreases in amortization expense (b) (28.4)  (20.9)  

Total changes in depreciation and amortization expense $ 450.1 53% $ 153.8 22%
 
(a) Increases in depreciation expense were primarily due to additions in property, plant and equipment in 2012. 

Additionally, we implemented new depreciation rates beginning in 2012 for certain subsidiaries, which resulted in a 
net increase to depreciation expense of $59.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. See Note 2 to the 
consolidated financial statements. Increases in depreciation expense in 2011 were primarily due to additions in 
property, plant and equipment.

(b) Decreases in amortization expense were due to the use of accelerated amortization methods primarily due to the use of 
sum of the years digits method used for customer lists, which result in declines in expense each year as intangible 
assets amortize.

Merger, Integration and Restructuring Costs

We incur a significant amount of costs to complete a merger or acquisition and integrate its operations into our business, which 
are presented as merger and integration expense in our results of operations. These costs include transaction costs, such as 
accounting, legal and broker fees; severance and related costs; IT and network conversion; rebranding; and consulting fees. Our 
recent acquisitions of PAETEC, NuVox, Iowa Telecom, Q-Comm, and Hosted Solutions described in the section "Strategic 
Transactions" drive merger and integration costs for the years presented.

Restructuring charges are sometimes incurred as a result of evaluations of our operating structure. Among other things, these 
evaluations explore opportunities for task automation, network efficiency and the balancing of our workforce based on the 
current needs of our customers. Severance, lease exit costs and other related charges are included in restructuring charges.

On May 31, 2012, we announced the review of our management structure to increase the efficiency of decision-making, to 
ensure our management structure is as simple and as responsive to customers as possible and position ourselves for continued 
success. We eliminated approximately 350 management positions as part of the restructuring, which was completed in the third 
quarter of 2012 and resulted in severance related costs of $22.4 million. The changes will result in annualized savings of 
approximately $40.0 million. Merger, integration and restructuring costs are unpredictable by nature but should not necessarily 
be viewed as non-recurring. 
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Set forth below is a summary of restructuring and merger and integration costs for the years ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Merger and integration costs

Transaction costs associated with acquisitions (a) $ 7.1 $ 40.7 $ 41.2
Employee related transition costs (b) 20.3 22.3 26.7
Information technology conversion costs 6.1 5.7 4.2
Rebranding, consulting and other costs (c) 31.9 1.1 5.2

Total merger and integration costs 65.4 69.8 77.3
Restructuring charges 27.4 1.3 7.7
Total merger, integration and restructuring charges $ 92.8 $ 71.1 $ 85.0

 
(a) Transaction costs in 2012, 2011 and 2010 primarily relate to accounting, legal and broker fees and other miscellaneous 

costs associated with the acquisitions of the Acquired Companies, respectively. These costs are considered indirect or 
general and are expensed when incurred. 

(b) Employee related transition costs primarily consists of severance related to the integration of the Acquired Companies.

(c) Increases are primarily due to the nationwide rebranding of the PAETEC markets and consulting fees related to 
integration activities.

Summary of Liability Activity Related to Both Merger and Integration Costs and Restructuring Charges

The following table is a summary of liability activity related to both merger and integration costs and restructuring charges as 
of December 31: 

(Millions) 2012 2011
Balance, beginning of period $ 12.9 $ 10.5
Merger, integration and restructuring charges 92.8 71.1
Cash outlays during the period (85.4) (68.7)
Balance, end of period $ 20.3 $ 12.9

As of December 31, 2012, we had unpaid merger, integration and restructuring liabilities totaling $20.3 million, which 
consisted of $3.7 million of accrued severance costs primarily associated with the integration of the Acquired Companies, $5.8 
million primarily associated with the restructuring announcement made on May 31, 2012, and $10.8 million related to other 
integration activities. Severance and related employee costs are included in other current liabilities in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet and will be paid as positions are eliminated, excluding salary continuation payments. Each of these 
payments will be funded through operating cash flows (see Note 10).

Merger, integration and restructuring costs decreased net income $58.2 million, $44.1 million and $59.1 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, giving consideration to tax benefits on deductible items. See Note 10 
for additional information regarding these charges.

Operating Income

Operating income decreased $76 million, or 7.9 percent and $70.0 million, or 6.8 percent, in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The 
decrease in 2012 was primarily due to an increase in depreciation and amortization expense in our heritage properties, which 
exclude properties acquired from PAETEC, partially offset by a decrease in pension expense, both discussed previously. The 
decrease in 2011 was primarily due to the unfavorable impacts of a $113.2 million increase in pension expense due to a decline 
in the discount rate and lower returns on plan assets also contributed to the increase. These increases in expense were partially 
offset by operating income generated from acquired businesses of $54.3 million and by the favorable impact of a decrease of 
$7.5 million in merger and integration as well as expense management initiatives. In addition, operating income during both 
years was unfavorably impacted by the revenue impact associated with continued voice line losses.
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Operating Income before Depreciation and Amortization ("OIBDA")

OIBDA increased $374.1 million, or 20.7 percent, during the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period 
in 2011 (see "Reconciliation of non-GAAP Financial Measures"). This increase was primarily due to OIBDA from Acquired 
Companies of $337.5 million and a decrease in pension expense partially offset by restructuring charges. OIBDA increased 
$83.8 million, or 4.9 percent, in 2011. This increase was primarily attributable to OIBDA from Acquired Companies of $200.3 
million and a decrease in merger and integration expense, partially offset by an increase in pension expense, discussed above.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Set forth below is a summary of other income (expense), net for the years ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Interest income $ 1.0 $ 1.5 $ 1.2
Gain on sale of investments (a) 6.9 1.1 0.5
Mark-to-market of interest rate swap agreements — — (0.3)
Ineffectiveness of interest rate swaps (b) (7.5) (5.2) —
Interest expense on de-designated swap (c) — — (4.5)
Other income (expense), net 4.2 2.5 (0.4)

Other income (expense), net $ 4.6 $ (0.1) $ (3.5)

(a) The increase for 2012 was primarily due to the sale of wireless assets associated with Iowa Telecom and D&E 
Communications, Inc ("D&E"). See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) This increase in expense was due to a charge to earnings related to ineffectiveness of our cash flow hedges during 
2012 and 2011, primarily due to declines in the LIBOR rate. 

(c) The decline in 2010 was primarily due to changes in the non-cash, mark-to-market adjustment of the de-designated 
portion of the interest rate swaps incurred prior to the "blend and extend" swap transaction entered into on 
December 10, 2010. See Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources for further discussion of the "blend and 
extend" swap transaction. 

Gain (Loss) on Extinguishment of Debt

During the first quarter of 2012, we retired all $300.0 million of the outstanding 9.500 percent notes due July 15, 2015 
("PAETEC 2015 Notes"). The PAETEC 2015 Notes were purchased using borrowings on our revolving line of credit. The 
retirements were accounted for under the extinguishment method, and as a result we recognized a gain on extinguishment of 
debt of $1.9 million during 2012.

During 2011, we repurchased all $1,746.0 million of our 2016 8.625 percent Senior Notes ("2016 Notes") and all of our $400.0 
million 7.750 percent Valor Notes ("Valor Notes"). We financed these transactions with proceeds from various debt offerings 
and borrowings from our revolving line of credit. See Note 5 for detailed information regarding our debt activity in 2011. These 
transactions allowed us to extend our existing debt maturities and lower our interest rates. The retirements were accounted for 
under the extinguishment method, and as a result we recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $136.1 million during 
2011.
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The gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt is shown as follows for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012:

(Millions) 2012 2011
2015 PAETEC Notes:
Premium on early redemption $ (14.3) $ —
Unamortized premium on original issuance 16.2 —
Gain on early extinguishment for PAETEC 2015 Notes 1.9 —
2016 Notes:

Premium on early redemption — (101.2)
Unamortized discount on original issuance — (26.6)
Third-party fees for early redemption — (3.0)
Unamortized debt issuance costs on original issuance — (1.1)

Loss on early extinguishment for 2016 Notes — (131.9)
Valor Notes:

Premium on early redemption — (10.3)
Third-party fees for early redemption — (0.4)
Unamortized premium on original issuance — 6.5

Loss on early extinguishment for Valor Notes — (4.2)
Total gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt $ 1.9 $ (136.1)

Interest Expense

Set forth below is a summary of interest expense for the years ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Senior secured credit facility, Tranche A $ 13.9 $ 6.1 $ 6.9
Senior secured credit facility, Tranche B 51.8 40.2 40.9
Senior secured credit facility, revolving line of credit 18.1 19.8 6.6
Senior unsecured notes 400.8 413.0 371.3
Notes issued by subsidiaries 91.8 20.9 38.6
Credit facility extension fees — — 1.8
Impacts of interest rate swaps 56.4 64.8 57.2
Other interest expense 3.2 0.3 0.5
Less capitalized interest expense (10.9) (6.8) (2.1)

Total interest expense $ 625.1 $ 558.3 $ 521.7

Interest expense increased $66.8 million, or 12.0 percent and $36.6 million, or 7.0 percent, for the years ended December 31, 
2012 and 2011, respectively. The increase in 2012 was primarily due to interest incurred on notes issued by subsidiaries, 
specifically PAETEC. The increase in 2011 was primarily due to interest incurred on additional debt issued during 2011.

We enter into interest rate swap agreements to mitigate the interest rate risk inherent in our variable rate senior secured credit 
facilities. Our swaps are off-market swaps; therefore, they contain an embedded financing element. Our swap counterparties 
recover this financing through an incremental charge in our fixed rate over what we would be charged for an on-market swap. 
As such, a portion of our swaps' cash payment is representing the rate we would pay on a hypothetical on-market interest rate 
swap and is recognized in interest expense. See Note 2 for additional details.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense increased $0.8 million, or 0.8 percent in 2012, and decreased $96.2 million, or 49.2 percent in 2011. The 
increase in income tax expense in 2012 was primarily due to an increase in income before taxes. The decrease in income tax 
expense in 2011 was primarily due to a decrease in income before taxes. Our effective tax rate in 2012 was 37.3 percent, 
compared to 37.0 percent in 2011 and 38.5 percent in 2010. 
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For 2013, our annualized effective income tax rate is expected to range between 37.0 percent and 38.0 percent, excluding one-
time discrete items. Changes in the relative profitability of our business, as well as recent and proposed changes to federal and 
state tax laws may cause the rate to change from historical rates.  See Note 12, “Income Taxes”, to the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements for further discussion of income tax expense and deferred taxes.

Discontinued Operations, net of tax

The operating results of the energy business acquired as part of PAETEC, which sells electricity to business and residential 
customers, primarily in certain geographic regions in New York state, as a competitive electricity supplier, have been separately 
presented as discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. On June 15, 2012, we completed 
the sale of the energy business. See Note 16 for additional information.

Regulatory Matters

We are subject to regulatory oversight by the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") for particular interstate matters 
and state public utility commissions ("PUCs") for certain intrastate matters. We are also subject to various federal and state 
statutes that direct such regulations. We actively monitor and participate in proceedings at the FCC and PUCs and engage 
federal and state legislatures on matters of importance to us. 

Communications services providers are regulated differently depending primarily upon the network technology used to deliver 
the service. We believe this regulatory approach impedes market-based competition in areas where service providers using 
different technologies exchange telecommunications traffic and compete for customers.

From time to time federal and state legislation is introduced dealing with various matters that could affect our business. Most 
proposed legislation of this type never becomes law. It is difficult to predict what kind of legislation, if any, may be introduced 
and ultimately become law. We strongly support the modernization of the nation's telecommunications laws.

Federal Regulation and Legislation

Intercarrier Compensation and USF Reform

On November 18, 2011, the FCC released an order ("the Order") that established a framework for reform of the intercarrier 
compensation system and the federal USF. The Order included two primary provisions:

• the elimination of terminating switched access rates and other per-minute terminating charges between service 
providers by 2018 through annual reductions in the rates, mitigated in some cases by two recovery mechanisms; and

• the provision of USF support for voice and broadband services.

In reforming the USF, the Order established the Connect America Fund, which included a short term ("CAF Phase 1") and a 
longer term ("CAF Phase 2") framework. CAF Phase 1 provides for continued legacy USF funding frozen at 2011 levels as 
well as the opportunity for incremental broadband funding to a number of unserved locations, limited to $775 per unserved 
location. As a result of our aggressive broadband deployment to date, we had very few unserved locations remaining in our 
service areas for which $775 in incremental support would make broadband deployment economical. On July 24, 2012, we 
elected to accept approximately $0.7 million of the $60.4 million in incremental support allocated to us for 2012. In addition, 
we filed a waiver request seeking to modify certain CAF Phase 1 requirements, which would enable us to accept the remaining 
$59.7 million to expand our broadband footprint. The waiver request is still pending. The FCC is currently considering 
potential modifications to the rules governing CAF Phase 1 incremental support for 2013 that may enable us to accept more of 
the funding allocated to us, which may include funding carried over from 2012. The FCC is also weighing a separate proposal 
to forego an additional round of CAF Phase 1 incremental support in 2013 and add all remaining funds from CAF Phase 1 to 
the budget for CAF Phase 2.

The FCC is working to establish rules for CAF Phase 2 funding based on a forward-looking cost model to further extend 
broadband to high-cost areas. The development of this model was not completed by the end of 2012 as originally scheduled by 
the FCC. Until the implementation of CAF Phase 2 is complete, our annual USF funding will continue to be frozen at 2011 
levels, but we will be required to use one-third of frozen legacy support to operate and build broadband networks beginning in 
2013. Based on current expenditures, we expect to comply with these additional funding conditions in 2013. In 2014, this 
condition will apply to two-thirds of frozen legacy support and in 2015, it will increase to 100 percent.
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As part of the Order's reform of intercarrier compensation, the FCC established two recovery mechanisms that mitigate the 
revenue reductions resulting from the reduction and ultimate elimination of terminating access rates. The mechanisms are the 
ARC and the ARM, which are previously defined.

On April 25, 2012, the FCC decided that originating access rates for intrastate long distance traffic exchanged between an 
Internet-protocol network and the traditional telecommunications network should be subject to default rates equal to interstate 
originating access rates beginning on July 1, 2014. The FCC refused at that time to adopt a mechanism that would allow 
companies to recover the loss of originating access revenues resulting from the change. On July 27, 2012, we filed a petition 
for review with the U.S. Court of Appeals of the District of Columbia seeking relief from the April 2012 ruling on the grounds 
that it is arbitrary, capricious, in excess of the FCC's statutory authority and otherwise not in accordance with law. That petition 
for review was transferred to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 10th Circuit on August 28, 2012, and on October 1, 2012, our 
appeal was consolidated with 30 appeals on the Order. Our initial brief was filed on December 10, 2012, and briefing is 
expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2013. We continue to assess the impacts of the FCC's intercarrier 
compensation reform on our wholesale business activities.

Additional implications of the Order will likely result in future additional rulemaking and require significant interpretation, 
management judgment and collaboration with other telecommunications carriers. As a result of these factors, we expect 
numerous disputes with other carriers with respect to the proper amount of intercarrier compensation that is payable between 
such parties, and these disputes can sometimes become significant. Our policy is to establish reserves on wholesale revenues 
and accounts receivable balances when collectability is not reasonably assured. We do not believe that ultimate resolution of 
uncertainties, including asserted and unasserted disputes and claims from other telecommunications carriers, relate to wholesale 
services provided to date will have a material impact on the future consolidated results of operations, cash flows or our 
financial condition.

Given our ongoing transformation towards business and enterprise, coupled with the positive impact of the ARC and the 
additional universal service support available from the ARM, we do not believe the Order's reform of intercarrier compensation 
will have a material impact on our results of operation, cash flows, or our financial condition. 

Set forth below is a summary of intercarrier compensation revenue, reciprocal compensation expense and federal universal 
service support, included in wholesale revenues on the consolidated statements of income, for the years ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011
Intercarrier compensation revenue $ 337.3 $ 302.9
Intercarrier and reciprocal compensation expense $ 170.5 $ 81.6
Federal universal service support $ 123.1 $ 100.6

Broadband Stimulus

As part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ("ARRA") approximately $7.2 billion was allocated for the 
purpose of expanding broadband services to unserved and underserved areas. The Rural Utilities Service, part of the United 
States Department of Agriculture, approved eighteen of our applications for these funds for projects totaling $241.7 million. 
The RUS will fund 75 percent of these approved grants, or $181.3 million, and we will fund the remainder of at least $60.4 
million. 

Selected information related to the broadband stimulus expenditures and receipts for the years ended December 31 is as 
follows:

(Millions) 2012 2011
Inception 
to Date

Stimulus capital expenditures funded by RUS $ 105.4 $ 21.7 $ 128.1
Stimulus capital expenditures funded by Windstream (a) 44.0 7.2 52.0

Total stimulus capital expenditures $ 149.4 $ 28.9 $ 180.1
Funds received from RUS $ 45.7 $ 4.0 $ 49.7

(a) Stimulus capital expenditures funded by Windstream are included in our capital expenditure totals for each period 
presented in the statements of cash flows. This figure includes certain non-reimbursable charges for which we are 
responsible for the full amount of the cost.
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By accepting the grant funds, we agreed to certain long-term conditions. The RUS will have a retained security interest in the 
assets over their economic life, which varies by grant but is up to 23 years. In the event of default of terms of the agreement, 
the government could exercise the rights under its retained security interest to gain control and ownership of these assets. In 
addition, in the event of a proposed change in control of Windstream, the acquiring party would need to receive approval from 
the RUS prior to effectuating the proposed transaction, for which pre-approval will not be reasonably withheld.

Internet Network Regulation

On December 21, 2010, the FCC adopted new regulations covering the provision of broadband Internet access service, defined 
as a retail service offered to consumer, small business and other end user customers. Broadband Internet service provides the 
capability to transmit and receive data from all or substantially all Internet endpoints, but excludes dial-up Internet access 
service. The new regulations, among other things: 

• require all providers of broadband Internet access service to disclose network management practices, performance 
characteristics, and commercial terms of service; and 

• prohibit fixed broadband Internet service providers ("ISPs"), which include our subsidiaries providing broadband 
services, from blocking lawful content, applications, services, or attachment of non-harmful devices, and/or engaging 
in unreasonable discrimination. 

The requirements will be enforced through a combination of mechanisms, including informal and formal complaint processes. 
In 2011, multiple suits were filed in federal court challenging the FCC's authority to implement these rules, and no court 
decision has yet been issued. The new regulations have not caused a change in our existing procedures or operations. As such, 
we cannot predict at this time the impact these new regulations may have on our revenues or expenses, or whether such impact 
would be material, although it appears that our existing procedures are compliant with the regulations.

State Regulation and Legislation

Local and Intrastate Rate Regulation

Most states in which our incumbent subsidiaries operate provide alternatives to traditional rate-of-return regulation for local 
and intrastate services. We have elected alternative regulation for these subsidiaries in all states except New York. We continue 
to evaluate alternative regulation options in New York.

State Universal Service

We recognize revenue from the receipt of state universal service funding in a limited number of states in which we operate. In 
2012, we recognized $125.8 million in state USF revenue, which included approximately $88.3 million from the Texas USF. 
These payments are intended to provide additional support, beyond the federal USF receipts, for the high cost of operating in 
certain rural markets. 

There are two high-cost programs of the Texas USF, one for large companies and another for small companies. In 2012, we 
received $77.7 million from the large company program and $10.6 million from the small company program. The purpose of 
the Texas USF is to assist telecommunications carriers with providing basic local telecommunications services at reasonable 
rates to customers in high cost rural areas and to qualifying low-income and disabled customers. By order of the Texas PUC, 
the Texas USF distributes support to eligible carriers serving areas identified as high cost, on a per-line basis. Texas USF 
support payments are based on the number of actual lines in service and therefore are subject to reductions when customers 
discontinue service or migrate to a competitive carrier. All service providers of telecommunications services in Texas contribute 
to the Texas USF through the payment of a monthly surcharge collected from their customers.

Several states are currently conducting reviews of their universal service funds. In particular, the Texas PUC recently adopted 
an order that we expect to reduce our Texas USF support by approximately $4.3 million each year over the next four years. The 
Texas PUC is also considering further needs-based and rate rebalancing reforms that could adversely impact our support in 
2014 and later years. We continue to work with the Texas PUC and industry members to obtain a reasonable and more 
favorable outcome. We are not yet able to determine the financial impact of any additional Texas USF reform.

New Mexico, Oklahoma, and Pennsylvania are also considering reforms to their state universal service funds. We receive $8.4 
million annually from the New Mexico fund, $3.4 million annually from the Oklahoma fund and $13.3 million annually from 
the Pennsylvania fund. Reviews may address various aspects of the funds, including how they pertain to the basic retail rates of 
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eligible USF recipient companies and demonstration of the continuing need for support in high-cost areas. We cannot estimate 
at this time the financial impact that would result from changes, if any, to these other state funds.

Intercarrier Compensation

There is an ongoing intercarrier compensation reform proceeding in New York. In that proceeding, it is alleged that our 
intrastate switched access rates are excessive and should be reduced. We do not believe proposed reforms to intercarrier 
compensation in New York would have a material impact on our operations if adopted. 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We rely largely on operating cash flows and long-term debt to meet our liquidity requirements. We expect cash flows from 
operations will be sufficient to fund ongoing working capital requirements, planned capital expenditures, scheduled debt 
principle, interest payments and dividend payments. We also have access to capital markets and available borrowing capacity 
under our revolving credit agreements.

Our cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash, was $158.5 million at December 31, 2012, compared to $248.7 
million at December 31, 2011, a decline of $90.2 million. Cash outflows were primarily driven by repayments of debt and 
payment of interest, capital expenditures and dividends. These outflows were partially offset by cash inflows from operations of 
$1,777.6 million.

During 2012, we entered into several transactions to improve our debt maturity profile and lower interest costs, including:

• the redemption of the $300.0 million of PAETEC 2015 Notes using borrowings on our revolving line of credit;

• the amendment and restatement of our credit facilities in February 2012, which moved $150.4 million from Tranche 
A2 to Tranche A3, extending its maturity to December 2016;

• new borrowings of $280.0 million under Tranche A3 of our credit facilities, also due December 2016; and

• new borrowings of $600.0 million in Tranche B3 and $300.0 million in Tranche A4 of our senior secured facilities, 
with maturity dates of August 2017 and August 2019, respectively, which were used to pay off the revolving line of 
credit to create sufficient liquidity for our 2013 debt maturities. 

Further in January 2013, we obtained $1,345.0 million of additional term loans, due in 2020, under our existing senior secured 
credit facilities. The proceeds, together with cash on hand, were used to repay $300.4 million in term loans due in July 2013 
and another $1,042.9 million of term loans due in 2015. Additionally, we have $800.0 million in notes maturing in August 2013 
which we expect to refinance, in which case, our next significant debt maturity would not be until late 2017. We have access to 
capital markets and sufficient capacity under our revolving line of credit, as noted above, available to repay these notes.

The 2013 expected employer contribution for pension benefits consists of approximately $20.0 million in contributions to avoid 
certain benefit restrictions, which we intend to make in Windstream stock, and $0.7 million necessary to fund the expected 
benefit payments related to the unfunded supplemental executive retirement pension plans. The amount and timing of future 
contributions to the pension plan are dependent upon a myriad of factors including future investment performance, changes in 
future discount rates and changes in the demographics of the population participating in our qualified pension plan. 

Additionally, the actual amount and timing of our future capital requirements may differ materially from our estimates 
depending on the demand for our services and new market developments and opportunities, and on other factors, including 
those described in Part I, "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in this report. If our plans or assumptions change or prove to be inaccurate, 
the foregoing sources of funds may prove to be insufficient. In addition, if we seek to acquire other businesses or to accelerate 
the expansion of our business, we may be required to seek material amounts of additional capital. Additional sources may 
include equity and debt financing. Further, if we believe we can obtain additional debt financing on advantageous terms, we 
may seek such financing at any time, to the extent that market conditions and other factors permit us to do so. The debt 
financing we may seek could be in the form of additional term loans under our senior secured credit facilities or additional debt 
securities having substantially the same terms as, or different terms from, our outstanding senior notes. 

Historical Cash Flows

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Cash flows provided from (used in):

Operating activities $ 1,777.6 $ 1,228.8 $ 1,091.3
Investing activities (1,101.7) (652.2) (1,454.3)
Financing activities (770.9) (391.9) (657.6)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (95.0) $ 184.7 $ (1,020.6)
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Cash Flows – Operating Activities

Cash provided from operations is our primary source of funds. Cash flows from operating activities increased by $548.8 
million in 2012 as compared to 2011, and increased $137.5 million in 2011 as compared to 2010. The increase during 2012 is 
primarily attributable to the $89.6 million increase in net income taxes refunded and cash flows generated from PAETEC. 
These increases were partially offset by an increase of $69.6 million in cash interest paid. 

Cash flows from operating activities were favorably impacted in 2012 due to bonus depreciation provisions in the Tax Relief, 
Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization and Job Creation Act ("Tax Relief Act"). Bonus depreciation allows for the 
acceleration of depreciation on qualified investments, which accelerates the related tax benefit. The Tax Relief Act allowed for 
50 percent bonus depreciation for qualified investments made from December 31, 2011 through December 31, 2012. The 
American Taxpayer Relief Act extended 50 percent bonus depreciation through 2013.

The increase in 2011 is primarily attributable to the $131.7 million decrease in net income taxes paid, the decrease in merger, 
integration and restructuring costs incurred and cash flows generated from acquired companies in 2011 as compared to the 
same period in 2010. These increases were partially offset by an increase of $108.6 million in cash interest paid. 

Cash Flows – Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities primarily includes investments in our network to upgrade and expand our service offerings, as 
well as spending on strategic initiatives such as the acquisition of complementary businesses. Cash used in investing activities 
increased by $449.5 million in 2012 as compared to 2011, primarily driven by increased capital expenditures, as discussed 
below. This increase was partially offset by approximately $57.0 million in proceeds from the disposition of wireless assets. 

Cash used in investing activities decreased by $802.1 million in 2011 as compared to 2010, primarily due to cash used to 
purchase the companies acquired in 2010, partially offset by increased capital expenditures, as discussed below. Cash paid, net 
of cash acquired for the acquisitions of NuVox, Iowa Telecom, Hosted and Q-Comm was $198.4 million, $253.6 million, 
$312.8 million and $279.1 million, respectively.

Capital expenditures were $1,101.2 million, $702.0 million and $412.0 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Capital 
expenditures increased $399.2 million in 2012, driven by success-based fiber-to-the-tower initiatives, our portion of broadband 
stimulus spend, expansion of our data center presence and enhancements to our network and the acquisition of PAETEC. Given 
the growing bandwidth needs fueled by wireless data growth, wireless carriers have aggressively accelerated their fiber 
deployment plans and increased the number of towers targeted for fiber. We expect increases in wireless data usage and 
expansion of wireless 4G networks through the end of 2013, which will provide more opportunities for our wireless backhaul 
services. We are currently executing on fiber to the tower projects we have won. These capital investments offer attractive long-
term returns and position our business to continue improving our financial performance going forward. While our capital spend 
is elevated this year, beginning in 2013 we expect capital expenditures to decline as the fiber to the tower and stimulus projects 
wind down. 

Capital expenditures by category for the last two years are as follows:

(Millions) 2012 2011
Recurring capital expenditures $ 735.2 $ 555.3
Fiber to the tower and broadband stimulus 314.6 146.7
Integration capital expenditures $ 51.4 $ —

Total capital expenditures $ 1,101.2 $ 702.0

The primary uses of cash for future capital expenditures are for property, plant and equipment necessary to support our network 
operations, including spend on success-based fiber initiatives such as fiber-to-the-tower and data center expansions. Capital 
expenditures are expected to be between $800.0 million and $850.0 million for 2013.
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Cash Flows – Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities increased by $379.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, as compared to 
the same period in 2011. This increase was due to repayments of debt, primarily offset by debt proceeds, discussed below. 

Our board of directors maintains a dividend practice for the payment of quarterly cash dividends at a rate of $0.25 per share of 
our common stock. This practice can be changed at any time at the discretion of the board of directors, and is subject to our 
restricted payment capacity under our debt covenants as further discussed below. Dividends paid to shareholders were $1.00 
per share during 2012, totaling $588.0 million,which was an increase of $78.4 million due to additional shares issued and 
outstanding resulting from the acquisition of PAETEC. We also paid $147.0 million to shareholders in January 2013 pursuant to 
a $0.25 quarterly dividend declared during the fourth quarter of 2012.

We retired $300.0 million in outstanding indebtedness related to the PAETEC 2015 Notes in 2012. Additionally, we borrowed 
$730.0 million under the revolving line of credit in our senior secured credit facility and later repaid $1,650.0 million during 
2012. During the third quarter of 2012, we incurred new borrowings of $300.0 million of Tranche A4 senior secured credit 
facilities due August 8, 2017, and $600.0 million of Tranche B3 senior secured credit facilities due August 8, 2019. During the 
first quarter of 2012, we amended and restated $150.4 million of the Tranche A2 senior secured credit facilities outstanding 
("Tranche A2") to Tranche A3 senior secured credit facilities ("Tranche A3") and incurred new borrowings of $280.0 million of 
Tranche A3 facilities, which will also be due December 30, 2016. 

Cash used in financing activities decreased by $265.7 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, as compared to 
the same period in 2010. This decrease was due to debt proceeds, partially offset by repayments of debt, discussed below.

During 2011, we issued $1,750.0 million in additional notes and extended the maximum line of credit under our revolving 
credit agreement from $750.0 million million to $1,250.0 million. The proceeds from the additional notes, along with 
borrowings from the revolving line of credit, were used to retire $2,146.0 million in outstanding indebtedness during the year 
ended December 31, 2011. This included $1,746.0 million of our 2016 Notes and all $400.0 million of our Valor Notes. These 
transactions allowed us to extend our existing debt maturities and lower our future interest costs. We borrowed $3,170.0 million 
under the revolving line of credit in our senior secured credit facility and later repaid $2,400.0 million during 2011. 

During 2010, we issued $900.0 million in additional notes. Proceeds from these issuances were used to repay $281.0 million, 
$628.9 million and $266.2 million in debt and related swap agreements assumed from NuVox, Iowa Telecom and Q-Comm, 
respectively. Additionally, we made regularly scheduled payments of $23.9 million, borrowed $665.0 million under the 
revolving line of credit in our senior secured credit facility and later repaid $515.0 million of those revolver borrowings during 
2010. Dividends paid to shareholders totaled $464.6 million in 2010.

Pension Contribution

We did not make a pension contribution during 2012. The 2013 expected employer contribution for pension benefits consists of 
$0.7 million necessary to fund the expected benefit payments related to the unfunded supplemental executive retirement 
pension plans and approximately $20.0 million in contributions to avoid certain benefit restrictions, which we intend to make in 
Windstream stock. The amount and timing of future contributions to the pension plan are dependent upon a myriad of factors 
including future investment performance, changes in future discount rates and changes in the demographics of the population 
participating in our qualified pension plan.

During 2011, we contributed 10.8 million shares of our common stock to our qualified pension plan to meet our remaining 
2011 and expected 2012 obligation, which allowed us to preserve cash and manage overall net debt leverage. At the time of the 
contribution, these shares had an appraised value, as determined by an unaffiliated third party valuation firm, of approximately 
$135.8 million. The pension trust subsequently sold all 10.8 million shares for approximately $133.5 million.

Debt and Dividend Capacity

As of December 31, 2012, we had $8,903.7 million in long-term debt outstanding, including current maturities and excluding 
the premium and capital lease obligations (see Note 5). As of December 31, 2012, the amount available for borrowing under the 
revolving line of credit was $1,234.3 million and will expire December 17, 2015.

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately $1,108.6 million of restricted payment capacity as governed by our credit 
facility, which limits the amount of dividends we may distribute. We build additional capacity through cash generated from 
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operations while dividend payments, share repurchases and other certain restricted investments reduce the available restricted 
payments capacity. 

Debt Covenants and Amendments

The terms of the credit facility and indentures, issued by Windstream, include customary covenants that, among other things, 
require us to maintain certain financial ratios and restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness. These financial ratios 
include a maximum leverage ratio of 4.5 to 1.0 and a minimum interest coverage ratio of 2.75 to 1.0. The terms of the 
indentures assumed in connection with the acquisition of PAETEC, include restrictions on the ability of the subsidiary to incur 
additional indebtedness, including a maximum leverage ratio with the most restrictive being 4.75 to 1.0.  

Effective January 23, 2013, we amended and restated our senior secured credit facilities pursuant to the refinancing amendment 
provisions thereunder to incur $1,345.0 million of Tranche B4 term loans due January 23, 2020, the proceeds of which were 
used to refinance in full the outstanding Tranche A2, Tranche B1 and Tranche B2 term loans. The additional term loans under 
the credit facility consist of $408.8 million Tranche A3 term loan due December 30, 2016, $292.5 million Tranche A4 term loan 
due August 8, 2017 and $597.0 million Tranche B3 term loan due August 8, 2019.

Effective August 8, 2012, we amended and restated our existing senior secured credit facilities to provide for the incurrence of 
up to $900.0 million of additional term loans. We used the proceeds to repay the full outstanding balance of the credit facility 
revolver, without any reduction in commitments, and for general corporate purposes.

Effective February 23, 2012, we amended and restated $150.4 million of the Tranche A2 senior secured credit facilities 
outstanding to Tranche A3 and extended the maturity to December 30, 2016. In addition, we incurred new borrowings of 
$280.0 million of Tranche A3 senior secured credit facilities, which will also be due December 30, 2016. The proceeds from 
these borrowings were used to partially repay the credit facility revolver, without any reduction in commitments. Additionally, 
the restatement extended the maturity of certain existing term loans and provided for the ability to refinance and extend the 
maturity of any term loan or revolving loan with the consent of the affected lenders, modify certain other definitions and 
provisions and increase secured debt capacity to 2.25 times adjusted OIBDA, as defined per the credit facility. The restatement 
also provided for unlimited additional tranches of secured incremental facilities, subject to no default, pro forma compliance 
with the an interest coverage ratio test of 2.75 to 1.00 and a leverage ratio test of 4.00 to 1.00 and pro forma compliance with a 
secured leverage ratio test of 2.25 to 1.00.

On August 11, 2011, in connection with our acquisition of PAETEC, we amended our senior secured credit agreement to, 
among other things, (i) permit the issuance of bridge loans, (ii) permit the issuance and repayment of escrow notes, (iii) waive 
guaranty and security requirements with regard to PAETEC and its subsidiaries, (iv) delete the capital expenditures covenant 
and (v) waive any breach due to the change of control provisions under PAETEC's outstanding notes. In addition, we amended 
the security agreement to, among other things, waive the obligation to grant security on accounts relating to escrow notes and 
the proceeds of notes held in such accounts. 

On September 17, 2010, we amended our credit facility to permit the signing of rural broadband stimulus grant agreements 
with the Rural Utilities Service. On March 18, 2011, we increased the capacity under our senior secured revolving credit 
facility from $750.0 million to $1,250.0 million. We had approximately $1,234.3 million of availability under our senior 
secured revolving credit facility. 

Scheduled principal payments for debt outstanding as of December 31, 2012 for each of the twelve month periods ended 
December 31, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 were $866.1 million, $85.1 million, $92.6 million, $350.8 million and 
$1,964.6 million, respectively. Scheduled principal payments remaining after 2017 are $5,544.5 million.

Certain of our debt agreements contain various covenants and restrictions specific to the subsidiary that is the legal 
counterparty to the agreement. Under our long-term debt agreements, acceleration of principal payments would occur upon 
payment default, violation of debt covenants not cured within 30 days, a change in control including a person or group 
obtaining 50 percent or more of our outstanding voting stock, or breach of certain other conditions set forth in the borrowing 
agreements. At December 31, 2012, we were in compliance with all such covenants and restrictions.
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Our senior secured credit facility and Windstream indentures include maintenance covenants derived from certain financial 
measures that are not calculated in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("non-GAAP 
financial measures"). These non-GAAP financial measures are presented below for the sole purpose of demonstrating our 
compliance with our debt covenants and were calculated as follows:

(Millions, except ratios)
December 31,

2012
Gross leverage ratio:

Total debt $ 8,996.5
Operating income, last twelve months $ 887.5
Depreciation and amortization, last twelve months 1,297.6
Other non-cash and non-recurring expense adjustments required by the credit facilities and indentures (a) 214.7

Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("Adjusted EBITDA") $ 2,399.8
Leverage ratio (b) 3.75
Maximum gross leverage ratio allowed 4.50

Interest coverage ratio:
Adjusted EBITDA $ 2,399.8

Interest expense, last twelve months $ 625.1
Adjustments required by the credit facilities and indentures (c) 24.2

Adjusted interest expense $ 649.3
Interest coverage ratio (d) 3.70
Minimum interest coverage ratio allowed 2.75

 
(a) Adjustments required by the credit facility and indentures primarily consist of the inclusion of pension and share-

based compensation expense, non-recurring merger, integration and restructuring charges.

(b) The gross leverage ratio is computed by dividing total debt by adjusted EBITDA.

(c) Adjustments required by the credit facility and indentures primarily consist of the inclusion of capitalized interest and 
amortization of the discount on long-term debt, net of premiums.

(d) The interest coverage ratio is computed by dividing adjusted EBITDA by adjusted interest expense.

Credit Ratings

As of February 11, 2013, Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s Corporation ("S&P") and Fitch Ratings had granted us 
the following senior secured, senior unsecured and corporate credit ratings:

Description   Moody’s    S&P      Fitch    
Senior secured credit rating   Baa3   BB+   BBB-
Senior unsecured credit rating   Ba3   B   BB+
Corporate credit rating   Ba2   BB-   BB+
Outlook   Negative   Stable   Stable

Factors that could affect our short and long-term credit ratings would include, but are not limited to, a material decline in our 
operating results, increased debt levels relative to operating cash flows resulting from future acquisitions, increased capital 
expenditure requirements, or changes to our dividend policy. If our credit ratings were to be downgraded, we might incur 
higher interest costs on future borrowings, and our access to the public capital markets could be adversely affected. Our 
exposure to interest risk is further discussed in the Market Risk section below. A downgrade in our current short or long-term 
credit ratings would not accelerate scheduled principal payments of our existing long-term debt, as discussed further in Note 5. 
Our next significant scheduled debt maturity is in 2017.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not use securitization of trade receivables, affiliation with special purpose entities, variable interest entities or synthetic 
leases to finance our operations. Additionally, we have not entered into any arrangement requiring us to guarantee payment of 
third party debt or to fund losses of an unconsolidated special purpose entity.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Set forth below is a summary of our material contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2012:

  Obligations by Period

(Millions)
Less than

1 Year
1 - 3
Years

3 - 5
Years

More than
5 years Total

Long-term debt, including current maturities (a) $ 866.1 $ 177.7 $ 2,315.4 $ 5,544.5 $ 8,903.7
Interest payments on long-term debt obligations (b) 590.9 1,038.5 992.9 1,044.2 3,666.5
Capital leases (c) 15.2 10.9 2.1 2.5 30.7
Operating leases (d) 249.5 324.8 178.3 174.6 927.2
Purchase obligations (e) 163.7 71.7 — — 235.4
Other long-term liabilities and commitments (f) (g)
(h) 117.5 324.2 372.7 1,811.1 2,625.5
Total contractual obligations and commitments $ 2,002.9 $ 1,947.8 $ 3,861.4 $ 8,576.9 $ 16,389.0

 
(a) Excludes $62.1 million and $30.7 million of unamortized premiums (net of discounts) and capital lease obligations, 

respectively included in long-term debt at December 31, 2012.

(b) Variable rates on the senior secured credit facility are calculated in relation to one-month and three-month LIBOR 
rates, which were 0.21 percent and 0.34 percent, respectively, at December 31, 2012.

(c) Capital leases include non-cancellable leases, consisting principally of leases for facilities and equipment.

(d) Operating leases consist of non-cancellable operating leases, consisting principally of leases for network facilities, real 
estate, office space and office equipment.

(e) Purchase obligations include open purchase orders not yet receipted and amounts payable under non-cancellable 
contracts. The portion attributable to non-cancellable contracts primarily represents agreements for network capacity 
and software licensing.

(f) Other long-term liabilities and commitments primarily consist of deferred tax liabilities, pension and other 
postretirement benefit obligations, interest rate swaps, asset retirement obligations and long-term deferred revenue.

(g) Excludes $21.2 million of reserves for uncertain tax positions, including interest and penalties, that were included in 
other liabilities at December 31, 2012 for which we are unable to make a reasonably reliable estimate as to when cash 
settlements with taxing authorities will occur.

(h) Includes $29.0 million and $23.8 million in current portion of interest rate swaps and pension and postretirement 
benefit obligations, respectively that were included in current portion of interest rate swaps and other current liabilities 
at December 31, 2012. The current portion of pension and postretirement benefit obligations includes $20.0 million 
for expected pension contributions in 2013. Although no additional pension contributions may be required in 2013, 
due to uncertainties inherent in the pension funding calculation, the amount and timing of any remaining contributions 
are unknown and therefore have been reflected as due in more than 5 years.

See "Debt Covenants and Amendments" for information regarding our debt covenants. See Notes 2, 5, 6, 8, 12, 13 and 15 for 
additional information regarding certain of the obligations and commitments listed above.
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MARKET RISK

Market risk is comprised of three elements: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and equity risk. As further discussed below, 
we are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates. We do not directly own significant marketable equity securities 
other than highly liquid cash equivalents, nor do we operate in foreign countries. However, our pension plan invests in 
marketable equity securities, including marketable debt and equity securities denominated in foreign currencies.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risk through changes in interest rates, primarily as it relates to the variable interest rates we are 
charged under our senior secured credit facility. Under our current policy, we enter into interest rate swap agreements to obtain 
a targeted mixture of variable and fixed interest rate debt such that the portion of debt subject to variable rates does not exceed 
25 percent of our total debt outstanding. For a detailed discussion of our interest rate swap agreements, see "Financial 
Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources".

We have established policies and procedures for risk assessment and the approval, reporting and monitoring of interest rate 
swap activity. We do not enter into interest rate swap agreements, or other derivative financial instruments, for trading or 
speculative purposes. Management periodically reviews our exposure to interest rate fluctuations and implements strategies to 
manage the exposure.

As of December 31, 2012, the unhedged portion of our variable rate senior secured credit facility was $1,697.9 million, or 
approximately 20.9 percent of our total outstanding long-term debt and capital lease obligations. We have estimated our interest 
rate risk using a sensitivity analysis. For variable rate debt instruments, market risk is defined as the potential change in 
earnings resulting from a hypothetical adverse change in interest rates. A hypothetical increase of 100.0 basis points in variable 
interest rates would reduce annual pre-tax earnings by approximately $17.0 million. Actual results may differ from this 
estimate.

Equity Risk

In general, we hold available cash in FDIC-insured demand depository accounts. However, occasionally we will utilize money 
market funds available in the investment portals of various financial institutions to invest our cash on hand in short-term 
securities. These financial institutions are generally a party to our existing credit facility. These monies have been invested in 
both taxable funds as well as tax-exempt municipal funds, and investments will often be moved between these two types of 
securities depending on their respective yields. These monies are all invested in AAA rated funds with same day access, and 
thus are highly liquid. The money market funds are primarily comprised of fixed income investments and have minimal equity 
risk.

In addition, we have exposure to market risk through our pension plan investments. During 2012, the fair market value of these 
investments increased from $948.9 million to $999.0 million due to return on assets held of $130.0 million, or 13.5%. These 
increases were partially offset by routine benefit payments of $60.1 million and lump sum payments and administrative 
expenses of $19.8 million. Returns generated on plan assets have historically funded a large portion of the benefits paid under 
our pension plan. See "Critical Accounting Policies - Pension Benefits" for a discussion of the sensitivity of our pension 
expense.

Foreign Currency Risk

Although we do not operate in foreign countries, our pension plan invests in international securities. As of December 31, 2012 
approximately $94.7 million or 9.5 percent of total pension assets are invested in debt or equity securities denominated in 
foreign currencies. The investments are diversified in terms of country, industry and company risk, limiting the overall foreign 
currency exposure. Based on a 10 percent hypothetical change in the U.S. dollar to various foreign exchange markets, we 
estimate that our pension fair value would change by $9.5 million, which would be offset by a corresponding change in the U.S. 
dollar value of our net pension investments.
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Reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures

From time to time, we will reference certain non-GAAP measures in our filings. Management’s purpose for including these 
measures is to provide investors with measures of performance that management uses in evaluating the performance of the 
business. These non-GAAP measures should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures of financial 
performance reported under GAAP. Following is a reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures to the most closely related 
financial measure reported under GAAP referenced in this filing.

Operating income before depreciation and amortization to GAAP operating income:

(Millions) 2012 2011 %
Operating income $ 887.5 $ 963.5

Depreciation and amortization 1,297.6 847.5
OIBDA (a) $ 2,185.1 $ 1,811.0 21%

 
(a) OIBDA is defined as operating income plus depreciation and amortization expense. Management believes this measure 

provides investors with insight into the core earnings capacity of providing telecommunications services to its 
customers.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States. Our significant accounting policies are discussed in detail in Note 2. Certain of these accounting policies, as discussed 
below, require management to make estimates and assumptions about future events that could materially affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We believe that the 
estimates, judgments and assumptions made when accounting for the items described below are reasonable, based on 
information available at the time they are made. However, there can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from 
those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues and sales as services are rendered or as products are sold in accordance with authoritative guidance on 
revenue recognition. Service revenues are recognized over the period that the corresponding services are rendered to customers. 
Revenues derived from other telecommunications services, including interconnection, long distance and enhanced service 
revenues are recognized monthly as services are provided. Revenue from sales of indefeasible rights to use fiber optic network 
facilities ("IRUs") and the related telecommunications network maintenance arrangements is generally recognized over the term 
of the related lease or contract. Sales of communications products including customer premise equipment and modems are 
recognized when products are delivered to and accepted by customers. Fees assessed to communications customers for service 
activation are deferred upon service activation and recognized as service revenue on a straight-line basis over the expected life 
of the customer relationship in accordance with authoritative guidance on multiple element arrangements. Certain costs 
associated with activating such services are deferred and recognized as an operating expense over the same period.

We recognize certain revenues pursuant to various cost recovery programs from state and federal USF. Revenues are calculated 
based on our investment in our network and other network operations and support costs. We have historically collected the 
revenues recognized through this program; however, adjustments to estimated revenues in future periods are possible. These 
adjustments could be necessitated by adverse regulatory developments with respect to these subsidies and revenue sharing 
arrangements, the determination of recoverable costs, or decreases in the availability of funds in the programs due to increased 
participation by other carriers.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

In evaluating the collectability of our trade receivables, we assess a number of factors, including a specific customer’s ability to 
meet its financial obligations to us, as well as general factors, such as the length of time the receivables are past due and 
historical collection experience. Based on these assumptions, we record an allowance for doubtful accounts to reduce the 
related receivables to the amount that we ultimately expect to collect from customers. If circumstances related to specific 
customers change or economic conditions worsen such that our past collection experience is no longer relevant, our estimate of 
the recoverability of our trade receivables could be further reduced from the levels provided for in the consolidated financial 
statements.
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Pension Benefits

The annual costs of providing pension benefits are based on certain key actuarial assumptions, including the expected return on 
plan assets, discount rate and healthcare cost trend rate. Our projected net pension income for 2013, which is estimated to be 
approximately $5.5 million, was calculated based upon a number of actuarial assumptions, including an expected long-term rate 
of return on qualified pension plan assets of 7.0 percent and a discount rate of 3.85 percent. If returns vary from the expected 
rate of return or there is a change in the discount rate, the estimated net pension income could vary. In developing the expected 
long-term rate of return assumption, we considered the plan's historical rate of return, as well as input from our investment 
advisors. Historical returns of the plan were 9.79 percent since 1975, including periods in which it was sponsored by Alltel. 
Projected returns on qualified pension plan assets were based on broad equity and bond indices and include a targeted asset 
allocation of 25.0 percent to equities, 57.0 percent to fixed income assets and 18.0 percent to alternative investments, with an 
aggregate expected long-term rate of return of approximately 7.0 percent. Lowering the expected long-term rate of return on the 
qualified pension plan assets by 50 basis points (from 7.0 percent to 6.5 percent) would result in a decrease in our projected 
pension income of approximately $4.9 million in 2013.

The discount rate selected is based on a hypothetical yield curve and associated spot rate curve adjusted to reflect the expected 
cash outflows for pension benefit payments. The yield curve incorporates actual high-quality corporate bonds across the full 
maturity spectrum and is developed from yields on Aa-graded, non-callable/putable bonds. The discount rate determined on this 
basis was 3.85 percent at December 31, 2012. Lowering the discount rate by 25 basis points (from 3.85 percent to 3.60 percent) 
would result in an increase in our projected pension expense of approximately $43.0 million in 2013. We recognize changes in 
the fair value of plan assets and actuarial gains and losses due to actual experience differing from the various actuarial 
assumptions, including changes in our pension obligation, as pension expense or income in the fourth quarter each year.

The Pension Protection Act of 2006 ("PPA") was signed into law on August 17, 2006. In general, PPA changed the rules 
governing the minimum contribution requirements for funding a qualified pension plan on an annual basis without paying 
excise tax penalties. Among other requirements, PPA changed the assumptions used to calculate the minimum lump-sum benefit 
payments, and applied benefit restrictions to plans below certain funding levels. PPA made permanent certain provisions of the 
Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001 ("EGTRRA") that were scheduled to expire in 2010. EGTRRA 
increased the maximum amount of benefits that a qualified defined benefit pension plan could pay and increased the maximum 
compensation amount allowed for determining benefits for qualified pension plans. We are complying with PPA provisions. As 
a result of the $135.8 million contribution in 2011, the qualified pension was at least 80.0 percent funded for the 2012 plan year, 
resulting in no benefit restrictions. The assumptions selected as of December 31, 2012, for financial reporting purposes, for the 
qualified pension plan reflected the PPA impact. Future contributions to the plan are dependent on various factors, including 
future investment performance, changes in future discount rates and changes in the demographics of the population 
participating in the qualified pension plan.

See Notes 2 and 8 for additional information on our pension plans.

Useful Lives of Assets

The calculation of depreciation and amortization expense is based on the estimated economic useful lives of the underlying 
property, plant and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets. Our regulated operations use a group composite depreciation 
method. Under this method, when plant is retired, the original cost, net of salvage value, is charged against accumulated 
depreciation and no immediate gain or loss is recognized on the disposition of the plant. With the assistance of outside 
expertise, we completed analyses of the depreciable lives of assets held for certain subsidiaries during the year 2012. Based on 
those results, we implemented new depreciation rates resulting in a net increase to depreciation of $59.1 million and a net 
decrease in net income of $36.5 million or $0.06 per share for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Goodwill
 
We test our goodwill for impairment at least annually, or whenever indicators of impairment arise. This guidance requires write-
downs of goodwill only in periods in which the recorded amount of goodwill exceeds the fair value. We assess the impairment 
of our goodwill by evaluating the carrying value of our shareholders' equity against the current fair market value of our 
outstanding equity, where the fair market value of our equity is equal to our current market capitalization plus a control 
premium estimated to be 20.0 percent through the review of recent market observable transactions involving wireline 
telecommunication companies. If the fair value is less than its carrying value, a second calculation is required in which the 
implied fair value of goodwill is compared to its carrying value. If the implied fair value of goodwill is less than its carrying 
value, goodwill must be written down to its implied fair value.
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We perform our impairment analysis on January 1st of each year. During 2012, 2011 and 2010, no write-down in the carrying 
value was required. Effective January 1, 2012, we determined that we had one reporting unit to test for impairment. Reducing 
our January 1, 2012 market capitalization by 82.0 percent would not have resulted in an impairment of the carrying value of 
goodwill. Changes in the key assumptions used in the impairment analysis due to changes in market conditions could adversely 
affect the calculated fair value of goodwill, materially affecting the carrying value and our future consolidated operating results.

See Notes 2 and 4 for additional information on goodwill.

Derivative Instruments

We enter into interest rate swap agreements to mitigate the interest rate risk inherent in our variable rate senior secured credit 
facilities. We account for our derivative instruments using authoritative guidance for recognition, measurement and disclosures 
about derivative instruments and hedging activities, including when a derivative or other financial instrument can be designated 
as a hedge. This guidance requires recognition of all derivative instruments at fair value, and accounting for the changes in fair 
value depends on whether the derivative has been designated as, qualifies as and is effective as a hedge. We record changes in 
fair value of the effective portions of cash flow hedges as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) in the current 
period. Any ineffective portion of our hedges is recognized in earnings in the current period. 

In 2006, we entered into four pay fixed, receive variable interest rate swap agreements to serve as cash flow hedges of the 
interest rate risk inherent in our senior secured credit facilities. We renegotiated the four interest rate swap agreements on 
December 3, 2010, and again on August 21, 2012, each time lowering the fixed interest rate paid and extending the maturity.

The current swaps are designated as cash flow hedges of the interest rate risk created by the variable rate cash flows paid on our 
senior secured credit facilities, which have varying maturity dates from July 17, 2013 to August 8, 2019. We are hedging 
probable variable cash flows which extend up to four years beyond the maturity of certain components of our variable rate debt. 
Consistent with past practice, we expect to extend or otherwise replace these components of our debt with variable rate debt.

We recognize all derivative instruments at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as either assets or 
liabilities, depending on the rights or obligations under the related contracts. Changes in value of the effective portion are 
charged to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and reclassified into earnings as the hedged transaction affects 
earnings. Changes in value of the ineffective portion are charged to other income (expense), net. See note 2 for additional 
information.

See Note 2 for additional information on derivative instruments.

Income Taxes

Our estimates of income taxes and the significant items resulting in the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
disclosed in Note 12 and reflect our assessment of future tax consequences of transactions that have been reflected in our 
financial statements or tax returns for each taxing jurisdiction in which we operate. Actual income taxes to be paid could vary 
from these estimates due to future changes in income tax law or the outcome of audits completed by federal and state taxing 
authorities. Included in the calculation of our annual income tax expense are the effects of changes, if any, to our income tax 
reserves for uncertain tax positions. We maintain income tax reserves for potential assessments from the IRS or other taxing 
authorities. The reserves are determined in accordance with authoritative guidance and are adjusted, from time to time, based 
upon changing facts and circumstances. Changes to the income tax reserves could materially affect our future consolidated 
operating results in the period of change. In addition, a valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amount of 
deferred tax assets unless it is more likely than not that such assets will be realized.

Recently Issued Authoritative Guidance

The following authoritative guidance will be adopted by us in the reporting period indicated. This authoritative guidance, 
together with our evaluation of the related impact to the consolidated financial statements, is more fully described in Note 2.

• Balance Sheet Offsetting (first quarter of 2013)

• Comprehensive Income (first quarter of 2013)
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations includes, and future filings on 
Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K and future oral and written statements by us and our management may include, certain 
forward-looking statements. We claim the protection of the safe-harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private 
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Forward looking statements are subject to 
uncertainties that could cause actual future events and results to differ materially from those expressed in the foward-looking 
statements. Forward looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements about our expectation to return a significant 
portion of our cash flow to shareholders through our dividend, our expectation to maintain our current dividend practice at the 
current rate of dividend, expected levels of support from universal service funds or other government programs, expected rates 
of loss of voice lines or inter-carrier compensation, expected increases in high-speed Internet and business data connections, our 
expected ability to fund operations, expected required contributions to our pension plan, capital expenditures and certain debt 
maturities from cash flows from operations, expected synergies and other benefits from completed acquisitions, expected 
effective federal income tax rates, expected annualized savings from the management restructuring, the amounts expected to be 
received from the Rural Utilities Service to fund a portion of our broadband stimulus projects and the expected benefits of those 
projects and forecasted capital expenditure amounts. These and other forward-looking statements are based on estimates, 
projections, beliefs, and assumptions that we believe are reasonable but are not guarantees of future events and results. Actual 
future events and our results may differ materially from those expressed in these forward-looking statements as a result of a 
number of important factors.

Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated in our forward looking statements include, 
among others:

• further adverse changes in economic conditions in the markets served by us;

• the extent, timing and overall effects of competition in the communications business;

• the impact of new, emerging or competing technologies;

• for certain operations where we lease facilities from other carriers, adverse effects on the availability, quality of 
service, price of facilities and services provided by other carriers on which our services depend;

• the uncertainty regarding the implementation of the Federal Communications Commission's ("FCC") rules on 
intercarrier compensation adopted in 2011, and the potential for the adoption of further rules by the FCC or Congress 
on intercarrier compensation and/or universal service reform proposals that result in a significant loss of revenue to us;

• unfavorable rulings by state public service commissions in proceedings regarding universal service funds, inter-carrier 
compensation or other matters that could reduce revenues or increase expenses;

• material changes in the communications industry that could adversely affect vendor relationships with equipment and 
network suppliers and customer relationships with wholesale customers;

• earnings on pension plan investments significantly below our expected long term rate of return for plan assets or a 
significant change in the discount rate;

• the availability and cost of financing in the corporate debt markets;

• the potential for adverse changes in the ratings given to our debt securities by nationally accredited ratings 
organizations;

• the risks associated with non-compliance by us with regulations or statutes applicable to government programs under 
which we receive material amounts of end user revenue and government subsidies, or non-compliance by us, our 
partners, or our subcontractors with any terms of our government contracts;

• the risks associated with the integration of acquired businesses or the ability to realize anticipated synergies, cost 
savings and growth opportunities;

• unfavorable results of litigation or intellectual property infringement claims asserted against us;
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• the effects of federal and state legislation, and rules and regulations governing the communications industry;

• continued loss of consumer voice lines;

• the impact of equipment failure, natural disasters or terrorist acts;

• the effects of work stoppages by our employees or employees of other communications companies on whom we rely 
for service; and

• those additional factors under the caption "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of this annual report and in subsequent filings 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission at www.sec.gov.

In addition to these factors, actual future performance, outcomes and results may differ materially because of more general 
factors including, among others, general industry and market conditions and growth rates, economic conditions, and 
governmental and public policy changes.

We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future 
events or otherwise. The foregoing review of factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those 
contemplated in the forward-looking statements should be considered in connection with information regarding risks and 
uncertainties that may affect our future results included in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission at www.sec.gov.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
 

(Millions, except per share amounts in thousands) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Revenues and sales $ 6,156.3 $ 4,281.2 $ 3,710.7 $ 2,996.3 $ 3,170.2
Operating income 887.5 963.5 1,033.5 1,060.6 741.6
Other income (expense), net 4.6 (0.1) (3.5) (1.1) 2.1
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt 1.9 (136.1) — — —
Interest expense (625.1) (558.3) (521.7) (410.2) (416.4)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 268.9 269.0 508.3 649.3 327.3
Income tax expense 100.2 99.4 195.6 250.8 133.5
Income from continuing operations 168.7 169.6 312.7 398.5 193.8
Discontinued operations, including tax expense (benefit) 
of $0, $0, and ($10.6), for 2012, 2011 and 2008, 
respectively (0.7) (0.1) — — (22.2)
Net income $ 168.0 $ 169.5 $ 312.7 $ 398.5 $ 171.6
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

From continuing operations $.28 $.32 $.66 $.91 $.43
From discontinued operations — — — — (.05)

Net income $.28 $.32 $.66 $.91 $.38
Dividends declared per common share $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00
Balance sheet data
Total assets $ 13,982.0 $ 14,392.1 $ 11,303.9 $ 9,113.7 $ 7,988.4
Total long-term debt and capital leases (excluding 
premium and discount) $ 8,934.4 $ 9,053.2 $ 7,365.5 $ 6,295.2 $ 5,382.5
Total equity $ 1,104.8 $ 1,495.3 $ 831.0 $ 225.9 $ 254.6

Notes to Selected Financial Information:
 
• Explanations for significant events affecting our historical operating trends during the periods 2010 through 2012 are 

provided in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

• In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, we 
became aware of and corrected an error in the accounting for certain promotional credits for new consumer customers. 
These errors are non-cash and did not affect our total operating cash flow for any period. See Note 2 for further 
information.

• Effective during the fourth quarter of 2011, we changed our method of recognizing actuarial gains and losses for 
pension benefits to recognize actuarial gains and losses in our operating results in the year in which the gains and 
losses occur. The effect of this change in methodology can create volatility in actuarial gains and losses recognized 
based on market fluctuations which impacts pension expense (benefit) for the year. Pension expense amounted to 
$67.4, $166.8, $54.1, ($23.8), and $388.7 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

• Acquisitions were also considered significant events affecting our historical operating trends during the periods 2009 
through 2011. On November 30, 2011, we acquired PAETEC. During 2010, Q-Comm, Hosted Solutions, Iowa 
Telecom and Nuvox were acquired on December 2, 2010, December 1, 2010, June 1, 2010 and February 8, 2010, 
respectively. During 2009, Lexcom and D&E were acquired on December 1, 2009 and November 10, 2009, 
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of all financial information included in this Financial 
Supplement. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. The financial statements include amounts that are based on the best estimates and 
judgments of management. All financial information in this Financial Supplement is consistent with that in the consolidated 
financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and have 
expressed herein their unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which oversees our financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of 
Directors, is composed entirely of independent directors (as defined by the NASDAQ Global Select Market). The Audit 
Committee meets periodically with management, the independent registered public accounting firm and the internal auditors to 
review matters relating to our financial statements and financial reporting process, annual financial statement audit, 
engagement of independent registered public accounting firm, internal audit function, system of internal controls, and legal 
compliance and ethics programs as established by our management and the Board of Directors. The internal auditors and the 
independent registered public accounting firm periodically meet alone with the Audit Committee and have access to the Audit 
Committee at any time.

Dated February 19, 2013
 

Jeffery R. Gardner  Anthony W. Thomas
President and

Chief Executive Officer  
Chief Financial Officer 

and Treasurer
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, and for 
performing an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012. Internal 
control over financial reporting is the process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Our system of internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; 
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Management performed an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2012 based upon criteria in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission ("COSO"). Based on our assessment, management determined that our internal control over 
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2012.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, has been audited by 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Dated February 19, 2013
 

Jeffery R. Gardner  Anthony W. Thomas
President and

Chief Executive Officer  
Chief Financial Officer 

and Treasurer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Windstream Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, 
comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Windstream Corporation and its subsidiaries (“the Company”) at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, and the results of 
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012 in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all 
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(COSO). The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the 
accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on 
these financial statements and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in 
all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our 
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Little Rock, Arkansas 
February 19, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31,
 

(Millions, except per share amounts) 2012 2011 2010
Revenues and sales:

Service revenues:
Business $ 3,611.4 $ 2,098.0 $ 1,577.5
Consumer 1,339.5 1,378.3 1,372.8
Wholesale 708.0 547.3 555.9
Other 266.2 131.0 115.2

Total service revenues 5,925.1 4,154.6 3,621.4
Product sales 231.2 126.6 89.3

Total revenues and sales 6,156.3 4,281.2 3,710.7
Costs and expenses:

Cost of services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization included below) 2,692.4 1,691.1 1,331.9
Cost of products sold 210.0 105.3 74.9
Selling, general, and administrative 976.0 602.7 491.7
Depreciation and amortization 1,297.6 847.5 693.7
Merger and integration costs 65.4 69.8 77.3
Restructuring charges 27.4 1.3 7.7

Total costs and expenses 5,268.8 3,317.7 2,677.2
Operating income 887.5 963.5 1,033.5
Other income (expense), net 4.6 (0.1) (3.5)
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt 1.9 (136.1) —
Interest expense (625.1) (558.3) (521.7)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 268.9 269.0 508.3
Income taxes 100.2 99.4 195.6
Income from continuing operations 168.7 169.6 312.7
Discontinued operations (0.7) (0.1) —
Net income $ 168.0 $ 169.5 $ 312.7
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

From continuing operations $.28 $.32 $.66
From discontinued operations — — —

Net income $.28 $.32 $.66

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31,

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Net income $ 168.0 $ 169.5 $ 312.7
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Interest rate swaps:
Changes in designated interest rate swaps (20.5) (32.5) 3.1
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-designated interest rate
swaps 45.4 49.0 4.9
Income tax expense (9.5) (6.3) (3.1)

Unrealized holding gains on interest rate swaps 15.4 10.2 4.9
Postretirement and pension plans:

Prior service credit arising during the period 1.4 37.6 1.5
Change in net actuarial gain (loss) for employee benefit plans 0.1 (2.1) (13.0)
Plan curtailment (9.6) — —
Amounts included in net periodic benefit cost:

Amortization of net actuarial loss 2.3 1.0 0.6
Amortization of prior service credits (11.9) (10.8) (8.4)

Income tax benefit (expense) 6.8 (9.9) 8.9
Change in postretirement and pension plans (10.9) 15.8 (10.4)

Other comprehensive income (loss) $ 4.5 $ 26.0 $ (5.5)
Comprehensive income $ 172.5 $ 195.5 $ 307.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
(Millions, except par value)
 

Assets 2012 2011
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 132.0 $ 227.0
Restricted cash 26.5 21.7
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $42.6 and $29.9, respectively) 614.1 657.4
Income tax receivable 0.8 124.1
Inventories 75.0 76.5
Deferred income taxes 249.5 232.1
Prepaid income taxes 22.5 15.3
Prepaid expenses and other 179.7 102.9
Assets held for sale — 61.4

Total current assets 1,300.1 1,518.4
Goodwill 4,340.9 4,301.7
Other intangibles, net 2,311.3 2,685.3
Net property, plant and equipment 5,862.7 5,709.2
Other assets 167.0 177.5
Total Assets $ 13,982.0 $ 14,392.1
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   

Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations $ 881.6 $ 213.7
Current portion of interest rate swaps 29.0 30.5
Accounts payable 363.7 296.0
Advance payments and customer deposits 223.3 243.9
Accrued dividends 148.9 148.0
Accrued taxes 104.3 117.9
Accrued interest 113.6 161.8
Other current liabilities 304.0 251.2

Total current liabilities 2,168.4 1,463.0
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 8,114.9 8,936.7
Deferred income taxes 1,896.3 1,849.8
Other liabilities 697.6 647.3
Total liabilities 12,877.2 12,896.8
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note 13)
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 1,000.0 shares authorized,
588.2 and 586.3 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 0.1 0.1
Additional paid-in capital 1,098.3 1,493.3
Accumulated other comprehensive income 6.4 1.9
Retained earnings — —

Total shareholders’ equity 1,104.8 1,495.3
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 13,982.0 $ 14,392.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31,

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Cash Provided from Operations:

Net income $ 168.0 $ 169.5 $ 312.7
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from operations:

Depreciation and amortization 1,297.6 847.5 693.7
Provision for doubtful accounts 59.4 48.5 48.9
Share-based compensation expense 43.2 24.1 17.0
Pension expense 67.4 166.8 54.1
Deferred income taxes 79.6 173.8 125.1
Unamortized net (premium) discount on retired debt (16.2) 21.2 —
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-designated interest rate swaps 45.4 49.0 0.6
Plan curtailment (9.6) (14.7) —
Other, net (16.7) 11.6 14.8

Pension contribution — — (41.7)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net

Accounts receivable (75.8) (64.3) (42.8)
Income tax receivable 123.3 (124.1) —
Prepaid income taxes (7.1) 57.1 (46.6)
Prepaid expenses and other (22.2) (5.6) 4.7
Accounts payable 63.6 23.5 (18.1)
Accrued interest (40.8) (99.1) 26.6
Accrued taxes (10.9) 0.7 (10.1)
Other current liabilities 36.5 (30.3) (1.1)
Other liabilities (5.8) (3.5) (30.3)
Other, net (1.3) (22.9) (16.2)

Net cash provided from operations 1,777.6 1,228.8 1,091.3
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Additions to property, plant and equipment (1,101.2) (702.0) (412.0)
Broadband network expansion funded by stimulus grants (105.4) (21.7) —
Acquisition of NuVox, net of cash acquired — — (198.4)
Acquisition of Iowa Telecom, net of cash acquired — — (253.6)
Acquisition of Hosted Solutions, net of cash acquired — — (312.8)
Acquisition of Q-Comm, net of cash acquired — — (279.1)
Cash acquired from PAETEC — 71.4 —
Changes in restricted cash (4.8) (11.9) —
Grant funds received for broadband stimulus projects 45.7 4.0 —
Disposition of wireless assets 57.0 — —
Disposition of energy business 6.1 — —
Other, net 0.9 8.0 1.6

Net cash used in investing activities (1,101.7) (652.2) (1,454.3)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Dividends paid on common shares (588.0) (509.6) (464.6)
Repayment of debt and swaps (2,054.5) (4,780.3) (1,715.0)
Proceeds of debt issuance 1,910.0 4,922.0 1,562.0
Debt issuance costs (19.1) (30.6) (21.8)
Payment under capital lease obligations (20.0) (0.8) (1.0)
Other, net 0.7 7.4 (17.2)

Net cash used in financing activities (770.9) (391.9) (657.6)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (95.0) 184.7 (1,020.6)
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Beginning of period 227.0 42.3 1,062.9
End of period $ 132.0 $ 227.0 $ 42.3

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 671.5 $ 601.9 $ 493.3
Income taxes (refunded) paid, net $ (100.7) $ (11.1) $ 120.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
 

(Millions, except per share amounts)

Common Stock
and Additional

Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Retained
Earnings Total

Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 106.2 $ (18.6) $ 168.3 $ 255.9
Net income — — 312.7 312.7
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:

Change in postretirement and pension plans — (10.4) — (10.4)
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-designated
interest rate swaps — 3.0 — 3.0
Changes in designated interest rate swaps — 1.9 — 1.9

Comprehensive (loss) income — (5.5) 312.7 307.2
Share-based compensation expense 17.0 — — 17.0
Stock issued to NuVox shareholders (See Note 3) 185.0 — — 185.0
Stock issued to Iowa Telecom shareholders (See Note 3) 280.8 — — 280.8
Stock issued to Q-Comm shareholders (See Note 3) 271.6 — — 271.6
Taxes withheld on vested restricted stock and other (4.5) — — (4.5)
Dividends of $1.00 per share declared to stockholders (1.0) — (481.0) (482.0)
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 855.1 $ (24.1) $ — $ 831.0
Net income — — 169.5 169.5
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Change in postretirement and pension plans — 15.8 — 15.8
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-designated
interest rate swaps — 30.3 — 30.3
Changes in designated interest rate swaps — (20.1) — (20.1)

Comprehensive income — 26.0 169.5 195.5
Share-based compensation expense 24.1 — — 24.1
Stock options exercised 2.3 — — 2.3
Stock issued to PAETEC shareholders (See Note 3) 842.0 — — 842.0
Stock issued to pension plan (See Note 8) 135.8 — — 135.8
Taxes withheld on vested restricted stock and other (4.4) — — (4.4)
Dividends of $1.00 per share declared to stockholders (361.5) — (169.5) (531.0)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 1,493.4 $ 1.9 $ — $ 1,495.3
Net income — — 168.0 168.0
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Change in postretirement and pension plans — (10.9) — (10.9)
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-designated
interest rate swaps — 28.0 — 28.0
Changes in designated interest rate swaps — (12.6) — (12.6)

Comprehensive income — 4.5 168.0 172.5
Share-based compensation expense 25.4 — — 25.4
Stock options exercised 6.0 — — 6.0
Taxes withheld on vested restricted stock and other (5.6) — — (5.6)
Dividends of $1.00 per share declared to stockholders (420.8) — (168.0) (588.8)
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 1,098.4 $ 6.4 $ — $ 1,104.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Background and Basis for Presentation:

Unless the context requires otherwise, the use of the terms "Windstream," "we," "us" and "our" in this Annual Report on Form 
10-K refers to Windstream Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

Description of the Business – We are a leading provider of advanced communications and technology solutions, including 
managed services and cloud computing, to businesses nationwide. In addition to business services, we offer broadband, voice 
and video services to consumers in primarily rural markets. We have operations in 48 states and the District of Columbia, a 
local and long-haul fiber network spanning approximately 115,000 miles, a robust business sales division and 23 data centers 
offering managed services and cloud computing. 

Basis of Presentation – The preparation of financial statements, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States ("U.S. GAAP"), requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The estimates and assumptions used 
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and 
circumstances as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and 
assumptions used in preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements, and such differences could be material.

Also, certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year financial statement presentation. These 
changes and reclassifications did not impact net or comprehensive income.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Changes:

Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation of Financial Statements – Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Windstream Corporation 
and the accounts of its subsidiaries. All affiliated transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less.

Restricted Cash – Restricted cash consists of cash restricted for uses other than current operations. We have placed cash into 
pledged deposit accounts for our share of committed spend on construction contracts currently under review by the Rural 
Utilities Service ("RUS"), part of the United States Department of Agriculture, for broadband stimulus grants. Changes in the 
restricted cash balances are reflected as cash inflows or outflows in the investing activities section of the statement of cash 
flows. Additionally, in connection with the acquisition of PAETEC Holding Corp. ("PAETEC"), we assumed responsibility for 
letter of credit agreements between PAETEC and their financial institution. These letter of credit agreements, which require 
cash collateral, relate to contracts entered into by PAETEC in the normal course of business. Approximately $1.5 million and 
$9.9 million was remaining in restricted cash associated with these letters of credit at December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.

Accounts Receivable – Accounts receivable consist principally of trade receivables from customers and are generally unsecured 
and due within 30 days. Expected credit losses related to trade accounts receivable are recorded as an allowance for doubtful 
accounts in the consolidated balance sheets. In establishing the allowance for doubtful accounts, we consider a number of 
factors, including historical collection experience, aging of the accounts receivable balances, current economic conditions and a 
specific customer’s ability to meet its financial obligations. When internal collection efforts on accounts have been exhausted, 
the accounts are written off by reducing the allowance for doubtful accounts. Concentration of credit risk with respect to 
accounts receivable is limited because a large number of geographically diverse customers make up our customer base. Due to 
varying customer billing cycle cut-off, we must estimate service revenues earned but not yet billed at the end of each reporting 
period. Included in accounts receivable are unbilled receivables related to communications services of $49.2 million and $48.7 
million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Changes, Continued:

Inventories – Inventories consist primarily of finished goods and are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is 
determined using either an average original cost or specific identification method of valuation.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets – Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of prepaid services, rent, 
insurance, maintenance contracts and refundable deposits. Prepayments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the 
corresponding life of the underlying agreements.

Broadband Stimulus Spend – Capital expenditures related to the broadband stimulus grants are initially recorded to 
construction in progress. A receivable totaling 75 percent of the gross spend, representing the expected reimbursement from the 
RUS is recorded during the same period, offsetting the amounts recorded in construction in progress. The resulting balance 
sheet presentation reflects our 25 percent investment in these assets in property, plant and equipment. Once an asset is placed 
into service, depreciation is calculated and recorded based on our 25 percent investment in the equipment. Initial outflows to 
purchase stimulus-related assets are reflected in the investing activities section of the cash flows statement. Grant funds 
received from the RUS are shown as inflows in the investing activities section of the statement of cash flows.

Assets Held For Sale – On June 15, 2012, we completed the sale of the energy business acquired in conjunction with the 
acquisition of PAETEC. During 2011, $10.7 million of assets and $3.5 million of liabilities of the energy business were 
reclassified to assets held for sale and liabilities held for sale, respectively, and are presented in assets held for sale and other 
current liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The results of our energy business are reported 
as discontinued operations for all periods presented. See Note 16 for further discussion.

On February 22, 2012 and March 30, 2012, we completed the sales of wireless assets acquired from D&E Communications, 
Inc. ("D&E") and Iowa Telecommunications Services, Inc. ("Iowa Telecom"), respectively. During 2010, $16.6 million of 
wireless assets acquired from D&E Communications, Inc. and $34.0 million of wireless licenses acquired from Iowa 
Telecommunications Services, Inc. were reclassified to assets held for sale. As a result of these transactions, we received gross 
proceeds of approximately $57.0 million and recognized a gain of $5.2 million, net of transaction fees.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets – Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net identifiable tangible 
and intangible assets acquired through various business combinations. We have acquired identifiable intangible assets through 
our acquisitions. The cost of acquired entities at the date of the acquisition is allocated to identifiable assets, and the excess of 
the total purchase price over the amounts assigned to identifiable assets is recorded as goodwill. In accordance with 
authoritative guidance, goodwill is to be assigned to a company’s reporting units and tested for impairment at least annually 
using a consistent measurement date, which for us is January 1st of each year. Goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level. A 
reporting unit is an operating segment or one level below an operating segment, referred to as a component. A component of an 
operating segment is a reporting unit for which discrete financial information is available and our executive management team 
regularly reviews the operating results of that component. Additionally, components of an operating segment can be combined 
as a single reporting unit if the components have similar economic characteristics. Effective January 1, 2012, we have 
determined that we have one reporting unit to test for impairment that includes all Windstream operations. We assessed 
impairment of our goodwill by evaluating the carrying value of our shareholders’ equity against the current fair market value of 
our outstanding equity, where the fair market value of our equity is equal to our current market capitalization plus a control 
premium estimated to be 20.0 percent. The fair market value of our equity, both including and excluding the control premium, 
exceed our goodwill carrying value as of January 1, 2012.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
____

F-42

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Changes, Continued:

Net Property, Plant and Equipment – Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost, less accumulated depreciation. 
Property, plant and equipment consists of central office equipment, office and warehouse facilities, outside communications 
plant, customer premise equipment, furniture, fixtures, vehicles, machinery, other equipment and software to support the 
business units in the distribution of telecommunications products. The costs of additions, replacements, substantial 
improvements and extension of the network to the customer premise, including related labor costs, are capitalized, while the 
costs of maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation expense amounted to $955.6 million, $626.9 million, 
and $539.6 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Net property, plant and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31:

(Millions) Depreciable Lives          2012 2011
Land $ 46.3 $ 45.5
Building and improvements 3-40 years 649.4 621.2
Central office equipment 3-40 years 5,276.0 4,945.5
Outside communications plant 7-47 years 6,256.2 5,822.5
Furniture, vehicles and other equipment 3-23 years 1,270.8 1,032.5
Construction in progress 329.2 297.4

13,827.9 12,764.6
Less accumulated depreciation (7,965.2) (7,055.4)
Net property, plant and equipment  $ 5,862.7 $ 5,709.2

Our regulated operations use a group composite depreciation method. Under this method, when plant is retired, the original 
cost, net of salvage value, is charged against accumulated depreciation and no immediate gain or loss is recognized on the 
disposition of the plant. For our non-regulated operations, when depreciable plant is retired or otherwise disposed of, the related 
cost and accumulated depreciation are deducted from the plant accounts, with the corresponding gain or loss reflected in 
operating results.

The RUS will have a retained security interest in the assets funded by the broadband stimulus grants over their economic life, 
which varies by grant but is up to 23 years. In the event of default of terms of the agreement, the government could exercise the 
rights under its retained security interest to gain control and ownership of these assets. In addition, in the event of a proposed 
change in control of Windstream, the acquiring party would need to receive approval from the RUS prior to effectuating the 
proposed transaction, for which pre-approval will not be reasonably withheld.

We capitalize interest in connection with the acquisition or construction of plant assets. Capitalized interest is included in the 
cost of the asset with a corresponding reduction in interest expense. Capitalized interest amounted to $10.9 million, $6.8 
million and $2.1 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Asset Retirement Obligations – We recognize asset retirement obligations in accordance with authoritative guidance on 
accounting for asset retirement obligations and on accounting for conditional asset retirement obligations, which requires 
recognition of a liability for the fair value of an asset retirement obligation if the amount can be reasonably estimated. Our asset 
retirement obligations include legal obligations to remediate the asbestos in certain buildings if we exit them and to properly 
dispose of our chemically-treated telephone poles at the time they are removed from service and to restore certain leased 
properties to their previous condition upon exit. These asset retirement obligations totaled $51.4 million and $50.2 million as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and are included in other long term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets.

Derivative Instruments – We enter into interest rate swap agreements to mitigate the interest rate risk inherent in our variable 
rate senior secured credit facilities. We account for our derivative instruments using authoritative guidance for recognition, 
measurement and disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities, including when a derivative or other financial 
instrument can be designated as a hedge. This guidance requires recognition of all derivative instruments at fair value, and 
accounting for the changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative has been designated as, qualifies as and is effective 
as a hedge. We record changes in fair value of the effective portions of cash flow hedges as a component of other 
comprehensive income (loss) in the current period. Any ineffective portion of our hedges is recognized in earnings in the 
current period. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Changes, Continued:

In 2006, we entered into four pay fixed, receive variable interest rate swap agreements to serve as cash flow hedges of the 
interest rate risk inherent in our senior secured credit facilities. We renegotiated the four interest rate swap agreements on 
December 3, 2010, and again on August 21, 2012, each time lowering the fixed interest rate paid and extending the maturity.

As a result of the August 21, 2012 transaction, we reduced our fixed rate paid from 4.553 percent to 3.391 percent effective 
October 17, 2012. The fixed rate paid includes a component which serves to settle the liability existing on our swaps at the time 
of the transaction. The variable rate received resets on the seventeenth day of each month to the one-month London Interbank 
Offered Rate ("LIBOR"). Our swaps had a notional value of $943.8 million as of December 31, 2012, which will amortize to 
$900.0 million on July 17, 2013, where they will remain until maturity. 

The current swaps are designated as cash flow hedges of the benchmark LIBOR interest rate risk created by the variable rate 
cash flows paid on our senior secured credit facilities, which have varying maturity dates from July 17, 2013 to August 8, 2019. 
We are hedging probable variable cash flows which extend up to four years beyond the maturity of certain components of our 
variable rate debt. Consistent with past practice, we expect to extend or otherwise replace these components of our debt with 
variable rate debt.

We recognize all derivative instruments at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as either assets or 
liabilities, depending on the rights or obligations under the related contracts. 

Set forth below is information related to our interest rate swap agreements:

(Millions, except for percentages) 2012 2011 2010
Designated portion, measured at fair value

Other current liabilities $ 29.0 $ 30.5 $ 35.4
Other non-current liabilities $ 91.2 $ 88.7 $ 75.9
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income $ (14.7) $ (26.9) $ 5.6

De-designated portion, unamortized value
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (45.9) $ (58.6) $ (107.6)

Weighted average fixed rate paid 4.26% 4.60% 5.60%
Variable rate received 0.21% 0.40% 0.29%

We assess our derivatives for effectiveness each quarter and recognized a $7.5 million charge to earnings, reflected in other 
income (expense), net related to ineffectiveness of our cash flow hedges for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012.

Our swaps are off-market swaps, meaning they contain an embedded financing element. Our swap counterparties recover this 
financing through an incremental charge in our fixed rate over what we would be charged for an on-market swap. As such, a 
portion of our swaps' cash payment is representing the rate we would pay on a hypothetical on-market interest rate swap and is 
recognized in interest expense. The remainder represents the repayment of the embedded financing element and reduces our 
swap liability.

All or a portion of the change in fair value of our interest rate swap agreements recorded in accumulated other comprehensive 
income (loss) may be recognized in earnings in certain situations. If we extinguish all of our variable rate debt, or a portion of 
our variable rate debt such that our variable rate interest received on our swaps exceeds the variable rate interest paid on our 
debt, we would recognize in earnings all or a portion of the change in fair value of our swaps. In addition, we may recognize 
the change in fair value of our swaps in earnings if we determine it is no longer probable that we will have future variable rate 
cash flows to hedge against or if a swap agreement is terminated prior to maturity. We have assessed our counterparty risk and 
determined that no substantial risk of default exists as of December 31, 2012. Each counterparty is a bank with a current credit 
rating at or above A.

We expect to recognize losses of $17.9 million, net of taxes, in interest expense in the next twelve months related to the 
unamortized value of the de-designated portion of interest rate swap agreements at December 31, 2012. Payments on our off-
market swaps are presented in the financing activities section of our consolidated statements of cash flows.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Changes, Continued:

Changes in value of these instruments were as follows for the years ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Changes in fair value of effective portion, net of tax (a) $ (12.6) $ (20.1) $ 1.9
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-designated 
interest rate swaps (a) $ 28.0 $ 30.3 $ 3.0
Changes in fair value of undesignated portion (b) $ — $ — $ (0.3)

(a) Included as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) and will be reclassified into earnings as the hedged 
transaction affects earnings.

(b) Represents non-cash income recorded in other income (expense), net in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
income.

Revenue Recognition – Service revenues are primarily derived from providing access to or usage of our networks and facilities. 
Service revenues are recognized over the period that the corresponding services are rendered to customers. Revenues derived 
from other telecommunications services, including interconnection, long distance and enhanced service revenues are 
recognized monthly as services are provided. Revenue from sales of indefeasible rights to use fiber optic network facilities 
("IRUs") and the related telecommunications network maintenance arrangements is generally recognized over the term of the 
related lease or contract. Sales of communications products including customer premise equipment and modems are recognized 
when products are delivered to and accepted by customers. Fees assessed to customers for service activation are deferred upon 
service activation and recognized as service revenue on a straight-line basis over the expected life of the customer relationship 
in accordance with authoritative guidance on multiple element arrangements. Certain costs associated with activating such 
services are deferred and recognized as an operating expense over the same period.
 
Advertising – Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $99.5 million, $67.8 million, and $70.9 
million in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Share-Based Compensation – In accordance with authoritative guidance on share-based compensation, we value all share-based 
awards to employees at fair value on the date of the grant, and recognize that value as compensation expense over the period 
that each award vests. This expense is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of income.

Pension Benefits – We recognize changes in the fair value of plan assets and actuarial losses due to actual experience differing 
from actuarial assumptions, as a component of net periodic benefit expense (income) in the fourth quarter in the year in which 
the gains and losses occur, and if applicable in any quarter in which an interim remeasurement is triggered. The remaining 
components of pension expense, primarily service and interest costs and assumed return on plan assets, are recorded on a 
quarterly basis.

Capital Leases – We lease facilities and equipment for use in our operations. These facilities and equipment are included in 
outside communications plant in property, plant and equipment in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Leases with a 
bargain purchase option, transfer of ownership, contractual life equal to or greater than 75 percent of the remaining estimated 
economic life of the leased facilities or equipment or minimum lease payments equal to or greater than 90 percent of the fair 
value of the leased facilities or equipment are accounted for as capital leases in accordance with authoritative guidance for 
capital leases. The future minimum lease payments for all non-cancellable capital leases for each of the twelve month periods 
ending December 31, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 are $15.2 million, $7.0 million, $3.9 million, $1.6 million and $0.5 
million, respectively.
 
Operating Leases – Certain of our operating lease agreements include scheduled rent escalations during the initial lease term 
and/or during succeeding optional renewal periods. We account for these operating leases in accordance with authoritative 
guidance for operating leases with non-level rent payments. Accordingly, the scheduled increases in rent expense are 
recognized on a straight-line basis over the initial lease term and those renewal periods that are reasonably assured. The 
difference between rent expense and rent paid is recorded as deferred rent and is included in other liabilities in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life 
of the asset or the lease term, including renewal option periods that are reasonably assured.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Changes, Continued:

Income Taxes – We account for income taxes in accordance with guidance on accounting for income taxes, under the asset and 
liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to 
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. 
Deferred tax balances are adjusted to reflect tax rates based on currently enacted tax laws, which will be in effect in the years in 
which the temporary differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates 
is recognized in the results of operations in the period of the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the 
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets unless it is more likely than not that such assets will be realized. In addition, we 
adopted authoritative guidance which addresses uncertainty in tax positions and clarifies the accounting for income taxes by 
prescribing a minimum recognition threshold that the income tax positions must achieve before being recognized in the 
financial statements.

Earnings Per Share – We compute basic earnings per share by dividing net income applicable to common shares by the 
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Our non-vested restricted shares containing a 
non-forfeitable right to receive dividends on a one-to-one per share ratio to common shares are considered participating 
securities, and the impact is included in the computation of basic earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method. The two-
class method of computing earnings per share is an earnings allocation formula that determines earnings attributable to 
common shares and participating securities according to dividends declared (whether paid or unpaid) and participation rights in 
undistributed earnings. Earnings per common share was computed by dividing the sum of distributed earnings and 
undistributed earnings allocated to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for 
the period. In applying the two-class method, undistributed earnings are allocated to both common shares and non-vested 
restricted shares based on the pro-rata weighted average shares outstanding during the period. 

In conjunction with the acquisition of PAETEC, we granted restricted stock units to former PAETEC employees to replace 
outstanding, unvested PAETEC restricted stock units held by these same employees as of the acquisition date. Since these 
restricted stock units contain a non-forfeitable right to receive dividends on a one-to-one per share ratio to common shares, they  
are considered participating securities and are treated similar to the non-vested restricted shares discussed above.

Beginning in the first quarter of 2011, we began issuing performance-based restricted stock units as part of our share-based 
compensation plan. These newly issued restricted stock units and previously issued performance-based restricted shares issued 
contain a forfeitable right to receive dividends. Because dividends attributable to these shares are forfeited if the vesting 
provisions are not met, they are considered non-participating restricted shares and are not dilutive under the two class method 
until the performance conditions have been satisfied. We considered the options granted in conjunction with the acquisition of 
PAETEC in the computation of dilutive earnings per share using the treasury stock method. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Changes, Continued:

A reconciliation of net income and number of shares used in computing basic and diluted earnings per share was as follows for 
the years ended December 31:

(Millions, except per share amounts) 2012 2011 2010
Basic and diluted earnings per share:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 168.7 $ 169.6 $ 312.7
Income from continuing operations allocable to participating securities (3.6) (3.4) (3.0)

Adjusted income from continuing operations attributable to
common shares 165.1 166.2 309.7

Loss from discontinued operations (0.7) (0.1) —
Loss from discontinued operations allocable to participating securities — — —

Adjusted loss from discontinued operations attributable to common
shares (0.7) (0.1) —

Net income attributable to common shares $ 164.4 $ 166.1 $ 309.7
Denominator:
Basic shares outstanding
  Weighted average basic shares outstanding 588.0 516.4 471.0
  Weighted average participating securities (3.5) (3.7) (3.0)
  Weighted average shares outstanding for basic earnings per share 584.5 512.7 468.0
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

From continuing operations $.28 $.32 $.66
From discontinued operations — — —

Net income $.28 $.32 $.66

The calculation of basic earnings per share excludes income attributable to participating non-vested restricted shares from the 
numerator and excludes the dilutive impact of participating non-vested restricted shares from the denominator.

Revisions to Prior Period Financial Statements

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, we became 
aware of and corrected an error in the accounting for certain promotional credits for new consumer customers. Previously, 
promotional credits issued on a customer's first bill were deferred and amortized over the length of the contract with the 
customer. We should have recognized these credits against revenue in the month that they appeared on the customer's bill.

The revisions for the year ended December 31, 2011, which we have assessed and determined are not material to the financial 
statements, are presented below. In addition, we will revise the previously filed quarterly financial statements for the periods 
impacted (see Note 18 to the financial statements). These errors are non-cash and did not affect our total operating cash flow 
for any period.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
____

F-47

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Changes, Continued:

The following table presents the effect the revision had on our consolidated statement of operations:

(Millions, except per share amounts)

As 
Previously 
Reported

Effect of
Revision As Revised (a)

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Consumer service revenues $ 1,380.2 $ (1.9) $ 1,378.3
Total service revenues 4,156.5 (1.9) 4,154.6
Product sales 129.2 (2.6) 126.6
Total revenues and sales 4,285.7 (4.5) 4,281.2
Income taxes 101.1 (1.7) 99.4
Income from continuing operations 172.4 (2.8) 169.6
Net income 172.3 (2.8) 169.5

Basic and diluted earnings per share 0.33 (0.01) 0.32

Advance payments and customer deposits 240.4 3.5 243.9
Other liabilities 646.3 1.0 647.3
Deferred income taxes 1,851.5 (1.7) 1,849.8
Additional paid-in-capital 1,496.1 (2.8) 1,493.3

(a) The effect of the revision is also reflected in our consolidated statements of cash flows, net income and relevant 
adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities.

Change in Accounting Estimate 

The calculation of depreciation and amortization expense is based on the estimated economic useful lives of the underlying 
property, plant and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets. We periodically obtain updated depreciation studies to evaluate 
whether certain useful lives remain appropriate in accordance with authoritative guidance. With the assistance of outside 
expertise, we completed analyses of the depreciable lives of assets held for certain subsidiaries during the year 2012. Based on 
those results, we implemented new depreciation rates resulting in a net increase to depreciation of $59.1 million and a net 
decrease in net income of $36.5 million or $0.06 per share for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Testing Goodwill for Impairment – Effective January 1, 2012, we adopted authoritative guidance related to the testing of 
goodwill for impairment. This guidance allows an entity the option to first assess qualitative factors before calculating the fair 
value of a reporting unit. The entity may avoid applying the current two-step impairment test to a reporting unit if it determines, 
based on its assessment of qualitative factors, it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is greater than its 
carrying amount. This guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurement – Effective January 1, 2012, we adopted authoritative guidance related to fair value measurements. 
This guidance expands existing disclosure requirements for fair value measurements and makes other amendments. Key 
additional disclosures include quantitative disclosures about unobservable inputs in Level 3 measures, qualitative information 
about sensitivity of Level 3 measures and valuation process, and classification within the fair value hierarchy for instruments 
where fair value is only disclosed in the footnotes but carrying amount is on some other basis. This guidance did not have a 
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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Recently Issued Authoritative Guidance

Balance Sheet Offsetting – In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued authoritative 
guidance related to balance sheet offsetting. This guidance requires enhanced disclosures for financial instruments and 
derivative instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement. In January 2013, the FASB issued an 
update to address implementation issues and clarify the scope of the off-setting disclosures. This guidance is effective for fiscal 
years beginning on or after January 1, 2013, including interim periods therein and requires retrospective application. We are 
currently evaluating the impact this guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements.

Comprehensive Income – In February 2013, the FASB issued final authoritative guidance regarding the presentation of 
reclassification adjustments on the statement of comprehensive income. In June 2011, then deferred later that year, the FASB 
had issued authoritative guidance requiring reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from other 
comprehensive income (loss) to net income be presented on the face of the financial statements where the components of net 
income and the components of other comprehensive income are presented. This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and 
interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2012. We do not expect this guidance to have a material 
impact on our consolidated financial statements.  

3. Acquisitions and Dispositions:

Acquisition of PAETEC - On November 30, 2011, we completed the acquisition of PAETEC in an all-stock transaction valued 
at approximately $2.4 billion. PAETEC shareholders received 0.460 shares of our stock for each PAETEC share owned at 
closing. We issued 70.0 million shares and assumed equity awards shares for a total transaction value of $842.0 million, based 
on our closing stock price on November 30, 2011, and the fair value of the equity awards assumed. We also assumed PAETEC's 
debt, net of cash acquired, of approximately $1,591.3 million, which includes a net premium of $113.9 million based on the fair 
value of the debt on November 30, 2011 and bank debt of $99.5 million that was repaid on December 1, 2011. The PAETEC 
transaction enhances our capabilities in strategic growth areas, including Internet protocol ("IP") based services, cloud 
computing and managed services. It significantly advances our strategy to drive top-line revenue growth by expanding our 
focus on business and fiber transport services. 

The following table summarizes the final fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed for PAETEC.  

(Millions)
Final

Allocation
Fair value of assets acquired:

Cash and other current assets $ 240.8
Accounts receivable 227.5
Property, plant and equipment 875.7
Goodwill 653.3
Customer lists (a) 830.0
Trade names and other (b) 15.0
Deferred income taxes on acquired assets 162.8
Other assets 8.4

Total assets acquired 3,013.5
Fair value of liabilities assumed:

Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations (19.0)
Other current liabilities (453.5)
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations (1,643.7)
Other liabilities (55.3)

Total liabilities assumed (2,171.5)
Common stock issued (inclusive of additional paid-in capital) $ 842.0

(a) Customer lists will be amortized using the sum-of-years digit methodology over an estimated useful life of ten years. 
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(b) Trade names were amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of one year. Other intangibles, which 
includes internally developed software, will be amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of three 
years.

Supplemental Pro Forma Information (Unaudited) – PAETEC Acquisition - The amounts of PAETEC's revenue and net loss 
included in our consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the revenue and net income from 
continuing operations of the combined entity for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 had the acquisition 
occurred January 1, 2010, are as follows:

(Millions) Revenue

Net (Loss)
Income from
Continuing
 Operations

PAETEC actual for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 $ 2,106.8 $ (69.4)
Supplemental pro forma for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 $ 6,170.1 $ 115.0
Supplemental pro forma for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 $ 5,324.5 $ 192.1

The pro forma information presents our historical results adjusted to include PAETEC, with the results prior to the merger 
closing date adjusted to include the pro forma effect of the elimination of transactions between us and PAETEC, the adjustment 
to revenue to align revenue policies, the adjustment to amortization expense associated with the estimated acquired fair value of 
intangible assets, the impact of merger and integration expenses related to the acquisition and the impact of tax benefits from 
PAETEC's loss from operations.

The pro forma results are presented for illustrative purposes only and do not reflect either the realization of potential cost 
savings or any related integration costs. Certain cost savings may result from the PAETEC merger, although there can be no 
assurance that cost savings will be achieved. These pro forma results do not purport to be indicative of the results that would 
have actually been obtained if the merger had occurred as of the date indicated, nor do the pro forma results intend to be a 
projection of results that may be obtained in the future.

Acquisition of Q-Comm – On December 2, 2010, we completed the acquisition of Q-Comm Corporation ("Q-Comm"), a 
privately held regional fiber transport and business communications provider. This acquisition significantly enhanced our fiber 
network with increased scale and business revenues, as well as the opportunity for operating synergies across our markets. 
Under the terms of the merger agreement, we paid $279.1 million in cash, net of cash acquired, and issued approximately 
20.6 million shares of our common stock valued at $271.6 million to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of Q-
Comm common stock. We also repaid $266.2 million in outstanding indebtedness and related liabilities on existing swap 
agreements of Q-Comm. The transaction included Q-Comm’s wholly-owned subsidiaries Kentucky Data Link, Inc. ("KDL"), a 
fiber services provider in 23 states and the District of Columbia, and Norlight, Inc. ("Norlight"), a business communications 
provider serving approximately 5,500 business customers.

Acquisition of Hosted Solutions – On December 1, 2010, we completed the acquisition of Hosted Solutions Acquisitions, LLC 
("Hosted Solutions") in an all-cash transaction valued at $312.8 million, which included a $2.8 million net working capital 
adjustment, net of cash acquired. We financed the transaction through cash reserves and revolving credit capacity. Hosted 
Solutions, based in Raleigh, N.C., is a leading regional data center and managed hosting provider focused on enterprise-class 
Infrastructure as a Service (IaaS) solutions. This acquisition provided us with five state-of-the-art data centers in Raleigh, NC, 
Charlotte, NC, and Boston, MA which serve more than 600 customers. 
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The following table summarizes the final fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed for Hosted Solutions and Q-
Comm. 

Hosted
Solutions Q-Comm

(Millions)
Final

Allocation
Final

Allocation
Fair value of assets acquired:

Current assets $ 6.8 $ 35.4
Property, plant and equipment 40.7 293.5
Goodwill 175.7 358.0
Customer lists (a) 87.8 292.5
Non-compete agreements (b) 7.4 —
Trade names (c) 1.3 3.7
Other assets 2.2 19.6

Total assets acquired 321.9 1,002.7
Fair value of liabilities assumed:

Current maturities of long-term debt — (255.1)
Other current liabilities (6.3) (55.0)
Deferred income taxes on acquired assets — (117.9)
Other liabilities (2.8) (24.0)

Total liabilities assumed (9.1) (452.0)
Common stock issued (inclusive of additional paid-in capital) — (271.6)

Cash paid, net of cash acquired $ 312.8 $ 279.1
 
(a) Customer lists are amortized using the sum-of-years digit methodology over an estimated useful life of 13 years for 

Hosted Solutions and 15 years for Q-Comm.

(b) Non-compete agreements are amortized on a straight-line basis over and estimated useful life of three years.

(c) Trade names were amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of one year.

Acquisition of Iowa Telecom – On June 1, 2010, we completed the acquisition of Iowa Telecom, based in Newton, Iowa. This 
acquisition provided us with a sizable operating presence in the upper Midwest and the opportunities for operating efficiencies 
with our contiguous markets. As of June 1, 2010, Iowa Telecom provided service to approximately 247,000 voice lines, 96,000 
high-speed Internet customers and 25,000 digital television customers in Iowa and Minnesota. Pursuant to the merger 
agreement, each share of Iowa Telecom common stock was converted into the right to receive 0.804 shares of our common 
stock and $7.90 in cash. We paid $253.6 million in cash, net of cash acquired, and issued approximately 26.7 million shares of 
common stock valued at $280.8 million on the date of issuance. In addition, we repaid outstanding indebtedness, including 
related interest rate swap liabilities, of Iowa Telecom of $628.9 million. 

Acquisition of NuVox – On February 8, 2010, we completed our acquisition of NuVox, Inc. ("NuVox"), a business 
communications provider based in Greenville, South Carolina. Consistent with our focus on growing revenues from business 
customers, the completion of the NuVox acquisition added approximately 104,000 business customer locations in 16 
contiguous Southwestern and Midwest states. In accordance with the NuVox merger agreement, we acquired all of the issued 
and outstanding shares of common stock of NuVox for $198.4 million in cash, net of cash acquired, and issued approximately 
18.7 million shares of common stock valued at $185.0 million on the date of issuance. We also repaid outstanding indebtedness 
and related liabilities on existing swap agreements of NuVox totaling $281.0 million.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
____

F-51

3. Acquisitions and Dispositions, Continued:

The following table summarizes the final fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed for NuVox and Iowa 
Telecom. 

NuVox Iowa Telecom

(Millions)
Final

Allocation
Final

Allocation
Fair value of assets acquired:

Assets held for sale (a) $ — $ 34.0
Other current assets 68.0 36.7
Property, plant and equipment 241.7 329.9
Goodwill 270.5 552.4
Wireline franchise rights (b) — 230.0
Cable franchise rights (b) — 5.6
Customer lists (c) 180.0 130.6
Trade name (d) 4.2 3.1
Other assets — 11.1

Total assets acquired 764.4 1,333.4
Fair value of liabilities assumed:

Current maturities of long-term debt (260.7) (610.2)
Other current liabilities (63.8) (49.7)
Deferred income taxes on acquired assets (29.7) (109.6)
Other liabilities (26.8) (29.5)

Total liabilities assumed (381.0) (799.0)
Common stock issued (inclusive of additional paid-in capital) (185.0) (280.8)

Cash paid, net of cash acquired $ 198.4 $ 253.6
 
(a) Wireless licenses acquired from Iowa Telecom were designated as held for sale.

(b) Wireline franchise rights and cable franchise rights are amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated life of 30 
years and 15 years, respectively.

(c) Customer lists are amortized using the sum-of-years digit methodology over an estimated useful life of nine years.

(d) Trade names were amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of one year.

We have conducted appraisals necessary to assess the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the amount 
of goodwill recognized as of the respective acquisition dates for NuVox, Iowa Telecom, Hosted Solutions, Q-Comm and 
PAETEC (collectively known as the "Acquired Companies"). The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect our 
combined operations with the Acquired Companies for the periods following the respective acquisition dates. Employee 
severance and transaction costs incurred by us in conjunction with these acquisitions have been expensed to merger and 
integration expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income (see Note 10).

The costs of the acquisitions were allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as 
of the acquisition dates, with amounts exceeding fair value recognized as goodwill. Goodwill associated with the acquired 
companies is attributable to the workforce of acquired businesses and expected synergies. Approximately $173.7 million and 
$38.7 million of goodwill associated with the acquisitions of Hosted Solutions and PAETEC, respectively, is expected to be 
deductible for tax purposes. 
 
The fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed were determined using income, cost, and market approaches. 
Identified intangible assets, consisting primarily of customer lists, were valued primarily on the basis of the present value of 
future cash flows, which is an income approach. Significant assumptions utilized in the income approach were based on our 
specific information and projections, which are not observable in the market and are thus considered Level 3 measurements as 
defined by authoritative guidance. The cost approach, which estimates value by determining the current cost of replacing an 
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asset with another of equivalent economic utility, was used as appropriate for property, plant and equipment. The cost to replace 
a given asset reflects the estimated reproduction or replacement cost for the asset, less an allowance for loss in value due to 
depreciation. The fair value of the long-term debt and related interest rate swap agreements assumed were determined based on 
quoted prices for the repayment of these instruments.  

The PAETEC credit facility was valued based on the expected redemption cost, while the remaining bonds were valued based 
on market value. Equity consideration was based on the closing price of our common stock on November 30, 2011. 
Consideration related to assumed restricted stock units was calculated based on the closing price of our common stock on 
November 30, 2011, net of the portion of the fair value attributable to future vesting requirements. Consideration related to 
assumed stock options was calculated based on the fair value of the new Windstream stock options issued as of November 30, 
2011, net of the portion of the fair value attributable to future vesting requirements. The fair value of these stock option awards 
was calculated using the Hull-White II Lattice model based on assumptions determined as of November 30, 2011. The amount 
allocated to unearned compensation cost for awards subject to future service requirements was calculated based on the fair 
value of such awards at the acquisition date and will be recognized as compensation cost over the remaining future service 
period.

The purchase price allocations for the Acquired Companies have been completed. Pro forma financial results related to the 
acquisitions of the Acquired Companies excluding PAETEC have not been included because we do not consider these 
acquisitions to be significant individually or in the aggregate.

4. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired through 
various business combinations. The cost of acquired entities at the date of the acquisition is allocated to identifiable assets, and 
the excess of the total purchase price over the amounts assigned to identifiable assets has been recorded as goodwill.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill were as follows:

(Millions)   
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 3,671.2
Acquisition of Hosted Solutions 3.9
Acquisition of Q-Comm 12.5
Acquisition of PAETEC 614.1
Balance at December 31, 2011 4,301.7
Acquisition of PAETEC (a) 39.2
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 4,340.9

(a) Adjustments to the carrying value of goodwill were attributable to adjustments in the fair values of assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed in the acquisition, as previously discussed in Note 3.
 

As of January 1, 2012, we completed our annual impairment review of goodwill in accordance with authoritative guidance and 
determined that no write-down in carrying value was required. As discussed in Note 2, effective January 1, 2012, we have 
determined that we have one reporting unit to test for impairment. We assess goodwill impairment by evaluating the carrying 
value of shareholder’s equity against the current fair market value of outstanding equity, which is determined to be equal to our 
current market capitalization plus a control premium of 20.0 percent. This premium is estimated through a review of recent 
market observable transactions involving telecommunication companies.
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Intangible assets were as follows at December 31:

  2012 2011

(Millions)
Gross
Cost

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Value

Gross
Cost

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Value

Franchise rights $ 1,285.1 $ (157.6) $ 1,127.5 $ 1,285.1 $ (114.8) $ 1,170.3
Customer lists (a) 1,914.0 (747.6) 1,166.4 1,939.0 (464.2) 1,474.8
Cable franchise rights 39.8 (25.9) 13.9 39.8 (24.7) 15.1
Other (a) 37.9 (34.4) 3.5 44.9 (19.8) 25.1
Balance $ 3,276.8 $ (965.5) $ 2,311.3 $ 3,308.8 $ (623.5) $ 2,685.3

 
(a) Changes in the gross cost of intangible assets were associated with the acquisition of PAETEC as previously discussed 

in Note 3.

Intangible asset amortization methodology and useful lives were as follows as of December 31, 2012:

Intangible Assets   Amortization Methodology   Estimated Useful Life
Franchise rights   straight-line   30 years
Customer lists   sum of years digits   9 - 15 years
Cable franchise rights   straight-line   15 years
Other   straight-line   1 - 3 years

Amortization expense for intangible assets subject to amortization was $342.0 million, $220.6 million and $154.1 million in 
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Amortization expense for intangible assets subject to amortization is estimated to be $291.2 
million, $256.2 million, $223.1 million, $185.0 million and $157.2 million in 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively.
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Long-term debt and capital lease obligations were as follows at December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011
Issued by Windstream Corporation:

Senior secured credit facility, Tranche A2 – variable rates, due July 17, 2013 $ 19.5 $ 172.3
Senior secured credit facility, Tranche A3 – variable rates, due December 30, 2016 408.8 —
Senior secured credit facility, Tranche A4 – variable rates, due August 8, 2017 292.5 —
Senior secured credit facility, Tranche B – variable rates, due July 17, 2013 280.9 283.8
Senior secured credit facility, Tranche B2 – variable rates, due December 17, 2015 1,042.9 1,053.7
Senior secured credit facility, Tranche B3 – variable rates, due August 8, 2019 597.0 —
Senior secured credit facility, Revolving line of credit – variable rates, due December
17, 2015 — 920.0
Debentures and notes, without collateral:

2013 Notes – 8.125%, due August 1, 2013 800.0 800.0
2017 Notes – 7.875%, due November 1, 2017 1,100.0 1,100.0
2018 Notes – 8.125%, due September 1, 2018 400.0 400.0
2019 Notes – 7.000%, due March 15, 2019 500.0 500.0
2020 Notes – 7.750%, due October 15, 2020 700.0 700.0
2021 Notes – 7.750%, due October 1, 2021 450.0 450.0
2022 Notes – 7.500%, due June 1, 2022 500.0 500.0
2023 Notes – 7.500%, due April 1, 2023 600.0 600.0

Issued by subsidiaries of the Company:
Windstream Holdings of the Midwest, Inc. – 6.75%, due April 1, 2028 100.0 100.0
Cinergy Communications Company – 6.58%, due January 1, 2022 2.1 2.2
PAETEC 2017 Notes – 8.875%, due June 30, 2017 650.0 650.0
Debentures and notes, without collateral:

Windstream Georgia Communications LLC – 6.50%, due November 15, 2013 10.0 20.0
PAETEC 2015 Notes – 9.500%, due July 15, 2015 — 300.0
PAETEC 2018 Notes – 9.875%, due December 1, 2018 450.0 450.0

Capital lease obligations 30.7 51.2
Premium on long-term debt, net 62.1 97.2

8,996.5 9,150.4
Less current maturities (881.6) (213.7)

Total long-term debt and capital leases $ 8,114.9 $ 8,936.7
Weighted average interest rate 7.0% 7.5%
Weighted maturity 5.4 years 6.0 years

 
Senior Secured Credit Facilities

Effective August 8, 2012, we incurred new borrowings of $300.0 million of Tranche A4 senior secured credit facilities due 
August 8, 2017 and $600.0 million of Tranche B3 senior secured credit facilities due August 8, 2019. The additional term loan 
proceeds were used to repay our revolver borrowings and for general corporate purposes, thereby creating sufficient liquidity to 
repay the 2013 debt maturities. Debt issuance costs associated with the new borrowings were $16.6 million, which were 
recorded in other assets on the balance sheet and will be amortized into interest expense over the life of the borrowings.

Effective February 23, 2012, we amended and restated $150.4 million of the Tranche A2 senior secured credit facilities 
outstanding to Tranche A3 and extended the maturity to December 30, 2016. In addition, we incurred new borrowings of 
$280.0 million of Tranche A3 senior secured credit facilities, which will also be due December 30, 2016. Debt issuance costs 
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associated with the new borrowings were $1.8 million and were recorded in other assets on the balance sheet and will be 
amortized into interest expense over the life of the borrowings.

Revolving line of credit - We borrowed $730.0 million under the revolving line of credit in our senior secured credit facility 
and later repaid $1,650.0 million during 2012. On March 18, 2011, we increased the capacity under our senior secured 
revolving credit facility from $750.0 million to $1,250.0 million. Letters of credit are deducted in determining the total amount 
available for borrowing under the revolving line of credit. Accordingly, the total amount outstanding under the letters of credit 
and the indebtedness incurred under the revolving line of credit may not exceed $1,250.0 million. Considering letters of credit 
of $15.7 million, the amount available for borrowing under the revolving line of credit was $1,234.3 million at December 31, 
2012.

The variable interest rate on our revolving line of credit ranged from 2.47 percent to 4.50 percent, and the weighted average 
rate on amounts outstanding was 2.53 percent during 2012, as compared to variable interest rates during 2011 which ranged 
from 1.52 percent to 4.50 percent with a weighted average rate on amounts outstanding of 2.54 percent. All $1,250.0 million 
available under the revolving line of credit will expire December 17, 2015.

Debentures and notes, without collateral

2013 Notes - The 8.125 percent Senior Notes, issued in July 2006 in the aggregate principal amount of $800.0 million, are due 
August 1, 2013 (the "2013 Notes"). Interest on the notes is payable semi-annually. 

2017 Notes - The 7.875 percent Senior Notes, issued in September 2009 at an aggregate principal amount of $1,100.0 million, 
are due November 1, 2017 (the "2017 Notes"). Interest is payable semi-annually.  

2018 Notes - On July 19, 2010, we issued $400.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 8.125 percent senior unsecured 
notes due September 1, 2018 at an issue price of 99.248 percent to yield 8.25 percent. Proceeds from the issuance were used to 
repay borrowings against our line of credit, which together with cash on hand, was used to pay the cash portion of the Iowa 
Telecom and NuVox purchase prices and to repay the outstanding debt of these businesses. 

2019 Notes - The 7.000 percent Senior Notes, issued in February 2007 at an aggregate principal amount of $500.0 million, are 
due March 15, 2019 (the "2019 Notes"). Interest is payable semi-annually.   

2020 Notes - On January 24, 2011, we completed the private placement of an additional $200.0 million in aggregate principal 
amount of 7.75 percent senior unsecured notes due October 15, 2020 at 103.000 percent to yield 7.233 percent (the "Additional 
2020 Notes"). Proceeds from the private placement were used to retire the 7.750 Senior Notes due February 15, 2015 (the 
"Valor Notes").

On October 6, 2010, we completed the private placement of $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.750 percent 
senior unsecured notes due October 15, 2020 at par to yield 7.75 percent. Proceeds from the private placement totaled $491.3 
million, excluding debt issuance costs, and were used, together with cash on hand, to finance the acquisition of Q-Comm. 

2021 Notes - On March 28, 2011, we completed the private placement of $450.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.750 
percent senior unsecured notes due October 1, 2021, at an issue price of 99.116 percent to yield 7.875 percent (the "2021 
Notes"). Proceeds from the private placement were used to purchase for cash a portion of our outstanding 2016 Notes, 
including any accrued and unpaid interest on the tendered 2016 Notes, together with related fees and expenses. Interest is 
payable semi-annually.  

2022 Notes - On November 22, 2011, we completed the private placement of $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 
7.500 percent senior unsecured notes due June 1, 2022 at par to yield 7.500 percent (the "2022 Notes"). Proceeds from the 
private placement were used to redeem the approximately $201.5 million outstanding of our 2016 Notes at a redemption price 
payable in cash that is equal to $1,043 per $1,000 aggregate principal amount. Interest is payable semi-annually.  

2023 Notes - On March 16, 2011, we completed the private placement of $600.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.500 
percent senior unsecured notes due April 1, 2023, at par to yield 7.500 percent (the "2023 Notes"). Proceeds from the private 
placement were used to purchase for cash a portion of our outstanding 2016 Notes, including any accrued and unpaid interest 
on the tendered 2016 Notes, together with related fees and expenses. Interest is payable semi-annually.  
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Notes Issued by Subsidiaries

Windstream Holdings of the Midwest, Inc. - Debt held by Windstream Holdings of the Midwest, Inc., a subsidiary, is secured 
solely by the assets of the subsidiary.

PAETEC 2015 Notes - In connection with our acquisition of PAETEC on November 30, 2011, we assumed the 9.500 percent 
notes due July 15, 2015 ("PAETEC 2015 Notes") with an aggregate principal amount of $300.0 million. Interest is payable 
semi-annually.  

On January 3, 2012, we retired $150.0 million of the outstanding PAETEC 2015 Notes, in relation to our call for redemption 
announced on December 2, 2011. On February 21, 2012, we retired the remaining $150.0 million outstanding of the PAETEC 
2015 Notes, in relation to our call for redemption announced on January 20, 2012. We paid total consideration of $1,048 per 
$1,000 aggregate principal amount of PAETEC 2015 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the redemption 
date. The redemption was made using borrowings on our revolving line of credit.  

PAETEC 2017 Notes - In connection with our acquisition of PAETEC on November 30, 2011, we assumed the 8.875 percent 
notes due June 30, 2017 ("PAETEC 2017 Notes") with an aggregate principal amount of $650.0 million. Interest is payable 
semi-annually.  

PAETEC 2018 Notes - In connection with our acquisition of PAETEC on November 30, 2011, we assumed the 9.875 percent 
notes due December 1, 2018 ("PAETEC 2018 Notes") with an aggregate principal amount of $450.0 million. Interest is payable 
semi-annually.  

We may call certain debentures and notes at various premiums on early redemption. These debentures and notes are the 2018 
Notes, 2019 Notes, 2020 Notes, 2021 Notes, 2022 Notes, 2023 Notes, the PAETEC 2017 Notes and the PAETEC 2018 Notes. 
Additionally, we may call debt held by Windstream Holdings of the Midwest, Inc. at various premiums on early redemption.

Premium on long-term debt, net of discounts

The premium on long-term debt, net of discounts is primarily due to the debt issuance premium recorded on the debt acquired 
in the PAETEC acquisition, partially offset by the net discount recorded on debt discussed above. The premium and discount 
balances are amortized over the life of the debt instrument.

Debt Compliance

The terms of the credit facility and indentures include customary covenants that, among other things, require us to maintain 
certain financial ratios and restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness. These financial ratios include a maximum 
leverage ratio of 4.5 to 1.0 and a minimum interest coverage ratio of 2.75 to 1.0. In addition, the covenants include restrictions 
on dividend and certain other types of payments. The terms of the indentures assumed in connection with the acquisition of 
PAETEC include restrictions on the ability of the subsidiary to incur additional indebtedness, including a maximum leverage 
ratio, with the most restrictive being 4.75 to 1.0. As of December 31, 2012, we were in compliance with all of our covenants.

On August 11, 2011, in connection with our acquisition of PAETEC, we amended our senior secured credit agreement to, 
among other things, (i) permit the issuance of bridge loans, (ii) permit the issuance and repayment of escrow notes, (iii) waive 
guaranty and security requirements with regard to PAETEC and its subsidiaries, (iv) delete the capital expenditures covenant 
and (v) waive any breach due to the change of control provisions under PAETEC's outstanding notes. In addition, we amended 
the security agreement to, among other things, waive the obligation to grant security on accounts relating to escrow notes and 
the proceeds of notes held in such accounts. 

In addition, certain of our debt agreements contain various covenants and restrictions specific to the subsidiary that is the legal 
counterparty to the agreement. Under our long-term debt agreements, acceleration of principal payments would occur upon 
payment default, violation of debt covenants not cured within 30 days, a change in control including a person or group 
obtaining 50 percent or more of our outstanding voting stock, or breach of certain other conditions set forth in the borrowing 
agreements. We were in compliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2012.

Maturities for debt outstanding as of December 31, 2012 for each of the twelve month periods ending December 31, 2013, 
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 are $866.1 million, $85.1 million, $92.6 million, $350.8 million and $1,964.6 million, respectively.
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5. Long-term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations, Continued:

Gain (Loss) on Extinguishment of Debt

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, we retired all $300.0 million of the outstanding PAETEC 2015 Notes. 
The PAETEC 2015 Notes were purchased using borrowings on our revolving line of credit. The retirements were accounted for 
under the extinguishment method, and as a result we recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of $1.9 million during the 
twelve months ended December 31, 2012.

During 2011, we purchased all $1,746.0 million of our 2016 Notes and all $400.0 million of our Valor Notes. We financed these 
transactions with proceeds from the issuance of the 2020 Notes, the 2021 Notes, the 2023 Notes and borrowings from our 
revolving line of credit. These transactions allowed us to extend our existing debt maturities and lower our interest rates. The 
retirements were accounted for under the extinguishment method, and as a result we recognized a loss on extinguishment of 
debt of $136.1 million during 2011.

The gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt is shown as follows for the twelve months ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011
2015 PAETEC Notes:

Premium on early redemption $ (14.3) $ —
Unamortized premium on original issuance 16.2 —

Gain on early extinguishment for PAETEC 2015 Notes 1.9 —
2016 Notes:

Premium on early redemption — (101.2)
Unamortized discount on original issuance — (26.6)
Third-party fees for early redemption — (3.0)
Unamortized debt issuance costs on original issuance — (1.1)

Loss on early extinguishment for 2016 Notes — (131.9)
Valor Notes:

Premium on early redemption — (10.3)
Third-party fees for early redemption — (0.4)
Unamortized premium on original issuance — 6.5

Loss on early extinguishment for Valor Notes — (4.2)
Total gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt $ 1.9 $ (136.1)

Interest Expense

Interest expense was as follows for the years ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Interest expense related to long-term debt (a) $ 576.4 $ 500.0 $ 466.1
Impacts of interest rate swaps 56.4 64.8 57.2
Interest on capital leases and other 3.2 0.3 0.5
Less capitalized interest expense (10.9) (6.8) (2.1)
Total interest expense $ 625.1 $ 558.3 $ 521.7

(a) We recognized as interest expense in the accompanying consolidated income statements $1.8 million in arrangement 
and other fees related to the increase in the revolver capacity agreements and amendment and restatement of our senior 
secured credit facility in 2010, respectively.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk inherent in our variable rate senior secured credit facility, we are party to four identical 
pay fixed, receive variable interest rate swap agreements whose notional value totaled $943.8 million at December 31, 2012 
(see Note 2).
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6. Fair Value Measurements:

Fair value of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities is defined as an exit price, representing the amount that would be 
received to sell an asset or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. Authoritative guidance 
defines the following three tier hierarchy for assessing the inputs used in fair value measurements:

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 – Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 3 – Unobservable inputs

The highest priority is given to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 
measurement) and the lowest priority is given to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurement). Assets and liabilities are classified 
in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Our assessment of the 
significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the valuation of fair value 
assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.

Our non-financial assets and liabilities, including property, plant and equipment, goodwill, intangible assets and asset 
retirement obligations, are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. No event occurred during the year ended 
December 31, 2012 requiring these non-financial assets and liabilities to be subsequently recognized at fair value.

Our financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, income tax 
receivable, accounts payable, long-term debt, capital lease obligations and interest rate swaps. The carrying amount of cash, 
restricted cash, accounts receivable, income tax receivable and accounts payable was estimated by management to approximate 
fair value due to the relatively short period of time to maturity for those instruments. Cash equivalents, long-term debt and 
interest rate swaps are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The fair values of our cash equivalents, interest rate swaps, and long-term debt were determined using the following inputs at 
December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011
Level 1 measurements:

Cash equivalents (a) $ — $ 153.1
Long-term debt, including current maturities (b) $ 6,140.5 $ 5,821.4

Level 2 measurements:
Interest rate swaps (c) (See Note 2) $ (120.2) $ (119.2)
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, including current maturities (b) $ 3,304.2 $ 3,567.4

 
(a) Recognized at fair value in cash and cash equivalents on the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 and 

2011, respectively.

(b) Recognized at carrying value of $8,996.5 million and $9,150.4 million in long-term debt, including current maturities 
and capital lease obligations, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.

(c) Recognized at fair value in current portion of interest rate swaps and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet 
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Our cash equivalents are primarily highly liquid, actively traded money market funds with next day access. 

The fair values of our interest rate swaps were determined based on the present value of expected future cash flows using 
observable, quoted LIBOR swap rates for the full term of the swaps. We also incorporate credit valuation adjustments to 
appropriately reflect both our own non-performance risk and non-performance risk of the respective counterparties. As of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair values of our interest rate swaps were reduced by $16.1 million and $6.9 million, 
respectively, to reflect non-performance risk. 
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6. Fair Value Measurements, Continued:

The fair value of the corporate bonds was calculated based on quoted market prices of the specific issuances in an active market 
when available. The fair values of our other debt were estimated based on appropriate market interest rates being applied to this 
debt. In calculating the fair market value of the Windstream Holdings of the Midwest, Inc., an appropriate market price for the 
same or similar instruments in an active market is used considering credit quality, non-performance risk and maturity of the 
instrument.

7. Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

We declared and accrued cash dividends of $148.9 million, $148.0 million and $126.5 million during the fourth quarters of 
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, which were subsequently paid in January of the following year.

On November 30, 2011, we issued 70.0 million shares of our common stock and assumed stock awards for a total transaction 
value of $842.0 million, based on the closing price of our stock on November 30, 2011, and the fair value of the equity awards 
assumed, as part of the consideration paid to acquire PAETEC (see Note 3). Also as part of this transaction, we assumed 
$1,591.3 million in long-term debt net of cash acquired, which includes a net premium of $113.9 million based on the fair value 
of the debt on November 30, 2011 and bank debt of $99.5 million that was repaid on December 1, 2011.

On February 28, 2011, we contributed 4.9 million shares of our common stock to our pension plan. At the time of this 
contribution, these shares had an appraised value, as determined by a third-party valuation firm, of approximately $60.6 
million. On September 21, 2011, we contributed 5.9 million shares of our common stock to our pension plan to meet our 
remaining 2011 and expected 2012 obligation. At the time of the contribution, these shares had an appraised value, as 
determined by an unaffiliated third party valuation firm, of approximately $75.2 million.  

On December 2, 2010, we issued 20.6 million shares of our common stock with a fair market value of $271.6 million as part of 
the consideration paid to acquire Q-Comm (see Note 3). Also as part of this transaction, we assumed $266.2 million in long-
term debt, including related interest rate swap liabilities, which was subsequently repaid.

On June 1, 2010, we issued 26.7 million shares of our common stock with a fair market value of $280.8 million as part of the 
consideration paid to acquire Iowa Telecom (see Note 3). Also as part of this transaction, we assumed $628.9 million in long-
term debt, including related interest rate swap liabilities, which was subsequently repaid.

On February 8, 2010, we issued 18.7 million shares of our common stock with a fair market value of $185.0 million as part of 
the consideration paid to acquire NuVox (see Note 3). Also as part of this transaction, we assumed $281.0 million in long-term 
debt and related liabilities on existing swap agreements of NuVox, which was subsequently repaid.
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8. Employee Benefit Plans and Postretirement Benefits:

We maintain a non-contributory qualified defined benefit pension plan. Future benefit accruals for all eligible nonbargaining 
employees covered by the pension plan ceased as of December 31, 2005 (December 31, 2010 for employees who had attained 
age 40 with two years of service as of December 31, 2005). We also maintain supplemental executive retirement plans that 
provide unfunded, non-qualified supplemental retirement benefits to a select group of management employees. Additionally, 
we provide postretirement healthcare and life insurance benefits for eligible employees. Employees share in, and we fund, the 
costs of these plans as benefits are paid.

The components of pension benefit expense (including provision for executive retirement agreements) and postretirement 
benefits income were as follows for the years ended December 31:

  Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
(Millions) 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Benefits earned during the year $ 10.0 $ 9.3 $ 15.7 $ 0.1 $ 0.2 $ 0.2
Interest cost on benefit obligation 58.0 60.7 60.6 1.8 3.4 5.2
Net actuarial loss 72.5 167.9 38.0 — — —
Amortization of net actuarial loss — — — 2.3 1.0 0.6
Amortization of prior service credit (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) (11.8) (10.7) (8.3)
Plan curtailment — — — (9.6) (14.7) —
Expected return on plan assets (73.0) (71.0) (60.1) — — —
Net periodic benefit expense (income) $ 67.4 $ 166.8 $ 54.1 $ (17.2) $ (20.8) $ (2.3)

During 2012, we made changes to our postretirement medical plan, eliminating medical and prescription drug subsidies for 
certain active and retired participants effective January 1, 2014.  As a result, we remeasured the plan and recognized a 
curtailment gain of $9.6 million, of which $7.4 million was recognized in cost of services expenses and $2.2 million was 
recognized in selling, general, and administrative expenses.

We recognize actuarial gains and losses for pension benefits as a component of net periodic benefit expense (income) in the 
year in which the gains and losses occur. In determining our annual postretirement benefits cost, we amortize unrecognized 
actuarial gains and losses exceeding 10.0 percent of the projected benefit obligation over the lesser of 10 years or the average 
remaining service life of active employees. We do not amortize unrecognized actuarial gains and losses below the 10.0 percent 
corridor.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
____

F-61

8. Employee Benefit Plans and Postretirement Benefits, Continued:

A summary of plan assets, projected benefit obligation and funded status of the plans (including executive retirement 
agreements) were as follows at December 31:

  Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
(Millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 948.9 $ 870.5 $ 0.2 $ 0.3
Actual return on plan assets 120.7 13.8 — —
Employer contributions 0.7 136.5 3.7 6.9
Participant contributions — — 1.8 1.7
Benefits paid (a) (71.3) (71.9) (5.5) (9.1)
Medicare Part D reimbursement — — — 0.4
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 999.0 $ 948.9 $ 0.2 $ 0.2
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 1,282.9 $ 1,164.0 $ 45.9 $ 100.0
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 58.0 60.7 1.8 3.4
Service costs 10.0 9.3 0.1 0.2
Participant contributions — — 1.8 1.7
Plan amendments (b) (c) — — (1.4) (37.6)
Plan curtailment (d) — — — (13.8)
Actuarial loss (gain) 120.5 120.8 (0.3) 0.7
Benefits paid (a) (71.3) (71.9) (5.5) (9.1)
Medicare Part D reimbursement — — — 0.4
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 1,400.1 $ 1,282.9 $ 42.4 $ 45.9
Plan assets less than projected benefit obligation recognized
in the consolidated balance sheet:
Current liabilities $ (20.7) $ (0.7) $ (3.1) $ (5.1)
Noncurrent liabilities (380.4) (333.3) (39.1) (40.6)
Funded status recognized in the consolidated balance sheets $ (401.1) $ (334.0) $ (42.2) $ (45.7)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss):
Net actuarial loss $ — $ — $ (14.1) $ (16.6)
Prior service credits 0.7 0.9 84.9 104.8
Net amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income $ 0.7 $ 0.9 $ 70.8 $ 88.2

 
(a) During both 2012 and 2011, pension benefits paid from Windstream's assets totaled $0.7 million respectively. All 

postretirement benefits in both years were paid from Windstream's assets.

(b) During 2012, we made changes to our postretirement medical plan, eliminating medical and prescription drug 
subsidies for certain active and retired participants effective January 1, 2014. In remeasuring the postretirement 
obligations to reflect this amendment, updated assumptions as of June 29, 2012 were used. During the remeasurement, 
we updated key assumptions, including the discount rate, which decreased from 3.97 percent to 3.80 percent. The 
discount rate was selected based on a hypothetical yield curve incorporating high-quality corporate bonds with various 
maturities adjusted to reflect the timing of our expected benefit payments.

(c) During 2011, we amended certain of our postretirement medical plans to reduce the subsidies offered for medical and 
prescription drug insurance premiums. The change will be made in two waves. Effective January 1, 2012, the available 
subsidy will be reduced to one-half of the current subsidies. Effective January 1, 2013, the subsidy will be further 
reduced to either $80 per month for participants who are not eligible for Medicare, or $17 per month for Medicare 
eligible participants. These amendments were accounted for as plan amendments which reduced our benefit obligation 
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8. Employee Benefit Plans and Postretirement Benefits, Continued:

as of June 1, 2011 by $38.3 million, with a corresponding decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), 
net of tax. As a result, the revised benefit obligation was $59.7 million as of June 1, 2011. The reduction in the 
obligation is being amortized to postretirement benefits expense over the average remaining service life of active 
employees beginning June 1, 2011. In remeasuring the postretirement obligations to reflect these amendments, 
updated assumptions as of June 1, 2011 were used. Specifically, the discount rate was decreased from 5.25 percent to 
5.20 percent. 

(d) During 2011, we communicated the elimination of retiree basic life insurance benefits for certain participants of our 
plans effective January 1, 2012. For accounting purposes, this change eliminated all retiree basic life insurance 
benefits provided within one of the accounting plans and triggered a negative plan amendment and a curtailment 
eliminating retiree basic life insurance benefit obligations for all participants of the accounting plan. As a result, our 
postretirement benefit obligation was reduced by $13.8 million and the recognition of associated prior service credits 
of $4.9 million and actuarial losses of $4.0 million was accelerated. In total, we recorded a $14.7 million gain during 
the third quarter of 2011, of which $11.2 million was recorded in cost of services and $3.5 million in selling, general 
and administrative expenses. Due to the changes discussed previously, the total accumulated benefit obligation 
decreased by $13.8 million. In remeasuring the postretirement obligations to reflect these changes, updated 
assumptions as of August 1, 2011 were used. Specifically, the discount rate was decreased from 5.20 percent to 4.86 
percent. The discount rate is selected based on a hypothetical yield curve that incorporates high-quality corporate 
bonds with various maturities adjusted to reflect expected post retirement benefit payments.

Estimated amounts to be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into net periodic benefit expense 
(income) in 2013, including executive retirement agreements, are as follows:

(Millions)
Pension
Benefits

Postretirement
Benefits

Net actuarial loss $ — $ 2.7
Prior service credits $ (0.1) $ (11.3)

The accumulated benefit obligation of our pension plan and executive retirement agreements, was $1,375.8 million, $1,243.6 
million and $1,128.5 million at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Assumptions – Actuarial assumptions used to calculate pension and postretirement benefits expense (income) were as follows 
for the years ended December 31:

  Pension Benefits  Postretirement Benefits  
(Millions) 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 4.64% 5.31% 5.89% 4.58% 5.11% 5.79%
Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of compensation increase 4.17% 3.44% 3.44% —% —% —%

Actuarial assumptions used to calculate the projected benefit obligations were as follows at December 31:

  Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
  2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 3.85% 4.64% 3.87% 4.59%
Expected return on plan assets 7.00% 8.00% 7.00% 8.00%
Rate of compensation increase 2.67% 4.17% — —%

In developing the expected long-term rate of return assumption, we considered the historical rate of return on plan assets of 
9.79 percent since 1975 including periods in which it was sponsored by Alltel, as well as input from our investment advisors. 
Projected returns by such advisors were based on broad equity and bond indices. The expected long-term rate of return on 
qualified pension plan assets includes a targeted asset allocation of 25.0 percent to equities, 57.0 percent to fixed income 
securities, and 18.0 percent to alternative investments, with an aggregate expected long-term rate of return of approximately 7.0 
percent, which is 1.0 percent lower than our prior expected long-term rate of return given our higher allocation to fixed income 
securities and lower allocation to equities.
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8. Employee Benefit Plans and Postretirement Benefits, Continued:

Information regarding the healthcare cost trend rate was as follows for the years ended December 31:

2012 2011
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next year 9.00% 9.00%
Rate that the cost trend ultimately declines to 5.00% 5.00%
Year that the rate reaches the terminal rate 2019 2017

For the year ended December 31, 2012, a one percent increase in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate would increase the 
postretirement benefit cost by approximately $0.2 million, while a one percent decrease in the rate would reduce the 
postretirement benefit cost by approximately $0.1 million. As of December 31, 2012, a one percent increase in the assumed 
healthcare cost trend rate would increase the postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $3.0 million, while a one 
percent decrease in the rate would reduce the postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $2.3 million.

Plan Assets – Our pension plan assets are allocated to asset categories based on the specific strategy employed by the asset’s 
investment manager. The asset allocation for our pension plan by asset category was as follows for the years ended December 
31:

  Target Allocation Percentage of Plan Assets
Asset Category 2013 2012 2011
Equity securities 18.6%    -    30.6% 44.2% 50.8%
Fixed income securities 43.2%    -    70.2% 33.8% 39.2%
Alternative investments 10.8%    -    20.8% 4.4% 3.7%
Money market and other short-term interest bearing securities 3.0%    -      3.0% 17.6% 6.3%
  100.0% 100.0%

In 2012, we engaged a third party to evaluate the allocation of the total assets in the pension trust, taking into consideration the 
pension liabilities and funded status of the pension plan. Assets are managed utilizing a Liability Driven Investment ("LDI") 
approach, meaning that assets are managed within a risk management framework which addresses the need to generate 
incremental returns in the context of an appropriate level of risk, based on plan liability profiles and changes in funded status. 
The return objectives are to satisfy funding obligations when and as prescribed by law and to keep pace with the growth of the 
pension plan liabilities. Given the long time horizon for paying out benefits and our strong financial condition, the pension plan 
can accept an average level of risk relative to other similar plans. The liquidity needs of the pension plan are manageable given 
that lump sum payments are not available to most participants. 

Equity securities include stocks of both large and small capitalization domestic and international companies. Equity securities 
are expected to provide both diversification and long-term real asset growth. Domestic equities may include modest holdings of 
non-U.S. equities, purchased by domestic equity managers as long as they are traded in the U.S and denominated in U.S. 
dollars and both active and passive (index) investment strategies. International equities provide a broad exposure to return 
opportunities and investment characteristics associated with the world equity markets outside the U.S. The pension plan’s 
equity holdings are diversified by investment style, market capitalization, market or region, and economic sector.

Fixed income securities include securities issued by the U.S. Government and other governmental agencies, asset-backed 
securities and debt securities issued by domestic and international entities. These securities are expected to provide 
diversification benefits, and are expected to reduce asset volatility and pension funding volatility, and a stable source of 
income.

Alternative investments may include hedge funds and hedge fund of funds, commodities, both private and public real estate and 
private equity investments. In addition to attractive diversification benefits, the alternative investments are expected to provide 
both income and capital appreciation.

Investments in money market and other short-term interest bearing securities are maintained to provide liquidity for benefit 
payments with protection of principal being the primary objective.
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8. Employee Benefit Plans and Postretirement Benefits, Continued:

At its meeting on February 9, 2011, the board of directors approved a measure to allow the plan to make investments in our 
common stock. Previously, the plan prohibited investment in our common stock. This change allowed us to make 2011 pension 
contributions of $135.8 million in our common stock. We made no contribution in 2012 and we expect to make a pension 
contribution in 2013 of approximately $20.0 million, which we intend to make in Windstream stock. 

The fair values of our pension plan assets were determined using the following inputs as of December 31, 2012:

Quoted Price in
Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(a)
Significant

Unobservable
Inputs

(Millions)
Fair

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Domestic equities (b) $ 273.5 $ 272.8 $ 0.6 $ 0.1
International equities (b) 165.7 84.0 81.7 —
Agency backed bonds (b) 1.6 — 1.6 —
Asset backed securities (b) 0.7 — 0.7 —
Corporate bonds (b) 90.2 — 90.2 —
Government and municipal bonds (b) 6.9 — 6.9 —
Mortgage backed securities (b) 9.2 — 9.2 —
Pooled and investment funds (c) 184.2 — 184.2 —
Derivatives (f) (0.1) — (0.1) —
Treasuries (b) 125.5 — 125.5 —
Real estate and private equity funds (d) 41.1 — — 41.1
Cash equivalents and other 101.3 2.3 99.0 —
Guaranteed annuity contract (e) 2.3 — — 2.3

Total investments $ 1,002.1 $ 359.1 $ 599.5 $ 43.5
Dividends and interest receivable 3.4
Pending trades (6.5)

Total plan assets $ 999.0    
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8. Employee Benefit Plans and Postretirement Benefits, Continued:

The fair values of our pension plan assets were determined using the following inputs as of December 31, 2011:

Quoted Price in
Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(a)
Significant

Unobservable
Inputs

(Millions)
Fair

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Domestic equities (b) $ 346.4 $ 345.4 $ 0.9 $ 0.1
International equities (b) 142.9 75.5 67.4 —
Agency backed bonds (b) 26.6 — 26.6 —
Asset backed securities (b) 0.8 — 0.8 —
Corporate bonds (b) 213.2 — 213.2 —
Government and municipal bonds (b) 35.0 — 35.0 —
Mortgage backed securities (b) 3.5 — 3.5 —
Pooled funds (c) 25.0 — 25.0 —
Derivatives (f) (0.6) 0.1 (0.7) —
Treasuries (b) 43.8 — 43.8 —
Real estate and private equity funds (d) 33.4 — — 33.4
Cash equivalents and other 71.7 1.2 70.5 —
Guaranteed annuity contract (e) 2.8 — — 2.8

Total investments $ 944.5 $ 422.2 $ 486.0 $ 36.3
Dividends and interest receivable 7.5
Pending trades (3.1)

Total plan assets $ 948.9    

(a) Changes in the level 3 investments for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are reflected in the 
table below. 

(b) Valued at their quoted market price on the last day of the year. Securities traded in markets that are not considered 
active are valued based on quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotes or alternative pricing sources with reasonable 
levels of price transparency.

(c) Valued by reference to the funds’ underlying assets and are based on the unit values as reported by the fund manager 
on the last business day of the year. The underlying assets are mostly comprised of publicly traded equity securities 
and fixed income securities. These securities are valued at the official closing price of, or the last reported sale prices 
as of the close of business or, in the absence of any sales, at the latest available bid price.

(d) Valued at fair value as determined by the investment managers. Private equity is initially valued by the investment 
managers based upon cost, then adjusted for available market data based upon observations of the trading multiples of 
public companies considered comparable to the private companies being valued. Such market data used to determine 
adjustments to accounts for cash flows and company-specified issues include current operating performance and future 
expectations of the investments, changes in market outlook, and the third-party financing environment. Real estate 
investments are valued either at amounts based upon appraisal reports prepared by independent third-party appraisers 
or at amounts as determined by internal appraisals performed by the investment manager, which has been agreed to by 
an external valuation consultant.

(e) Based on the value of the underlying contracts adjusted to market value, which recognizes that either long-term assets 
would have to be sold before contract maturity or new contributions by other contract holders would have to be 
exchanged for funds being transferred, precluding these contributions from being invested at the current rate of return.

(f) Consisted primarily of swaps valued based on models that reflect the contractual terms of the instruments. 
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8. Employee Benefit Plans and Postretirement Benefits, Continued:

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of pension plan assets that are measured at fair value 
using significant unobservable inputs:

(Millions)
Domestic
equities

Real estate and
private equity

funds

Guaranteed
annuity
contract Total

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 0.2 $ — $ 3.3 $ 3.5
Actual (loss) gain on plan assets still held at reporting 
date (0.1) 2.4 0.2 2.5
Purchases and sales — 31.0 (0.7) 30.3
Transfers in and/or out of level 3 — — — —
Balance at December 31, 2011 0.1 33.4 2.8 36.3
Actual gain on plan assets still held at reporting date — 2.7 0.1 2.8
Purchases and sales — 5.0 (0.6) 4.4
Transfers in and/or out of level 3 — — — —
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 0.1 $ 41.1 $ 2.3 $ 43.5

There have been no significant changes in the methodology used to value investments from prior year. The valuation methods 
used may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. 
Furthermore, although the valuation methods are consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies 
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at 
the reporting date.

Estimated Future Employer Contributions and Benefit Payments – Estimated future employer contributions, benefit payments, 
including executive retirement agreements, are as follows as of December 31, 2012:

(Millions)
Pension
Benefits

Postretirement
Benefits

Expected employer contributions in 2013 $ 20.7 $ 3.1
Expected benefit payments:

2013 $ 75.1 $ 3.1
2014 77.6 2.9
2015 78.6 2.9
2016 79.8 2.9
2017 83.1 2.8
2018-2022 430.2 10.9

The 2013 expected employer contribution for pension benefits consists of $0.7 million necessary to fund the expected benefit 
payments related to the unfunded supplemental executive retirement pension plans and approximately $20.0 million in 
contributions to avoid certain benefit restrictions. During 2011, we contributed 10.8 million shares of our common stock to our 
pension plan to meet our remaining 2011 and expected 2012 obligation. These shares had an appraised value, as determined by 
a third-party valuation firm, of approximately $135.8 million. The pension trust subsequently sold all 10.8 million shares for 
approximately $133.5 million.

Effective January 1, 2011, changes to our Retiree Medical Plan allowed retirees to elect their prescription plan through the 
UnitedHealthCare Medicare Connector. This change will result in savings for us. However, we are no longer eligible for the 
Medicare Part D subsidy. 
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8. Employee Benefit Plans and Postretirement Benefits, Continued:

Employee Savings Plan – We also sponsor an employee savings plan under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, which 
covers substantially all salaried employees and certain bargaining unit employees. Employees may elect to contribute to the 
plan a portion of their eligible pretax compensation up to certain limits as specified by the plans and by the Internal Revenue 
Service. Windstream matches up to a maximum of 4.0 percent of employee pretax contributions for employees contributing at 
least 5.0 percent. Our matching contribution is funded annually. We expect to make the 2012 contribution in Windstream stock, 
whereas the contribution was made in cash prior to 2012. We recorded $17.8 million, $13.7 million and $10.9 million in 2012, 
2011 and 2010, respectively, related to the employee savings plan, which was included in cost of services and selling, general 
and administrative and other expenses in the consolidated statements of income.

9. Share-Based Compensation Plans:

Under the Amended and Restated 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the "Incentive Plan"), we may issue a maximum of 20.0 million 
equity stock awards in the form of restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights or stock options. Restricted 
stock, restricted stock units and stock appreciation rights were limited to 18.5 million of the total awards issuable under the 
Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2012, the Incentive Plan had remaining capacity of 8.4 million awards, of which 6.9 
million were issuable in the form of restricted stock, restricted stock units or stock appreciation rights. As of December 31, 
2012, we had additional remaining capacity of 3.2 million awards from a similar equity incentive plan acquired in the PAETEC 
acquisition. The cost of each award is determined based on the fair value of the shares on the date of grant, and is fully 
expensed over the vesting period.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Activity - During 2012, 2011 and 2010, our Board of Directors approved grants of 
restricted stock and restricted stock units to officers, executives, non-employee directors and certain management employees. 
These grants include the standard annual grants to this employee and director group as a key component of their annual 
incentive compensation plan and one-time grants. On February 8, 2011, a one-time grant totaling 237,989 shares of restricted 
stock was approved to provide a retention incentive to the CEO and select members of management. On August 3, 2010, a one-
time grant totaling 516,075 shares of restricted stock was approved to provide a retention incentive and increase the long-term 
incentive values toward market values for select members of executive management, other than the CEO. In 2011, we began 
issuing performance-based restricted stock units to executive officers rather than performance-based restricted shares. Each 
recipient of the performance-based restricted stock units may vest in a number of shares from zero to 150.0 percent of their 
award based on attainment of certain operating targets, some of which are indexed to the performance of Standard & Poor's 500 
Stock Index, over a three-year period.

As a result of the management restructuring announced on May 31, 2012, 0.6 million shares with a weighted average grant date 
fair value of $7.5 million were forfeited during the year ended December 31, 2012.

The vesting periods and grant date fair value for restricted stock and restricted stock units issued was as follows for the years 
ended December 31:

2012 2011 2010

(Thousands)
Common

Shares
Common

Shares
Common

Shares
Vest ratably over remaining service period, up to four years (a) (b) — 886.3 222.4
Vest ratably over a three-year service period 1,543.7 1,024.0 899.0
Vest variably over a three-year service period 54.7 — —
Vest contingently over a three-year performance period 723.5 522.9 596.9
Vest three years from date of grant, service based 4.0 388.5 651.3
Vest one year from date of grant, service based (c) 51.4 48.6 72.1
Total granted 2,377.3 2,870.3 2,441.7
Grant date fair value (Millions) $ 29.4 $ 36.3 $ 26.2

(a) In conjunction with the acquisition of PAETEC, we granted 886,300 restricted stock units to former PAETEC 
employees to replace outstanding, unvested PAETEC restricted stock units held by these same employees as of 
acquisition date. The vesting provisions of the original grants were retained. Each recipient is entitled to one restricted 
share per restricted stock unit.
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9. Share-Based Compensation Plans, Continued:

(b) In conjunction with the acquisition of Iowa Telecom, we granted 222,400 shares of restricted stock to former Iowa 
Telecom employees to replace outstanding, unvested Iowa Telecom restricted stock shares held by these same 
employees as of acquisition date. The vesting provisions of the original grants were retained, including provisions 
requiring accelerated vesting upon an involuntary termination following a change of control.

(c) Represents restricted stock granted to non-employee directors.

For performance based restricted stock units granted in 2012 the operating targets for the first vesting period were approved by 
the Board of Directors in February 2012. For the performance based restricted stock granted in 2011, the operating targets for 
the first and second vesting period were approved by the Board of Directors in February 2011 and 2012, respectively. For 
performance based restricted stock granted in 2010, the operating targets for the first, second and third vesting period were 
approved by the Board of Directors in February 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. For 2012 and measurement periods prior, 
each of the operating targets were met by the end of their respective measurement periods.

Restricted stock and restricted stock unit activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows: 

(Thousands)
Underlying 
Number of

Shares

Weighted
Average Fair

Value
Non-vested at December 31, 2011 4,951.0 $ 11.57
Granted 2,377.3 $ 12.37
Vested (2,089.8) $ 10.87
Forfeited (964.1) $ 12.07
Non-vested at December 31, 2012 4,274.4 $ 12.24

At December 31, 2012, unrecognized compensation expense totaled $33.3 million and is expected to be recognized over the 
weighted average vesting period of 1.3 years. Unrecognized compensation expense is included in additional paid-in capital in 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of shareholders’ equity. The total fair value of shares vested 
during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $22.7 million, $15.5 million and $14.9 million, respectively. Share-based compensation 
expense recognized for restricted stock and restricted stock units was $25.2 million, $24.0 million and $17.0 million for 2012, 
2011 and 2010, respectively.

Stock Option Activity - In conjunction with the acquisition of PAETEC, we issued 3,933,230 stock options to former PAETEC 
employees to replace outstanding PAETEC stock options held by these same employees as of the acquisition date. The exercise 
price of the options granted was 0.460 shares of the exercise price on the original issuances. All other terms of the original 
options, including the vesting provisions, were retained. The contractual term of the options granted is ten years from the 
original issuance date. Awards generally vest ratably over a three- or four-year service period.
  
The following table summarizes stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2012:

(Thousands)
Number of

Shares 
Underlying 

Options

Weighted
Average
 Exercise

Price

(Years)
Weighted
 Average

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life

(Millions)
Aggregate 
Intrinsic
 Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2011 3,503.3 $ 10.13
Granted — $ —
Exercised (1,137.3) $ 6.04
Canceled (401.4) $ 14.02
Forfeited (135.4) $ 8.73
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 1,829.2 $ 11.93 4.9 $ 1.7
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2012 1,707.9 $ 12.19 4.7 $ 1.6
Exercisable at December 31, 2012 1,627.1 $ 12.36 4.5 $ 1.6
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pretax intrinsic value (the difference between the closing 
sale price of Windstream's common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market on December 31, 2012 and the 
option exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would have been received by the option holders 
if all option holders had exercised their options on December 31, 2012. This amount changes based on the fair market value of 
Windstream's common stock. The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2012 was 
approximately $2.8 million.

Total compensation expense related to stock options granted was approximately $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

The following table summarizes stock option information as of December 31, 2012:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices

(Thousands) 
Number of 

Options

Weighted
Average
 Exercise

Price

(Thousands) 
Number of 

Options

Weighted
Average
 Exercise

Price
$0.00-$4.70 291.3 $ 4.00 283.9 $ 4.03
$4.71-$8.30 439.2 $ 7.26 323.9 $ 6.96
$8.31-$14.00 506.8 $ 10.62 427.4 $ 10.82
$14.01-$29.27 591.9 $ 20.42 591.9 $ 20.42

1,829.2 $ 11.93 1,627.1 $ 12.36

As of December 31, 2012, there was approximately $0.1 million of total unrecognized share-based compensation expense 
related to unvested stock options granted under the Stock Incentive Plans. We expect to recognize the expense over a weighted 
average period of approximately 1.1 years .
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10. Merger, Integration and Restructuring Charges:

We incur a significant amount of costs to complete a merger or acquisition and integrate its operations into our business, which 
are presented as merger and integration expense in our results of operations. These costs include transaction costs, such as 
accounting, legal and broker fees; severance and related costs; IT and network conversion; rebranding; and consulting fees. Our 
recent acquisitions of PAETEC, NuVox, Iowa Telecom, Q-Comm, and Hosted Solutions described in Note 3 drive merger and 
integration costs for the years presented.

Restructuring charges are sometimes incurred as a result of evaluations of our operating structure. Among other things, these 
evaluations explore opportunities for task automation, network efficiency and the balancing of our workforce based on the 
current needs of our customers. Severance, lease exit costs and other related charges are included in restructuring charges.

On May 31, 2012, we announced the review of our management structure to increase the efficiency of decision-making, to 
ensure our management structure is as simple and as responsive to customers as possible and position ourselves for continued 
success. We eliminated approximately 350 management positions as part of the restructuring. The restructuring was completed 
in the third quarter of 2012 resulting in severance related costs of $22.4 million. The changes will result in annualized savings 
of approximately $40.0 million.

The following is a summary of the merger, integration and restructuring charges recorded for the years ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Merger and integration costs

Transaction costs associated with acquisitions $ 7.1 $ 40.7 $ 41.2
Employee related transition costs 20.3 22.3 26.7
Information technology conversion costs 6.1 5.7 4.2
Rebranding, consulting and other costs 31.9 1.1 5.2

Total merger and integration costs 65.4 69.8 77.3
Restructuring charges 27.4 1.3 7.7
Total merger, integration and restructuring charges $ 92.8 $ 71.1 $ 85.0

Merger, integration and restructuring charges decreased net income $58.2 million, $44.1 million and $59.1 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, giving consideration to tax benefits on deductible items.

The following is a summary of the activity related to the liabilities associated with our merger, integration and restructuring 
charges at December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011
Balance, beginning of period $ 12.9 $ 10.5
Merger, integration and restructuring charges 92.8 71.1
Cash outlays during the period (85.4) (68.7)
Balance, end of period $ 20.3 $ 12.9

As of December 31, 2012, we had unpaid merger, integration and restructuring liabilities totaling $20.3 million, which 
consisted of $3.7 million of accrued severance costs primarily associated with the integration of the Acquired Companies, $5.8 
million primarily associated with the restructuring announcement made on May 31, 2012, and $10.8 million related to other 
integration activities. The severance and related employee costs will be paid as positions are eliminated. Each of these 
payments will be funded through operating cash flows.
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11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss): 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) balances, net of tax, were as follows for the years ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Pension and postretirement plans $ 43.9 $ 54.7 $ 38.9
Unrealized holding (losses) gains on interest rate swaps

Designated portion (9.1) (16.6) 3.5
De-designated portion (28.4) (36.2) (66.5)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ 6.4 $ 1.9 $ (24.1)

12. Income Taxes:

Income tax expense was as follows for the years ended December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Current:

Federal $ 7.4 $ (97.8) $ 71.3
State 13.2 23.4 (0.8)

20.6 (74.4) 70.5
Deferred:

Federal 84.5 180.2 104.5
State (4.9) (6.4) 20.6

79.6 173.8 125.1
Income tax expense $ 100.2 $ 99.4 $ 195.6

Deferred income tax expense for all three years primarily resulted from temporary differences between depreciation and 
amortization expense for income tax purposes and depreciation and amortization expense recorded in the consolidated financial 
statements. Goodwill is not amortized for financial statement purposes in accordance with authoritative guidance on goodwill 
and other intangible assets.

Differences between the federal income tax statutory rates and effective income tax rates, which include both federal and state 
income taxes, were as follows for the years ended December 31:

2012 2011 2010
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase (decrease)

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 2.0 2.0 2.5
Adjust deferred taxes for state net operating loss carryforward — 1.9 —
Acquisition costs — (0.5) 1.2
Tax refund interest — (0.5) —
Other items, net 0.3 (0.9) (0.2)

Effective income tax rate 37.3% 37.0% 38.5%
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12. Income Taxes, Continued:

The significant components of the net deferred income tax liability (asset) were as follows at December 31:

(Millions) 2012 2011
Property, plant and equipment $ 1,292.7 $ 1,260.2
Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,345.8 1,395.8
Operating loss carryforward (711.6) (805.5)
Postretirement and other employee benefits (168.8) (144.3)
Unrealized holding loss and interest swaps (27.6) (37.0)
Deferred compensation (6.3) (5.6)
Bad debt (40.9) (57.4)
Deferred debt costs (46.8) (67.9)
Restricted stock (11.1) (16.0)
Other, net (64.5) (70.5)

1,560.9 1,451.8
Valuation allowance 85.9 165.9

Deferred income taxes, net $ 1,646.8 $ 1,617.7
Deferred tax assets $ (1,194.3) $ (1,103.3)
Deferred tax liabilities 2,841.1 2,721.0

Deferred income taxes, net $ 1,646.8 $ 1,617.7

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1,660.0 million and 
$1,925.1 million, respectively, which expire in varying amounts from 2019 through 2031. The loss carryforwards at 
December 31, 2012 were primarily losses acquired in conjunction with our mergers with Valor, NuVox, Iowa Telecom and 
PAETEC. The 2012 decrease is primarily associated with the amount utilized for the year along with final adjustments to the 
federal loss carryover from PAETEC that were recorded with an offset through goodwill. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we 
had state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $2,116.4 million and $2,670.1 million, respectively, which expire 
annually in varying amounts from 2013 through 2031. The loss carryforwards at December 31, 2012 were primarily losses 
acquired in conjunction with our mergers with Valor, CTC, D&E, Lexcom, NuVox, Iowa Telecom, Q-Comm and PAETEC. The 
2012 decrease is primarily associated with final adjustments to the state loss carryover from PAETEC and were recorded with 
an offset through goodwill.  Federal and state tax rules limit the deductibility of loss carryforwards in years following an 
ownership change. As a result of these limitations or the expected lack of sufficient future taxable income of certain entities, we 
believe that it is more likely than not that the benefit from certain federal and state loss carryforwards will not be realized prior 
to their expiration. We establish valuation allowances when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to amounts expected to be 
realized. Therefore, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, we recorded valuation allowances of $85.9 million and $165.9 million, 
respectively, related to federal and state loss carryforwards which are expected to expire and not be utilized. The 2012 decrease 
in the valuation allowance is primarily associated with final adjustments for the acquisition of federal and state net operating 
losses from PAETEC and were recorded with an offset through goodwill. The amount of state tax credit carryforward at 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, was approximately $20.4 million and $20.7 million, respectively, which expire in varying 
amounts from 2014 through 2027. 
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We adopted authoritative guidance for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes on January 1, 2007. A reconciliation of the 
unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

(Millions) 2012 2011 2010
Beginning balance $ 18.8 $ 18.6 $ 4.3

Additions based on PAETEC acquisition — 0.5 —
Additions based on Q-Comm acquisition — 0.6 —
Additions based on D&E acquisition — — 0.4
Additions based on Lexcom acquisition — — 0.2
Additions based on NuVox acquisition — — 1.8
Additions based on tax positions of prior years — — 15.7
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (0.5) — (0.6)
Reduction as a result of a lapse of the applicable statute of
limitations — (0.9) (3.2)

Ending balance $ 18.3 $ 18.8 $ 18.6

We anticipate that $15.7 million in unrecognized tax benefits will be recognized in the next twelve months due to the expiration 
of the statute of limitations. We do not expect this change in unrecognized tax benefits to have a significant impact on our 
results from operations or financial position. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits, if recognized, that would affect the 
effective tax rate is $16.1 million, $16.5 million and $16.6 million (net of indirect benefits) for the years ended December 31, 
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Included in the balance at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, are $0.8 million, $0.7 million and $0.8 million, respectively, of 
gross tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of 
such deductibility. Because of the impact of the deferred tax accounting, other than interest and penalties, the disallowance of 
the shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective tax rate but would accelerate the payment of cash to the 
taxing authority to an earlier period. These unrecognized tax benefits are included in other long-term liabilities in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. With few exceptions, we are no longer subject to 
U.S. federal, state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2009. However, due to acquired net 
operating losses, tax authorities have the ability to adjust those net operating losses related to closed years. We have identified 
Arkansas, California, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Iowa, Kentucky, Nebraska, New York, North Carolina, Pennsylvania, Texas 
and Virginia as "major" state taxing jurisdictions.

We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. During 
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized approximately $0.6 million, $0.8 million and $2.6 million 
in interest and penalties, respectively. Furthermore, we had approximately $3.1 million, $2.6 million and $2.2 million of 
interest and penalties accrued as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
____

F-74

13. Commitments and Contingencies:

Lease Commitments 

Minimum rental commitments for all non-cancellable operating leases, consisting principally of leases for network facilities, 
real estate, office space and office equipment were as follows as of December 31, 2012:
 

Year (Millions)
2013 $ 249.5
2014 164.1
2015 160.7
2016 117.7
2017 60.6
Thereafter 174.6

Total $ 927.2

Rental expense totaled $210.1 million, $95.6 million and $61.4 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Litigation 

On June 22, 2009, a putative class action lawsuit was filed in Kentucky federal district court on behalf of current and former 
customers in Kentucky. The complaint alleged that we overcharged customers because we collected a gross receipts surcharge 
("GRS") in violation of state and federal statutes and tariffs and common law. The court referred state tariff issues to the 
Kentucky Public Service Commission ("Kentucky PSC"). In 2011, the federal court ruled that the GRS was a rate that should 
have been listed in our federal tariffs prior to its collection and that class certification was proper. Based on that ruling, in third 
quarter 2011, we accrued an amount that was not material and that represented the amount of loss estimable and probable at the 
time. On May 4, 2012, the Kentucky PSC issued an order also finding the GRS was a rate that should have been in our local 
retail tariff before being assessed on certain types of services. We appealed the order to state court in Franklin County, 
Kentucky, primarily asserting that the Kentucky PSC erred in classifying the GRS as a rate. Additionally, on July 22, 2012, the 
federal court formally certified a class of all retail and wholesale Windstream customers assessed the GRS on services subject 
to our federal tariff. We filed an interlocutory appeal of the class certification with the Sixth Circuit. On November 1, 2012, the 
Sixth Circuit denied the appeal, holding that the matter was not ripe for a decision.

Based on a comprehensive analysis of the recent activity regarding this case, we believe our current accrual remains adequate. 
The ultimate resolution of the case, the timing of which is unknown, could result in a loss in a range of $0 to $8.0 million in 
excess of the amount accrued. We plan to continue to vigorously defend the proceedings.
 
We are party to various legal proceedings. Although the ultimate resolution of these various proceedings cannot be determined 
at this time, our management does not believe that such proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material 
adverse effect on the future consolidated results of income, cash flows or our financial condition.

In addition, our management is currently not aware of any environmental matters that, individually or in the aggregate, would 
have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial condition or our results of operations.
 
14. Business Segments:

We are organized based on the services and products that we offer. Our chief operating decision maker assesses performance 
and allocates resources based on our consolidated results of operations. Under this organizational and reporting structure, our 
operations consist of one reportable segment. See consolidated statements of income for additional information regarding types 
of revenue. 
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information:

Debentures and notes, without collateral, issued by Windstream Corporation

In connection with the issuance of the 2013 Notes, the 2017 Notes, the 2018 Notes, the 2019 Notes, the 2020 Notes, the 2021 
Notes, the 2022 Notes, and the 2023 Notes ("the guaranteed notes"), certain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries (the 
"Guarantors"), including all former subsidiaries of Valor, provide guarantees of those debentures. These guarantees are full and 
unconditional, subject to certain customary release provisions, as well as joint and several. Certain Guarantors may be subject 
to restrictions on their ability to distribute earnings to us. The remaining subsidiaries (the "Non-Guarantors") of Windstream are 
not guarantors of the guaranteed notes. Following the acquisitions of acquired businesses, the guaranteed notes were amended 
to include certain subsidiaries of the acquired businesses as guarantors. The parent company is Windstream Corporation who is 
also the issuer of the notes.

The following information presents condensed consolidated and combined statements of income, including comprehensive 
income, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, condensed consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 
2012 and 2011, and condensed consolidated and combined statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 
2011 and 2010 of the parent company, the Guarantors and the Non-Guarantors. Investments consist of investments in net assets 
of subsidiaries held by the parent company and other subsidiaries, and have been presented using the equity method of 
accounting.
 

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

(Millions) Parent Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues and sales:
Service revenues $ — $ 1,080.6 $ 4,869.9 $ (25.4) $ 5,925.1
Product sales — 73.0 158.2 — 231.2

Total revenues and sales — 1,153.6 5,028.1 (25.4) 6,156.3
Costs and expenses:
  Cost of services — 374.3 2,335.2 (17.1) 2,692.4
  Cost of products sold — 71.9 138.1 — 210.0
  Selling, general and administrative — 84.7 899.6 (8.3) 976.0
  Depreciation and amortization — 315.2 982.4 — 1,297.6

Merger and integration costs — — 65.4 — 65.4
Restructuring charges — 4.3 23.1 — 27.4

Total costs and expenses — 850.4 4,443.8 (25.4) 5,268.8
Operating income — 303.2 584.3 — 887.5
Earnings from consolidated subsidiaries 404.9 38.9 4.4 (448.2) —
Other (expense) income, net (6.8) 185.8 (174.4) — 4.6
Gain on early extinguishment of debt — — 1.9 — 1.9
Intercompany interest income (expense) 152.8 (98.9) (53.9) — —
Interest expense (540.9) (5.4) (78.8) — (625.1)
Income from continuing operations before income
taxes 10.0 423.6 283.5 (448.2) 268.9
Income tax (benefit) expense (158.0) 143.4 114.8 — 100.2
Income from continuing operations 168.0 280.2 168.7 (448.2) 168.7
Discontinued operations, net of tax — — (0.7) — (0.7)
Net income $ 168.0 $ 280.2 $ 168.0 $ (448.2) $ 168.0
Comprehensive income $ 172.5 $ 280.2 $ 168.0 $ (448.2) $ 172.5
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Millions) Parent Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues and sales:
Service revenues $ — $ 1,084.5 $ 3,092.0 $ (21.9) $ 4,154.6
Product sales — 61.2 65.4 — 126.6

Total revenues and sales — 1,145.7 3,157.4 (21.9) 4,281.2
Costs and expenses:

Cost of services — 375.2 1,328.2 (12.3) 1,691.1
Cost of products sold — 55.8 49.5 — 105.3
Selling, general and administrative — 102.7 509.6 (9.6) 602.7
Depreciation and amortization — 320.3 527.2 — 847.5
Merger and integration costs — — 69.8 — 69.8
Restructuring charges — 0.3 1.0 — 1.3

Total costs and expenses — 854.3 2,485.3 (21.9) 3,317.7
Operating income — 291.4 672.1 — 963.5
Earnings (losses) from consolidated subsidiaries 477.7 (1.2) 4.7 (481.2) —
Other (expense) income, net (3.8) 179.7 (176.0) — (0.1)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (136.1) — — — (136.1)
Intercompany interest income (expense) 167.2 (104.8) (62.4) — —
Interest expense (547.3) (5.2) (5.8) — (558.3)
(Loss) income from continuing operations before 
income taxes (42.3) 359.9 432.6 (481.2) 269.0
Income tax (benefit) expense (211.8) 113.9 197.3 — 99.4
Income from continuing operations 169.5 246.0 235.3 (481.2) 169.6
Discontinued operations, net of tax — — (0.1) — (0.1)
Net income $ 169.5 $ 246.0 $ 235.2 $ (481.2) $ 169.5
Comprehensive income $ 195.5 $ 246.0 $ 235.2 $ (481.2) $ 195.5
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

(Millions) Parent Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues and sales:
Service revenues $ — $ 942.3 $ 2,694.5 $ (15.4) $ 3,621.4
Product sales — 42.6 46.7 — 89.3

Total revenues and sales — 984.9 2,741.2 (15.4) 3,710.7
Costs and expenses:

Cost of services — 304.9 1,038.2 (11.2) 1,331.9
Cost of products sold — 39.5 35.4 — 74.9
Selling, general and administrative — 97.4 398.5 (4.2) 491.7
Depreciation and amortization — 273.7 420.0 — 693.7
Merger and integration costs — — 77.3 — 77.3
Restructuring charges — 1.6 6.1 — 7.7

Total costs and expenses — 717.1 1,975.5 (15.4) 2,677.2
Operating income — 267.8 765.7 — 1,033.5
Earnings from consolidated subsidiaries 575.0 81.2 6.0 (662.2) —
Other (expense) income, net (2.2) 175.6 (176.9) — (3.5)
Intercompany interest income (expense) 120.9 (63.0) (57.9) — —
Interest expense (514.0) (6.5) (1.2) — (521.7)
Income before income taxes 179.7 455.1 535.7 (662.2) 508.3
Income tax (benefit) expense (133.0) 133.8 194.8 — 195.6
Net income $ 312.7 $ 321.3 $ 340.9 $ (662.2) $ 312.7
Comprehensive income $ 307.2 $ 321.3 $ 340.9 $ (662.2) $ 307.2
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2012

(Millions) Parent Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 57.5 $ 19.8 $ 54.7 $ — $ 132.0
Restricted cash 25.0 — 1.5 — 26.5
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful 
accounts of $42.6) — 105.6 502.5 6.0 614.1
 Affiliates receivable, net — 299.4 2,507.2 (2,806.6) —
Income tax receivable 0.8 — — — 0.8
Inventories — 56.9 18.1 — 75.0
Deferred income taxes 170.3 22.9 56.3 — 249.5
Prepaid income taxes 22.5 — — — 22.5
Prepaid expenses and other 4.4 29.5 145.8 — 179.7
Assets held for sale — — — — —

Total current assets 280.5 534.1 3,286.1 (2,800.6) 1,300.1
Investments in consolidated subsidiaries 11,814.4 1,275.6 304.6 (13,394.6) —
Goodwill — 2,475.1 1,865.8 — 4,340.9
Other intangibles, net — 1,156.8 1,154.5 — 2,311.3
Net property, plant and equipment 7.6 1,451.5 4,403.6 — 5,862.7
Other assets 103.1 353.2 46.4 (335.7) 167.0
Total Assets $ 12,205.6 $ 7,246.3 $ 11,061.0 $ (16,530.9) $ 13,982.0
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity     

Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt and capital
lease obligations $ 856.0 $ — $ 30.4 $ (4.8) $ 881.6
Current portion of interest rate swaps 29.0 — — — 29.0
Accounts payable 1.0 51.1 311.6 — 363.7
Affiliates payable, net 2,806.6 — — (2,806.6) —
Advance payments and customer deposits — 15.7 207.6 — 223.3
Accrued dividends 148.9 — — — 148.9
Accrued taxes 0.2 35.2 68.9 — 104.3
Accrued interest 107.2 1.7 4.7 — 113.6
Other current liabilities 42.7 17.8 243.5 — 304.0

Total current liabilities 3,991.6 121.5 866.7 (2,811.4) 2,168.4
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 6,823.2 99.6 1,517.0 (324.9) 8,114.9
Deferred income taxes 175.1 922.7 798.5 — 1,896.3
Other liabilities 110.9 29.8 556.9 — 697.6
Total liabilities 11,100.8 1,173.6 3,739.1 (3,136.3) 12,877.2
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note 13)
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock 0.1 40.8 83.1 (123.9) 0.1
Additional paid-in capital 1,098.3 5,083.4 4,004.0 (9,087.4) 1,098.3
Accumulated other comprehensive income 6.4 8.0 36.7 (44.7) 6.4
Retained earnings — 940.5 3,198.1 (4,138.6) —

Total shareholders’ equity 1,104.8 6,072.7 7,321.9 (13,394.6) 1,104.8
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 12,205.6 $ 7,246.3 $ 11,061.0 $ (16,530.9) $ 13,982.0
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2011

(Millions) Parent Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 115.4 $ 7.1 $ 104.5 $ — $ 227.0
Restricted cash 11.9 — 9.8 — 21.7
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $29.9) — 105.7 549.3 2.4 657.4
Affiliates receivable, net — 52.7 2,744.2 (2,796.9) —
Income tax receivable 122.0 1.2 0.9 — 124.1
Inventories — 55.4 21.1 — 76.5
Deferred income taxes 153.0 22.8 56.3 — 232.1
Prepaid income taxes 163.4 — — (148.1) 15.3
Prepaid expenses and other 3.4 13.2 86.3 — 102.9
Assets held for sale — 50.6 10.8 — 61.4

Total current assets 569.1 308.7 3,583.2 (2,942.6) 1,518.4
Investments in consolidated subsidiaries 11,620.0 1,237.0 313.1 (13,170.1) —
Goodwill — 2,475.2 1,826.5 — 4,301.7
Other intangibles, net — 1,286.6 1,398.7 — 2,685.3
Net property, plant and equipment 7.6 1,465.6 4,236.0 — 5,709.2
Other assets 95.4 355.5 62.3 (335.7) 177.5
Total Assets $ 12,292.1 $ 7,128.6 $ 11,419.8 $ (16,448.4) $ 14,392.1
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity     

Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt and capital
lease obligations $ 33.8 $ 0.7 $ 184.0 $ (4.8) $ 213.7
Current portion of interest rate swaps 30.5 — — — 30.5
Accounts payable 1.0 49.0 246.0 — 296.0
Affiliates payable, net 2,796.6 — — (2,796.6) —
Advance payments and customer deposits — 32.8 211.1 — 243.9
Accrued dividends 148.0 — — — 148.0
Accrued taxes 0.3 103.1 163.2 (148.7) 117.9
Accrued interest 114.0 1.7 46.1 — 161.8
Other current liabilities 29.8 27.2 194.2 — 251.2

Total current liabilities 3,154.0 214.5 1,044.6 (2,950.1) 1,463.0
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 7,432.0 99.7 1,733.5 (328.5) 8,936.7
Deferred income taxes 91.8 941.1 816.9 — 1,849.8
Other liabilities 119.0 32.0 496.3 — 647.3
Total liabilities 10,796.8 1,287.3 4,091.3 (3,278.6) 12,896.8
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note 13)
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock 0.1 40.8 83.1 (123.9) 0.1
Additional paid-in capital 1,493.3 5,083.4 4,004.0 (9,087.4) 1,493.3
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1.9 8.2 47.6 (55.8) 1.9
Retained earnings — 708.9 3,193.8 (3,902.7) —

Total shareholders’ equity 1,495.3 5,841.3 7,328.5 (13,169.8) 1,495.3
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 12,292.1 $ 7,128.6 $ 11,419.8 $ (16,448.4) $ 14,392.1
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

(Millions) Parent Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Cash Provided from Operations:
Net income $ 168.0 $ 280.2 $ 168.0 $ (448.2) $ 168.0
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided from operations:

Depreciation and amortization — 315.2 982.4 — 1,297.6
Provision for doubtful accounts — 11.6 47.8 — 59.4
Equity in earnings from subsidiaries (404.9) (38.9) (4.4) 448.2 —
Share-based compensation expense — 7.9 35.3 — 43.2
Pension expense — 10.2 57.2 — 67.4
Deferred income taxes 55.2 (18.4) 42.8 — 79.6
Unamortized net premium on retired debt — — (16.2) — (16.2)
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-
designated interest rate swaps 45.4 — — — 45.4
Plan curtailment — — (9.6) — (9.6)
Other, net 21.7 (12.0) (26.4) — (16.7)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net 275.3 (105.8) (110.0) — 59.5
Net cash provided from operations 160.7 450.0 1,166.9 — 1,777.6

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment — (206.2) (895.0) — (1,101.2)
Broadband network expansion funded by stimulus
grants — (23.4) (82.0) — (105.4)
Changes in restricted cash (13.2) — 8.4 — (4.8)
Grant funds received for broadband stimulus
projects 45.7 — — — 45.7
Disposition of wireless assets — 57.0 — — 57.0
Disposition of energy business — — 6.1 — 6.1
Other, net — 2.8 (1.9) — 0.9

Net cash provided from (used in) investing
activities 32.5 (169.8) (964.4) — (1,101.7)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Dividends paid on common shares (588.0) — — — (588.0)
Repayment of debt and swaps (1,744.4) — (310.1) — (2,054.5)
Proceeds of debt issuance 1,910.0 — — — 1,910.0
Debt issuance costs (19.1) — — — (19.1)
Intercompany transactions, net 189.7 (270.3) 80.6 — —
Payment under capital lease obligations — (0.8) (19.2) — (20.0)
Other, net 0.7 3.6 (3.6) — 0.7

Net cash used in financing activities (251.1) (267.5) (252.3) — (770.9)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (57.9) 12.7 (49.8) — (95.0)
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Beginning of period 115.4 7.1 104.5 — 227.0
End of period $ 57.5 $ 19.8 $ 54.7 $ — $ 132.0
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Millions) Parent Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Cash Provided from Operations:
Net income $ 169.5 $ 246.0 $ 235.2 $ (481.2) $ 169.5
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided from operations:

Depreciation and amortization — 320.3 527.2 — 847.5
Provision for doubtful accounts — 11.3 37.2 — 48.5
Equity in (earnings) losses from subsidiaries (477.7) 1.2 (4.7) 481.2 —
Share-based compensation expense — 5.6 18.5 — 24.1
Pension expense — 23.4 143.4 — 166.8
Deferred income taxes 10.3 19.8 143.7 — 173.8
Unamortized net discount on retired debt 21.2 — — — 21.2
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-
designated interest rate swaps 49.0 — — — 49.0
Plan curtailment — (2.9) (11.8) — (14.7)
Other, net 18.6 (0.1) (6.9) — 11.6

Pension contribution — — — — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net (316.2) 42.8 4.9 — (268.5)

Net cash (used in) provided from operations (525.3) 667.4 1,086.7 — 1,228.8
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Additions to property, plant and equipment — (206.4) (495.6) — (702.0)
Broadband network expansion funded by stimulus
grants — (5.2) (16.5) — (21.7)
Cash acquired from PAETEC — — 71.4 — 71.4
Changes in restricted cash (11.9) — — — (11.9)
Grant funds received for broadband stimulus 
projects 4.0 — — — 4.0
Other, net 1.8 5.7 0.5 — 8.0

Net cash used in investing activities (6.1) (205.9) (440.2) — (652.2)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Dividends paid on common shares (509.6) — — — (509.6)
Repayment of debt and swaps (4,670.7) — (109.6) — (4,780.3)
Proceeds of debt issuance 4,922.0 — — — 4,922.0
Debt issuance costs (30.6) — — — (30.6)
Intercompany transactions, net 933.3 (474.8) (458.5) — —
Payment under capital lease obligations — (0.7) (0.1) — (0.8)
Other, net (1.7) 12.7 (3.6) — 7.4

Net cash provided from (used in) financing
activities 642.7 (462.8) (571.8) — (391.9)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 111.3 (1.3) 74.7 — 184.7
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Beginning of period 4.1 8.4 29.8 — 42.3
End of period $ 115.4 $ 7.1 $ 104.5 $ — $ 227.0
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

(Millions) Parent Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Cash Provided from Operations:
Net income $ 312.7 $ 321.3 $ 340.9 $ (662.2) $ 312.7
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided from operations:

Depreciation and amortization — 273.7 420.0 — 693.7
Provision for doubtful accounts — 11.0 37.9 — 48.9
Equity in earnings from subsidiaries (575.0) (81.2) (6.0) 662.2 —
Share-based compensation expense — 2.6 14.4 — 17.0
Pension expense — 8.3 45.8 — 54.1
Deferred income taxes (9.9) 50.1 84.9 — 125.1
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-designated
interest rate swaps 0.6 — — — 0.6
Other, net 14.1 6.7 (6.0) — 14.8

Pension contribution (41.7) — — — (41.7)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net 18.8 (26.8) (125.9) — (133.9)

Net cash (used in) provided from operations (280.4) 565.7 806.0 — 1,091.3
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Additions to property, plant and equipment — (107.5) (304.5) — (412.0)
Acquisition of NuVox, net of cash acquired (198.4) — — — (198.4)
Acquisition of Iowa Telecom, net of cash acquired (253.6) — — — (253.6)
Acquisition of Hosted Solutions, net of cash
acquired (312.8) — — — (312.8)
Acquisition of Q-Comm, net of cash acquired (279.1) — — — (279.1)
Other, net (1.7) 3.0 0.3 — 1.6

Net cash used in investing activities (1,045.6) (104.5) (304.2) — (1,454.3)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Dividends paid on common shares (464.6) — — — (464.6)
Repayment of debt and swaps (528.9) (909.9) (276.2) — (1,715.0)
Proceeds of debt issuance 1,562.0 — — — 1,562.0
Debt issuance costs (21.8) — — — (21.8)
Intercompany transactions, net (246.0) 453.2 (207.2) — —
Payment under capital lease obligations — (0.8) (0.2) — (1.0)
Other, net (17.1) 3.5 (3.6) — (17.2)

Net cash provided from (used in) financing
activities 283.6 (454.0) (487.2) — (657.6)

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,042.4) 7.2 14.6 — (1,020.6)
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Beginning of period 1,046.5 1.2 15.2 — 1,062.9
End of period $ 4.1 $ 8.4 $ 29.8 $ — $ 42.3
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

Debentures and notes, issued by PAETEC Holding Corporation

In connection with the acquisition of PAETEC on November 30, 2011, Windstream Corporation (the "Parent") acquired the 
PAETEC 2017 Notes and PAETEC 2018 Notes ("the guaranteed notes"). Windstream Corporation and all former wholly-
owned subsidiaries of PAETEC (the "Guarantors") provide guarantees of those debentures. These guarantees are full and 
unconditional, subject to certain customary release provisions, as well as joint and several. Certain Guarantors may be subject 
to restrictions on their ability to distribute earnings to the Parent. The remaining subsidiaries (the "Non-Guarantors") of the 
Parent are not guarantors of these guaranteed notes.  

The following information presents condensed consolidated and combined statements of income for the years ended 
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, condensed consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and condensed 
consolidated and combined statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 of the Parent, the 
Guarantors and the Non-Guarantors. Investments consist of investments in net assets of subsidiaries held by the Parent and 
other subsidiaries, and have been presented using the equity method of accounting.

We have made revisions to correct certain classification errors that are not material in the condensed consolidated balance sheet 
as of December 31, 2011, impacting only the PAETEC Issuer and the Guarantors with applicable offsetting adjustments in 
Eliminations. These revisions had no impact to the condensed consolidated statements of income or cash flows for any period. 
For PAETEC Issuer, we reduced affiliates receivable, net by $336.5 million, increased current deferred income taxes asset by 
$3.8 million, increased other assets by $336.5 million, increased the long-term deferred income taxes asset by $220.0 million, 
increased other current liabilities by $3.8 million and increased the long-term deferred income taxes liability by $220.0 million, 
with applicable offsetting adjustments made in the Eliminations column. For the Guarantors, we increased the long-term 
deferred income taxes asset by $2.1 million, increased investments in consolidated subsidiaries by $5.9 million, reduced other 
assets by $336.5 million, reduced affiliates payable, net by $336.5 million, increased other liabilities by $5.9 million, and 
increased the long-term deferred income taxes liability by $2.1 million, with applicable offsetting adjustments made in the 
Eliminations column.
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

(Millions) Parent
PAETEC

Issuer Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues and sales:
Service revenues $ — $ — $ 1,994.5 $ 3,938.6 $ (8.0) $ 5,925.1
Product sales — — 120.2 111.0 — 231.2

Total revenues and sales — — 2,114.7 4,049.6 (8.0) 6,156.3
Costs and expenses:
Cost of services — — 1,162.6 1,533.4 (3.6) 2,692.4
Cost of products sold — — 103.3 106.7 — 210.0
Selling, general and administrative — — 481.7 495.3 (1.0) 976.0
Depreciation and amortization — — 371.6 926.0 — 1,297.6
Merger and integration costs — — 0.5 64.9 — 65.4
Restructuring charges — — 9.6 17.8 — 27.4

Total costs and expenses — — 2,129.3 3,144.1 (4.6) 5,268.8
Operating (loss) income — — (14.6) 905.5 (3.4) 887.5
Earnings (losses) from consolidated
subsidiaries 404.9 (6.7) 6.3 (0.5) (404.0) —
Other (expense) income, net (6.8) — 0.3 11.1 — 4.6
Gain on early extinguishment of debt — 1.9 — — — 1.9
Intercompany interest income (expense) 152.8 — — (152.8) — —
Interest (expense) benefit (540.9) (84.2) (1.2) 1.2 — (625.1)
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes 10.0 (89.0) (9.2) 764.5 (407.4) 268.9
Income tax (benefit) expense (158.0) (30.8) (5.7) 296.0 (1.3) 100.2
Income (loss) from continuing operations 168.0 (58.2) (3.5) 468.5 (406.1) 168.7
Discontinued operations, net of tax — — (0.7) — — (0.7)
Net income (loss) $ 168.0 $ (58.2) $ (4.2) $ 468.5 $ (406.1) $ 168.0
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 172.5 $ (58.2) $ (4.2) $ 468.5 $ (406.1) $ 172.5
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Millions) Parent
PAETEC

Issuer Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues and sales:
Service revenues $ — $ — $ 165.8 $ 3,990.0 $ (1.2) $ 4,154.6
Product sales — — 16.2 110.4 — 126.6

Total revenues and sales — — 182.0 4,100.4 (1.2) 4,281.2
Costs and expenses:
Cost of services — — 93.2 1,599.1 (1.2) 1,691.1
Cost of products sold — — 13.0 92.3 — 105.3
Selling, general and administrative — — 40.4 562.3 — 602.7
Depreciation and amortization — — 28.8 818.7 — 847.5
Merger and integration costs — — 3.9 65.9 — 69.8
Restructuring charges — — — 1.3 — 1.3

Total costs and expenses — — 179.3 3,139.6 (1.2) 3,317.7
Operating income — — 2.7 960.8 — 963.5
Earnings (losses) from consolidated
subsidiaries 477.7 1.4 (5.9) 1.9 (475.1) —
Other (expense) income, net (3.8) — — 3.7 — (0.1)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (136.1) — — — — (136.1)
Intercompany interest income (expense) 167.2 (2.0) 2.0 (167.2) — —
Interest expense (547.3) (8.6) (0.1) (2.3) — (558.3)
(Loss) income from continuing operations 
before income taxes (42.3) (9.2) (1.3) 796.9 (475.1) 269.0
Income tax (benefit) expense (211.8) (4.5) 1.9 313.8 — 99.4
Income (loss) from continuing operations 169.5 (4.7) (3.2) 483.1 (475.1) 169.6
Discontinued operations, net of tax — — (0.1) — — (0.1)
Net income (loss) $ 169.5 $ (4.7) $ (3.3) $ 483.1 $ (475.1) $ 169.5
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 195.5 $ (4.7) $ (3.3) $ 483.1 $ (475.1) $ 195.5
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

(Millions) Parent
PAETEC

Issuer Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues and sales:
Service revenues $ — $ — $ — $ 3,621.4 $ — $ 3,621.4
Product sales — — — 89.3 — 89.3

Total revenues and sales — — — 3,710.7 — 3,710.7
Costs and expenses:
Cost of services — — — 1,331.9 — 1,331.9
Cost of products sold — — — 74.9 — 74.9
Selling, general and administrative — — — 491.7 — 491.7
Depreciation and amortization — — — 693.7 — 693.7
Merger and integration costs — — — 77.3 — 77.3
Restructuring charges — — — 7.7 — 7.7

Total costs and expenses — — — 2,677.2 — 2,677.2
Operating income — — — 1,033.5 — 1,033.5
Earnings from consolidated subsidiaries 575.0 — — — (575.0) —
Other expense, net (2.2) — — (1.3) — (3.5)
Intercompany interest income (expense) 120.9 — — (120.9) — —
Interest expense (514.0) — — (7.7) — (521.7)
Income before income taxes 179.7 — — 903.6 (575.0) 508.3
Income tax (benefit) expense (133.0) — — 328.6 — 195.6
Net income $ 312.7 $ — $ — $ 575.0 $ (575.0) $ 312.7
Comprehensive income $ 307.2 $ — $ — $ 575.0 $ (575.0) $ 307.2
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2012

(Millions) Parent
PAETEC

Issuer Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 57.5 $ — $ 26.5 $ 48.0 $ — $ 132.0
Restricted cash 25.0 — 1.5 — — 26.5
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful 
accounts of $42.6) — — 248.7 365.4 — 614.1
Affiliates receivable, net — 1,070.7 — 3,253.3 (4,324.0) —
Income tax receivable 0.8 — — — — 0.8
Inventories — — 10.0 65.0 — 75.0
Deferred income taxes 170.3 — 6.3 76.7 (3.8) 249.5
Prepaid income taxes 22.5 — — — — 22.5
Prepaid expenses and other 4.4 — 24.3 151.0 — 179.7
Assets held for sale — — — — — —

Total current assets 280.5 1,070.7 317.3 3,959.4 (4,327.8) 1,300.1

Investments in consolidated subsidiaries 11,814.4 — 0.4 — (11,814.8) —
Goodwill — 653.3 — 3,687.6 — 4,340.9
Other intangibles, net — — 668.9 1,642.4 — 2,311.3
Net property, plant and equipment 7.6 — 878.2 4,976.9 — 5,862.7
Deferred income taxes — 246.4 — — (246.4) —
Other assets 103.1 — 13.1 50.8 — 167.0
Total Assets $ 12,205.6 $ 1,970.4 $ 1,877.9 $ 14,317.1 $ (16,389.0) $ 13,982.0
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity     
Current Liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt and capital
lease obligations $ 856.0 $ — $ 15.4 $ 10.2 $ — $ 881.6

Current portion of interest rate swaps 29.0 — — — — 29.0
Accounts payable 1.0 — 83.4 279.3 — 363.7
Affiliates payable, net 2,806.6 — 1,515.5 — (4,322.1) —

Advance payments and customer deposits — — 77.7 145.6 — 223.3
Accrued dividends 148.9 — — — — 148.9
Accrued taxes 0.2 — 33.6 70.1 0.4 104.3
Accrued interest 107.2 3.9 0.8 1.7 — 113.6
Other current liabilities 42.7 3.8 63.3 198.0 (3.8) 304.0

Total current liabilities 3,991.6 7.7 1,789.7 704.9 (4,325.5) 2,168.4
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 6,823.2 1,175.0 14.1 102.6 — 8,114.9
Deferred income taxes 175.1 — 32.6 1,935.0 (246.4) 1,896.3
Other liabilities 110.9 8.7 49.0 534.3 (5.3) 697.6
Total liabilities 11,100.8 1,191.4 1,885.4 3,276.8 (4,577.2) 12,877.2
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note 13)
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock 0.1 — — 70.3 (70.3) 0.1
Additional paid-in capital 1,098.3 842.0 — 6,918.5 (7,760.5) 1,098.3
Accumulated other comprehensive income 6.4 — — 50.8 (50.8) 6.4
(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings — (63.0) (7.5) 4,000.7 (3,930.2) —

Total shareholders’ equity 1,104.8 779.0 (7.5) 11,040.3 (11,811.8) 1,104.8

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 12,205.6 $ 1,970.4 $ 1,877.9 $ 14,317.1 $ (16,389.0) $ 13,982.0
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2011

(Millions) Parent
PAETEC

 Issuer Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 115.4 $ — $ 63.5 $ 48.1 $ — $ 227.0
Restricted cash 11.9 — 9.8 — — 21.7
Accounts receivable (less allowance for
doubtful accounts of $29.9) — — 273.3 384.1 — 657.4
Affiliates receivable, net — 1,565.9 — 2,934.1 (4,500.0) —
Income tax receivable 122.0 — — 2.1 — 124.1
Inventories — — 13.8 62.7 — 76.5
Deferred income taxes 153.0 — 6.2 76.7 (3.8) 232.1
Prepaid income taxes 163.4 0.1 — — (148.2) 15.3
Prepaid expenses and other 3.4 — 32.9 66.6 — 102.9
Assets held for sale — — 10.7 50.7 — 61.4

Total current assets 569.1 1,566.0 410.2 3,625.1 (4,652.0) 1,518.4
Investments in consolidated subsidiaries 11,620.0 1.4 — 0.8 (11,622.2) —
Goodwill — 614.0 — 3,687.7 — 4,301.7
Other intangibles, net — — 862.2 1,823.1 — 2,685.3
Net property, plant and equipment 7.6 — 874.7 4,826.9 — 5,709.2
Deferred income taxes — 220.0 2.1 — (222.1) —
Other assets 95.4 — 9.2 72.9 — 177.5
Total Assets $12,292.1 $ 2,401.4 $ 2,158.4 $ 14,036.5 $ (16,496.3) $ 14,392.1
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity     
Current Liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt and
capital lease obligations $ 33.8 $ 150.0 $ 19.0 $ 10.9 $ — $ 213.7
Current portion of interest rate swaps 30.5 — — — — 30.5
Accounts payable 1.0 — 115.7 179.3 — 296.0
Affiliates payable, net 2,796.6 — 1,703.5 — (4,500.1) —
Advance payments and customer deposits — — 92.3 151.6 — 243.9
Accrued dividends 148.0 — — — — 148.0
Accrued taxes 0.3 0.1 39.9 225.8 (148.2) 117.9
Accrued interest 114.0 45.7 0.1 2.0 — 161.8
Other current liabilities 29.8 4.8 105.2 115.2 (3.8) 251.2

Total current liabilities 3,154.0 200.6 2,075.7 684.8 (4,652.1) 1,463.0
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 7,432.0 1,361.7 30.2 112.8 — 8,936.7
Deferred income taxes 91.8 — — 1,980.1 (222.1) 1,849.8
Other liabilities 119.0 1.9 55.9 476.4 (5.9) 647.3
Total liabilities 10,796.8 1,564.2 2,161.8 3,254.1 (4,880.1) 12,896.8
Commitments and Contingencies
(See Note 13)
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock 0.1 — — 70.3 (70.3) 0.1
Additional paid-in capital 1,493.3 842.0 — 6,918.5 (7,760.5) 1,493.3
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1.9 — — 61.9 (61.9) 1.9
(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings — (4.8) (3.4) 3,731.7 (3,723.5) —

Total shareholders’ equity 1,495.3 837.2 (3.4) 10,782.4 (11,616.2) 1,495.3

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $12,292.1 $ 2,401.4 $ 2,158.4 $ 14,036.5 $ (16,496.3) $ 14,392.1
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

(Millions) Parent
PAETEC

 Issuer Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Cash Provided from Operations:
Net income (loss) $ 168.0 $ (58.2) $ (4.2) $ 468.5 $ (406.1) $ 168.0
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided from operations:

Depreciation and amortization — — 371.6 926.0 — 1,297.6
Provision for doubtful accounts — — 11.5 47.9 — 59.4
Equity in (earnings) losses from subsidiaries (404.9) 6.7 (6.3) 0.5 404.0 —
Share-based compensation expense — — 10.9 32.3 — 43.2
Pension expense — — — 67.4 — 67.4
Deferred income taxes 55.2 27.8 34.7 (38.1) — 79.6
Unamortized net premium on retired debt — (16.2) — — — (16.2)
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-
designated interest rate swaps 45.4 — — — — 45.4
Plan curtailment — — — (9.6) — (9.6)
Other, net 21.7 (20.5) 0.3 (18.2) — (16.7)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net 275.3 (41.2) (143.1) (31.5) — 59.5
Net cash provided from (used in)
operations 160.7 (101.6) 275.4 1,445.2 (2.1) 1,777.6

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment — — (208.5) (892.7) — (1,101.2)
Broadband network expansion funded by
stimulus grants — — — (105.4) — (105.4)
Changes in restricted cash (13.2) — 8.4 — — (4.8)
Grant funds received for broadband
stimulus projects 45.7 — — — — 45.7
Disposition of wireless assets — — — 57.0 — 57.0
Disposition of energy business — — 6.1 — — 6.1
Other, net — — (1.9) 2.8 — 0.9

Net cash provided from (used in)
investing activities 32.5 — (195.9) (938.3) — (1,101.7)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Dividends paid on common shares (588.0) — — — — (588.0)
Repayment of debt and swaps (1,744.4) (300.0) — (10.1) — (2,054.5)
Proceeds of debt issuance 1,910.0 — — — — 1,910.0
Debt issuance costs (19.1) — — — — (19.1)
Intercompany transactions, net 189.7 401.6 (97.3) (496.1) 2.1 —
Payment under capital lease obligations — — (19.2) (0.8) — (20.0)
Other, net 0.7 — — — — 0.7

Net cash used in financing activities (251.1) 101.6 (116.5) (507.0) 2.1 (770.9)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (57.9) — (37.0) (0.1) — (95.0)
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Beginning of period 115.4 — 63.5 48.1 — 227.0
End of period $ 57.5 $ — $ 26.5 $ 48.0 $ — $ 132.0
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Millions) Parent
PAETEC

 Issuer Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Cash Provided from Operations:
Net income (loss) $ 169.5 $ (4.7) $ (3.3) $ 483.1 $ (475.1) $ 169.5
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided from operations:

Depreciation and amortization — — 28.8 818.7 — 847.5
Provision for doubtful accounts — — 1.4 47.1 — 48.5
Equity in (earnings) losses from subsidiaries (477.7) (1.4) 5.9 (1.9) 475.1 —
Share-based compensation expense — — 0.2 23.9 — 24.1
Pension expense — — — 166.8 — 166.8
Deferred income taxes 10.3 — (8.3) 171.8 — 173.8
Unamortized net discount on retired debt 21.2 — — — — 21.2
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-
designated interest rate swaps 49.0 — — — — 49.0
Plan curtailment — — — (14.7) — (14.7)
Other, net 18.6 (2.2) — (4.8) — 11.6

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net (316.2) (13.6) (39.4) 100.7 — (268.5)
Net cash (used in) provided from
operations (525.3) (21.9) (14.7) 1,790.7 — 1,228.8

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment — — (9.0) (693.0) — (702.0)
Broadband network expansion funded by
stimulus grants — — — (21.7) — (21.7)
Cash acquired from PAETEC — — 71.4 — — 71.4
Changes in restricted cash (11.9) — — — — (11.9)
Grant funds received for broadband stimulus 
projects 4.0 — — — — 4.0
Other, net 1.8 0.6 (0.8) 6.4 — 8.0

Net cash (provided from) used in
investing activities (6.1) 0.6 61.6 (708.3) — (652.2)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Dividends paid on common shares (509.6) — — — — (509.6)
Repayment of debt and swaps (4,670.7) (99.5) — (10.1) — (4,780.3)
Proceeds of debt issuance 4,922.0 — — — — 4,922.0
Debt issuance costs (30.6) — — — — (30.6)
Intercompany transactions, net 933.3 120.8 16.6 (1,070.7) — —
Payment under capital lease obligations — — — (0.8) — (0.8)
Other, net (1.7) — — 9.1 — 7.4

Net cash provided from (used in)
financing activities 642.7 21.3 16.6 (1,072.5) — (391.9)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 111.3 — 63.5 9.9 — 184.7
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Beginning of period 4.1 — — 38.2 — 42.3
End of period $ 115.4 $ — $ 63.5 $ 48.1 $ — $ 227.0
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15. Supplemental Guarantor Information, Continued:

 Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

(Millions) Parent
PAETEC

 Issuer Guarantors
Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Cash Provided from Operations:
Net income $ 312.7 $ — $ — $ 575.0 $ (575.0) $ 312.7
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided from operations:

Depreciation and amortization — — — 693.7 — 693.7
Provision for doubtful accounts — — — 48.9 — 48.9
Equity in earnings from subsidiaries (575.0) — — — 575.0 —
Share-based compensation expense — — — 17.0 — 17.0
Pension expense — — — 54.1 — 54.1
Deferred income taxes (9.9) — — 135.0 — 125.1
Amortization of unrealized losses on de-
designated interest rate swaps 0.6 — — — — 0.6
Other, net 14.1 — — 0.7 — 14.8

Pension contribution (41.7) — — — (41.7)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net 18.8 — — (152.7) — (133.9)

Net cash (used in) provided from
operations (280.4) — — 1,371.7 — 1,091.3

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment — — — (412.0) — (412.0)
Acquisition of NuVox, net of cash acquired (198.4) — — — — (198.4)
Acquisition of Iowa Telecom, net of cash
acquired (253.6) — — — — (253.6)
Acquisition of Hosted Solutions, net of cash
acquired (312.8) — — — — (312.8)
Acquisition of Q-Comm, net of cash
acquired (279.1) — — — — (279.1)
Other, net (1.7) — — 3.3 — 1.6

Net cash used in investing activities (1,045.6) — — (408.7) — (1,454.3)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Dividends paid on common shares (464.6) — — — — (464.6)
Repayment of debt and swaps (528.9) — — (1,186.1) — (1,715.0)
Proceeds of debt issuance 1,562.0 — — — — 1,562.0
Debt issuance costs (21.8) — — — — (21.8)
Intercompany transactions, net (246.0) — — 246.0 — —
Payment under capital lease obligations — — — (1.0) — (1.0)
Other, net (17.1) — — (0.1) — (17.2)

Net cash provided from (used in)
financing activities 283.6 — — (941.2) — (657.6)

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents (1,042.4) — — 21.8 — (1,020.6)
Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Beginning of period 1,046.5 — — 16.4 — 1,062.9
End of period $ 4.1 $ — $ — $ 38.2 $ — $ 42.3
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16. Discontinued Operations:

On June 15, 2012, we completed the sale of the energy business acquired as part of PAETEC, which sells electricity to business 
and residential customers, primarily in certain geographic regions in New York state, as a competitive electricity supplier.

The following table summarizes the results of the energy business which have been separately presented as discontinued 
operations in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31: 

(Millions) 2012 2011
Revenues and sales $ 12.9 $ 2.6
Operating income from discontinued operations (0.5) (0.1)
Other income (0.2) —

  Net loss from discontinued operations $ (0.7) $ (0.1)

17. Subsequent Events:

On February 6, 2013, we declared a dividend of 25 cents per share on our common stock, which is payable on April 15, 2013 to 
shareholders of record on March 29, 2013.

On January 8, 2013, we announced a tender offer to purchase for cash any and all of the outstanding $650.0 million aggregate 
principal amount of PAETEC 2017 Notes. As of February 6, 2013, approximately $588.5 million outstanding of the PAETEC 
2017 Notes had been tendered. We paid total consideration of $1,050 per 1,000 aggregate principal amount of PAETEC 2017 
Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest from the last interest payment date to, but not including, the final settlement date. 
Following the completion of the tender offer, approximately $61.5 million aggregate principal amount of PAETEC 2017 Notes 
remain outstanding. Redemption of the amount outstanding is expected to occur on February 25, 2013.

On January 23, 2013, we completed the private placement of $700.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 6.375 percent 
senior unsecured notes due August 1, 2023, at an issue price at par to yield 6.375 percent. Proceeds from the private placement, 
together with available cash, if required, were used to pay the consideration for the tender offer and consent solicitation 
announced by Windstream on January 8, 2013 to purchase for cash any and all of the outstanding PAETEC 2017 Notes, 
together with related fees and expenses. The remaining net proceeds of the notes offering, together with available cash, will be 
used to redeem all of the remaining outstanding PAETEC Notes.

On January 23, 2013, we announced that we had amended our existing senior secured credit facilities to, among other things, 
provide for the incurrence of $1,345.0 million of additional term loans, due January 23, 2020, the proceeds of which were used 
to repay $19.5 million of the credit facility Tranche A2 and $280.9 million Tranche B1 term loans due in July 2013 and 
$1,042.9 million of the credit facility Tranche B2 term loans due in December 2015, plus accrued interest.

18. Quarterly Financial Information – (Unaudited):
 

  For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(Millions, except per share amounts) Total 4th 3rd (a) 2nd (a) 1st (a)

Revenues and sales $ 6,156.3 $ 1,538.2 $ 1,545.4 $ 1,534.4 $ 1,538.3
Operating income $ 887.5 $ 171.7 $ 236.6 $ 233.4 $ 245.8
Net income $ 168.0 $ 10.1 $ 46.6 $ 50.9 $ 60.4
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

Net income $.28 $.02 $.08 $.09 $.10
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18. Quarterly Financial Information – (Unaudited), Continued:

  For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
(Millions, except per share amounts) Total 4th (a) 3rd 2nd 1st
Revenues and sales $ 4,281.2 $ 1,205.3 $ 1,023.2 $ 1,029.7 $ 1,023.0
Operating income $ 963.5 $ 95.9 $ 277.3 $ 298.4 $ 291.9
Net income (loss) $ 169.5 $ (34.7) $ 78.1 $ 96.7 $ 29.4
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

Net income (loss) $.32 ($.07) $.15 $.19 $.06

(a)   Notes to Quarterly Financial Information:

The following tables present the effects of the revisions to our consolidated statements of income for the periods reported 
above. See discussion in Note 2, Revisions to Prior Period Financial Statements. We have assessed these revisions and 
determined they are not material to any previously issued financial statements and accordingly will revise with future filings.

(Millions, except per share amounts)

As 
Previously 
Reported

Effect of
Revision As Revised

For the quarter ended September 30, 2012
Consumer service revenues $ 335.4 $ (1.8) $ 333.6
Total service revenues 1,487.7 (1.8) 1,485.9
Product sales 64.7 (5.2) 59.5
Total revenues and sales 1,552.4 (7.0) 1,545.4
Selling, general, and administrative 225.4 4.1 229.5
Income taxes 33.3 (4.2) 29.1
Income from continuing operations 53.7 (7.1) 46.6
Net income (loss) 53.7 (7.1) 46.6
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

Net income (loss) $.09 ($.01) $.08

(Millions, except per share amounts)

As 
Previously 
Reported

Effect of
Revision As Revised

For the quarter ended June 30, 2012
Consumer service revenues $ 336.6 $ (0.9) $ 335.7
Total service revenues 1,470.0 (0.9) 1,469.1
Product sales 67.8 (2.5) 65.3
Total revenues and sales 1,537.8 (3.4) 1,534.4
Selling, general, and administrative (a) 236.0 2.0 238.0
Income taxes 33.8 (2.2) 31.6
Income from continuing operations 54.7 (3.3) 51.4
Net income (loss) 54.2 (3.3) 50.9
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

Net income (loss) $.09 $— $.09
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18. Quarterly Financial Information – (Unaudited), Continued:

(Millions, except per share amounts)

As
Previously
Reported

Effect of
Revision As Revised

For the quarter ended March 31, 2012
Consumer service revenues $ 338.0 $ (2.1) $ 335.9
Total service revenues 1,488.4 (2.1) 1,486.3
Product sales 56.8 (4.8) 52.0
Total revenues and sales 1,545.2 (6.9) 1,538.3
Income taxes 40.0 (2.7) 37.3
Income from continuing operations 64.7 (4.2) 60.5
Net income (loss) 64.6 (4.2) 60.4
Basic and diluted earnings per share:
   Net income (loss) $.11 ($.01) $.10

(Millions, except per share amounts)

As 
Previously 
Reported

Effect of
Revision As Revised

For the quarter ended December 31, 2011
Consumer service revenues $ 341.4 $ (1.9) $ 339.5
Total service revenues 1,163.7 (1.9) 1,161.8
Product sales 46.1 (2.6) 43.5
Total revenues and sales 1,209.8 (4.5) 1,205.3
Income taxes (18.7) (1.7) (20.4)
Income from continuing operations (31.8) (2.8) (34.6)
Net income (loss) (31.9) (2.8) (34.7)
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

Net income (loss) ($.06) ($.01) ($.07)

(a)  Includes $2.1 million of reclasses to conform with the current presentation.

Significant events affecting our historical operating trends in the quarterly periods were as follows:
 
• We completed the acquisition of PAETEC on November 30, 2011. The operating results from this business are 

included in our results for periods subsequent to its acquisition (see Note 3).



WINDSTREAM CORPORATION
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED RESULTS (NON-GAAP) (A)
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
for the years 2012 and 2011
(In millions)

Reconciliation of Revenues under GAAP to Pro forma Revenues:
Revenues and sales under GAAP 6,156.3$     4,281.2$     
Pro forma adjustments:

PAETEC revenues and sales prior to acquisition -              1,962.5       
Elimination of Windstream revenues from PAETEC prior to acquisition -              (4.6)             

Pro forma revenues and sales 6,156.3$     6,239.1$     

Reconciliation of Operating Income under GAAP to Pro forma adjusted OIBDA:
Operating income from continuing operations under GAAP 887.5$        963.5$        
Pro forma adjustments:

PAETEC pre-acquisition operating income, excluding M&I costs -              100.2          
PAETEC intangible asset amortization adjustment -              (60.4)           
M&I costs 65.4            69.8            

Pro forma operating income 952.9          1,073.1       

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,297.6       847.5          
PAETEC pre-acquisition depreciation and amortization expense -              301.7          

Pro forma OIBDA (B) 2,250.5       2,222.3       
Other adjustments:

Pension expense 67.4            166.3          
Restructuring charges 27.4            1.3              
Share-based compensation 43.2            24.1            
PAETEC share-based compensation prior to acquisition -              15.8            

Pro forma adjusted OIBDA (C) 2,388.5$     2,429.8$     

(A)

(B) OIBDA is operating income before depreciation and amortization.
(C)

2012 2011

Pro forma results adjusts results of operations under GAAP to include the acquisition of PAETEC, and to exclude all 
merger and integration costs related to strategic transactions.  PAETEC results include results from companies acquired 
by PAETEC for periods prior to those acquisitions and excludes the results of operations of the energy business acquired 
as part of PAETEC.

Pro forma adjusted OIBDA adjusts pro forma OIBDA for the impact of restructuring charges, pension expense and share-
based compensation.
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In 2012, our strategy drove steady 
improvements to our business and generated 
solid results. We continued to grow business 
and broadband revenue, which offset declines 
in consumer voice and wholesale revenue and 
resulted in stable revenue and cash flow. 

This consistent performance supports our 
commitment to invest in the future of our company 
while also continuing to pay our $1 annual dividend, 
which the management team and Board of Directors 
unanimously believe to be the best way to create 
value for our stockholders.

Our strategy is to maximize business and enterprise growth 
opportunities and maintain our stable consumer business  
while ensuring we have an efficient cost structure. In support  
of that strategy, we made important progress on our key 
initiatives in 2012.

2012 Accomplishments
First, we continued to grow strategic revenue. Business and 
broadband revenues now represent 70 percent of our total 
revenue – and grew by 2 percent during 2012. The business 
channel is leveraging our strengthened capabilities, advanced 
solutions and nationwide network, and — as an important 
validation of our core growth strategies — grew enterprise 
customers by 6% during 2012. 

Second, we invested in strategic capital initiatives to strengthen 
our network. This included deploying fiber deeper into our 
footprint, expanding our data centers and enhancing our 
broadband infrastructure. In addition, we made opportunistic 
capital investments to deploy fiber to wireless towers and extend 
our broadband addressability from 90 percent to 93 percent 
through our federal stimulus projects. Both the fiber to the 
tower and the stimulus capital initiatives are providing attractive 
investment returns while strengthening Windstream’s network 
capabilities and our platform for growth. 

Third, we achieved significant milestones integrating the PAETEC 
business. We are now operating as one organization, having 
combined all functional work groups and corporate systems. The 
former PAETEC markets have been rebranded and the combined 
business sales organization is leveraging our advanced solutions 
and nationwide network to gain market share and improve 
business revenues. 

Fourth, we improved our cost structure by realizing the targeted 
PAETEC synergies and completing a reorganization to streamline 
our processes and improve efficiency while lowering expenses. 
Together, these initiatives have enabled us to achieve annual  
run-rate savings of approximately $110 million.

And finally, we strengthened our balance sheet by refinancing 
certain maturities and high cost notes. Collectively, we reduced 
the amount of interest we will pay going forward by over 
$60 million and have improved our debt maturity profile by 
addressing all significant maturities though 2017.

Obviously, we are not happy with our stock performance 
during 2012 and look forward to executing on our strategy 
and differentiating our story to create value for investors. In 
addition, we remain committed to returning cash to shareholders 
in the form of our $1 annual dividend. April 15 will mark the 27th 
consecutive quarter in which we have paid this dividend and we 
expect the business and our cash flow to continue to support the 
dividend going forward.  

2013 Priorities
As a result of our progress to date and the opportunities we have 
ahead, we enter 2013 with terrific momentum. Our priorities 
include:

We will make targeted investments in our business channel, 
including opening several new data centers and hiring 
sales personnel to increase sales momentum and enhance 
the customer experience. Growing the business channel 
is an important part of our strategy, and we believe these 
investments will generate strong returns through improved 
revenue and profitability.

We expect to substantially complete our capital 
investments related to the fiber to the tower projects, 
reaching approximately 4,500 towers by year’s end. In 
addition, we will finish most of our broadband stimulus 
initiatives which expands our addressability to roughly 
75,000 new households. As we exit 2013, capital spending 
related to these projects will decrease substantially, 
resulting in improved cash flow which provides continued 
support to our dividend payment.

We plan to continue to improve the balance sheet by 
directing our excess free cash flow – after our dividend –  
to debt repayment. 

Looking Ahead 
As we pursue our long-term strategic vision, we are 
strengthening our company by creating a single culture that 
supports our goal to be the premier enterprise communications 
and services provider in the United States while maintaining our 
strong, stable consumer business. This culture is built on positive 
accountability among highly engaged associates to provide great 
customer service and drive superior results for our shareholders.

I am very happy with the progress we are making executing our 
strategic vision and I am confident that we have the right people, 
the right assets and the right strategy to make Windstream a 
force in the marketplace for the long term. As always, I want to 
thank our entire team for their diligent efforts. And, most of all, 
I want to express my deep gratitude to our shareholders for the 
support you have given all of us at Windstream. 

Jeffery R. Gardner
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 26, 2013

A Letter from the President And Chief exeCutive offiCer

1

2

3

Growth in strAteGiC 
AreAs heLPinG to 

offset deCLines in 
Consumer voiCe And 
whoLesALe revenue

$6.2 biLLion
revenue

down 1% from 2011

strAteGiC Growth AreAs now 70% of revenuesstrAteGiC Growth AreAs now 70% of revenues

Presented on a pro forma basis; *Product excludes business and consumer broadband product revenue

GoAL: 
ProduCe stAbLe free 

CAsh fLow And  
LonG-term suPPort  

of dividend

strAteGy we Are exeCutinG to drive imProved finAnCiAL PerformAnCe

Accelerate 
revenue growth 
opportunities

Increase efficiency 
& optimize cost 
structure

Pursue capital growth 
investments within 
our targeted 11-13% 
of revenues1 2 3

strAteGy we Are exeCutinG to drive imProved finAnCiAL PerformAnCe

weLL-Positioned

why invest in windstreAm?

A trAnsformed ComPAny

weLL-Positioned strenGths  PowerfuL CAsh fLow 
business

A trAnsformed ComPAny

the new windstream
• Successful repositioning in 

growth segments driving 
improved financial performance

Leveraging strong Platform
• National footprint, advanced 

capabilities

• Cost discipline

• Capital efficient delivery model

robust, sustainable fCf
• Delivering solid FCF while 

investing in our network

• Returning cash to our 
shareholders in the form  
of a $1 annual dividend

why invest in windstreAm?

Contacts
Transfer Agent:
Computershare Investor Services, LLC
2 North LaSalle Street
Chicago, IL 60602
800-697-8153
http://www.computershare.com/us/investor

Individual Shareholder Contact:
Genesis white
Staff Manager of Investor Relations and  
Capital Markets
Windstream Corporation
4001 Rodney Parham Road
Little Rock, AR 72212-2442
Phone: 501-748-7216
E-mail: genesis.white@windstream.com 

Institutional Shareholder Contact:
Mary Michaels
Director of Investor Relations and  
Capital Markets
Windstream Corporation
4001 Rodney Parham Road
Little Rock, AR 72212-2442
Phone: 501-748-7578
E-mail: mary.michaels@windstream.com

old windstream – 2006
• Rural, residential
• Declining revenues
• Regional
• Modest business sales

new windstream – 2013+
• Successful repositioning in growth segments
• Stable revenue
• National footprint
• Strong business focus with advanced capabilities
• Capital efficient go to market strategy



Windstream Corporation 
4001 Rodney Parham Road | Little Rock, AR 72212

windstream.com
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